ANNOTATED MINUTES

Tuesday, June 29, 1993 - 9:30 AM
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602

REGULAR MEETING

"Acting Chair Henry C. Miggins convened the meeting at 9:35 a.m., with Vice-Chair
Gary Hansen, Commissioners Sharron Kelley, Tanya Collier and Dan Saltzman present.

REGULAR AGENDA | "

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES

R-1 Ratification of Amendment No. 1 to Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract #102963,
Between the City of Portland and Multnomah County, Housing and Community
Services Division, Youth Program Office, Allocating $100,000 Paymert in Lieu of
Taxes (PILOT) Funds for Emergency Youth Services, for the Period Upon Execunon
through June 30, 1993

COMMISSIONER HANSEN MOVED AND COMMISSIONER
COLLIER SECONDED, APPROVAL OF R-1. REY ESPANA
EXPLANATION AND RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTIONS.
AGREEMENT UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.

R-2 Budget Modification DSS #66 Requesting Authorization to Decrease the Mental
' _Health, Youth and Family Services Division Budget by a Total of $231,628 to
Reconcile Budget with Actual Funding Levels through State Revenue Amendment

#49-R

UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER HANSEN, SECONDED
BY COMMISSIONER COLLIER R-2 WAS UNANIMOUSLY
APPROVED.

SHERIFF’S OFFICE

R-3 - Budget Modzﬁcatzon MCSO #19 Requesting Authorization to Transfer $17,896 from
Equipment to Personal Services, within the Corrections Division, Inmate Welfare
Budget to Fund a Temporary Chaplain :

COMMISSIONER HANSEN MOVED AND COMMISSIONER
COLLIER SECONDED, APPROVAL OF R-3. LARRY AAB
EXPLANATION. BUDGET MODIFICATION UNANIMOUSLY
APPROVED. ‘ ' :

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

R-4 ORDER in the Matter of Canceling Uncollectible Personal Properzy Taxes 1984-85
through 1989-90 '
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R-5

2

COMMISSIONER HANSEN MOVED AND COMMISSIONER

- KELLEY SECONDED, . APPROVAL OF R-4. KATHY
- TUNEBERG EXPLANATION AND RESPONSE TO BOARD

- QUESTIONS. ORDER 93-234 UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.

" Budget Modification DES #31 Requesting Authorization to Transfer $130,000 from

Road Fund Contingency to Personal Services, within the Transportation Division
Budget, for Fiscal Year 1992-93 Wage Settlements

‘UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER HANSEN, SECONDED
BY COMMISSIONER KELLEY, R-5 WAS UNANIMOUSLY
APPROVED.

Budget Modification DES #32 Requesting Authorization to Transfer $38,000 fr(FJmA
General Fund Contingency to the Fair and Expo Division Budget to Cover a
Revenue Shortfall in the Fair Fund

COMMISSIONER HANSEN MOVED AND COMMISSIONER

'COLLIER SECONDED, APPROVAL OF R-6.  BETSY
WILLIAMS EXPLANATION AND RESPONSE TO BOARD
QUESTIONS. BUDGET MODIFICATION UNANIMOUSLY
APPROVED. |

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

R-7

Budget Modification NOND #38 Requesting Authorizatibn td Transfer Funds from _
Materials and Supplies to Capital Equipment, within the Commission District No. 1
Budget, to Purchase a Computer for Office Operations

COMMISSIONER COLLIER MOVED AND COMMISSIONER
KELLEY SECONDED, APPROVAL OF R-7. COMMISSIONER
SALTZMAN EXPLANATION.  BUDGET MODIFICATION
UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.

Budget Modiﬁcaiion NOND #39 Requesting Authorizatibn to Transfer Funds from

. Materials and Supplies to Capital Equipment, within the Commission District No. 2

Budget, to Purchase Computers for Office Operations

COMMISSIONER COLLIER MOVED AND COMMISSIONER
KELLEY SECONDED, APPROVAL OF R-8. COMMISSIONER
HANSEN EXPLANATION. BUDGET MODIFICATION
UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED. = '

SERVICE DISTRICTS

RS9

) _
(Recess as the Board of County Commissioners and convene.as the Governing Body
of Mid-County Street Lighting Servzce Dzsrrzct No. 14)

RESOLUTION in the Matter of the Adoptzon of the 1993-94 Budget for Mid-County
Street Lighting Service District No. 14, for the Fzscal Year July 1, 1993 to June 30,
-
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R-10

1994 and Making Apbroprz'dtions Thereunder, Pursuant to ORS 294.435

COMMISSIONER HANSEN MOVED AND COMMISSIONER
KELLEY SECONDED, APPROVAL OF R-9. DAVE WARREN
EXPLANATION.  RESOLUTION 93-235 UNANIMOUSLY
APPROVED. ' '

(Recess as the Governing Body of Mid-County Street Lighting Service District No.
14 and convene as the Governing Body of Dunthorpe-Riverdale Sanitary Service
District No. 1)

RESOLUTION in the Matter of the ‘Adoption of the 1993-94 Budget Sfor
Dunthorpe-Riverdale Sanitary Service District No. 1, for the Fiscal Year July 1, 1993
to June 30, 1994 and Making Appropriations Thereunder, Pursuant to ORS 294.435

UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER COLLIER, SECONDED .
BY COMMISSIONER KELLEY, RESOLUTION 93-236 WAS
UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED

(Recess as the Gove)‘iiing Body of Dunthorpe-Riverdale Sanitary Service District No.
I and reconvene as the Board of County Commissioners)

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

R-11

RESOLUTION in the Matter of the Adoption of the 1993-94 Budget for Multnomah
County, Oregon, for the Fiscal Year July 1, 1993 to June 30, 1994 and Making the.
Appropriations Thereunder, Pursuant to ORS 294.435

COMMISSIONER COLLIER MOVED AND COMMISSIONER
KELLEY SECONDED, APPROVAL OF R-11. MR. WARREN
 EXPLANATION AND RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTIONS.
COMMISSIONER HANSEN MOVED AND COMMISSIONER
COLLIER SECONDED, APPROVAL OF THE TECHNICAL
AMENDMENTS (AMENDMENT NO. 1). MR. WARREN
RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTIONS. AMENDMENT NO. 1
UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED. UPON MOTION OF
COMMISSIONER COLLIER, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
- COLLIER, APPROVAL OF CARRYOVER AMENDMENT NO.
2 WAS UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED. UPON MOTION OF
COMMISSIONER HANSEN, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
COLLIER, APPROVAL OF REVENUE AMENDMENT NO. 3
WAS UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED. COMMISSIONER
SALTZMAN MOVED AND COMMISSIONER COLLIER
SECONDED, APPROVAL OF TENTATIVELY APPROVED
JUNE 25 AMENDMENTS (AMENDMENT NO. 4). MR.
WARREN RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTIONS AND
DISCUSSION. BOARD COMMENTS. COMMISSIONER
SALTZMAN MOVED AND COMMISSIONER COLLIER
SECONDED, AN AMENDMENT TO PREVIOUS MOTION,
DESCRIBING CONTRIBUTION TO THE ASSOCIATION FOR
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PORTLAND PROGRESS AS A CONTRIBUTION TO ITS
ECONOMIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FOR TREATMENT
FOR CHRONICALLY MENTALLY ILL (AMENDMENT NO. 4-
A). BOARD COMMENTS. AMENDMENT NO. 4-A FAILED,
WITH COMMISSIONERS COLLIER AND SALTZMAN VOTING
AYE AND COMMISSIONERS KELLEY, HANSEN AND

MIGGINS VOTING NO. COMMISSIONER SALTZMAN

MOVED AND COMMISSIONER COLLIER SECONDED, AN
AMENDMENT TO AMENDMENT NO. 4, APPROVING
PAYMENT OF $72,000 ASSESSMENT TO ASSOCIATION FOR
PORTLAND - PROGRESS (AMENDMENT NO. 4-B).
AMENDMENT NO. 4-BAPPROVED, WITH COMMISSIONERS
COLLIER, SALTZMAN AND MIGGINS VOTING-AYE AND
COMMISSIONERS KELLEY AND HANSEN VOTING NO.
AMENDMENT NO. 4 UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED AS
AMENDED. MR. WARREN AND BOARD DISCUSSION.

COMMISSIONER SALTZMAN MOVED AND COMMISSIONER
COLLIER SECONDED, TO ALLOW DISCUSSION OF ONLY
THOSE PROGRAM AMENDMENTS WHICH HAVE NO
IMPACT ON THE GENERAL FUND (AMENDMENT NO. 5).
BOARD COMMENTS. AMENDMENT NO. 5 FAILED, WITH
COMMISSIONERS COLLIER AND SALTZMAN VOTING AYE
AND COMMISSIONERS KELLEY, HANSEN AND MIGGINS
VOTING NO. COMMISSIONER SALTZMAN MOVED AND
COMMISSIONER COLLIER SECONDED, THAT ANY MOTION
TO RESTORE AN AMENDMENT WHICH HAS GENERAL
FUND MUST HAVE A CORRESPONDING CUT IDENTIFIED.
BOARD COMMENTS (AMENDMENT NO. 6). BOARD

'COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION. AMENDMENT NO. 6

APPROVED, WITH COMMISSIONERS COLLIER, SALTZMAN
AND MIGGINS VOTING AYE AND COMMISSIONERS
KELLEY AND HANSEN VOTING NO. COMMISSIONER
KELLEY DISCUSSION AND EXPLANATION IN RESPONSE
TO QUESTIONS OF BILLI ODEGAARD AND MR. WARREN.
UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER KELLEY, SECONDED
BY COMMISSIONER HANSEN, THE APPROPRIATION OF
$21,000 TO HEALTH DEPARTMENT BUDGET TO FUND

POSITION AND DEVELOP ILLEGAL DUMPING PROGRAM

(HD 6) WAS UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.  BOARD
COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION. MS. ODEGAARD AND TOM
FRONK RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTIONS.
COMMISSIONER COLLIER MOVED AND COMMISSIONER
HANSEN SECONDED, TO RESTORE PATHOLOGY
ASSISTANTS POSITIONS WITHIN CURRENT HEALTH
DEPARTMENT BUDGET (HD 15). MR. WARREN AND MR.
FRONK COMMENTS. BOARD COMMENTS. HD IS
UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED. COMMISSIONER HANSEN
MOVED AND COMMISSIONER KELLEY SECONDED,
APPROVAL OF DA 6. KELLY BACON EXPLANATION. DA
6 UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED. LAURENCE KRESSEL
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EXPLANATION IN RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTIONS.
COMMISSIONER SALTZMAN COMMENTS REGARDING
SHERIFF’S OFFICE PRIORITIES. UPON MOTION OF
COMMISSIONER COLLIER, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
HANSEN, MCSO 33 WAS UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.
UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER COLLIER, SECONDED
BY COMMISSIONER HANSEN, MCSO 34-R WAS
UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED. UPON MOTION OF
COMMISSIONER COLLIER, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
HANSEN, DES 27, DES 29 AND DES 30 WERE
UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED. = UPON MOTION OF
COMMISSIONER COLLIER, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
KELLEY, NOND 8 WAS UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED. MR.
WARREN EXPLANATION REGARDING BUDGET
AMENDMENT - REVENUE NO. 2. COMMISSIONER
SALTZMAN EXPLANATION REGARDING CHILD ABUSE
MULTI-DISCIPLINARY TEAM. UPON MOTION OF
COMMISSIONER COLLIER, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
HANSEN, BUDGET AMENDMENT REVENUE NO. 2 WAS
UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED. COMMISSIONER COLLIER
MOVED AND COMMISSIONER HANSEN SECONDED,
APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AS AMENDED. BOARD
COMMENTS. COURTHOUSE SECURITY, NEEDLE
EXCHANGE AND HOOPER COLA FUNDS IN
CONTINGENCY. RESOLUTION 93- 237 ADOPTING BUDGET
AS AMENDED UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED

R-12 RESOLUTION in the Matter of Levying Ad Valorem Property Taxes for Multnomah
County, Oregon for Fiscal Year 1993-94

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER COLLIER, SECONDED
BY COMMISSIONER KELLEY, RESOLUTION 93-238 WAS
UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.

UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER KELLEY, SECONDED
BY COMMISSIONER COLLIER, CONSIDERATION OF THE
FOLLOWING UNANIMOUS CONSENT ITEM WAS
UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.

UC-1 Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract #500064, Between the State
of Oregon, Department of Human Resources, Children’s Services Division and
- Multmomah County, District Attorney’s Office, Providing Legal Consultation and
Processing, Filing and Litigating Cases in Multnomah County Juvenile Court
Pursuant to State Law, for the Purpose of Terminating Parental Rights to Children
who have been Neglected, Abused or Abandoned, for the Period July 1, 1993 through

December 31, 1993

UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER COLLIER, SECONDED
-5-



BY COMMISSIONER SALTZMAN, AGREEMENT
. UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.

There being no further business, the meéting was adjourned at 11:03 a.m.

OFFICE OF THE BOARD CLERK
Sfor MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON

RO C(Crastao

Deborah L. Bogstad

- Tuesday, June 29, 1993 - 1:30 PM
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602

WORK SESSION

Ws-1 Work Session to Consider Emergency Medical Services Ambulance Service Area Plan
Elements.  Public May Intend, However Invited Testimony Only, No Public
Testimony. Facilitated by Bill Collins. ’

BILL COLLINS, JOHN PRAGGASTIS, ROY MAGNASON, LOU
PARETTA, MARK DRAKE, PHIL MOYER, RANDY LOWRY,
NEIL JAMES, -DAVID LONG AND GARY OXMAN
PRESENTATION AND RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTIONS.

. Wednesday, June 30, 1993 - 9:00 AM
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602

BOARD BRIEFING

B-1 Update on the 1993 Legislative Session.  Presented by Multnomah County
Intergovernmental Relations Officer Fred Neal.

FRED NEAL AND HOWARD KLINK PRESENTATION AND
“RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTIONS. '

Wednesday, June 30, 1993 - 9:30 AM
Multmomah County Courthouse, Room 602

WORK SESSION

Ws-2 Work Session to Consider Emergency Medical Services Ambulance Service Area Plan
Elements.  Public - May Intend, However Invited Testzmony Only, No Publzc
T estzmony Facilitated by Bill Collins. '

BILL COLLINS, JOHN PRAGGASTIS, SGT. MERLIN JUILFS,
BOB YOESLE, DR. JOHN MOREHEAD, LYNN DAVIS DAVID
6-




'PHILLIPS, MARK DRAKE, TRACE SKEEN, ALEX JENSEN,

DR. GARY OXMAN, RON HEINTZMAN AND RANDY
LEONARD PRESENTATION AND RESPONSE TO BOARD
QUESTIONS.

Thursday, July 1, 1993 - 9:30 AM

Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602

'REGULAR MEETING

Acting Chair Henry C. Miggins convened the meeting at 9:30 a.m., ‘With
Commissioners Sharron Kelley, Tanya Collier and Dan Saltzman present.

UPON REQUEST OF COMMISSIONER COLLIER, C4 WAS
REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR.

CONSENT CALENDAR
UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER KELLEY, SECONDED
BY COMMISSIONER SALTZMAN, CONSENT CALENDAR
ITEMS C-1 THROUGH C-3 AND C-5 WERE UNANIMOUSLY
APPROVED.

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

C-1 In the Matter of the Reappointment of Peter McGill to the M ULTNOMAH COUNTY

AGRICULTURAL REVIEW BOARD

- S

- C-2 In the Matter of the Appointments of Rafael Arrellano, Bill Muir, Dan Saltzmah,

Hank Miggins, Gussie McRobert and Frank Roberts to the MULTNOMAH COUNTY
COMMUNITY. ACTION COMMISSION

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

C-3 FINAL ORDER Modifying Decision CU 20-92 in the Matter of Review of Condition

‘B of the Hearings Officer’s Decision Approving a Non-Resource Related Dwelling
in the Multiple Use Forest District :

ORDER 93-239.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

c-5 Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract #200524, Between Multnomah
County and Multnomah Education Service District, Providing Shared Resources in
Order to Comply with ORS 433 Requiring the Establishment of a System to Identify,
Test and Track Students Born in Countries with High Rates of T uberculosis, for the
Period July 1, 1993 through June 30, 1994 ' , Lo

- REGULAR AGENDA




DISTRICT ATTORNEY

R-1 Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract #700014, Between the State
of Oregon, Department of Human Resources, Adult and Family Services Division and
Multmomah County, District Attorney’s Office, Providing 75% Reimbursement of
Prosecution Costs on Food Stamp Fraud Invesnganon Cases, for the Period July 1,
1993 through June 30, 1996

UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER KELLEY, SECONDED
BY COMMISSIONER COLLIER R-1 WAS UNANIMOUSLY
AI’PROVED

R-2 Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract #700024, Between the City
of Portland, Police Bureau and Multnomah County, Providing the District Attorney’s
Office with Three Full-Time Investigators, for the Period July 1, 1993 through June

30, 1994
UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER KELLEY, SECONDED
BY COMMISSIONER COLLIER, R-2 WAS UNANIMOUSLY
. APPROVED.
R-3 Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract #700044, Berween the City

of Portland, Police Bureau and Multnomah County, District Attorney’s Office, to
Fund One Detective for Services Related to the Multi-Agency Gaming Law
Enforcement Revenue Task Force, for the Period February 22, 1993 rhrough June .
30, 1993

COMMISSIONER KELLEY MOVED AND COMMISSIONER
COLLIER SECONDED, APPROVAL OF R-3.

Vice-Chair Gary Hansen arrived at 9 35 a.m.

AGREEMENT UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

R-4 Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract #500463, Between Multnomah
~ County, Multmomah County Sheriff’s Office and the City of Portland, Providing the
City’s Bureau of Emergency Communications an Emergency Back-Up Location at the
Multnomah County Sheriff’s Office, 12240 NE Glisan, for the Period Upon Execution

through June 30, 1999

UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER KELLEY, SECONDED
BY COMMISSIONER COLLIER, R-4 WAS UNANIMOUSLY
APPROVED.

DEI’ARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

R-5 First Reading and Possible Adoption of an ORDINANCE Relating to the
Establishment, Membersth, and Operation of the Multnomah County Citizen
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R-6

R-7

R-8

Bikeway Advisory Committee, and Declaring an Emergency

PROPOSED ORDINANCE READ BY TITLE ONLY. COPIES
.AVAILABLE. COMMISSIONER SALTZMAN MOVED AND
COMMISSIONER COLLIER SECONDED, APPROVAL OF
FIRST READING AND ADOPTION. LAURENCE KRESSEL
RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTIONS. COMMISSIONER
SALTZMAN MOVED, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER

COLLIER, AMENDMENT TO (B)(1) STATING THE CITIZEN .

BIKEWAY ADVISORY COMMITTEE SHALL BE APPOINTED
BY THE COUNTY CHAIR UPON THE APPROVAL OF THE
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS. JOY AL SOFI
- TESTIMONY. AMENDMENT UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.
MR. KRESSEL RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTION. UPON
MOTION OF COMMISSIONER COLLIER, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER SALTZMAN, - ORDINANCE 770 AS
AMENDED UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED. :

Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract 302613, Between Multnomah
County and Powell Valley Water District, Incorporatiig Needed Water Line
Improvements for SE Foster Road Construction Project (SE 122nd - SE 136th)

UPON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER KELLEY, SECONDED
BY COMMISSIONER HANSEN, R-6 WAS UNANIMOUSLY
APPROVED.

RESOLUTION Recommending Approval of the Multnomah County 20 Year 1993-2012 .

Capital Improvement Plan and Program for Willamette River Bridges

COMMISSIONER'KELLEY MOVED AND COMMISSIONER

HANSEN SECONDED, APPROVAL OF R-7. STAN GHEZZI

EXPLANATION AND RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTIONS.
RESOLUTION 93-240 UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.

ORDER in the Matter of Imposing Gross Weight Restriction on Vehicles Using the
Morrison Bridge Over Willamette River

- COMMISSIONER HANSEN MOVED AND COMMISSIONER

" KELLEY SECONDED, APPROVAL OF R-8. MR. GHEZZI
EXPLANATION AND RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTIONS.
ORDER 93-241 UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.

. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

C-4

Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract #200514, Between Multnomah
County and Oregon Health Sciences University, Providing a Single Point for Medical
Direction, Data Collection and Research as Required by Multnomah County Code
and Emergency Medical Services, for the Period July 1, 1993 through June 30, 1994

COMMISSIONER ‘COLLIER MOVED AND COMMISSIONER
_ -9
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KELLEY SECONDED, APPROVAL OF C-4.  BILLI
ODEGAARD EXPLANATION AND RESPONSE TO BOARD
QUESTIONS. AGREEMENT UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED.

PUBLIC COMMENT

" R-9 Opportunzty for Publzc Comment on Non-Agcnda Matters. Testimony Limited to
Three Minutes Per Person. -

There being no further business,v the meeting was adjourned at 10:04 a.m.

OFFICE OF THE BOARD CLERK
for MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON

G O7rosaw C @ocﬁh o

- Deborah L. Bogstad

Thursday, July 1, 1993 - 1:30 PM
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602

PUBLIC HEARING

Acting Chair Henry C. Miggins convened the fneeting at 1:38 p.m., with Vice-Chair
"Gary Hansen, Commissioners Sharron Kelley, Tanya Collier and Dan Saltzman present.

PH-1 .- - Board Hearin.g and Public Testimony on Emergency Medical Services Ambulance
Service Area Submitted Plans and Plan Elements.

‘CHARLIE HALES, JOHN PRAGGASTIS, MARK DRAKE,
LYNN DAVIS, BEN WALTERS, RICHARD LAZAR, FRED
CASH, JOHN SHIPLEY, CYNDY FLOCK, RYAN ROY, BOB
YOESLE, WARREN ANDREWS, CHARLES SCADDEN, ERIC
PEDERSEN, TAMMIE ANDERSON, SEAN RILEY, MARK
WEBSTER, COLE THEANDER, EUGENE ZAHARIE, LORIN
McPHERSON, RANDY BRUSSE, RON MARIANI, JAMES
BEERY, RANDY LAUER, TERRY MARSH, GARY MCcLEAN,
MARY ANN MORRISON, PONTINE ROSTECK, HAROLD
STAIGLE, NIKKI JOHNSTON, BETH MURPHY, STEPHEN
KAFOURY, JON JUI, FRANK SIMMONS AND KYLE GORMAN
TESTIMONY AND RESPONSE TO BOARD QUESTIONS.

There being no Jurther business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:40 p.m.

OFFICE OF THE BOARD CLERK
for MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON

Deborah L. Bogstad




MULTNOMAH CounTY OREGON

: : . ) BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
OFFICE OF THE BOARD CLERK : ) GLADYS McCOY o - CHAIR s 248-3308

SUITE 1510, PORTLAND BUILDING : . ' DAN SALTZMAN o DISTRICT1 e 248-5220
1120 SW. FIFTH AVENUE GARY HANSEN «_ DISTRICT2 o 248-5219
PORTLAND, OREGON 97204 TANYACOLLIER o DISTRICT3 o 248-5217
- SHARRON KELLEY « DISTRICT 4 o 248-5213
CLERK'S OFFICE o  248-3277 » 248-5222
AGENDA
MEETINGS OF THE MU_LTNOMAH COUNTY BOARD"OF COMMISSIONERS
N FOR THE WEEK OF
JUNE 28 —~ JULY 2, 1993
Tuesday, June 29, 1993 - 9:30 AM - Regular Meeting. . . . . .Page 2
Tuesday, June 29, 1993 - 1:30 PM - Work Session . . . . . . .Page 3
Wednesday, June 30, 1993 - 9:00 AM'— Board Briefing . . . . .Page 4
Wednesday[ June 30, 1993 - 9:30 AM - Work Session . . . . . .Page 4
Thursday, July -1, 1993 - 9:30 AM - Regular Meeting. . . . . .Page 4
Thursday, July 1, 1993 - 1:30 PM - Public Hearing . . . . . .Page 6

L

Thursday Meetings of the Multnomah County Board of
Commissioners -are taped and can be seen at the following times:

Thursday, 10:00 PM, Channel 11 for East and West side
subscribers _ '

Thursday, 10:00 PM, Channel 49 for Columbia Cable
(Vancouver) subscribers , o

Friday, 6:00 PM, Channel 22 for Paragon Cable (Multnomah
East) subscribers ‘ v

Saturday 12:00 PM, Channel 21 for East Portland and East
County subscribers ' '

INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES MAY CALL THE OFFICE OF THE BOARD
CLERRK AT 248-3277 OR 248-5222 OR MULTNOMAH COUNTY TDD PHONE

248-5040 FOR INFORMATION ON AVAILABLE SERVICES AND ACCESSIBILITY.
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Tuesdéy, June 29, 1993 = 9:30 AM
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602

REGULAR MEETING

REGULAR AGENDA

DEPARTMENT OF CIAL SERVICES

R-1 .

Ratification of Amendment No. 1 to Intergovernmental
Agreement, Contract #102963, Between the City of Portland
and Multnomah County, Housing - and Community Services
Division, Youth Program Office, Allocating $100,000 Payment
in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) Funds for Emergency Youth
Services, for the Period Upon Execution through June 30,

11993

Budget Modification DSS #66 Requesting Authorization to
Decrease the Mental Health, Youth and Family Services
Division Budget by a Total of $231,628 to Reconcile Budget .
with Actual Funding Levels through State Revenue Amendment
#49-R

SHERIFF'S OFFICE

" R-3

Budget Modification MCSO #19 Reguesting~ Authorization to
Transfer $17,896 from Eguipment to Personal Services,
within the Corrections Division, Inmate Welfare Budget, to

.Fund a Temporary Chaplain

" DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

'R-4

ORDER in the Matter of ‘Cancelling Uncollectable Personal

' Property Taxes, 1984-85 through 1989-90

Budget Modification DES 431 ‘Requesting Authorization to
Transfer $130,000 from Road Fund Contingency to Personal
Services, within the Transportation Division Budget, for
Fiscal Year 1992-93 Wage Settlements

" Budget Modification DES #32 Requesting Authorization to

Transfer $38,000 from General Fund Contingency to the Fair

-and Expo Division Budget, to Cover a Revenue Shortfall in

the Fair Fund

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

R-7

Budget Modification NOND #38 Requesting Authorization to
Transfer Funds from Materials and Supplies to Capital
Egquipment, within the Commission District No. 1 Budget, to
Purchase a Computer for Office Operations :

Budget Modification NOND #39 Requesting Authorization to
Transfer Funds from Materials and Supplies to Capital
Equipment, within the Commission District No. 2 Budget, to
Purchase Computers for Office Operations o

-2-
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SERVICE DISTRICTS

(Recess as the Board of County Commissioners and convene as
the Governing Body of’ Mid-County Street nghtlng Service
District No. 14)

RESOLUTION in the Matter of the Adoption of the 1993-94
Budget for Mid-County Street Lighting Service District No.
14, for the Fiscal Year July 1, 1993 to June 30, 1994 and
Making Appropriations Thereunder, Pursuant to ORS 294.435

(Recess as the Governing Body of Mid-County Street Lighting
Service District No. 14 and convene as the Governing Body
of Dunthorpe-Riverdale Sanitary Service District No. 1)

RESOLUTION in the Matter of ‘the Adoption of the 1993-94
Budget for Dunthorpe-Riverdale Sanitary Service District
No. 1, for the Fiscal Year July 1, 1993 to June 30, 1994
and Making Appropriations Thereunder, Pursuant to ORS
294.435

(Recess as the Governing Body of Dunthorpe-Riverdale
Sanitary Service District No. 1 and reconvene as the Board
of County Commissioners) ‘

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

R-11

RESOLUTION  in the Matter of the Adoption of the 1993-94
Budget for Multnomah County, Oregon, for the Fiscal Year
July 1, 1993 to June 30, 1994 and Making the Appropriations
Thereunder, Pursuant to ORS 294.435 ,

RESOLUTION in the Matter of Levying Ad Valorem Property
Taxes for Multnomah County, Oregon for-Fiscal Year 1993-94

WS-1

Tuesday, June 29, 1993 - 1:30 PM
Multnomah County Courthouse,'Room 602

WORK_SESSION

Work Session to Consider Emergency Medical Services
Ambulance Service Area Plan Elements. Public May Intend,
However Invited Testimony Only, No Public Testimony.
Facilitated by Bill Collins. :




Wednesday, June 30, 1993 - 9:00 AM
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602
BOARD BRIEFING

Update on the 1993 Legislative Session. Pregented by

B Multnomah County‘ Intergovernmental Relations Officer Fred
" Neal. :
' WedneSday,lJune 30, 1993 - 9:30 AM
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602
| WORK _SESSION
WS-2 Work Session to Consider ‘Emergéncy Medicai Services

Ambulance Service Area Plan Elements. Public May Intend,
However Invited Testimony Only, No Public Testimony.

-Facilitated by Bill Collins.

Thursday, July 1, 1993 - 9:30 AM
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602

REGULAR MEETING

CONSENT CALENDAR

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

c-1

c-2

In the Matter of the Reappointmenbvof Peter McGill to the
MULTNOMAH COUNTY AGRICULTURAL REVIEW BOARD

In the Matter of the Appointments of Rafael Arrellano, Bill
Muir, -Dan Saltzman, Hank Miggins, Gussie McRobert and Frank
Roberts to the MULTNOMAH COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION COMMISSION

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

c-3

FINAL ORDER Modlfylng Decision CU 20-92 in the Matter of
Review of Condition B of the Hearings Officer's Decision
Approv1ng a Non-Resource Related Dwelling in the Multiple
Use Forest District

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

C~4

Ratification of  Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract
#200514, Between Multnomah County and Oregon Health
Sciences University, Providing a Single Point for Medical
Direction, Data Collection and Research as . Required by
Multnomah County Code and Emergency Medical Services, for
the Period July 1, 1993 through June 30, 1994

-4~



Ratification of  Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract
#200524, Between Multnomah County and Multnomah Education
Service District, Providing Shared Resources in ‘Order to
Comply with ORS 433 Requiring the Establishment of a System
to Identify, Test and Track Students Born in Countries with
High Rates of Tuberculosis, for the Period July 1, 1993
through June 30, 1994

REGULAR AGENDA

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

R-1

Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract
#700014, Between the State of Oregon, Department of Human
Resources, Adult and Family Services Division and Multnomah
County,  District Attorney’'s Office, Providing 75%
Reimbursement of Prosecution Costs on Food Stamp Fraud
Investigation Cases, for the Period July 1, 1993 through
June 30, 1996 . :

Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract

#700024, Between the City of Portland, Police Bureau and
Multnomah County, Providing the District Attorney’s Office
with Three Full-Time Investigators, for the Period July 1,
1993 through June 30, 1994 :

Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract
#700044, Between the City of Portland, Police Bureau and
Multnomah County, District Attorney's Office, to Fund One
Detective for Services Related to the Multi-Agency Gaming
Law Enforcement Revenue Task Force, for the Period February
22, 1993 through June 30, 1993 :

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

R-4

Ratification of Intergovefnmental Agreement, Contract
#500463, = Between Multnomah County, Multnomah - County
Sheriff's Office and the City of Portland, Providing the
City’'s Bureau of Emergency Communications an Emergency
Back-Up Location at the Multnomah County Sheriff's Office,
12240 NE Glisan, for the Period Upon Execution through June
30, 1999 ’

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

R-5

First Reading and . Possible Adoption of  an ORDINANCE
Relating to the Establishment, Membership, and Operation of
the Multnomah County Citizen Bikeway Advisory Committee,
and Declaring an Emergency

Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract
302613, Between Multnomah County and Powell Valley Water
District, Incorporating Needed Water Line Improvements for
SE Foster Road Construction Project (SE 122nd - SE 136th)

RESOLUTION Recommending Approval of the Multnomah County 20
Year 1993-2012 Capital Improvement Plan and Program for
Willamette River Bridges '

-5 -



PUBLIC

R-9

ORDER in the Matter of Imposing Grbss Weight Restrictioﬁvon
Vehicles Using the Morrison Bridge Over Willamette River

COMMENT

Opportunity for Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters.
Testimony Limited to Three Minutes Per Person.

PH-1

Thursday, July 1, 1993 - 1:30 PM
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602

PUBLIC HEARING .

Board Hearing and Public Testimony on Emergency Medical
Services Ambulance Service Area Submitted Plans and Plan

.Elements.

0265C/85-90/db



MULTNOMAH COUNTY OREGON

o : BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OFFICE OF THE BOARD CLERK | GLADYS McCOY

. CHAIR e 248-3308

SUITE 1510, PORTLAND BUILDING DAN SALTZMAN ¢  DISTRICT 1 e 248-5220
1120 S.W. FIFTH AVENUE : ) -GARY HANSEN e  DISTRICT 2 e 248-5219
PORTLAND, OREGON 97204 TANYA COLLIER « DISTRICT3 e 248-5217
SHARRON KELLEY ¢ DISTRICT 4  248-5213

CLERK'S.OFFICE 248-3277 o 248-5222

SUPPLEMENTAL AGENDA

Tuesday, June 29, 1993 - 9:30 AM
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602

UNANITMOUS CONSENT ITEM

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

Uuc-1 Ratification of Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract
#500064, Between the State of Oregon, Department of Human
Resources, Children’'s Services Division and Multnomah

. County, District Attorney's Office, Providing Legal
Consultation 'and Processing, Filing and Litigating Cases in
Multnomah County Juvenile Court Pursuant to State Law, for
the Purpose of Terminating Parental Rights to Children who
have been Neglected, Abused or Abandoned, for the Period
July 1, 1993 through December 31, 1993

0265C/91/db

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER



Portland Building
1120 S.W. Fifth Avenue, Suite 1500
Portland, Oregon 97204

‘SHARRON KELLEY

Muitnomah County Commissioner

District 4 (503) 248-5213
MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of County Commissioners
" . Clerk of the Board
' FROM:‘ .~ commissioner Sharron Kelley
DATE: .~ June 10, 1993

SUBJECT: Early Departure from EMS/ASA Work Session-

I will be departing from the morning EMS/ASA Work Session on
June 30th at approximately 10:00 a.m. or shortly after to
attend the Open House for Chief Potter’s retirement.
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Meeting Date: JUN 29 1993

Agenda No.: u:)fs~fl-

(Above space for Clerk's Office Use)

- . - . . . . . . - - .

AGENDA PLACEMENT FORM
(For Non-Budgetary Items)

SUBJECT: EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES WORK SESSION

BCC Informal _JUNE 29, 1993 BEGINNING TIME 1:30 PM

(date)
DEPARTMENT : HEALTH _ DIVISION: REGULATORY HEALTH
CONTACT: BILL COLLINS TELEPHONE : 248-3220

PERSON(S) MAKING PRESENTATION BILL COLLINS AND INVITED GUESTS

ACTION REQUESTED:

[X] INFORMATION ONLY [ ] POLICY DIRECTION [ 1 APPROVAL

ESTIMATED TIME NEEDED ON BOARD AGENDA: _2 TO 2 1/2 HOURS

CHECK IF YOU REQUIRE OFFICIAL WRITTEN NOTICE OF ACTION TAKEN:

BRIEF SUMMARY (Include statement of rationale for action requested,
as well as personnel and fiscal /budgetary impacts, if applicable):

Work session to consider Emergency Medical Services Ambulance Service
Area plan elements. Invited testimony only, no public testimony.

@
rc_ i 2’5 -
¥ B
(If space is inadequate, please use other side) %ﬁ; o 53
A N
SIGNATURES : o0
[ frched
ELECTED OFFICIAL &
s

-<
Or

DEPARTMENT MANAGER ‘Lé(%@ ‘Z‘Uﬁw

(All accompanying documents must have required signatures)




Emergency Medical Services

Muitnomah County

MEMORANDUM

TO: Hank Miggins, Chair, Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Tanya Collier
Commissioner Gary Hansen
Commissioner Sharron Kelley
Commissioner Dan Saltzman

FROM: Bill Collins
EMS Director

VIA% Gary Oxman, MD
Health Officer

Bfﬂé& Odegaard
Director, Health Department

I P

g 97 N €5l

3

.
o
;..j_:)
G’_.')

DATE: June 22, 1993

Pt

RE: Schedule for Ambulance Planning Work sessions

K5
Attached is the proposed schedule of topics for the

work sessions on Tuesday, June 29 and Wednesday, June 30,
1993.

Since confirmations are not complete, a list of those
invited to testify will be available at the Board meeting.

Also attached is a summary comparison of the various
elements of the plans and recommendations.

Our goal for the next two days is to look at each of
these elements and determine which your Board feels will
best meet the needs of the citizens of the County.

Thank you.

Health Department

426 S.W. Stark Street—9th Floor - Portiand, Oregon 97204 - 248-3220 - Fax 248-5453

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER




Emergency Medical Services

Mulitnomah County

AMBULANCE SERVICE PLANNING
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
WORK SESSIONS |
JUNE 29 AND 30, 1993

TUESDAY, JUNE 29
1:30 PM

ELEMENTS COMMON IN ALL PLANS
DEFINITIONS
MEDICAL DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION

RESPONSE TIMES AND RURAL CONSIDERATIONS

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 30
9:30 AM

PROVIDER (SYSTEM RESPONSE) DESIGN
WORKFORCE ISSUES

OTHER ELEMENTS (IF NECESSARY)

Health Department
426 S.W. Stark Street—9th Floor - Portland, Oregon 97204 - 248-3220 - Fax 248-5453

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER



EMS STAFF

PAPA

PROVIDER BOARD

BUCK

PRIMARY ASA PLANNING ISSUES

MEDICAL DIRECTOR

ONE FOR COUNTY,
RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
MEDICAL CARE AND
EMTs, WORKS IN HEALTH
DEPARTMENT.

ONE FOR COUNTY,
RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
MEDICAL CARE AND EMTs
AND ADMINISTRATION OF
EMS PROGRAM, REPORTS
TO THE CHAIR, BOCC.

ONE FOR COUNTY,
RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
MEDICAL CARE AND
EMTs, WORKS IN HEALTH
DEPARTMENT.

ONE FOR COUNTY,
RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
MEDICAL CARE AND
EMTs, WORKS IN HEALTH
DEPARTMENT.

AMBULANCE SERVICE

AREAS

SINGLE ASA IN THE
COUNTY

SINGLE ASA IN THE
COUNTY

SINGLE ASA FOR
CRITICAL CALLS.
TWO ASA FOR NON-
CRITICAL CALLS.

SINGLE ASA IN COUNTY.

FIRST RESPONSE

FIRE DISTRICTS.
EMT~BASIC/PARAMEDIC.
LEVEL.

AUTOMATIC DIFIB. AT
EMT-BASIC LEVEL

FIRE, POLICE, OR
OTHERS.
SERVICE LEVEL NOT
DEFINED

FIRE DISTRICTS.
EMT-BASIC LEVEL.
AUTOMATIC
DEFIBRILLATION.

FIRE DISTRICTS.
EMT-BASIC.
AUTOMATIC DEFIB.




EMS STAFF

PAPA

PROVIDER BOARD

BUCK

TRANSPORT
PROVIDERS

PFB - CRITICAL 911
CALLS

SINGLE PVT. - NON-
CRITICAL 911 CALLS

SINGLE EMERGENCY
AMBULANCE SERVICE.
ALL 911 AND CRITICAL
TRANSFERS.

PUBLIC OR PVT.

PFB - CRITICAL 911
CALLS.

TWO PVT. - NON-
CRITICAL CALLS

ONE OR TWO PVT. - ALL
911 CALLS.

CRITICAL AND NON-
CRITICAL LEVELS OF
SERVICE :

RESPONSE TIMES

FIRST RESPONSE 4 MIN
CRITICAL CALLS 8 MIN
NON-CRITICAL 12 MIN
RURAL -ALL 20 MIN
NON-EMERGENCY N/A

FIRST RESPONSE N/A

EMERGENCY 911 8 MIN
RURAL 15 MIN
WILDERNESS 45 MIN

NON-EMERGENCY 1 HR

FIRST RESPONSE 4 MIN
CRITICAL 8 MIN
NON-CRITICAL 12 MIN

RURAL -ALL 25 MIN

FIRST RESPONSE 4 MIN
CRITICAL 8 TO 10 MIN
NON-CRITICAL 12 MIN

RURAL NOT DEFINED

RATES

RATE BOARD TO SET
RATE AND REVIEW
CHANGES IN SYSTEM
THAT WILL IMPACT
RATE.

FINANCIAL OVERSIGHT
BOARD TO REGULATE
RATE. APPROVED BY
MAB.

SOME CONTROL OVER
NON-EMERGENCY RATES.
RESERVE HELD BY FOB.

RATE COMMITTEE SET
EMERGENCY RATES

COUNTY ESTABLISHED
RATES TIED TO
REGIONAL CONSUMER
PRICE INDEX.




EMS STAFF

PAPA

PROVIDER BOARD

BUCK

WORKFORCE ISSUES

NOT ADDRESSED IN
PLAN.

DISPLACEMENT OF
PARAMEDICS.

PFB HIRING PRACTICE

REPLACEMENT PROVIDERS

TO HIRE SYSTEM
PARAMEDICS.
BINDING ARBITRATION.

NOT ADDRESSED

NOT ADDRESSED

PLAN
ADMINISTRATION

ADMINISTRATION IN
HEALTH DEPARTMENT

MEDICAL. DIRECTOR IS
PLAN ADMINISTRATOR.
MEDICAL DIRECTOR
REPORTS TO CHAIR.

ADMINISTRATION IN
HEALTH DEPARTMENT.

ADMINISTRATION IN
HEALTH DEPARTMENT.

QUALITY MANAGEMENT

SYSTEM-WIDE QUALITY
MANAGEMENT .

DATA DRIVEN PER
DEMING.

UNDER THE MED. DIR.

SYSTEM-WIDE QUALITY
MANAGEMENT .

DEMING MODEL.

UNDER MED. DIR.

SYSTEM-WIDE QUALITY
MANAGEMENT .

DEMING MODEL.

UNDER MED. DIR.

MED. DIR., SUPERVISE
QA PROGRAM




EMS STAFF

PAPA

PROVIDER BOARD
BUCK

EMS STAFF

PAPA
PROVIDER BOARD

BUCK

SECONDARY ASA PLANNING ISSUES

DISPATCH

AT BOEC.

80 SEC TIME.
PROTOCCLS BY MED DIR.
AT BOEC.

80 SEC TIME.
PROTOCOLS BY MED DIR.
AT BOEC

AT BOEC

MEDICAL RESOURCE
HOSPITAL

REMAIN WITH OHSU.
MED. DIR. RESPONSIBLE

NO RECOMMENDATION

REMAIN WITH OHSU.
MED. DIR RESPONSIBLE

NOC RECOMMENDATION

COMMUNICATIONS
CITY 800 SYSTEM
MOBIL DATA TERMINALS

CITY 800 SYSTEM
MOBIL DATA TERMINALS

NO RECOMMENDATION

CITY 800 SYSTEM
MOBIL DATA TERMINALS
VEHICLE LOCATORS

EQUIPMENT/
VEHICLES

REQUIRED FOR ALL
AMBULANCES PER THE

STATE PLUS MED. DIR.
REQUIREMENTS

NO RECOMMENDATIONS

NO RECOMMENDATIONS

HAZ-MAT AND RESCUE
PROVIDED BY FIRE AND
OTHER ORGANIZATIONS

PROVIDED BY FIRE AND
OTHER ORGANIZATIONS
NO RECOMMENDATION

NO RECOMMENDATION

DISASTER/ MASS
CASUALTY

MCI PLAN (REGIONAL).

DISASTER PLANNING
UNDER WAY

MCI PLAN (REGIONAL)

NO RECOMMENDATIONS

NO RECOMMENDATIONS



EMS STAFF

PAPA

PROVIDER BOARD
BUCK

MUTUAL AID

REQUIRED OF ALL
PROVIDERS

REQUIRED OF ALL
PROVIDERS.

NO RECOMMENDATION

NO RECCMMENDATION

COMPLAINTS
REVIEWED BY MED. DIR.
OR EMS STAFF,.
RESOLUTION BY MD OR
ADMIN.

RESOLVED BY MED. DIR.
OR BY MAB.

NO RECOMMENDATION

NO RECCMMENDATION
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EMS MEDICAL DIRECTOR
(Exerﬁpt/Uncl,assiﬁed) ' --ﬂﬁ

DEFINITION

To provide medical supervision for all emergency medical technicians providing pre-hospital
patient care within the County, and to provide medical direction to all components of the
emergency medical services system.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives administrative direction from the Director, Health Department.

Exercises technical supervision over emergency medical technicians.

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES - Duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

Develop uniform standards of emergency care within the County; solicit input regarding
standards from physicians, nurses, emergency medical technicians, ambulance providers, first
responder providers, hospitals, government agencies, and other interested organizations and
individuals.

Accompany emergency medical technicians during the performance of medical duties for the
purpose of supervision, education, and system evaluation.

Promulgate and revise, as necessary, medical care standards for: priority dispatch/pre-arrival
instructions; ALS and BLS patient care protocols; hospital destination criteria; accreditation
requirements for pre-hospital care personnel beyond State standards; staffmg, equipment,
supplies, and operational criteria for first response vehicles, ground ambulances, air ambulances,
specialized critical care and mobile intensive care ambulances and non-emergency patient
transport vehicles for incorporation into licensing requirements; response times for first
responders and transporting emergency ambulances; the transferring of patients between
hospitals; and the provision of medical services in areas of public assembly.

Set standards for the provision of on-line medical control.

Develop and supervise a quality management program to ensure continuous improvement of all
levels of care within the emergency medical services delivery systems.

Set standards and objectives, and participate in the continuing education and training of
pre- hospltal care personnel.

Approve emergency medical techn1c1ans for practice in the County. Establish policies and due
process for the limiting of practice of emergency medical technicians, including probation,
suspension, or revocation of physician orders.

Perform related duties as assigned.

QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

Principles, practices, and procedures of emergency medicine.

Principles, practices, and procedures of pre-hospital patient care.

Principles, practices, and procedures of public health.



EMS MEDICAL DIRECTOR
Page 2

QUALIFICATIONS (Continued)
Knowledge of: (Continued)

Federal, state, and local laws and regulations governing the practice of emergency medicine and
pre-hospital emergency medical services.

Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation.
ility to:
Effectively administer a variety of emergency medical care activities.

Interpret and apply applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and pohc1es
governing emergency medical services.

Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with those contacted in the course of
work.

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.
Gain cooperation through discussion and persuasion.
Supervise, train, and evaluate assigned staff.

Experience and Training giﬁigelinggz

Any combination of experience and training that would likely provide the required knowledge
and abilities is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would be:

Experience:

Three years of increasingly responsible emergency medical services experience, including
system medical direction and emergency medical technician supervision.

AND
Training:

Graduation from an accredited medical school and completion of an emergency medicine
residency. ‘

L_icgnse or Certificate:

Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate and valid license to practice medicine in the
State of Oregon.

Board certification in emergency medicine.
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JUN 20 1993
Agenda No.: LL)SS':Z-

(Above space for Clerk's Office Use)

Meeting Date:

- - - -

.

AGENDA PLACEMENT FORM
(For Non-Budgetary Ttems)

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES WORK SESSTION

SUBJECT:

BCC Informal _JUNE 30, 1993 BEGINNING TIME 9:30 AM
(date)

REGULATORY HEALTH

DEPARTMENT: _HEALTH DIVISION:

BILL COLLINS

TELEPHONE: _248-3220

CONTACT:

PERSON(S) MAKING PRESENTATION BILL COLLINS AND INVITED GUESTS

ACTION REQUESTED:
[ ] POLICY DIRECTION
2 TO 2 1/2 HOURS

[X] INFORMATION ONLY [ 1 APPROVAL

ESTIMATED TIME NEEDED ON BOARD AGENDA:
CHECK IF YOU REQUIRE OFFICIAL WRITTEN NOTICE OF ACTION TAKEN:

BRIEF SUMMARY (Include statement of rationale for action requested,
as well as personnel and fiscal /budgetary impacts, if applicable):

Work session to consider Emergency Medical Services Ambulance Service
Area plan elements. Invited testimony only, no public testimony.
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-

Bob Yoesle
Training Coordinator

SOUTHWEST EMS & TRAUMA SYSTEM
SW Region EMS & Trauma Care Council

4

FE - i .
o 112 West Twelfth Street, Suite 210-A

- . : Vancouver, Washington 98660
(206) 7371 888 ¢ FAX 737-1900




The Muttnomah County Board of Commissioners has strugaled for at least @ decade to come up with a countywide
ambuiance pian as required by Oregon law. Every atiempt to reach consensus $o far has been buried by legal and
political squabbles. The board has narrowed down a wide range of options and received recommendations trom the city
of Portlanc and ambutance companies. A final decision is schedulec July 15.

WHY CHANGE NOW?

There is general agreement that the current set-up delivers

good, fast service. But it could stand improvement. A BOARD'S DECISION SCHEDULE:
Ambulance bcljlls Iare high, there are no uniform standards, , (Room 602, Multnomah County Courthouse)
services are duplicated and patients don't always get the . _ -
closest ambulance. All of the new proposals have in W 1:30 p.m. Tuesday — work sesglon
common a single medical director, uniform quality & 9a.m. Wednesday — work session
standards, and some sort of rate regulation and review. _ ® 1:30 p.m. Thursday — public hearing
THE PLAYERS: 7| & July6— work session

W Portiand Fire Bureau/Gresham Fire Department & July 8 — first reading of the ordinance
W AA/Care Ambulance X July 15 — final adoption

N Buck Ambulance

B Portland Area Paramedic Alliance . —

CURRENT SYSTEM
Someone calls  Fire departments The firetruck gets
8-1-1 with a and private there in 4 minutes
medical _ gmbulatr])ce are
emergency - ispatched — - o
either Buck or riment AN
- AAJCARE,

depending on area.

private °
ambulance

\\r .
RS

a,

K Buck Ambulance
recommended change:

All ambulance calls split
between two companies.

TIERED RESPONSE

Fire department still goes on
most calls, arriving in 4 minutes.

#.%7 hverage bill: $588
Rates are unregulated.

(R) I patient is clearly
not critical, a private S
ambulance is dispatched. v
—~ {One company, under  \V,
[ contract to county.)

(B) If patient is critical
or uncertain, a fire
department ambulance
is dispatched.

THE SCENE . »
i (R) If fire department paramedics determine the patient is not critical, the fire department

ambulance is canceled and a private ambulance is dispatched for the trip to the hospital.
(Rates are regulated.)

- -

o EMERGENCY

(B) If the patient is
critical, a fire department

ambulance takes him to - ' o
i VA R AA/Care suggestion:
tEhs%Pn%stgga 4 /\\(\ s )& : Calls are split between two
Ki\ \0 93 ‘::{}7‘ : ;AV companies.
X y \ W
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CRITICAL ASA PLAN ISSUES

STANDARD OF CARE

. Consistent delivery
. Eliminate decision trees
. Eliminate unnecessary hand-offs

SYSTEM THAT DOES NOT JEOPARDIZE THE

QUALITY

IMPROVEMENTS

Relationships with other agencies
Special programs in East County
Special programs in West County
Special services from Fire Bureaus
Experienced workforce -
Utilization of existing resources

HOW CAN YOU IMPROVE THE SYSTEM

Dispatch the closest ambulance

Control costs through efficient use of transportation resources

. Unify Medical Director, training & QA

Solidify first response throughout County



EMS STAFF
OPTION #2
Will the closest ambulance be dispatched? Y
Will First Response be improved? Y
Will the number of paramedics be reduced? N Slightly
Will the rates be regulated? Y Y
Does the Plan require the addition of
substantially more resources? Y N
Will experienced paramedics be eliminated
from the system? Y N
Will the County have increased liability? Y N
Will resources be used efficiently? N Y
Will all paramedics receive the same level
of training & experience? N Y
Can the process be revised if it becomes too
costly or doesn’t work? | ? Y
Does the system increasingly rely on tax
dollars vs. health care dollars? Y N




HOW DO WE CONTROL RATES?

. THROUGH THE EFFICIENT AND COMPETITIVE
USE OF EXISTING RESOURCES.

A simple equation:

The # of production units required

X The cost of production units

= Overall System Cost

< Reimbursement Collection Rate

%.

= Total revenue required $

- # of billable transports

= Average Patient Charge $




Sheet1

ESTIMATED PARAMEDIC POSITIONS

DEDICATED 911 - SINGLE TIERED/DEDICATED TIERED/ALL

HOURS/FTE 2190
(12 HR SHIFT)
2 FTE/HR ' 1 FTE/HR 1 FTE/HR
CURRENT HRS 125684 (MAX) 125684
ESTIMATED HRS 86476 (MAX) 86476
CURRENT FTE 115 115 115
ESTIMATED FTE 79 39 . 58
"+/ FTE" -36 -76 -58
FIRE N/A 9 9
NET -36 -67 -49
NOTE: THESE TWO TOTALS DO NOT INCLUDES CURRENT
INCLUDE POSITIONS FOR NON-EMERGENCY CALLS

NON-EMERGENCY CALLS

Page 1



CITY OF GRESHAM-

Fire Department :
1333 N.W. Eastman Parkway
Gresham, OR 97030-3813
(503) 661-3000 .

June 29, 1993

Commissioner Hank Miggins
Acting-Chairperson _
Portland Building, Room 1410
1120 SW Fifth Avenue.
Building 106

Portland, OR 97204

Dear Commissioner Miggins:

The Gresham Fire Department has been closely following
the activities involved in the development of the County
Ambulance Service Area Plan. We have participated in
numerous discussions up to this point. We are encouraged
that this project appears to be nearing completion after
the long and arduous process it has been through.

One of the options you are considering, the Tiered Plan,
would have fire service provide transportation of
critically ill or injured patients. While the Portland
Fire Bureau has been identified as the primary provider
of this element of the service, our discussions with them
indicate their willingness to explore a partnership
between the Portland Fire Bureau and the Gresham Fire
Department to provide critical care transport.

Should the Tiered Plan become the selected option, the
Gresham Fire Department is prepared to continue exploring
this option. 1If our participation in the transport of
critical patients proves to be in the best interest of
the Department, emergency medical patients and our
citizens, then we would certainly provide that service.

Continued on Page 2




. Commissioner Hank Mlgglns
June 29, 1993
Page Two

The Gresham Fire Department is in the beginning phase of
a service delivery study which will be completed well
before the implementation of whatever option is selected.
We will include the Tiered Plan in that study in order to
facilitate our decision.

Sincerely,

L

Bob Yungeberg
Asst. Fire Chief
Gresham Fire Department

JP/pl



PORTLAND FIRE FIGHTERS' ASSOCIATION

LOCAL FORTY-THREE OF THE INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIRE FIGHTERS

DEDICATED TO THE TRAINING AND ADVANCEMENT OFf PROFESSIONAL FIRE FIGHTERS

Affilicted

with June 8, 1993
[ J
AFLCIO TO: Ron Heintzman, President
Amalgamated Transit Union Division 757
. FROM: Randy Leonard, President
Local 43 IAFF
INTERNATIONAL SUBJECT: Displaced Multnomah County Private Sector Paramedics
ASSOCIATION OF B : .
FIRE FIGHTERS L
As we discussed at our meeting on June 1, 1993, the Portland
. Bureau of Fire, Rescue and Emergency Services is considering
entry into the 911 transport business.
OREGON STATE Within the next five to six weeks, the Fire Bureau, Portland
FIRE FIGHTERS City Council and Multnomah County Commission will be defining
COUNCIL what role the Bureau can expect to play in the Ambulance
Service Plan (ASP) for Multnomah County. Other organizations
. will .also have considerable input into the ASP planning
process.
NORTHWEST Even if the Fire Bureau does not become involved in transport,
OREGON it is 1likely that many private sector positions will
Weorcounell | ultimately be lost within Multnomah County if a |
provider is selected or if other streamlining occurs. Local

1.

43 has no contrel over those reductions.

However,

4530 S.E. 67th AVENUE « PORTLAND, OREGON 97206-4514 ¢ (503) 774-4302 « FAX (503) 774-5476

I am very

sensitive to the issue concerning the additional private

positions that would be lost if the Fire Bureau should assume
responsibility for a portion of the 911 transports.
figures are available yet as to how many private paramedics
would be displaced.

No hard

The City appears willing to take steps to minimize the impact

on the private sector by incorporating displaced paramedlcs
into the Fire Bureau.

~Basically, three options appear possible to attain that goal:

,HQid a "closed" entry exam for the position of

single =
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Firefighter/Paramedic. Only Multnomah County private
sector paramedics would be allowed to test for the

position. Affirmative action objectives would likely
play a part in the final selection process. Normal
firefighter training, probationary period, etc. would

apply.

A review of the literature suggests that the
incorporation of paramedics willing to be cross-trained
as dual role firefighter/paramedics would have advantages
over other options. However, this option would exclude
otherwise well qualified paramedics with no desire to
become firefighters. It would also postpone involvement
in transport pending completion of firefighter training.

Hire only paramedics who specifically do not wish to
become cross-trained as firefighters. Under this
scenario, the ATU would probably have more input into the
final selection process, or at least influence which pool
of candidates would be considered. There would be no
firefighter probationary training involved and thus
(perhaps) a greater feeling of job security. The ATU
could continue to represent those paramedics.

Any such positions would be filled with a
firefighter/paramedic once a vacancy occurred.
Eventually, all positions would revert to firefighter

paramedic status.

One advantage to this proposal would be the immediate
availability of the new bureau employees to assume a

transport role.

The major disadvantages would center around the differing =
~pay scales, "job descriptions, union representation and

similar issues that arise when a firefighter/paramedic
works side-by-side with a non-sworn paramedic..

Some combination of options 1 & 2 above involving closed
exam for the firefighter/paramedic position along with
2 limited number of non-sworn positions. While this
scenario might be attractive to many ATU members, I
envision considerable confusion in determining which
Multnomah County paramedics would be eligible for the two
types of positions.

I trust you have had an opportunity to discuss issues related
to these and any other options since our last meeting with

‘your members.
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Obviously the City Council and the Bureau of Personnel
Services would have considerable influence in formulation of
the option wultimately selected. However, Local 43 is
interested in working with the ATU to recommend a selection
process that would in any case, reserve employment
opportunities within the Fire bureau for positions that would
otherwise disappear for your members.

We fully intend to keep the lines of communication open
concerning these issues. :
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MOSKOWITZ & THOMAS . -
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
2000 S.W. 1ST AVENUE
SUITE 400
PORTLAND, OREGON 97201
TELEPHONE (503)227-1116
FAX (503)227-3015 _
Christopher P. Thomas Steven A. Moskowitz

June 28, 1993

Multnomah County Board of Commissioners
c/o Board Clerk's Office

1120 SW Fifth Avenue

Portland, OR 97204

Subject: Emergency Medical Services Planning Process

Dear Board of Commissioners:

| I enclose for your information a set of transcripts of

| meetings of the EMS Provider Board between April 6, 1993 and June
‘ 2, 1993, as part of its EMS planning process. I am formally

| submitting these transcripts so that they may receive

| consideration by the Board in its current set of EMS planning
; meetings.

Very truly yours,

Christopher P. Thomas
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cc: Jeffrey M. Kilmer gL =
COMMISSIONERS: THERE ARE 200+ @3- &

PAGES OF TRANSCRIPTS IN THE =~ ©= _  °
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~ WISH YOU MAY CHECK THEM OUT. g2 & &

THANK YOU! - (6/30/93 EMS/ASA oy 6n
CPT/ms s E
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BEFORE THE MULTNOMAH COUNTY
PROVIDER BOARD

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

Tuesday, April 6, 1993

9:08 a.m.

Oregon Medical Association
5210 S.W. Corbett Avenue
Portland, Oregon

THE MULTNOMAH COUNTY PROVIDER BOARD:
Mr. Peter Robedeau, Chairman, AA Ambulance
Mr. Trace Skeen, Buck Ambulance

Mr. Mark Drake, Tualatin Valley Ambulance

Mr. Barry Doherty, CARE Ambulance

Mr. Thomas Steinman, Portland Fire Bureau

Mr. David Phllllifs. Gresham Fire Department
Ms. Beth Ar:vl M urphy, Community ulance

10
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APPEARANCES
ALSO SPEAKING:

Mr. Witliam Collins

Mr. Jetfrey Kilmer

Mr. Christopher Thomas
Ms. Trudi Scheideiman
Mr. Jerry Andrews

Mr. Randy Lauer

Mr. Cole Theander

Mr. Gary MclLean

Mr. ;Jc:h.n Praggastis

MR. ROBEDEAU: Why don't we get
started. This is the Provider Board
meeting. In case you don't know, | am Pete
l;gbe:eau. And | am chair of the Provider

ard.

We have two things on the agenda. One
thing Is, response times have been coming
up for the last six or eight months, that
according to the staff out at Kelly Butte,
all of the providers have been out of
compliance with the eight-minute, 90
percent rule.

We had done — at AA we did a study
that shows where the difference between the
stats are and between Kelly Butte and
between the providers. What we did was,
for the month of February we listened to
every single, solitary, over-eight-minute
response that was on the Kelly Butte
printout. And what we found was that
there's a 39 percent error rate. And it
appears that most of that error rate is
assignment of crews has being done sometime

prior to dispatch.

That range - the average length of

time in that was one minute that the
assignment of the crew was being done prior
to dispatch. And that, for AA, for which

- one of the reasons we used Februar
because of the terrible weather. And the
way things went in February, we came out

with a 91 percent compliance rate; and
ying the same number to January without
ever listening to any, we came out with 92
rcent, and | think that will probably
Id true with most of the providers.
| would certainly think there's no
reason to believe that any one particular
rson is being picked on. But | think it
s really i rtant — | would ask you,
Bill, that this be brought up Friday at the
MAB. | know the MADB has made a big deal,
at least one individual in particular,
about how none of the providers are in
compliance with the eight-minute 90 percent
of the time.
MR. COLLINS: Just to kind of add to

this. When Jerry and | — was it last

R e T R
month? Last month and a half?

- conducted a series of inservices with

all of the dispatchers at BOEC, we puton
an eight-meeting series of inservices about
EMS and tried to - find out what kind
of probiems the dispatchers feit they had
Er'l;i Stry to get some information out by

And one of the things we discovered is
exactly the same thing that Pete has
identified in this February study. The
dispatch rules for EMS at Kelly Butte
identified that the response time interval
starts when the dispatch is made.

And the definition that we had assumed
they were using and, in fact, had been
identified, the rule was, the dispatch is
counted as started when the unit that's
assigned responds to Kelly Butte. And it's
not really possible to start a dispatch
before that because until they hear that a
unit has received the call, they don’t know
for sure whether — whether that unit ever
heard them or whatever.

What they have been doing, because

of — | am not sure the reason other th
trying to clear their dispatches off their
list ~ is, in many, many cases, they have
started — they have put the dispatch into
the CAD when they assign the unit. So they
had a call, they look at whatever
information they have, and they decide they
are going to send, you know, AA Ambulance,
and as soon as they made that decision,
they entered it in as a dispatch and
contacted the ambulance.

So it's exactly the same problem that
you found out, Pete. And this all kind of
makes sense, | think, in light of the
frequency analysis that we have done in,
for, | don't know what - we did it a
couple, three times, and that showed that
the 90th percentile, which is, you know,
what we are trying to hit for, one period
was eight minutes and is seconds to eight
minutes and 45 seconds and eight minutes
and 45 to nine minutes.

That would indicate that the, guote,
noncompliance is not a matter of a large
number of long calls but, like | explained

number of months ago, it's really a
R:rnbed thlr t:;;eallsf ]du'st bar:l over :‘l':e II:\he.

[ of dispatc shing the
button too soon, if l?: ﬂl‘r’ap‘i well,
you have 60 seconds. didn't go in and
do any study. | mean, this is just from
talking with the dispatchers. And we went,
wait a minute. That's how you are doing
the dispatch?

But 60 seconds or even 30 seconds
would put a large number of calis over the
line. So we have discussed this with
BOEC. We are making the correction. One
of the things they were concerned about was
this would push their dispatch time. And
so what we are trying - make it longer.

So one of the things that we are

(503) 299-6200
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looking at is that their CAD, their current
CAD will identify when they attempted to
contact a unit and when they actually heard
from them. The dispatch time would still

be when the unit responded, but we want to
also look at that interval. Because if

what's happening there is, they are trying
to contact somebody and nobody answers,

thei: that's a status-keeping issue for the
un

if the unit is in service, they try to
dispatch them and nobody responds, then
that's a different kind of issue, but that
is not a response-time issue.

The response-time issue is that
interval between the disgatch and the time
that the unit tells Kelly Butte they have
arrived. So | think we are ail
- hopefully, we have all discovered a big
piece of the problem. | don’t know what it
will take to make sure that all of the
dispatchers do this correctly. | mean,
mey don't work for us. There's a lot of

em.

And we have talked to the management
up there to get them to change this so that
the process would be what is written. You
hear from — when you hear the crew
acknowledge, you push the button, and
that's when the time starts and the time
runs then until that crew reports back to
Kelly Butte that they have arrived at the
scene. If the crew reports arrived to the

ag
company at the scene, that doesn’t count
gecause you don’t know that at Kelly
utte.

MR. DRAKE: Bill, are you going to do
any screens or anything to find out if they
actually resolved the problem?

MR. COLLINS: Jerry is working with
them to see how we can get the data off
this interval to make sure that's what's
happening. We can do the same type of
screen that Pete did where you listen to
the tape and then you, you know, you match
it up with the time, but there may be a way
we can actually get that as part of a
report that will just show us when the time
was activated.

MR. DRAKE: So the response time
records from BOEC are now inaccurate? We
don't know what these are because these
dispatchers are inaccurately —

R. COLLINS: Dispatch time on those
calls is not accurate.

MR. DRAKE: So the response times are
inaccurate?

MR. COLLINS: Right. As | am sure

that you, the providers, are aware, we have
not atte d to try to fine people for
noncompiiance with the response times
because we know we have had various data
problems. We are also, as kind of an
adjunct to this, we think we are very close
to %enlng Keily Butte, in the interim

before the new CAD goes in, give us a
weekly run to show us all the runs plus
call the eight-minute runs. This is
something requested by the providers at
various times. And we are, you know - the
biggest problem we seem to have is, the
computer there is very old, and you are
never quite sure what it can actually do.

1 don’t mean to make excuses for Kelly
Butte, but that's why they are putting the
new computer in. But, yes, | mean, we are
aware of this problem now. We found out
the same time you did. And we will figure
out how to get it straightened out so we
get the right times.

MR D E: You are expecting the new
co| r to go in September, November?

R. COLLINS: Well, they haven't

1
2
E:
g starting the dispatch time in order for
7
8
9
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ohanaed the list, have they?

MR. ANDREWS: Beta test is November
15th, and they are anticipating a January 1
cutover for full operation.

MR. DRAKE: January 1?7

MR. ROBEDEAU: That's set back?

MR. COLLINS: That's the same thing.
They are going to do side by side.

DXFL ANDR : Turn-on has always been
November 15.

MR. COLLINS: They are going to turn
it on and run both systems, test it, make
sure there’s no buas.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | thought the system
was fully operational by September.

MR. ANDREWS: No.

MR. COLLINS: No. The November,
middie of November has been the site, you
know, occuryinz the site with the new
equipment in it from the beginning. The
new radio system is not until January. And
then they are going to run the CAD side by
side for some period of time, | guess, you
kno;v. a couple months, and make sure it
works.

DONDNEWN =

: i ge
MR. ROBEDEAU: | have one question.
One of the things you were saylngB. you seem

to be in at this meeting that Kelly Butte
was assigning calls, assigning crews and

them to comply with their 80-second rule?
MR. COLLINS: It wasn't their
80-second rule. What they are trying to do
is clear the calls fast, move to the next
10 call, and they weren't really payin
1 attention to the fact that they needed to
12 have a response. | mean, it's just, you
13 know, we wouldn't have found out probably
14 until we met with the dispatchers and we
15 said, now, you are doing this, and they
16 said, well, not exactly.
17 Not everybody is doing it. They are
18 doing slightly different things so we
19 are — no one has really toid them, |
20 auess, in the past to do anything
ifferent, so we are telling them to do it
22 different now.
23 MR. DRAKE: Part of a concern | have
24 is that | think it's good that you can get
25 us weekly reports, but it's kind of not

1 economically feasible or whatever

2 sit down and go through our reports when we
3 know they are inaccurate from the start.

4 MR. COLLINS: Well, there's two

g issues, though, if you remember that we
7

8

9

have talked about in the reports. One is
over eight minutes and are we gettin
accurate data. The other has to do with
total number of calls. There are the sort
10 of controversy over who has the right
" number of calls.
12 One way to look at the right number of
13 calis is to them to give us a weekly
14 printout of all the calls, all the EMS
15 calls. Then we can sit down and match them
16 up and see where, because we have had
17 reports where Kelly Butte has had more and
18 the company has less, and we have had the
19 other way around, so we are trying to
120 accomplish two things with that.
21 One is to see if we can figure out
22 what the call volume question is and then,
23 xou know, | don't know how long it takes to
x this. How many? They got a bunch of
r25 dispatchers.

R. ANDREWS: 87.

MR. COLLINS: We will tetl them to fix
it, and they will say they are going to fix
it, and then we will monitor and figure out
what's going on.

MR. E: How many dispatchers do
you have?

NN DBWN -

MR. ANDREWS: Currently 87.
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9 MR. DRAKE: 87. 18 the -
10 MR. ROBEDEAU: All rotate through 19 MR. COLLINS: Once a unit responds.
11 EMS? 20 You mean currently?
12 MR. ANDREWS: Actually 70 some are 21 MR. SKEEN: Currently.
13 required to rotate through. 22 MR. ANDREWS: What we have told the
14 R. ROBEDEAU: s that going to 23 dispatchers in inservice is the key strokes
15 continue in the new bullding 24 for assigning the unit to the cali is

}g , MR. QNDREWSh : tIﬂt's ? r’\‘egotiable 25 dispatch-basic-enter; that once they make
ssue. it's on the table right now. T TR T
18 MR. COLLINS: The position in — under R O Page 1830
19 the new building, new CAD, the position the
20 fire department and EMS has taken is that
21 we do not want them rotating on a two-hour
22 basis like that; that it needs to be more
23 dedicated. They can bid the !ob every six
24 months or whatever is negotiated, but that
25 it needs to be a more dedicated system, and

the dispatch decision, they tone the car;
they get an acknowledgment; they give the
car the information on the call; and when
they ﬁet an acknowiedgment from the crew
they have the information -- and,
generally, that's like “Copy,” then they
aft dispatch-basic-enter. At that point

e clock starts.

MR. SKEEN: As much as | hate to

N NN
that's essentially what they have agreed to

1 admit, that's kind of a deviation from
2 at this point. | can't tell you what's standard methods of measuring response time
3 going to happen with, you know, union because you are missing that whole
4 negotiations. component from the time the three pieces of
5 R. DRAKE: | would hope they would be information are obtained until you
6 able to get some dedicated EMS dispatch. | hate to bring that up because
7 dispatchers. | can't see how you are going it changes our response time.
8 to resolve 70 people rotating through that MR. COLLINS: Which?
9 system and getting accurate data unless we MR. SKEEN: The component when we
10 gg to the silent dispatch, which we haven't identified the three pleces of information
1 ne that yet. which basically comes off the hands-free to
12 MR. COLLINS: We brought up the same s 21 the time the unit arrives on the scene.
13 issue. When the new CAD is in is the time ) R 7 What you are missing from the three pieces
14 that — that's the time that is proposed . g X you have is until the time that the unit
15 for the cutover from FAD. And our proposal 24 acknowledges.
16 is the same dispatch will dispatch EMS and E S 125 MR. ANDREWS: No.

17 fire on the medical calls, that we will not

18 have split dispatch. 8 i amrege.l
19 MR. DOHERTY: When was the inservice? 1 MR. SKEEN: That, generally, would run
20 MR. COLLINS: When did we do that? 2 15, 15 seconds maybe.
21 End of February? 3 MR. ANDREWS: But part of the issue we
22 Then we discussed this. We will get : 4 are trying to resolve in talking with the
23 it straightened out. 5 disratchers on that basis, they will say,
24 MR. SKEEN: How much time is spent 6 well, that's AA-55. And what we found was
25 determining which provider, which 7 that some of the dispatchers were saying,
: 8 okay, | am going to give it to AA-55, so
age 1 9  they will dispatch-basic-enter, and AA-55
component? 10 is on a call, whether they have been toned
2 MR. COLLINS: | don't know. | don't 11 out or not.
3 think that's a big issue. 12 Then we have the issue of, okay, | am
4 MR. ANDREWS: Part of the problem with 13 going to page AA-55, so | set up the board
5 the dispatch part of it is once the call 14 and [ hit the page button, and | do his
6 has - the intervals that are marked are 15 dispatch-basic-enter then. AA-55 max not
7 cali-created and calls for dispatch and 16 enter then. AA-55 may answer. Do | hit
8 then the dispatch time. Currently, the way o : 17 dispatch-basic-enter then? Or are we
9 their CAD Is configured, you can dispatch ) 18 requesting to measure the response time
10 the call before it's sent because of a 19 from the crew time the crew says, "Oh, |
1 summary screen that they have. When the : . 20 got it. | can go on the call,"which is
12 call comes up on the screen, there is a . : 21 what we said the time you can start the
13 built-in unit recommendation based on 22 clock for the crew when you know they have
14 bases. Since the providers have all 23 got the information and are abie to
15 changed some of the base assignments and 24 res&ond.
16 because of the way that the CAD does its _ 25 R. ROBEDEAU: The first half of the

17 expanding circle search, the reliability of

}g the CAD recommendation is probably about 50
percent.

20 For instance, the entire Sellwood area

21 shows as a base 81 primary dispatch base.

22 Well, it's CARE's, and base 81 doesn't

Y
1 dispatch problem, for lack of a better
2 term, is Kelly Butte because the County, a
) 3 long time ago, made the decision they
L e 4 wanted to keep the dispatch function and
23 exist an re. But the cost of changing S g not have the provider have the dispatch
7
8
9

function; where really it works in some
other systems where you call 9-1-1: If
it's medical, it goes to the ambulance

24 those tables is kind of what's operatin
25 that. So the dispatcher looks at the unit

g dispatcher.

1 recommendation and goes, nah, that ain't B 10 hat doesn’t happen here. The County

2 it, and has to look at the unit available. SIS 1 decided back in the late '70s they were

3 MR. SKEEN: So it's tled to o 12 ing to keep tha“t’gonlon of dispatch

4 preassigned locations as opposed to an 13 nction, so that where most systems aliow

5 actual system status avauag.nm 14 60 seconds for that call to be taken and

6 MR. ANDREWS: Correct. 15 dispatched, that's completely out of our

7 MR. COLLINS: But they are making 16 control.

8  their decisions basically on the unit 17 So the only fair way to do it is for

9 information that they have. 18 one of — when one of our units receives
10 MR. SKEEN: Is that monitored 19 the call — and that's what they have done
1 manuall 20 — and those other dispatch functions,
12 MR. enou_ms; Yeah. That's why they 21 your total response time from the time the
13 are putting new CAD in. 22 call is initiated until there is helg
14 MR. SKEEN: Then the other issue you 23 arriving on the screen stays with the
15  talked about was that the response time, as 24 County. And you know the County has some
16 far as the measurement that you are using 25  pretty antiquated equipment. Everybody

17 for the providers, begins once you know
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knows that and | think they are trying to
correct that problem.

MR. SKEEN: [t's a relative basis, but
it's just not consistent with kind of
conventional methods to measure response

me.
MR. ANDREWS: We are aware of that.
MR. SKEEN: It's not a critique.

Then, obviously, Mark brought up the silent

dispatching, the use of MBTs and so forth.

RC NS: Right. That's the plan
with the new CAD.

MR. SKEEN: If the computer will stay
up, you are in great shape.

R COLLINS: That's why you have a
radio nlon%wlth the —

MR. SKEEN: That’s right.
MR. ROBEDEAU: You then are going to
brlr;; this up at Friday’s MAB meeting?

R. COLLINS: | don't know if we will
bring it up Friday’s because of the agenda,
but we will bring it up to the MAB.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think this is very
important this is brought up. | have been
sitting in MAB meetings for the last six

SNSRI

months listening r
lousy our response times are, and, you
know, it's really important that the
correction be made, and | think it's
important the correction be made this

Frida&.
MR. COLLINS: Okay.

MR. SKEEN: Not that the hammering
hasn't brought improved results. it has.

MR. COLLINS: That's good.

MR. ROBEDEAU: It's brought a lot of
scratching the head. | will have to say |
don’t know exactly when this came out, but
this is what clued us in to what was ;olng
on. This is when we started the study.

This is a memo you passed out to the
training officers.

MR. COLLINS: Oh, yeah.

MR. ROBEDEAU: ut mid-March. When

was this done? Do you know?

MR. ANDREWS: That's the inservice
notice.

MR. COLLINS: This is the notes from
the inservice we did. So we just — that's
kind of the summary of the inservices with

R R Rt S pot= belk,
BOEC that we just did the end of February.

MR. ROBEDEAU: So this is done the end
of Februar

MR. COLLINS: This is the thing we did
when we discovered the same probiem that
you discovered when you looked and listened
to the tapes. So | will bring it up in the
directors report on Thursday, and we can
give a copy of what we have sent to BOEC.

MR. ROBEDEAU: This is what clued us
in to start looking.

MR. COLLINS: That's when we just
found out about it. So we are on the same
wavelength.

MR. ANDREWS: That is one of the
reasons we made the decision to distribute
that to the training officers and the
dispatch meeting we have coming up. We are
not trying to hide anything. We are trying
to let everyone know what the issues are.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | understand that.

MR. COLLINS: Hopefully, this will,
you know, will make the change. We will do
the frequency distributions. it will show,
you know, the difference.

R
MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay.

MR. DOHERTY: Do they have the ability
now to do the key strokes to initiate a
time for when the dl:gatch is attempted?

MR. ANDREWS: No.

MR. COLLINS: That's an issue — and
we may not be able to resolve that with the
current computer. That may have to — that
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piece for BOEC may not be abie to come in
until the new CAD. One of the things that
we are trying to do is get some of this
stuff solved as we can with BOEC without
attinq_a great deal of money into the
D. The City doesn’t want to put anything
into it because they just bought a new one.
So if it's a procedure thing, we can
deal with it. Itit's the, well, we can
deal with it if we did extensive
ﬂrogrammlng, we are not going to deal with
because it's too extensive, and the City
is not going to do that as they are
developing the new.
So | don’t know yet on that. We are
still seeing if there's a waY to punch
ng. That's sort

T

SRR

OEC. The change for the
response time, that's just when they push

the button. And we will make — we are
making that change and we will look and see
what that does to the response time.

MR. DOHERTY: When should we expect to
start receiving weekly rerorts?

MR.C NS: We will have to get back
to you. We gota draft on the over eight,
and we don't have it to break out all the
calls. And | really want to look at that
all-call list, even though per week there
must be 600 calls. More than that. Almost
a thousand calls.

MR. DOHERTY: We would like to give
you a little encouragement. We went
through all of the calls in February also.

And | guess, depending on how you look at
numbers, what we found up until the end of
February was 100 percent error rate; that
virtually every call, they were assigning

the calil before it was acknowledged; and
that listening to the times and timing the
actual times of the calls put us at about

91, 92 percent compliance, too.

But at the end of February, around the
26th or so, we started seeing that the
two-second dispatch time, i.e., crews that
are on the air that are dispatched on the
call and acknowledge with "en route,” there
should be very little roliout time, and
there is a marked improvement in that. So,
hoeefully. your message got across when you
talked to them.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Does anybody else have
anything eise on this before we move on?

or anybody that wants it, | have some
copies of a memo that Dave made for me on
this. There's a few extras here.

MR. DRAKE: Response times?

M’R ROBEDEAU: Uh-huh. Did you get
one

MR. DRAKE: Yeah, we got one.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Let's see. | am sure
:obody came here to listen to response

mes.
MR. DRAKE: | have never seen so many
ple at a Provider Board meeting in my
ife. We generally only have about six
peopie max. In fact, six people is a lot
at a Provider Board meeting. | don't know
what drew everybody here. | am sure we
will find out. But mightbe a ideato
ao through who the Provider Board is. We
ave Tom hiding over there in the corner,
representing the Portiand Fire Bureau.
And, Pete, you just might want to say all
the peogle on it.

MR. ROBEDEAU: The Provider Board is
just that. lt's a board of licensees
within Muitnomah County. Consists of AA,
Buck, CARE, Portland Fire, Gresham Fire.
Blll says it consists of Community. |
disagree. But, you know, what the hell.
it wouldn't be the first time.

MR. DRAKE: Community is considered a
member because there is a representative
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from Community here today.

MR. COLLINS: Yeah, theyare a
licensee. The licensees.

MR. DRAKE: She was trying to hide,
too. Caught.

MR. COLLINS: The licensees in the
County are AA, Buck, CARE, Community
Ambulance, the sort of selected rescues at

Portland Fire, Gresham Fire.

MR. ANDREWS: Metro is on the list.

MR. COLLINS: Metro-West does provide
service also. And the ambulance that's out
at the racetrack.

MR. ANDREWS: Stand By.

MR. ROBEDEAU: They are a licensee?

MR. COLLINS: Yeah. Although they
have a very limited role. But, yes, they
recently were licensed because the Racing
Commission requires that an ambulance be
there, so they :‘pplied to be licensed as an
ambulance, and they are BLS nonemergency
responding.

R. DRAKE: And TVAis also a
licensee.

MR. COLLINS: Yeah. If you guys put
one name on it, then, it would be easier to
keep track.

MR. DRAKE: We are working on it.

MR. COLLINS: So anybody who holds a
license, at least in my opinion, is a
member of the Provider Board.

MR. DRAKE: And, Pete, it might also
be helpful to tell people, the Provider

10

" Board has been ru

" speakin

alot looser t e
Medical MvisorY Board. We don't have
reople raise their hands. We have people
u
to

in and discuss Issues as they need
. want to keep the meetings informal,
so if the people have comments or questions
or issues, please feel free to jump in.
And we don't hold people to five minutes.
You can talk as long as you want.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Gosh, Mark, you are
doing better than | am. | am not much ofa
chait. | have been chair of the Provider
Board for years.

o MR. DRAKE: And you're doing a good

b, Pete.
MR. ROBEDEAU: It's not exactly my
comfort zone, sitting up here in a
meeting.
Anyway, there hasn't been a lot of
discussion on ASA rlannlng. And one of the
things | think is really important at the

Provider Board, anyway, is keep this open
and up-front discussion and allow everybody
to say whatever it is they want to say.

With what Mark said, a little interactive

Q.
| am of the impression that the, by

ordinance, the review of the two proposals

for the ASA planning has actually gone to

the wrong board. | find nothing that

allows the MAB to really rule on that. |

think the appropriate board to advise would

be the Provider Board.

The Provider Board is to advise the
director on matters affecting the
assignment of calls to emergency vehicles,
and | think ASA planning is certainly the
assignment of calls to emergency vehicles.
The Provider — or the MAB is there to
advise on medical issues. While | don't
have the exact quote in front of me, |
don't find anything in the ordinance that
would make the MAB the appropriate body to
be the advisory council on ASA planning.

Is there any comment on that? No
comment. Okay.

MR. DRAKE: Everyone needs a little
more coffee, apparently.

MR. SKEEN: Well, | am interested in
Biil's interpretation of that. That's a

OCONOVMEWN = 4
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and procedures of the Medical Resource

i s SRS
with something

RN

rly major issue.
hXR OLLINS: Well, i don't know if |
have an actual lnterpretation ofit. The
ordinance is — | don't think is
all-inclusive in sort of who reviews what.
| think that the general direction — the
MAB has both an advisory position or
advisory activity to advise the director on
issues surrounding - | mean, medical
issues surrounding the EMS system. They
also have an approval authomg'..l

| don't have the ordinance, but
probably one of our esteemed counsels over
there have it and can read it.

MR. KILMER: Want me to read it?

MR. COLLINS: You might as well.
There's three things, if | remember. One
is lpproval, and two are advisory. And
Pete’s comment on the Provider Board is all
it says in there.

R. KILMER: Well, | think itis

important to understand the approval
limitations on the approval deal. This is
Multnomah County code 6.32.057, the powers

and duties of the EMS Medical Advisory
SRR Page 3200
Board. And it says, “The EMS Medical

Advisory Board shall have the following
powers and duties.

A: Approve proposed action by the
director relating to protocols for
prehospital patient care, emergency
equipment, EMT training, and medications
required to be carried on vehicles operated
by licensees. The Medical Advisory Board
shall consult with the physician advisors
to the providers of emergency medical
services, the Medical Resource Hospital,
the Multnomah County Medical Society, the
American College of Emergency Physicians,
the Emergency Department Nurses
Association, organizations representing
EMTs, and other affected organizations
concerning these actions;

B: Consult with appropriate persons,
departments, agencies, and organizations
and advise the director on matters
concerning the subject matter of this
chapter and;

: periodic reviews of the policies

[1age ;
Hospital and report its recommendations an
findings to the director.” The Provider
Board is 6.32.058. "The role of the
Provider Board is to advise the director on
policies concerning the assignment of
emergency calls to EMS vehicles.”

MR. SKEEN: And that's it? The
Provider Board?

MR. KILMER: That's it.

MR. COLLINS: That's it.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Were you finished?

MR. COLLINS: Yeah. | mean, | don’t
know what eilse | want to say.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Weli, | think the
Provider Board has some decisions to make.
| think one is, we need to decide if we are
going to study the issue and perhaps
produce a plan; include, | think, medical
supervision in the process, meet regularly
for the next four to six weeks to produce
something.

As | understand it, nothing is going
to hang around and wait very iong. And |
would really like to see the MAB included
in the process and see if we can't come up

e age A L
that's going to be consensus
for eversbod . You know, anyway —
MR. E: |1 would just echo that. 1
think the Provider Board should respond to
the plans submitted by both the Portiand
Area Paramedic Alliance and Bill Collins.
Furthermore, ! think we should work within
the framework of Bill Collins’ plan. You
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did a wonderful job here. | like your
planning.

We have some issues and concerns with
;our plan, but | think working within that

amework that we can deve op a
response and possibly come up with a real
good system for the County using all
available resources that we have in the
County, both the private and public
resources.

And, Bill, do you know, is there a
time line established byti\e County
Commissioners that we have to meet or is
that open at this time?

MR. COLLINS: The time lines right now
that we are operating under is that the MAB
will review plans on Friday. There are —
G age .
my understanding, unless somebody has shown
up to the MAB chair with something that |
don't have, there are currently three
documents.

There's the planning document and plan
from our office; there is the plan
submitted by PAPA; and there is a document
that we have copies here submitted by Buck
Medical Services. Those are the three that
have been submitted within the current time
line that the MAB identified.

Their process is to review the flans
at that meeting and make some kind of final
statement regarding the plans in the May
meeting, which would be May 14th, | think.
lelhget the dates. Yeah, May 14th is
the May MAB meeting. And that — the
results of that will be forwarded to — the
MAB has decided the; want to forward that
to the board. That's the only time line
that is in place right now.

MR. D E: That's a time line from
the MAB? That's not a time line from the
County Commissioners?

MR. COLLINS: That's a time line from

the MAB that's also been — not from the
commissioners as a whole, but the liaison
commissioner with the Health Department has
agreed on that same timing.

MR. DRAKE: If we met once a week for
the next four weeks, that would deveiop a
time line? it would take that long to
develop a response.

MR. COLLINS: It would meet — it
would be within the framework of the time
set out b¥ the MAB. | can't tell you what
the MAB is going to do, you know, on
Frlda& and the subsequent —

MR. DRAKE: Irrespective of the MAB,
would that be a time line for the County
Commissioners, as far as you are aware?

MR. COLLINS: As far as | am aware,
that would meet what is currently in the
place, which is the May, yeah, the May
meetin%

MR. DRAKE: When are County
Commissioners going to hear?’

MR. COLLINS: | can't tell you that

for sure.

,.
.
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R. COLLINS: Our department, we
decided that we wanted to have the plan
before the County board in June, no later
than June. That's the actual date. |
mean, there has to be an agenda date.

The process, as far as | am — uniess
somebody comes up with something different,
is the County Board of Commissioners have
to ngprove a plan. That plan then goes to
the State. The State says, yes, you have
included eveming. No, you didn't.

The State S not, as far as | know,
have any process by where they comment on
the content of the plan like, we don't like
the way you did it. They are just going to
:hevlew it to see if all the pieces are

ere.

Then subsequent to the approval by the
State, then the County will have to enact
an ordinance that would implement the
plan. So it's really kind of a two-piece,
rou know, the plan is a plan. lt's notan
mpiementabie document. Then you have to
take that and then put that into some kind
of ordinance that will then allow you to

S

implement what the pian told you to do.
| don't have — | mean, the
discussions | have had with the State is
that there is no lengthy turnaround time.
it does not go before any kind of board at
the State. itis reviewed internally by
the EMS division of the state Health
Division, the EMS section, whatever they
call it. So my discussions with them is
that is a sort of aimost a perfunctory
process that they will go through.

MR. DRAKE: Okay.

MR. COLLINS: So | wouldn't expect
that would be a delay. But it would seem
on the Board of Commissioners' side there's
actually two things they need to do. One
is, they need to approve a plan to submit
to the state, and then, subsequently, they
need to approve an implementable
ordinance. Those are the two pieces. And
then we go from there.

MR. D E: Okay. But | am sure ?;ou
are going to agree — you can agree with me
we want to keep this a uniform, a fair, and
accessible process?

MR. COLLINS: Yes, we do.

MR. DRAKE: | am sure the Coun
Commissioners will want as well. in fact,
reading from Commissioner Collier's memo
that she wants to keep it a fair process.

MR. COLLINS: Yes, | am sure she
would.

MR. DRAKE: From our standpoint as a
ovider, as a fair process, we are to need
ur to five weeks, meeting weekly, to

prepare a response to these plans, which
would include some financial information,
of course, and some real details of getting
down to the subject matters that we need to
discuss, talking about all areas of the

plan themselves. So is that agreeable with
you, from the County’s standpoint?

MR. COLLINS: That fits into the time
frame, as far as [ can tell.

MR. DRAKE: What about the other
providers?

MR. SKEEN: Well, a couple things,
Mark. Just by having the two plans — and
Buck's document was not a plan. It was
more commentary on the plans.

MR. DRAKE: Uh-huh.

MR. SKEEN: - raised more questions
than they answer. Four or five weeks,
meeting weekly, | would say would be a
significant task to address those issues in
that period of time. And | guess that
takes me back to the MAB on Friday.
Because you talked about a final, final
discussion on the plans for them?

MR. COLLINS: No. That's in May. My
understanding of what the MAB wishes to
accomplish on Friday is review the plans
that have been submitted as of the 2nd of
April, which was Friday, this last Friday,
and to make some decision on what they are
goln%tto continue to discuss in May.

MR. SKEEN: Okay.

MR. COLLINS: That's my best summary.

MR. SKEEN: Because | don't think they
have enough data in front of them to make
the final recommendations.

MR. COLLINS: | can't comment on that.

MR. DRAKE: { would agree with Trace.
| don't think there's enough data to make
any decision on the vehicle delivery
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system.

ysMR. SKEEN: You talked about involving
MAB in the discussions with the Provider
Board. Are you talking about asking them
to assign a llaison to work in the
development?

MR. DRAKE: | think we need to invite
all parties, which is the physician
supervisors, to participate in that
10 process, and to the medical input, and
" certainly invite the members of the Medical
12 Advisory Board - this is an open, public
13 meeting - to parﬂcig:te with us if they
14 $0 desire. Not just be a liaison but
15 anybody that wants to discuss involving
16 here in the issues.

OONOMBRWN -

17 MR. SKEEN: You may want to take that
18 from five weeks to 15 weeks.
19 MR. DRAKE: Yeah. | am hoping to do

20 it sooner than that, but you are right. it

21 may take longer than that concerning what
22 issues we have.

23 MR. SKEEN: The other thing, B\mu made
24 some comments about the plan Bill's folks
25 put through. | don’t want to discount the

effort that the PAPA group have in their
2 plan. |think they have some very strong
3 components. In fact, | think, Bill, you
4 referred to the issue of response time that
5 needs to be addressed at some later point
6 for the population-density classifications
7 of the County.
8 And PAPA took initiative to — went
9 into a little more detail on that. |
10 thought it was good. Concepts of financial
1 oversight board that they submitted |
12 thought were good. | think it's obviously
13 probably gone into a lot of research on
14 various wheels that have already been
15 created in putting their plan together.

16 MR. COLLINS: | would encourage you to
17 not to pick a plan but to look at the
18 information that's been put forward and see
19 what you recommend out of all the
20 information that's come forward. Because |

21 agree with you. There are some things in
22 each document that should be reviewed, or
23 there may be other stuff, too.

24 MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't think the

25 proposal is to pick a plan. | think the

g¢ 4
Rroposal is to produce a plan. Most of us
ave been around long enough. | know you

1
2
3 are eminently familiar with other systems

4 in the country. | am familiar with quite a

g :ew-notas many as | used to be, but a

ot.

7 The expertise that we have sitting on

8 the Provider Board is substantial, just out

9 of our heads without even looking up, just
10 for the years we have been here, and |

1 think the Provider Board, if it is desired,

12 the Provider Board can get busy anddo a
13 good job fairly rapidly.

14 We have two plans before us. Both of

15 them have good points; | think both of them
16 have bad points. And | am sure anything we
17 come up with, somebody is going to say it
18 has some good points and some bad points.
19 And | think that the whole thing - |

20 think the real question at this point is,

21 do we want to do that? | would like to see
22 us do that. | think it would be the first

23 time the providers really produced

24 something. We have been reactionary for
25 years. | think it would be the first time
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we have being proactive than reactive.
MR. SKEEN: Again, | just reiterate
the time lines.
MR. DRAKE: We are not held to the
times lines. And | am sure, Trace, if we
et into this and find there are more
ssues, it will take more time, we may have
to go to the County Commissioners. We will

ONONHEWN -
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say, here's where we are at and here's the
more time we need.

it depends how much audience
participation we g:t. They are pretty
quiet out there. peopie may get more
interested. | think we need to go throuah
the plans and ask some questions. And |
would like to work off of Bill Collins’
plan as a framework for the Provider Board
to response to and to produce a response.

| don't know if, Pete, if we are
really looking at produclng a plan
ourselves but just responding to Biil's
plan and maklng:ome adjustments.

MR. ROBEDEAU: 1 think any time you

::sgl:lnd to a plan, you resgon to PAPA plan

‘s plan or the Joe Acker plan from
TSSO
a pian, and | thin|
we wind uE producing a plan here, this says
this, | think this would be better that
wan You wind up producing a plan.

R. SKEEN: | would stay away from
using one of these as foundation to
building blocks to build on and basically
look at components you will draw — you
deark will draw from both of these.

MR. DRAKE: | understand what you are
saying. But | wouid rather work froma
framework rather than starting from de
novo, new, and golng through this process.
| think most of the components of an ASA
are pretty noncontroversial. You have to
distribute the —

(Dr. Gary Qxuman left the meeting

at 9:55,

MR. ROBEDEAU: PAPA's plan is
copyrighted.

MR. DRAKE: We respond, certainly, |
would like to, from CARE's standpoint, we
would like to respond within Bill Collins’
framework. That's the recommendation to
the Provider Board. In fact, furthermore,

e s Fage 46

CARE-TVA would like to look at option 1,
which is the public-private model, as the
model that we would like to work off of.
That would be our framework that we would
essentially like to work with them.

MR. SKEEN: What are your plans for
the next meeting, Pete? Do you want to
have the providers come with some proposals
of components and comments on plans’
What's your intent?

MR. ROBEDEAU: No. | have a list of
things that — | went through Bill Collins’
plan and picked out things | think we
really need to look at. | think the
accuracy ot Inaccuracy or the assumptions
in the data are important. | think you
need to see what they are, double-check to
see if they are correct. | think some of
the assumptions, | don't believe, are
correct. | could be wrong. | would like
to see all the raw data.

MR. SKEEN: You are talking about gast
performance? Historical performance

MR. ROBEDEAU: | am talking about
projections, | am talking about — oh, let

me see here. | have a whole — we have
information on paramedic turnover. We have
cost analysis and projected cost savings.
Some of that | don't agree with.

| know with paramedic turnover with AA
Ambulance, he shows we have 59 paramedics.
We only have 28 positions. 26 of those are
filled. There's something that has gone
awry with some of the — a jot of
assumptions. And | certainly am not going
to start throwing any reaction around, but
| think we just need to see the raw data
where this came from so we can determine
what the actual thing is. | don't know.

It shows 181 private paramedics. We
have 26. | think CARE has about the same.
| am not sure, Trace, | think 181 seems

IRy
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awfully, awfully high.
MR. SKEEN: 1think Bill has been very

candid how he's measured that. He can

represent himself. When | talked to him,

he indicated there’s no preassessment other

than he used a method of the licensed

paramedics with the County. [ think

there's some holes in some of the

assumptions there.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think we have some
things we need to get. And if Bill can
provide us with the raw data on that, we
need to look at it real quick, and | think
that's a good foundation for where we are
coming from or from where we start and what
is correct and what isn't. Then we know
better what needs to be fixed and what
doesn't, what is working properly, what
could work better.

MR. DRAKE: | think there's questions
about both plans, too, | have, Trace.

Gary, are you going to be coming to
all these meetings if we have them once a
week? Are you going to be able to do that
or someone from Weu' organization?

MR. McLEAN: would certainly like
to have a representative there, but that's
a pretty big chore that you are asking
for. And | think our plan is complete. If
you have questions about the plan now, |
would be more than happy to answer them.

MR. DRAKE: We may have questions as
we go through the process, and certainly |

do have some questions today, but | think

we need to ask questions. And certainly

Bill will be a resource here, and he can

answer questions from his plan.

MR. McLEAN: | can't guarantee someone
will be there from MAB. Trace, Mark, you
indicated you wanted to work off of Bill
Collins’ pfan, the ASA pian with the
selection with the provider selection
specified as option 17

MR. DRAKE: | would like to use that
as a framework under options 5.1, the
public-private.

MR. SKEEN: | don't even know what
your process you are ag:in, that you want
to pursue. You tatked about doing more
analysis. Again, | would say my comments
are, rather than locking on to a particular
ASA plan and a particular option - | think
there are six options laid out between the
two plans — that we probably ought to
start from assumptions of the A
co nents and build from there.

R. DRAKE: Okay.

MR. SKEEN: Soon as you lock on an
option, then you are aimost agreeing the
number of assumptions made there are
accurate and validated. .

MR. DRAKE: | don't have any Problem
looking into components of the plan.

Tom, do you have any thoughts?

MR. STEINMAN: Well, we all know the
MAB is golng to charge ahead with it, so |
think it would make more sense to offer the
Provider Board's assistance to the MAB, who
is obviously going to be looking at all
these plans in the next few weeks, and see
if we can work together with them, instead
of going off on a separate course and
::an?lng heads at the County Commissioners'

eve

MR. DRAKE: Sure.

MR. STEINMAN: Make that suggestion
Friday y‘t:? see where it goes. If we don’t
get anything -

MR. ROBEDEAU: It's my understanding
the MAB's process Is closed.

MR. STEINMAN: We are not going to
know it until Friday. it was pretty closed
when they had one plan.

board, as | understand.

. years.
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MR. ROBEDEAU: Pretty closed?

MR. STEINMAN: Just because they
called Mark a dummy, that's no big deal. |
think we need to see what they are up to
Friday and then maybe work with them if we
can or — | just don't want to get into
any — a lot of different games in front of
commissioners and get this thing stalled
for six or seven years.

MR. DRAKE: '| agree with that. Tom,
you don’t have any probiem meeting once a
:ﬁe;(? We can do that and forge ahead with

S

MR. STEINMAN: No.

MR. DRAKE: Any other providers? Jeff
is down there hiding. Don’t have any
problem meeting once a week?

MR. PRAGGASTIS: Mark, | have a
question. Am | to understand that you, as
agents of the County, are going to write
;lnot;er pian in tandem with the County's

an

MR. DRAKE: We are not agents.

MR. PRAGGASTIS: This is a County

: ‘ ge
MR. ROBEDEAU: Provider Board, yeah,
we are talking about writing a plan.
MR. PRAGGASTIS: As a County board?
MR. ROBEDEAU: As the Provider Board,

S,

ye MR. SKEEN: | think Pete indicated

later there might be a majority and a

minority or secondary minority.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: | was just

curious if this was to be done as a County

function or if this was to be done as

independent providers.

R. ROBEDEAU: No. This is to be done
as the Provider Board, as a group of
providers who have been providing EMS in
the area. You know, we have not closed the
meeting, as with some organizations closed
their organization to us, so we could have
input into that, which was not allowed. |
know with the MAB is not at all receptive
to even hearing anything.

| think some of the peopie on the MAB,
If you go back and look, you find there s
very, very little room for discussion with
the MAB. Their mind has been made up for

And you look at the minutes of the MAB
or Ay!:vu look at the transcripts from the
MAB, and every meeting over a period of —
| would dare to say - the same individuals
have said the same things over and over and
over and over again, which shows to me that
there is no fair process from the MAB,
absolutely none. The MAB has made up its
mind. The chair of the MAB wrote the white
per. You just go on down the line, and
's not a fair process.
MR. PRAGGASIS: | just was curious,
Mr. Chairman, if you were meeting under the
shield of the County. That’s my only

question.

MR. ROBEDEAU: ! don't know that we
are meeting under the shield.

MR. C NS: What is the shield of
the coun

MR. DI E: | don't know.

MR. PRAGGASTIS: They just -

MR. COLLINS: Both the MAB and the
Provider Board are advisory boards in the
current EMS ordinance with the County. If

at's Id, then I"%uess theyare a
shield. There's no difference in their
status. | mean, they are both advisory
boards. They are both actually advisory to
the director of the EMS office.

There's nothing actually in the
ordinances that make them advisory to
anyone else. Although in actual operation,
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they have taken a different tack, but they
are both, whoever set it up however long

ago, that's what they set up, two advisory
boards, one medical, one provider.

Those are actualtlxdthe only provider
boards -- the only advisory mechanisms that
are formal within the ordinance. So |
don’'t know if that answers your question,
because | am not sure what shield means.
But is that what you are —

MR. PRAGGASTIS: Just was curious.
Just thought | would ask.

MR. COLLINS: But | mean, | was asking
what you meant.

MR. PRAGGASTIS: If the Countyis
going to run two processes or one, if you
were meeting under the —- as a group of

CRRRROLRRNOSDALEA AR 2 e
providers or if you were meeting as
representatives of the County. That was my
onlaauestion. Thank you.

. COLLINS: Representatives of the
County? They are not representatives of
the County. They don't work for the

County.

MR. SKEEN: You withdraw the
question?

MR. COLLINS: | don't understand what

u mean.

MR. SKEEN: Probably ought to mention
that the opinions expressed by Mr. Robedeau
are his own regarding the MAB and does not
necessarily represent — in case there is
legal action.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Randy?

MR. LAUER: John raises a question
that | think is in a lot of peoples
minds. The fact that the Provider Board is
convening now at the 11th hour of this
process is a little interesting. | think
we ought not bash the MAB because | think
their focus has been to get something
moving. Whether people overwhelming agree

s
with that or not is another issue, but |
want to ask just one question.

Is it the intent of the Provider Board
or the group of providers to reach a
consensus on ASA components or is it the
intent to forward a majority or minority
opinion under the Provider Board umbrella?

MR. ROBEDEAU: | would like to see a
consensus reached on a plan that could go
in without opposition. However, | think it
is — if there is no consensus that can be
reached, | think a majority and a minority
report is appropriate, and that the
::hommlssioners then make up their mind from

ere.

| wouid hope there would be a
consensus to send to the commissioners
about a plan that meets with Bill Collins'
office’s approval, and the provider
approval and the MAB approval and then the

ounty Commission approval.

MR. LAUER: | think it's pretty
important, and | agree with Tom that this
group ought not be in conflict with MAB but
try to work with them as much as we can.
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MR. ROBEDEAU: Intent is not to be in
conflict. And there are some stron%
feelings about some of the things. You
know, | have got some strong feelings, and
I was speaking, | will tell you, for
myself. | am not going to try and
apologize for what | said. | think what |
said was absolutely true.

You know, | don't think — | have sat,
you know, for years and listened to some of
the stuff. But putting that aside, | would
like nothing better — one of my original
comments was to see if we could work with
the MAB. | would like nothing better than
the MAB and Provider Board working together
and produce a plan that is agreeable to
everybody that can be submitted to the

County Commission, you know, something that
isn't controversial and something that will
work for the citizens of Multnomah County.
That is the ideal thing. | don't know that

that's possible with some of the agendas

that have been out.

TN
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And | expect everyone will have say [ h

own agenda. | think that's true. |
think everybody alive has their agenda, to
some degree.

i think it needs to be fair and open.
| think it needs to include all groups,
PAPA — you know, the providers, they are
- in the ars that | have been
involved in EMS in Muitnomah County, | can
never remember any plan or any change that
has involved all groups. it has always
been a group or a couple of groups trying
to shove something down the throat of
everybody else, you know.

are never, ever in this County

going to get down to having a cohesive
system that works well with everybod
working and cooperatlng. | don't thin
that will ever happen. That's why | made
my remarks at the first of this thing. |
said, let's get everxbody involved. |
would invite the MAB, | would invite the
physician supervisors. it was an open
meeting. PAPA is invited if they wish to
come, everybody eise. But this has never,
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ever, ever, in the history of EMS in
Multnomah County, happened. | would
certainly like to see it happen, and
everybody is invited.
at always has come out of meetings

where somebody is trying to shove things
down somebody else’s throat was, you had a
report by the guy who is willing to stand
up and holler the loudest. And there was
never any disagreement alluded.

| don't think disagreement is a bad
thing. | think disagreement is what has
gon%rée world to wh.at h';'s' now.h If th
ever y was accepting things the way they
were in the Middle Agtes, we would still ge
believing things that weren't there, this
is the center of the universe.
Disagreement is one of the things that
helﬂs move things along.

R. STEINMAN: Good. Then | will

disagree with you, Pete.

MR. LAUER: That was a pretty long
answer, Pete.

MR. STEINMAN: Can we go off back a
second? Part of the confusion, | agree

with Mark, we need to do a report to Bill
or County Commission or whatever the
process is, and not do another plan. if
guAthrow that in that we are doing another
lan, that's confusion.
need to look at the components of
that and come up with what we are
recommending. You are talking about
minority reports and majority reports, and
then you are talking about plans. We
need to figure out what we are going to
do. | agree with Mark. Get our opinions
on the table and let the powers that be
make decisions.
MR. ROBEDEAU: | agree. But by doing
that, Tom, we are actually producing a

an.
MR. STEINMAN: You think that, but |
don't. We disagree.
MR. DRAKE: When you are talking about
oducing a whole ASA. Some of them are
ilerplate, and we are not really going to
comment on.
Randy, | think you have been invoived
in the process out in Washington County for
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many, many months.

R. LAUER: Years.

MR. DRAKE: You know as well as | do
discussing those comgnents. we will
discuss a component for 20, 30 minutes, for
even an hour on just one component of the
plan of the process. And soin
relationship — and | am not meaning to be
attacking, giving us five minutes to
respond to two minutes, this thing isn’t
reasonable. We can't even begin to talk
about some of these components in five
minutes.

So that's part of the process that has
led us here is, we need to respond to
these. We would like to respond as
evovlders. and it would be nice - right.

'ou ;g;lght. if MAE and sAPA ant|ld 0
ever together and we could a
bring fortx go;:lan to the County

Commissioners to respond to a plan, it
would be ideal for everyone. | don't know
if that's possible.

MR. LAUER: First of all, it's not
— let's not back up and start doing

things the way Washington County is doing.
l;tsl DRAKE: No, | didn't mean to do
that either.

MR. LAUER: We will be well into the
next century.

MR. DRAKE: We will still be here in
1995, | think we can do it a lot quicker.

MR. LAUER: | think we can identify
the key components from the ASA plan and
reach consensus on those.

MR. DRAKE: Right.

MR. LAUER: Rather than get into the
details.

MR. DOHERTY: | think we have been
spending the last 18 months tr¥in to reach
consensus. There were a lot ot Al
work-group sessions that that was being
done in. And | went to a lot of meetings,
and as far as | knew, we were about 80
percent there when all of a sudden there
was this other plan pushed forth, which
caused, at least in my own opinion - |
can't speak for the other providers — but
that caused the EMS office to put forth a
plan right away.

RN R RRHRR SRR R e ety
| don't feel we are done. on’t
think that the Provider Board %enlng
together now in the 11th hour is
necessarily the case. | know that at least
for CARE-TVA, our decision, when Bill came
to town and started getting work groups
together to build consensus, that was the
process we were going to use for ASA
plannln? and be part of that process.

And | think we had a lot of excellent
meetings. | don't think we finished that
process. And the reason why we are in the
11th hour now is that | believe some plans
were brought forth before they were
finished.

And so that's why | believe Mark was
making the comment that we should use
Mr. Collins' plan as the groundwork because
that is the result of all the work that we
have all been doing for the last year and a
half. | just don't think that it was
finished.

MR. LAUER: That brings up one
additional point. There was never a work
group that was targeted to address what's

SRRRARRE R

probably the most volatile part of the A
plan, and that is the provider selection

rt. That was never discussed. Never

n in any discussion on that at all. If

we do nothing else than discuss that, this
can substitute as a work group. But that
needs more discussion,

MR. DRAKE: | agree, Randy. | think
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out there.

this is a forum for this discussion as long

as the other components we have to discuss
before we get there. | agree with what

Barry is saying; we need to finish what we
have started. There were several work
groups in process, and | thought we were
still meeting, and then this plan came out.

And | think there is some
incompleteness, at least what | see in the
plan, and | think in the next couple of
weeks we can get that wrapped up. We are
most of the way there. We just need a
litle more refinement.

MR. LAUER: Don't you think, then, it
would be premature to take the provider
gﬁﬂons now and use that as a framework?

ere's a large question that still looms

MR. DRAKE: | guess that's in part
because of the historical background in
this process. We have gone through a lot
of these occupations, a lot of these
discussions before.

But | agree with you, | think we need
to just look at all of them, ail the
options around the table, and that's why |
would agree with Trace we need to look at
PAPA and Bill Collins’ plan. | would like
PAPA here to ask them some questions about
their plan, and also Mr. Collins, see if we
can get down to some nuts and bolts.

aybe eliminate some of the options
that are not feasible in the current
economic situation. That might be
possible. Thatit? Pete? You want to
take a break? | have some questions of
Bill. | think everyone will want to take a
quick break?

MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't care.

MR. DRAKE: Let's take a five-minute
break. Thanks.

(Recess taken from 10:31 a.m.)

MR ROBEDEAU: Can we getbackto
going again, please? Let's reconvene, get

going.

I t%ink | need a motion to agree to
meet for the next six or seven weeks weekly
and review the components of the different

ans and advise the director on that. Do
have a motion?

MR. DRAKE: We have a couple of our
members out, though. Why don't we wait a
minute.

MR. COLLINS: Keep in mind, if you
would, the time lines that we are working
under so it fits in with that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Trying to.

MR. COLLINS: We really want to try to
m&ln that time frame as much as we can.

R ROBEDEAU: You were talking June
to the commissioners. Right?

MR. COLLINS: June would be - | mean,
if you were going to pick sortof —a
drop-dead date will be whenever the County
Commissioners begin the review process and
hold their public hearings, and that is
— we don't have the date of the agenda,

. And | don't know where
what's her name went.

MR. SKEEN: If you were going to take
into consideration recommendations from the
govidet committee into a plan that you put

rth, what's the -

MR. COLLINS: We would like to do it
in concert with the process that's going on
with the MAB, so that would be sort of the
middle of May. The date thatwe —and |
am only speaking for the Health Department,
saying when we would do it. | can't speak
for the Board of County Commissioners. We
sJ:ld we would bring a plan forward in

ne.

Now, when in June, obviously, depends
on when you can get on the agenda and how
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it fits in, but let's assume June. That
would be the — that's when the, | would
assume, the commissioners would begin
whatever public hearings they would have
regarding the adortion of the plan.

So there's two dates. There's — we
are trying to get the MAB and whatever
input we can against that date, and there's

the June date for the public hearings. |
would say once the public hearing date, we
are not going to go past that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: What's the MAB date?

MR. COLLINS: The May date is the
14th. We will try — you know, | will talk
to the comission and see if we can
actually set ... 4 time in June. | mean,
there's — tha: r.an be done, | think. But
we would hav: to do that with the
commission. We can't obligate them to the
hearing date,

MR. KILMER: But, Bill, | think it's
important for the record here to be that
the Provider Board — | think Mr. Doherty
made a very good point that the Provider
Board is not meeting at the 11th hour. it
is because a plan came out faster than the
plan without the opportunity to discuss
many of its components before
recommendations were made, and now they are
having to respond to that and they are
going -- the commitment seems to be they
ares mﬂly going to do it very quickly.

But there's no guarantee going in that

9 P| ty
to J; it w?thin the time frames tgaot you
are now talking about. And | don't think
anybody wants to waive any claim that any
rocess that is imposed on too short a time
ame Is unfair by making any commitments
today. And |l understand that Mark's
comments earlier indicated they were
reserving the right to request additional
time if needed but that there will be a
good faith effort to meet what is, all of a
sudden, a very accelerated time frame.

MR. COLLINS: | understand that.

MR. KILMER: Today, your comments
today were the first notice that anybody
was even thinking about such an accelerated
time frame. So | just —- | think the
committee or the board ought to make it
very clear that, you know, our fundamental
desire is to have a fair, open process
that's fully capable of evaluating all
these things, and the time frame you are
talking about may not be adequate to allow

that.
MR. DRAKE: Bill, | have a question

SRR R R S R SRR R ﬂge &
for you. The next Provider Board meeting,
how much notice do we need to put out to
people? Is it a ten-day notice?

MR. COLLINS: No. You just need to
make a timely notice. There's no time.

And there's a lot of people here. Just put
it out. Say when you want to do it.

MR.D E: If we schedule meetings on
a weekly basis?

MR. COLLINS: If you feel you need to
meet on a weekly basis, we will pull it
out. If you don't want to meet, then
cancel it. We will cancel it. it will
help us, us being our office, to know what
you want to accomplish in this period of
time and what kind of support we are going
to need.

If it's a matter of reviewing sort of
what has been put together so far, we have
?oot all that, so that's not a big process

r us. Ifit's developing new and
different data, that may be something that
will be very difficult for us to do.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't know that we
are going to be able to develop any new

ONONDBWN -
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data. | think we will have to limit to
reviewlng the components of the existing
plans and use the existing data.

MR. COLLINS: Like Barry said,
essentially, not - | don’t know if all the
data has been reviewed because there's been
some questions on some of the pleces in the
plan that we submitted, but a lot of the
data was developed in groups where we know
where it came from, so this is not all
brand-new stuff. But we can do that. We
can Eut — if you wanted to meet every
week, we will just put out a notice you
want to meet every week and what time, and
you can go ahead and do it.

But | would like to try to, you know,
| think on the June date, probably what we
should try to do — we, our office, Is,
contact the board and see if we can set up
a date - a reasonably certain date for
whatever public hear nﬁ process they want
to fanicipate in. And that way peopie
will have the date ahead of time as opposed
to one week before the agenda. So | would
be wiliing ~ we will do that

MR. DRAKE: Pete, you said you needed
a motion. | would so move that the
Provider Board develop a response to both
plans and forward on a recommendation to
the EMS office and Board of County
Commissioners and that we meet weekly until
that process is done, and hopefully we can
do that in five to six weeks, but we may
need more time. | think that's recognized
by all. And that the meetings be at least
two hours in length. | think we will need

to do that. | will make that motion.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Do | have a second?

MR. DOHERTY: | second.

MR. ROBEDEAU: We have a second.
Discussion?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: | just like to
make a comment. Has the thought occurred
to you all that what you might do is
determine a process that can fit within a
time frame, and if that requires you would
meet more than once a week, that you would
do that?

MR. DRAKE: That's a good suggestion.
Thank you. We can certainly meet more than

once a week If we have to. it's difficult
with our schedules. But -

MR. ROBEDEAU: What would be the
notification requirements on that?

MR. COLLINS: Like | said, what we can
do, since a multiple meeting type of thing
we will — we can send out a notice with as
many times as you want to put on them, and
that puts everybody on notice when the
meetings are. Then we can cancel the times
if you don't want to meet them.

That's a — that's better than trying
to do each one separately. So if you are
going to meet once a week, | can send out a
notice on behalf of the Provider Board,
like we do with the MAB, and say, the
meetings will be on such and such a date,

anc:reogle know that.
R. ROBEDEAU: This lady’s suggestion
of possibly more than once a week, |
determined needed - if we meet next week
at a time and then decide to meet two days
later again, are we legally allowed to do
that? Thatis question.

MR. COLLINS: What | would suggest you
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do is pick a series of times, like you want
to meet on Tuesdays and Thursdays, and you
are aoing to do that over the next four
weeks, and we put out a notice. Then if
you choose not to meet on one of those
times, canceling it is not such a big
deal. You can cancel it.

There's no specific time in the public

B
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meeting law that says you have to give ten
days or 12 days or four daxs. It needs to
be timely so that people who are interested
can attend the meetings. So what you don't
want to do is give one-day or two-day
notice because then it's not — people

won't get it in time. it would be easier

just to put out a whole schedule and then
deal with the schedule.

MR. DRAKE: | think we can do that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't know about once
aweek. That would require an amendment to
your motion.

MR. STEINMAN: Mark, why don’t you
amend a motion to set a date we are going
to have this report to the commissioners
and then go from there. If they want this

by —-

MR. DRAKE: That's what we are trying
to get out of Bill. | don't think he can
give us a date. | don’t have a problem by
ts’aoglﬂg June 1. s that what you want to

MR. STEINMAN: Yes.

MR. SKEEN: Actually, | was very
hopeful of having this — perhaps we can
provide those portions that have been
completed by May 14th when the MAB - seems
to be the date when they are going to take
more definitive action. | think it's
important to work towards that. | see June
as rather lengthy. By the same token, it's

ing to be a difficuit task to get all

at put together by then.

MR. DR%KE: Do you have the time to
meet twice a week?

MR. SKEEN: That was the other thing.
| think if we talk about individuals who
meet twice a week, we will discover real
quick there are substantive — substantial
conflicts. Certainly, there ought to be a
commitment to have a representative from

s

the agency that can meet at those
meetings. And you will lose some
consistency with it. But nevertheless,
because of the short time frame we have,
there is not a lot of options.

MR. DRAKE: Okay. Does that work with
you, Tom?

MR. STEINMAN: Whatever it takes.

MR. ROBEDEAU: If you want twice a
week, you amend the motion you are going to

MR. DRAKE: Just Tuesdays and
Thursdays?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Just a second.

MR. DRAKE: Thursdax mornings are
bad. Only once a week, though, Randy,
lsn'ttl't‘? w:uhrre ]ustcmeeﬂng ol?ce b-o o
month, Washington County policy boar

MR. LAUER: Sometimes two weeks.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Bill, what was
the intention for MAB for action
tomorrow — or for Friday? The way |
understood it, they were going to pick a
plan to use as a ~

MR. COLLINS: { don't know for sure,

you know, what they will do. The original
discussion at the MAB was to pick a plan.
But comments — | mean input has been back
to the chair that that may be not enough
time to do that. So we will have to see on
Friday what they are going to do.

Their commitment to a recommendation
is the May meeting, not the April meeting.
Whatever they do they are not putting forth
any recommendations until Mag:.n

NIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: they are
developing a home plate or base to work
on? They thought they were going to pick
one of the four, whatever else they came?

MR. COLLINS: That was what they said
at the last meethl%

MR. DRAKE: That was my understanding,

too, they are going to pick an option on
Friday.

M& THEANDER: Pete, if | say say
something since there's so marax qgesﬂons
about the actual a?enda of the MAB meeting,
let me shed some lighton it. The
discussion was concerning the process. And
the process agreed upon was the deadiine of
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il 2nd; that the April meeting, the

ans would be discussed and that gubllc
testimony would be heard; if enough public
testimony is present but not able to be
heard because of time constraints, a
secondary meeting will be scheduled. At
that time that when public testimony has
been finished, a vote will be taken for the
template. The MAB will work on that as a
template amongst itself, and then in May
endorse a single plan.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | am sorry.
MR. THEANDER: In May endorse a single
preference for an ASA plan. But the
primary vote will be to establish one of
the plans as a template and then to amend
it, component out, as they will, and then
in May endorse the plans to the
Commissioners. Now, Tanya has already
relayed it to most of us she does not favor
any of the plans, one over the other, and
is open to discussion on all plans.
she has also stated that she Is in

no way bound by the recommendations of the
Medical Advisory Board concerning a given

Rian. That | believe, Mark, if you have
er memo up there, | think that was dated
the 30th of March.

MR. DRAKE: Yes.

MR. THEANDER: That she will not be
held bound to any recommendation.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Is the MAB interested
in working with the Provider Board? Or are

u not -

MR. THEANDER: That would be at the

ea:ure of the chair. | couldn’t answer
r that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: You are nota
representative here as the MAB?

MR. THEANDER: No. | am here as a
concerned citizen.

MR. PHILLIPS: | guess my point, they
are going to contribute no matter what we
do. If we did want to meet, turn this
thing into clip-art by sections, bring
those in that match that nobody has any
problems with, and forward them on, and
then, obviously, there's going to be some
that we can't agree on.

And give them our majority, minority

opinion as it was put earlier on
issues, and ask that they consider them.
Because, basically, that's all we can do, |
believe, is ask that they consider what we

feel and how we stand on each issue.

MR. DRAKE: Right.

MR. ROBEDEAU: i think that's
reasonable. | think a lot of issues are -
there's no argument there are some issues,
but | think the issues that there is not
compiete agreement on deserve review on
both sides of the issue. And | think both
of those should be forwarded to the County
Commissioners. That probably is what we
need to do. | can meet twice a week,

MR. STEINMAN: Maybe it would be
better to use the May 14th deadline. |
know it's really making you guys nervous,
but if we set this, we are going to get
this information to the MAB, maybe if we do
meet jolntlY and working on this and
more time is needed, they can understand it
a little better than if they have a date of
May 14th, and we are going two weeks behind
them with a report and they don't know what
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it says or what's going on. We can pick
that May 14th date — the MAB is aiready in
— and do our best to meet those time
frames.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Maybe on Friday we can
ask the MAB if they would like to move
their time frame back from May 14th and
move it back to the 1st of June.

MR. STEINMAN: If you do that, Pete,
10 it looks like you are stalling. Why don't
1 you pick their date, and if both can’t come
12 up with the stuff, they can't come up with
13 it, and then they will address it at that
14 time. Anything that we do now that says,
15 give us more time, it looks like stalling,

16 give us more, status quo.

OENOIUNDWN -

17 MR. DRAKE: We are not stalling.

18 MR. STEINMAN: | know we are not.

19 MR. DRAKE: Just warnt-d that point
20 made.

21 MR. COLLINS: Wans rme to record that
22 in the minutes?

23 MR. PRAGGASTIS: How much is this
24 transcrlgt?

25 MR. DRAKE: But | hear what you are

saying. 1don't have any gvoblem working

1

2 towards that goal, Tom. But also | think

3 you will agree that meeting twice a week is

4 oing to be real hard for all of us to make

5 at kind of commitment. We all have other

6 counties that we are dealing with.

g h MR. STEINMAN: No, we don't all have
that.

9 MR. DRAKE: Some of us. We all have

10 other issues and jobs.

11 MR. STEINMAN: Just need to make a

12 decision, Mark, which county is more

13 important to ?;ou.
}g i MR. DI E: Oh, gosh. This county
s -

16 MR. STEINMAN: | think, you know,

17 let's try to work with the MAB, Mark.

18 MR. DRAKE: G(axh

19 MR. STEINMAN: And go with their date

20 they have already set. They may find out
21 when they try to do it and come up with
22 their idea of the perfect system that the
23 don't have time either, because some o
24 them have other jobs.

25 MR. DRAKE: Is meeting Tuesdays and

Thu;sdays going to have any problems with
u

1

2

3 MR. STEINMAN: No. it will work.

4 MR. ROBEDEAU: First of ail, | think

5 we need to vote. Okay?

6 MR. DRAKE: We are amending the motion
g to May 14th, understanding that it may take

9

more,
MR. ROBEDEAU: And amending the motion
}(1) to or':ce a -~ twice a week instead of once a
week,

12 MR. SKEEN: | understood the motion it
}2 was to set a time line and meet within

that.
15 MR. DRAKE: With a minimum of twice a
16 week.

17 MR. ROBEDEAU: lt's setting up to meet
18 twice a week.
19 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: What my

20 suggestion had been — | didn’t mean twice
21 a week. What my suggestion had been, seta
22 time line and, sort of like an election, a

23 vote after or on November 4th doesn’t count

X \.. NI pRhen gl

November 3rd is the date from which you
move back, and then you design your
activities based on whatever is necessary
to meet that particular time frame.

So | only used twice a week as an
example of that. Maybe what you ali might
want to do is set a particular date and

9

16
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then design a process that will fit within

that time frame and do whatever is
necessary to follow through on that

particular perspective. It's just a

thought.
MR. DRAKE: | agree. | appreciate
those comments. looking at these

documents and how much work we are going to
have to do, meeting twice a week by May
14th, | don't even know if that will
it. But we are going to certainly try.
There's a lot of information we have to put
her here.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: | think that
it's possibie that the time and effort
would be put forth wouid be related to the
L rtance of the issue somehow. That's

only my perspective.

MR. LAUER: | think we ought to seta
ecedent. If it takes an hour to decide
ow many times we are going to meet, we are
not going to make the May 14th deadline.
It's an important issue. Let's set twice a
week meetings, cancel those we need to, and
then let's just move on.

MR. D E: We have all agreed to
that. | am just asking, all the providers
can do that?

MR. ROBEDEAU: | was going to ask Bill
to call the roli, but | guess | am not
going to.

MR. STEINMAN: Pete, one ciarification
here. We go with Trace's suggestion that a
representative from each agency so we don’t
get Ir:to any hassles that way, too, in case

ople —-

MR. ROBEDEAU: Right. Okay. AAis
going to vote aye. Buck?

MR. SKEEN: Yeah.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Care?

MR. DOHERTY: Yeah.

MR. ROBEDEAU: TVA?

MR. DRAKE: Yes.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Portland Fire?
MR. STEINMAN: Sure. Can | vote for
District 10, too?
- M’R ROBEDEAU: Pardon me? Gresham
re
MR. PHILLIPS: (Nods head.)
MR. ROBEDEAU: Community?
MR. PHILLIPS: Aye.
h MR. DRAKE: That's a yes? | can't
ear.

MS. MURPHY: Yes, sir.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Have | missed an y?
I don't think so. Then it's unanimous that
we will do that. Let's set Tuesday and
Thursdays at nine o'clock. We can cancel
if we have to. Is that agreeable?

MR. DRAKE: Trudi, is the place s
the OMA going to be available? If not —

MS. SCHEIDELMAN: w:! - probably.
Why don't you let us determine that, and we
will let you know.

MR. DRAKE: Okay. We will start this
next week so we can give time to give
everybody notification. Next Tuesday? |
can't meet Thursday, anyway.

: S Page BT L
MR. ROBEDEAU: Beginning the 13th?

April 13th?

MR. DRAKE: That's a good date.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Atleastit's not
Friday. | was married on the 13th of
October. Friday the 13th of October.

MR. DRAKE: Did you pick that date on

rpose?

MR. ROBEDEAU: it was an accident.
Didn't last long.
" MR. DRAKE: You don’t need to record

at.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | have -- Bill isn't
here. | wish he was. | have a list of
things that | had concerns with that |
would like to see raw data on from Bill
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that we need to look at — | feel we need
t& It;ok at. | will wait for him to come
ck.
| can get these to him in writing. |
think it's also Irnggrtant that other
members of the board have copies of this.
We can get cogles from Bill. Are you
representing Bill?
MS. SCHEIDELMAN: Why don't you wait

R % AR RGP R RN RS e sy T
mr him. Why don't | tell him you need
m.

MR. McLEAN: Question with the May
14th date. That's when you are going to
try and have it finished, by your
recommendations?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Yes, by May 14th.

MR. McLEAN: Will that give the MAB
enough time to review?

MR. ROBEDEAU: | would assume.

(Mr. Collins returned to the

room.é
MR. ROBEDEALJ: We haven't talked to
the MAB yet.

MR. McLEAN: That's the same day they
are — | discussed about voting. Final
recommendations.

MR. ROBEDEAU: We haven't discussed
with the MAB. What | would like to do is
extend an invitation to the MAB and PAPA,
if they would like to have a representative
at all of the meetings and discuss the
thing, the whole proposal as it goes.

I don't know if the MAB is going to be
receptive to that. | have no idea until

ge !
Friday. | know we have a MAB member who is
here as a concerned citizen but Bili, did
you noti?f the MAB we were having this
meeting

MR. COLLINS: We notified everybody.
We sent it just like we do every other
notice.

MR. ROBEDEAU: So all of the members
of the MAB did get notice of this. They
were asked about - the MAB, the May 14th
deadline is - apparently some concern
there wouldn't be enough time for them to
review it and vote on it. | had said |
would hope that Friday we could extend an
Invitation to the MAB to be part of these
meetings.

MR. COLLINS: The notice of this
meeting goes out just like the notice for
the MAB. Our mailing list is, what, 100
some people.

MR. SKEEN: | think the point, Gary,
is gobably we need to have that
information to the MAB by the 6th, May 6th.

MR. McLEAN: A week.

MR. SKEEN: If we really expect them

R

to give it any kind of consideration. |
think that's what ¥ou are addressing more
than they had notice of it.

MR. McLEAN: Right.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Some things that | had
| would like to review, and | don't know if
you want me to read these to you or type
them up and them to you.

MR.C NS: if they are real
extensive, you might want to send them to
us and let us respond and ?Ive it to you at
the next one of these ngs.

MR. ROBEDEAU: We need to have this
information ASAP, before the next meeting.
MR. COLLINS: We get it to you before
the next meeting. Go ahead and read them.
MR. ROBEDEAU: You know, the data

WoONOONBWN -
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MR. COLLINS: The cost. And all we
did was add it up.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Unit hour cost?

MR. COLLINS: Added it up. We made
copies of an agreement that this would not
be a process where we were comparing one
cost statement by one provider to another.
it was not an interprovider. Is that the
right word? In-between provider analysis.

it was an 63 reg:te.

MR. R DEAU: The analysis on that,
too, the information on paramedic touring.
i think we discussed that a little bit
earlier.

MR. COLLINS: Right.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | have a bitofa
problem with that.

MR. COLLINS: We can get you that.
Those are all the lists of EMTs provided to
our office once a year as required by the
administrative rules. Now, we did not
differentiate between part-time, full-time,
active, on a car, administrative. We just
combined the number of people — is the
issue we were trying to look at, was how

many and how it would affect things li

training and that sort of thing.

wil ISo' it you wflrteh Ilstedl on th;!r;. dv;e 0
ve you all the — give an al

the &ulrh's not — Igvlll not give

the individual costs. | mean, that is, we

agreed not to do that. That's a

proprietary. |think that —

MR. DRAKE: Right.

MR. COLLINS: will give you the
aggregate of it. The list of paramedics is
probably the record. We get one a year.

MR. ROBEDEAU: On the cost, you come
down — well, let me get to that later.
Maybe | will just go out of order here.

You know, the unit hour utilization
findings and cost on unit hour utilization,
you put on 75-45. Do we have any stats or
anything that shows what, nationally, the
average unit hour utilization cost is

MR. COLLINS: No, | don't.

MR. ROBEDEAU: For a quality system.

MR. COLLINS: |don't know if AA

does.
MR. SKEEN: AA doesn't per se.

There's some surveys that have been done.
MR. COLLINS: Right. Again, that data

was not data that we developed. That was

data from the companies, and we added it

up.

MR. ROBEDEAU: So there'’s nothing that
says that's d, bad, or indifferent?

MR. COLLINS: H's as good as the data
that was provided to us by the companies
during the work-group process by people
like Barry and some others involved.

MR. ROBEDEAU: There's nothing that
says that's high nationally or iow
nationally?

MR. COLLINS: No. We did not make any
menmto determine whether it's high or
low. just — the idea was to use that
cost data to some indication of what a
change in unit hours would be. So ifit's
either, you know —

MR. ROBEDEAU: Then we need to say the
data and the analysis on the demand
summary, tabie one, page 14. How did you
calculate unit hour savings off of this?

Some of these things, | am generally

fused on in the proposal.

relied on for the cost analysis of the 1
current system, | would like to see raw 2 MR. COLLINS: can do that now or
data on that. 3 however you want to do it. That was done
MR. COLLINS: The data? Sure. The 4 in a work group with representatives from
data that was used was the data provided to 5 all the companies. There was a
me by the providers. 6 representative from PAPA there. We looked
MR. ROBEDEAU: You are talking about 7 at it a couple different ways.
the - 8 MR. ROBEDEAU: What | really would
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like to see, Bill, if you could send this
out there, our committee, anybody else that
wants it. Is that all right?

MR. COLLINS: We can senditto
whoever wants it.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Along with that, in
order to get cost savings, is there
an?nhing on how rnang paramedic jobs are
going to be eliminated.

MR. COLLINS: No.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Under any of the three
options?

MR. COLLINS: No. The only thing
that — | mean, the only thing that we
identified as changing in the report was
the number of unit hours required to meet
the 5-1-1 demand. It doesn’t try to say

i S SR
anything eilse. How that gets turned into
ggmbers of people, | don't know. | mean, |

MR. ROBEDEAU: When that was done, did
geographics come into pla

R. COLLINS: Yeah. looked to make
sure we had the minimum eight-minute
coverage geographically. it goes down to
Ilijk? seven or eight, something like that.

nits.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. There's some —
the data analysis supporting the dispatch
savings is in the single versus multiple
provider system.

MR. COLLINS: Yes?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Do you have data on
what that's — you have assumptions made,
but is the data in there?

MR. COLLINS: We have the cost
provided by each provider of the
proportionate amount of the control center
that should be aliocated to the 9-1-1
calls. And our contention is — and | know
there's disagreement with the providers —
that we already have a dispatch center and

that those costs are not appropriately
charged to 9-1-1. That's why the
savings —

MR. ROBEDEAU: Does anybody that
showed up in dispatch is showing up in -
as a savings to 9-1-1 as an eliminated cost
that's currently there?

MR. COLLINS: That's right.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Really?

MR. COLLINS: Well, what we asked
for - | mean, part of my assumption is
that the data that we received from the
providers regarding the current cost is
correct. And ifit's correct, the 9-1-1 —~
the proportionate amount of the control
center that is attributed to 9-1-1 business
is what we asked for.

And that if that amount is correct,
which | am assuming it is, our contention
is we do not need two dispatch centers for
9-1-1's business. And so therefore, |
mean, you might have other reasons to have
it. | am not here to argue in any way that
you don't need something.

| am just making the case, or

SIS AT AR CRURRANN SRR
hopefully making the case that there is a
dispatch center that the taxpayers are
currently paying for and we don't need, my
feeling is we don’'t need an additional
dispatch center. You might need it for
something else, but this is the argument, |
think, what belongs in 9-1-1 and what
doesn’t.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. Well, just — 1|
want - you took all of that cost in the
proportion to 9-1-1 and said that would be
a savings because there would be no
provider dispatch center of any kind
associated with 9-1-1 calis? Is that
correct?

MR. COLLINS: That's what we are

saying.

ST

i Page 955

MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. | just want to

ow.
MR. COLLINS: G(ax.
MR. ROBEDEAU: . That one caught
me completely off guard. | would like to
see the data analysis that supports the
assumptions on page 17 that there would be

a reduction in administrative costs of

SR . ; Page 98278
one-half to two-thirds.

wzs Murphy left the meeting at

MR. C NS: Okay.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Are there any studies
currently existing that show there really
will be a reduction of cost due to
economies of scale? If we could, we would
like to see those.

MR. COLLINS: | will show you
everything we have got. It's basically
de:erythlng we had before. We have no new

ta.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Do we have any data on
raising costs of anu—

MR. COLLINS: do not look at that.
| think in the plan, if you read it in
there, we tried to make the point that we
did not feel that was — that was by
design. And that was kind of discussed
with people, that we wouldn’t really gain
anything from that other than some numbers
that may or may not apply to our current
system, and therefore what we are iooking
at ratewise is the rate should reflect what

the cost of the system is, not build the
system to meet the rate.

That's our — you can sort of do
either way, | guess. You can pick the rate
and make the system fit the rate or you can
design the system and the rate would
follow. And comparing it would Elve you —
you know, are you in the ballpark of some
of these?

But it's very hard to compare them
because of the subsidies and nonsubsidies.
| just don't — that's just the opinion
that | put out. And you can look at that.
Ljusl: don’t think as much is accomplished

y that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: That's okax.

MR. COLLINS: That’s — go ahead.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | just have a
question. Let's see. The data analysis
relied on to supgn conclusions on page
21, tox of page 22 —

MR. COLLINS: | will have to look it
up

MR. ROBEDEAU: | wrote down the right

page.

R 35 2 33555

MR. DRAKE: The dispatch control
center cost?

MR. ROBEDEAU: No. That's up above.
That's all taken out.

MR. DRAKE: Is that what you are
talking about, though, Pete? You said the
bottom of&-a?e —~ top of 227

MR. COLLINS: 21 and 227 | have -

MR. ROBEDEAU: G(ag. Apply all

ramedic costs of $26.8 r unit hour.

ermine estimated 39, newer unit
hours, savings of $1,151,000, i.e. 11
rercent reduction of cost. Cost study
dentified additional savings of up to $1.5
million. And cumulative costs of general
administrative overhead, this represents 16
percent of current costs. Ambulance
corgnm dispatch control center costs of
$594, represented another 6 percent cost
reduction. These reductions results in a
total cost savlngs of up to 33 percent.

MR. COLLINS: Okay. “The savings
represents a change in the unit hours
deployed and in the number of providers in
the system. All else remain the same.*
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And then all analysis relied on rage

23, part 4.5, However, rates are higher
than they could because of the current
system design and the portion of rate
should be identified for a partial support
of first responder program to offset
expenses for supplies, equipment,
training. This could be accomplished while
still achieving the reduction in current
ambulance charges." And that's under rates
and charges.

And what would the rates and charges
and all that come out?

MR. COLLINS: What would the rate be?
1 can’t tell you what the rate would be.

MR. ROBEDEAU: How much is this going
to add back into the rate?

MR. COLLINS: | don't know. This was
not an analysis of exactly what the rate
was or what the proportional part would be
for first responders because, trylng to
recognize that there is a cost that has
been brought up bx people in the past and
then trying to get these things
incorporated into the plan, that we need to

)
expendables, first responders, if we can.
That was something that we wanted to
look at. | can't tell you how much. |
mean, this is just a framework — this is a
plan framework, not the detail of it. And
you know, that would have to be something
you would have to do. | didn’t try to -
you will notice in here there's no attempt
to set a rate, just try to set the criteria
that should be used in developing the
rate. | can’t set a rate until you have
the thing in place.
MR. ROBEDEAU: 1t seems you are
ulllnngor a 33 percent rate reduction on
ge 32; and then on page 23, it adds stuff
ck in but it doesn't say how much. On

pa -
%:R COLLINS: That's true.
MR. ROBEDEAU: On page 23 it doesn't.
MR. COLLINS: | don't know how much it

is.
MR. DRAKE: But it leads the reader to

believe there's a 33 percent reduction,
but, actually, when you add stuff back in,

RS

it won't be 33 percent.

MR. COLLINS: What we are trying to
show in that area is that there were a
number of costs identified that should not
be allocated to the 9-1-1 rate, that should
not be recovered in that manner, like the
control center.

You might need the control center for
your BLS and interfacility transport work
and all kinds of things, but none of that
cost, in my mind, should be allocated over
to the side that has to be recovered by the
9-1-1 rate because there's another group
that's doing that. That's just, you know,
you can agree with that or not agree with

that, but that's the logic that we are
talklna about.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Well —

MR. DRAKE: | do disagree with Bill.

MR. COLLINS: That's fine.

MR. DRAKE: The reason is we do use
our data from our CAD because you don't
have CAD data for a couple things. One, we
use the data to develop our system status
plan. We have been doing that because the

R i Page 1041
data is historically inaccurate from BOEC.

MR. COLLINS: { understand.

I:R DRAKE: Seco‘ ggly, wtei do it becath use
we have a computeriz ng pian the
County doesn't have. posting pt

MR. COLLINS: | understand.

MR. DRAKE: If the County goes to a
computerized posting plan — but you are

SR

still going to need to gather data for your
own replacement, so that CAD system will
tr;'m 2? away. We are still going to need

e fun

ction of that CAD.
MR. COLLINS: | understand, but |
don’t agree.

MR. DRAKE: Once we have paid for it,
essentiaslll{. it's a maintenance cost.

MR. SKEEN: That's irrepresentative.
How about we call it department of data
retrieval instead of communication center?

MR. COLLINS: i think the issue with
the data that's required for the current
system, one of the assumptions is that that
the Cnly. through BOEC, will install a new
CAD. am making that assumption. Ifit
at all falls apart in the next month, then,

1 guess | have to revisit this. But my

assu on is CAD will be there, and that
you wiil be able to get the same data out
of that CAD that you can get out of any
CADs or other methods that you have now,
and | see no reason that can't happen.

If it doesn't haBppen, then, it's a
different issue. But | think we have to
assume that. They are installing it. |
would agree with you that you can't do it
now.

MR. DRAKE: Right. But! have a
follow-up question. Excuse me, Pete. You
are saying you are going to get the same
data out of the new CAD system that the
County is purchasing. Right?

MR. COLLINS: Yes. There should be no
reason why you can't get whatever you need
out of that system.

MR. D! E: Do you have a copy or
sample of all the ElA reports that we might
generate?

MR. COLLINS: No.

MR. DRAKE: So you would need a copy
of those reports to give to the software

SR SRR SR 39"105
people that you are buying the CAD from and

say, "Can you produce these same things?”
MR. COLLINS: Right. Or we can give
you the data out of the CAD and let you do
whatever report-generatin u need to do.
MR. D E: With our CAD?
MR. COLLINS: With our CAD or whatever
system.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Well, can | interject
something here since | don't have a CAD?
EleAver had a CAD, never intend to buy a

D?

MR. COLLINS: Then there was no
savings on your part.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Could have been. But
the dispatch function, at least at AA, is
much, much more than dispatch. it is a lot
of office function, initial data entry for
billing or keeglgg track of the calls. |
don't think B is going to provide us
with a daily list of what calls we ran and
who they were, and is going to match all of
those things up and have them ready to be

esented to the office in the morning.
at's all a function of the EMS system.

PO

But that is going to have
Somebody is alng to have to do that,

and it's going to be a cost, regardless of
whether it's a single provider, two dozen
W:vlders, or nobodY doing it at all.

1, nobody not doing it at all isn't

gomto work well.

atever happens, that function, now,
whether you call that a dispatch cost or
whether you call that an office cost, but
that function must occur.

This is a user-based-driven system and
user fee-driven system. And what you are
taking and saying, no, this is not going to
be a cost because this is a dispatch cost,
at least in my — AA’'s company, a lot of
that dispatch cost, quote-unquote, is
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there. You should be able to get off th

administrative, that's going to be there
:‘egardless of what kind of system you
ave.

MR. COLLINS: Okay. | mean —

MR. ROBEDEAU: Our dispatch —

MR. COLLINS: if there's a piece of
the cost that shouldn't be in there, you
need to identify that so it's not in

new CAD the same call information you would
get off your own X

MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't have a CAD.

MR. COLLINS: Whatever method you use
to get the addresses, names, and services
provided. That's one of the things that we
will Prov!de. It doesn’t provide it, then,
that's not a cost.

MR. ROBEDEAU: We have prehospital
care reports that have been handed in.
Those have to be matched with run reports.
And it moves through the system. A lot of
that function, at least at AA, is done at
the dispatch level. Then when we retrieve
our data; that is, data entry is put in.

And our system is set up, as the data entry
is put in for billing, it also retrieves
all the stats and everything.

MR. COLLINS: No, | understand that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think you have seen
how ours works. And that works well. But
that is still going to be there regardiess
because | did the programming so that it
didn't make any difference; this stuff

still put in for billing just retrieve it
out for the other function.

MR. COLLINS: it may be that the parts
of the cost that was allocated into that
center when we requested that is billing
cost and should be attached to billing.

The point that | was trying to make is
that we do not need multiple dispatch
centers to dispatch. And we shouldn't need
muitiple computer systems to gather the
same data from the same source. | mean, a
run, you know, a 9-1-1 run, the data in the
CAD from BOEC shouid be the same data that
you have.

And we know right now - and | don't
want to — | mean, you need to look at this
in the context of a new computer system at
BOEC. Do not look at it in the context of
what we are currently doing. | know you
can't get it out now, and my assumption is
that will be go away.

MR. SKEEN: Probably should have used
the term “proposed system® other than
“current system.”

MR. COLLINS: That's a good point,

g
because it is not the current CAD. That's
the one that catches on fire occasionally.

MR. ROBEDEAU: |can’t save any money
by selling my CAD. it just don't exist.

MR. SKEEN: But Bill's argument is you
could save money by eliminating your
communication center.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't think that's
exactly true.

MR. DRAKE: It's nota
dollar-for-dollar reduction.

MR. ROBEDEAU: And perhaps what we
should do for Tuesday’s meeting for the
Provider Board, you know, because | think
we know that — | don't know how Buck does
theirs and | don’t know how CARE does
theirs. | know how we do ours. And our
dispatch center is not really a dispatch
center per se. It has other many, many
other functions. Our dispatch center.

MR. COLLINS: | hear what you are
saying. in theory, if the figures we
requested are correct, they would not have
those other functions in there, but | don't
know that that's — | mean, | can only go

ONONLEWN

by what was provided to me by the
providers. So there may be an allocation.
The other thing, | think, in keep in
mind when you are looking at these, at the
ﬁ%ures that we used in this section is
this — we are not saying that this is
going to — this is a dollar savings to a
particular company.
The point that at Jeast | am trying to
make in this is that these costs are not
opriately — if they are currently
allocated to 5-1 -1, it's inappropriate and
it should not be support by the 9-1-1
rate.
Now, | know that that's going to shift
a certain amount of cost to other
services. But | think that has to be
looked at. | mean, whr should a 9-1-1
ratepayer be essentially paying to recover

costs that are actually gelng used in other
portions of the business? | think that is
something that you have to look at. You
may need to keep your entire CAD, but you
do'tlm't need to keep it to dispatch 9-1-1

calls.

MR. DRAKE: BIll, what yo king
atis a system cost, not just a 9-1-1
system. You do have to ook at overall
satem delivery cost. What you are tatking
about is shifting those costs, but you are
not talkln&?bout eliminating those costs.

MR. COLLINS: Some of them you
eliminate and some you shift.

MR. SKEEN: He is sayingitis a real
:oys‘tiem cost, but somebody else has to pay

T it.

MR. COLLINS: For instance, the
average 9-1-1 invoice, when we did the
invoice study, was $588. Now, | don't
believe that the average interfacili
transfer is $588 because there's a ot of
contracts and bidding, people movin
around. And if that cost has been shifted
to 9-1-1, then, that's not apgroprlate.

Now, that doesn't make it cheaper on

the other side. | am fully aware of that.
But that's not — we can't design the
emergency reigonse to in any way subsidize
other parts of

e services. | don’t think

that?

MR. DRAKE: But also there's a subsidy
of the fact that those units respond to
nonemergency and interfacility work. At
the same time they have to post and do
other work for the 9-1-1 system that we get
no reimbursement for, and there is a cost
associated with that.

MR. COLLINS: Right. But that
analysis we did in the work group, we
decided that we could not co re the
non-9-1-1 portion of this. So what this
represents again is the 9-1-1 activity and
the some of that is - those would shift to
transfers and some of it wouldn't.

MR. SKEEN: Your point is that the
system should stand alone and should not be
subsidizing nor be subsidized?
drR C NS: Right, through the rate

MR. SKEEN: That's a great, noble
mission, and that's really difficult.
MR. COLLINS: lunderstand. Butl
think you have to be sensitive to that, or
the tendency is to, you know, you are going
£000 Ssnen \-.«-.---,,;:_.::,,_:"" a ge 11 4%

to load up the rate side on the 9-1-1 calis
because you can't negotiate that with
anybody. That's not a piece of business
Malt' peopie are going to negotiate very
well,

| know some has been done with HMO.
That's kind of another side of the same
question. But in trying to look at what
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that savings is, that's - | think it's
important to that that is before. People
can disagree with it.

MR. D E: | am trying to get down to
your base premise. | am having a little
difﬂcultY. s your base premise the 9-1-1
system Is supporting the non9-1-1 portion
of the business?

MR. COLLINS: In Iooklng at those
costs which were provided by the company,
there's — there were three areas that we

were looking at as how the costs should be
appropriately allocated. One had to do

with the number of unit hours. And when we
did the unit hour, when we did the command
study and looked at the offered-up schedule
and kind of estimated that, there were a
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number of — it was obvious that the
staffing was in excess of the demand for
9-1-1 calls.

MR. DRAKE: Right.

MR. COLLINS: Okay. So that was an
area that identified. Now, whether that
shifts over, maybe it shifts over, but it
shouldn’t be supported by the 9-1-1 rate.

The second area were the area like the
control center, the allocation process.

The control center is the example | am
thinking of. And the third had to do with
potential savings because of the number of
organizations involved. And those are just
three — | don't know if there's another
ones.

| tried to be, on the unit hour stuff,
to be very conservative with that and only
identify those — only use those costs that
were directly associated with the unit
hours which were are the costs associated
with paramedic salaries.

didn’t put in like changes in
vehicle. That was too, you know, that's
too gray to put in. There may be more

R

savings. There may be a little less.
the idea was, If you reduced 38,000 hours
on the 9-1-1 system, you ought to be able
to reduce a substantial portion of the
appropriate salaries. You might use them
for something else. But they ought not be
supported béthe 9-1-1 rate.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. Bill, in your
proposal then, are you trying to getto a
segregated system where there's no
cross-utilization so — you are going to
need s0 many paramedics for so much
re?ardless, and then those people are not
going to be then allowed to run any

nonemer nc‘calls?

MR. COLLINS: Well, in the plan —- the
draft that you have that is the ntial
that — it is not — that it is a dedicated
system. And then | think people can make
arguments on what it shouldn't be, and we
ought to look at that. But in just looking
at this cut of it there does not leok
like — it does not look like that the
exgedss availability is all that's being
used.
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if it was, we would have the same
number of units as required by the 9-1-1
calls. We wouldn't have the extra hours
posted so there's — we are doing a
combination. And | understand that, and |
lnrr:hyuu know, | t|imlder:'tand t?mere are,

n theory, potential savings o ng

them together, but | don’t think they are
well demonstrated. And if you think they
are, then, we should go back and look at
that, but that's an area.

MR. DRAKE: So your feeling is to try
and take out — develop a system that
responds to the 9-1-1 calls only and
private or public model, a private-public
model? Is that what you are saying?

MR. COLLINS: Right.

25

MR. DRAKE: So under the private
model, single provider model, they would
only respond to 9-1-1 calls, those units
would be dedicated to 9-1-17

MR. COLLINS: At this point. | think
if you want to make the argument that the
private part of the system should be able
to respond to non-9-1-1 calls, then, it

would be incumbent upon you to show tha
that doesn't increase the cost and
therefore the rate to the 9-1-1 rayer.
If you can show that, then, [ think
that that's fine. if you can't, then, |
think that's a problem. And at least at
this cut in my mind, it did not show that.
MR. LAUER: Bill, is your basic
premise — | am not sure | understand. |
thought | did, and | am not sure any more.
Seemed like the basic premise, when | read
your plan, was that consolidation of
oviders and consolidation of call base,
n other words, the single provider running
9-1-1 calls would reduce the cost, the
?Ice to the 9-1-1 user? Is that basically

MR. COLLINS: Yes. | mean, that's
what | think it shows.

MR. SKEEN: Not the price. The cost.

MR. COLLINS: Well, making the
assumption if the cost is substantially
lower, the —

MR. SKEEN: Cost and rate should be
related.
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MR. COLLINS: If one assumes the cost
has no bearlng on the rate, jeez —

MR. LAUER: ls that something you
disagree with, Mark?

MR DRAKE: Well, | think there's some
other issues there. Because if you are
talking about isolating — the same thing
they are trying to do in Clackamas County.
If you dedicate units just to 9-1-1, the
cost for those units go up dramatically
because they can't respond to 9-1-1 calls.

MR. LAUER: | am not arquing with
that. | was trying to reduce itto a
premise.

MR. DRAKE: That's his premise? What
are you asking? Am | agreeing that's his
premise?

MR. LAUER: He justis focusing on the
9-1-1 user at this Eolnt. And he said we
might need to look beyond that.

R. DRAKE: Right.

MR. LAUER: Basic premise —

MR. DRAKE: That's my understanding of
his premise.

MR. SKEEN: isn't it also, Bill, isn't

S

e
R
it also — that aimost sounds like these
guﬁ. Isn’t it also true —
R. THOMAS: | haven't said anything.
MR. SKEEN: My sense is, your theory
that the 9-1-1 system may be subsiding the
nonemergency side, as opposed to vice
versa?
MR. COLLINS: It looks like that may
be part of it as o ed to the other way.
That's part of it. Part of savings have
nothing to do with that. They have to do
with muttiple organizations and whatever
infrastructure is required to have more
than one compa%
MR. SKEEN: Would you be as opposed to
the subsidization to the nonemergency to
the 9-1-1 as you are to the 9-1-1
subsldlzln‘)g any other aspects of the
operation
MR. COLLINS: No. You mean, would you
like to subsidize the 8-1-1? No. ! think
if you could — | mean, the reason that
that is an issue in my mind is that the
9-1-1 part of the service is the sort of
public access side. Public does not have a
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choice of provider. They don't have — |
mean, they call 9-1-1, you get what's sent
to them.

And it should not — the rate that's
charged to the provider — whether the rate
is charged in terms of an actual user fee
for that — for that transport or the rate
is a tax base, | mean, if you weretodo a
tax base, | think the same arguments hold.
10 You should not be — you should not be
" collecting dollars on that side to in any
12 way subsidize the nonemergency, private
13 business side.

14 Now, if somebody wants to subsidize
15 the emergency side out of whatever base, |
}g mean, that's sort of fortuitous to the

user.

WENOVHAWN

18 MR. SKEEN: Well, in some ways
19 detrimental.
20 MR. COLLINS: Ht's probably going to

21 be the same kind of issue. Because on the
22 other side, then, you are overchargsir(ﬁ, in
23 a sense, the nonemergency user. mean,
24 1 think when you are looking at — you have
25 got sort of a public service on one hand

1 and you have a private business on the

2 other hand.

3 And they really should not be a

4 cross-tieover in the rate that's charged to
5 people, probably either way. | mean, to be
6 pragmatic, if you want to toss in a bunch
7 of money on the -- to lower the rate, |

8 suppose we would take that.

9 (Mr. Steinman returned to the

room.é

1 MR. SKEEN: Bill, that's a

12 philosophical approach. The other side of
13 that is there is a medical transportation

14 industry, and your system can be designed
15 to benefit the bulk users of that system.

16 MR. COLLINS: Yes, itcan.

17 MR. SKEEN: As opposed to segmenting
18 it, without giving up qualitative issues.

19 MR. COLLINS: | think as long as

20 peopie understand that's what you are

21 doing, you are doing that. You are going
22 that direction.

23 MR. ROBEDEAU: BIil, do you have a
24 model, ideal administrative structure for a
single provider?

understand.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Something we could use
to compare what savings, if anY, max be
realized by the elimination of all of this
excess overhead that seems to appear in
your proposal as savings? 33 percentis a
substantial amount. That's the only figure
that | have seen in here that really says

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10 anylhinﬁ.

1 And u take that - and | think

12 anybody looking at that should say, okay,
13 here shows 33 percent savings. There
14 should be at least a 33 percent reduction
15 in rates. And you know, | want to see all
16 the data. | have asked for the data on

17 that. But just off the top of my head, |

18 don’t believe that's —

19 MR. COLLINS: Do | have an definitive
20 structure for an ambulance company? |
21 don’t think it makes -

22 MR. SKEEN: Could you send a copy?
23 MR. COLLINS: No, | don't. And

24 actuaily, | don't think it makes probably a
25 whole (ot of difference from a management,

administrative structure whether it's
public or private provider. They are going
to have similar requirements.

| mean, YW have got to have somebody
that does all these tasks. Whether you
need three of everybody or four of
everybodr, | really question. | think
that's an issue that needs to be

ONOUMBHWN =

County looked into it, but combining all

identified.

MR. DRAKE: But, Bill, | ‘guess where |
am having a problem with that is, you are
90:::? to say you are going to have these
administrative costs here today, and you
are going to save that administrative cost
by going over here tomorrow to side B, if
you will, under plan B, and yet you are
sayln%. “But | don't know how mang
administrators will be under plan B. |

st know there would be all this uvlngs.'
mean, you would have to sit down an
really identify who those peopie are and
positions.

MR. COLLINS: | don't think we have
identified that in the plan. Again, before
you can come up the actual rate that

would support this, you need to say what
the or&anlzaﬂon is going to look like.
But if there are currently three of
everything and you go to one of everything,
you are going to have some savln'gs. And
that's whr we just picked — there isn't a
highly scientific structure. But as far as
the emeraency services, you are not going
to need three of everything. | mean,
unless you can make an argument, i don't
think you need it.

MR. DRAKE: Bill, there is an
argument, | think — there has been an
argument that we have. It's been around
for years. | mean, there's span of
control. When you add more pet::l , you add
more supervisory personnel, so the
supervisory personnel don’t automatically
go away. Those administrative peopie don't
automatically go away.

MR. COLLINS: No. | don't think we
indicated that.

MR. DRAKE: So there isn't really that
administrative cost savings. | think the

even worth it. And then, secondly, you
take that cost savings, whatever that
savings is — | am sure there is some
savings divided by the total number of
responses, what are you talking? $3a
call? $5acall?

MR. COLLINS: Depends on what the
savings is. We put this out, an estimate,
based on the information that we were
provided. And | still think it's a
reasonable estimate.

MR. DRAKE: BiIll, | think, too, we had
talked before — it's been said here before
in the meeting —

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think what we need to
do is get copies of all of the data and
look at it. You know, right now — at
least | am guessing. | haven't seen it. |
have read your plan and | am just kind of

uessing. Before we go on with this, |
ink we really need to see the data,

Mark.
MR. DRAKE: | agree with you, Pete.
Let's get the data first.

s

MR. ROBEDEAU: How long you think it

will take us to get that? | will type this
up and %et it to you this afternoon. Is
that all right?

MR. COLLINS: | have all the stuff.
We will just put it altogether. You gota
lot of it. There's not a lot — there
isn’t piles of stuff sitting around you
haven't seen. And, again, this is — when
you look at this as a plan, it isn't going
to tell you, ition by position, what You
would need in the management of a single
provider. lt's just iooking at sort of
magnitudes based on the cost standards that
we recelve.

MR. SKEEN: BIll, is it reasonable to
assume that, in this process, that when
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there's requests made for data as it
relates to this that you will copy that to

the members of the provider committee so we

don’t have one piece going out here with
another piece -
MR. COLLINS: We can give it all out.
The only thln? | would have to ask you
because this

2 R SRR
have. When we did the cost analys|

agreement was not to compare companies, so

that data has not —- | have it, but

nobody else has it. | have fed it - put

it together. | can ﬂlve it to you that

war. or you can all tell me that you are

willing to put it out piece by piece. And

gdoesn‘t matter to me. It's not my
ata.

MR. SKEEN: No.

MR. COLLINS: Other than that,
everything else is what we have got. |
will show you what we have got.

MR. SKEEN: For example, if Barry
writes you a [etter and asks you for a
piece of information, make sure all the
?n‘;bers of the provider committee have
that

MR. COLLINS: No problem.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | will t¥'pe a copy of
Il:thls afternoon. Probably hand-detiver

" MR. COLLINS: No problem.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think the sooner we

can get it the better. And we appreciate

" 9
MR. COLLINS: Nothing faxed over two

pages, though.
R. ROBEDEAU: | agree with that.

Stand around the stupid fax machine with 40

pa%:s coming over is ridiculous.

R. COLLINS: We are close enough that

we will only fax two-page memos.
MR. ROBEDEAU: That's agreeable.
MR. SKEEN: Also | have one. Is the
ramedic alliance willing to give the
nformation, as the County is, how they
epared their plan with background
nformation?

MR. PRAGGASTIS: | wasn't aware there

was any data in our plan.

MR. DRAKE: You may not have any data,

but did you use any data to put together
your plan?

MR. PRAGGASTIS: No.

MR. DRAKE: Do you have any cost
studies you have done about your
county-wide options or information of where
you are going to recejve the income to put

together your programs?

res ’ toft:ihe chair Ian:! ttr;'e board,hthe
majority of the people in the room have
left, lntg this has really boiled down to a
small discussion. Our president has left.

Some of the provider representatives have

left. Perhaps if you just give us the

questions in writing, we would be haﬁpyto
ave.

give gu an answer to whatever you
MR. DRAKE: Sure.
MR. PRAGGASTIS: | think in the
essence of time - it's nearly noon. We
have been here a long time.

MR. ROBEDEALU: Aiso in the essence

time, is there an address we could send the

questions to for a response prior to next

;r;hetlng? The next meeting is not until the

was part of the process we

MR PRAGGASTIS: Actually, withall

OONOU B W =y
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3eta ed
because it's such a hu
anybody - of course,
record information, so anybody who wants
% anything, can ask for it and we get

MR. THEANDER: | might ask, on behalf
of the Medical Advisory
assist in their decisions, that the
information be mailed to each of those
members as well.

MR. COLLINS:

MR. SKEEN: P.O. Box 420957

MR. PRAGGASTIS: Uh-huh.

MR. DRAKE: Thank you.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Sending out copies of
that. Wil
of Provider Board people who are Interested
persons so we can copy everybody, save a
there, so you don't have to?

R. COLLINS: it's easier, | think, if
ru want to send stuff out, to let us do

We have got it all set up to do it.

Notices of meetings go out to the entire

you provide us all with a list

We usually do not send like the

data and stuff to just everybody
ist, but

is is all public

ard members, to

Okay.

1 MR. THEANDER: That is importan
2 MR. SKEEN: Cole, the only thing |
3 would offer with that is, you are going to
4 an awtul lot of raw data with it and a
5 ot of room for assumptions, and that |
6 think they would be better served by having
7 some analysis to some of that, to some of
8 that data.
9 MR. THEANDER: At least | would prefer
10 the data.
1 MR. SKEEN: Obviously, you have every
12 right to it. | am just saylt:ig -
13 MR. THEANDER: | understand your
14 point. But | also understand there's ugolng
15 to be a lot of questions, and any kind of
16 data that may be helpful in making
17 decisions is important, especially with an
18 endorsement such as this. Members of the
19 MAB are big boys, and the fact they may get
20 snowed in paperwork is something they
21 should be expecting.
22 MR. SKEEN: Boys and girls.
23 MR. THEANDER: Boys and women.
£
1
g
4 MR. DRAKE: |s that everything, Pete?
5 MR. ROBEDEAU: Everything | have.
6 Anybody else? We are adjourned.
7 (PROCEEDINGS ADJOURNED)
8 LR N ]
9
10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
of 23
24
25

CERTIFICAT

MR. PRAGGASTIS: That's a letterhead 1
on the front page of the plan with an 2 1, CAROL STUDENMUND, a Certified
address. That would be just fine. 3 Shorthand Reporter for Oregon and a
MR. DRAKE: | didn't get that with 4 Registered Professional Reporter, do hereby
ne. 5 certify that | reported in stenotype the
MR. PRAGGASTIS: Bill should have put. 6  testimony and proceedings had upon the
MR. DRAKE: | am sure. 7 hearing of this matter, previousi
8 captioned herein, before the Multnomah
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computer-aided transcription; and, that the
foregoing transcript constitutes a fuli,
true and accurate record of all proceedings
had upon the hearing of said matter, and of
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PROCEEDINGS

1
2
3 MR. ROBEDEAU: Why don't we call the
4 meeting to order.

5 First on the agenda, | would like to

6 ask everybody if they would like to do a

7 moment of silence to remember Gladys

g McCoy. Or, you can use the time as you

wish.
10 (Pause.
1" MR. ROBEDEAU: Thank you.
12 Are we going to do a roster? Why

13 don’t we do that, for attendance, who is

14 here. And one thing, perhaps because there
15 are %c;lng to have to be some mailings going
16 out, because of my time frame, we are going
17 to have to be doing it pretty fast. So if

18 you could get addresses. s PAPA still
19 want ever r(\;i.ng golng to their P.O. box?

20 MR. P GASTIS: M-hm.

21 MR. ROBEDEAU: No matter what?

22 MR. PRAGGASTIS: Well -

23 MR. COLLINS: Why don't you put your

24 name, the organization, whatever, and if
25 you have a fax number, the fax number. We

have addresses, unless anything has
changed.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. I'm the only one
| think with a change of address. That's
the P.O. box. When it goes to the P.O.
box, it's quick,
Let's see. | have done an agenda that
is tentative. We sat down and drew it up

ONONDBWN -

because we didn’t have a lot of time. We
don't have to stick with this.

The first agenda item is review of the
minutes, and | do have — | think the
minutes are a bit too short in regard to
response times that we talked ut at the
last meeting, you know. One of the things
I think realzaneeds to be in the minutes
is the fact that we did go through and do
February, and that 39 percent of the over
eight minutes for AA were in fact not over
eight minutes. | think that's ve;y
significant due to the fact that February
was probably the worst-weather month we
have had in years, and there are no
exceptions aliowed in this system. We

still came in in February at 91 percent.

R e

BN

From what | listened to for the last
six or eight months at the MAB, other
places, [ know that response times are
ﬁlng to become an issue as we go on with

is system, as we go on with the
discussions on what kind of systems we're
goIR‘g to have at the end of this.
ong that line, Bill, I'd like to ask
If Steve Moskowitz can do the minutes. |
think he's very capable.

MR. COLLINS: Okay with me.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. The reason for
the addresses and the mailings is we need
to be issuing periodic reports. We're on a
real, real short, fast time frame. We need
to keep things moving and have reports come
out.

There will be a final report issued by
the Provider Board with possibly a minority
report, if that is what is agreed upon by
the board.

Again, we're going to get back to the
same thing we're trying to talk about last
time, about the process and all interested
persons being invited to attend and

3 SERSSEERE R Page 61
participate. | notice there's no
representative from the MAB. I'd like to
again extend an invitation to the MAB, if
they wish to come.
notice PAPA is represented, and |
appreciate that.
Any other providers, fire — Tom, do
you know if Gresham Fire is going to
participate?
MS. SCHIDLEMAN: David Phillips calied
yesterday about four o’cliock in the
afternoon and said he would be here. So, |
don't know.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Rain keeps everybody
In, stops riots.
MR. LAUER: We hope.
MR. ROBEDEAU: | think it's what we
need to do.
| know the Physlcian supervisors were
invited. | don't see anyone here. Does
anyone know if they are going to come?
MR. LAUER: | haven't heard anything
from them.
MR. KILMER: Mr understanding with
respect to the physician supervisors is
S Page 704
that they do intend to participate in this
greocess. They may not be at every meeting
cause of time constraints.
MR. ROBEDEAU: The EMS community is
here. Okay.
As everybody knows, we are
transcribing — our court reporter is
here. Copies of transcripts from ali of
these meetings will be available for
anybody who wants at 20 cents a pa&e, paid
in advance, if you want a copy from these
meetir;?s. The meetings are going to be
approximately two hours, and we wilt try
and | will try to keep everybody on task.
| think one of the first things that
we have discussed in the past, exactly what
we’'re going to look at, and | have asked
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Jeff Kilmer to make a short presentation on
how we should be looking at all of the
different proposals.

MR. KILMER: As you know,

Mr. Robedeau, we have for years asked for a
process to be engaged in an EMS planning
that truly took the time to explore the
myriad of very complex issues that are
e
S Gaiararage b
involved in this process. | had made a
su?gestlon about the process that we're
going to engage in for the next five weeks,
as | understand it, or that you are, and
frankly | commend the Provider Board for
m.smutlng a process that even allows

S,

As you know, a ietter has gone off to
Mr. Collins saying the Provider Board will
do its best to meet the deadline that has
been imposed on us sort of at the last
minute by the county commission, but that,
you know, it mar be this process can't
occur adequately in that time.

But with that in mind, we had talked
about the way In which this process ought
to work, and you asked my thoughts on
that. And | understand that what you're
going to tentatively propose today is that
an agenda be announced at the next meeting
which will identify the various topics that
ought to be addressed in this process and
that each meeting will be devoted to one or
two or three of those.

| had suggested to you that today the

g¢
subject be the PAPA plan and that several
of the questions that ought to be addressed

in this process are the following:

The first is, which part of the PAPA
plan did the MAB adopt? | don’t think
ta’?yone was clear from that process on

at.

The second is: What changes are being
considered bY the MAB for the template?
And | don't think anybody knows that. We
had hoped that the MAB would be here to
participate in this.

Another question is: What are the
concerns of the paramedics that the plan,
the PAPA plan, supposedly uniquely
addressed? Somebody made a representation
that that occurred, but nobody identified
those concerns.

Another question is: Can those
concerns, once articulated, be addressed in
other ways? That was never considered.

Another issue that ought to be
addressed is: What are the costs of
addressing the various concerns that they
believe ought to be addressed? No one has

RS RSN nage 10;

articulated that or studied that or asked
for information or input on that. A
process that doesn't do that is difficult
to accept as fair or complete, from my
rspective. And { think the brovider

arﬁ! process ought to explore this in

The related question is: What will
these costs do to rates? In other words,
if £u‘re ing to increase costs to create
additional system features, what is going
tobethee on rates and what's going
to be the ability of the system to pay for
that and where is the money going to come
from if it's decided that that addition to
rates is justified?

The next question that ought to be
asked is: What else does the system want?
Because | think it wants more. rybody
seems to want more, and some of those
things are things that the paramedics
necessarily don’t want.

And the next is with respect to each
of those, what will those cost? What will
each of those do to the rates?

e e e e 3 y
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And then the

th
about, is there competition where you can
have some but not all of these things? And
what is the process to weigh the relative
merits of this? And one of those ought to
be the cost and another ought to be the
medical benefit that you are obtaining for
that additional cost.

And so one of the questions ought to
be, what will be the medical benefit in the
sense of effect on patient outcomes of each
of the proposed changes? And someone ought
to be asked to address that specifically,
because without addressing those issues
specifically, no one can really have enough
data or information to make any credible
decision in this very complicated area.

And in order to answer those
questions, | think someone has to address,
how do you know what the medical benefit
will be? "Are you relying on data? Are you
relying on studies? Are you relying on
analyses? Are you %Ing to require that
that actually be rward where it can
be evaluated? Or is this just guesswork,

3

conjecture? s it self-serving hopes that
without any analysis have been arrived at
and then are being fought for without
further analysis?

Another question ought to be, are
there risks to the changes? In other
words, it's not just, hey, can you get a
benefit? The question is, if you make a
change, are there potential problems?

It seems to me at ieast one way you
would take a look at that is to ask

urself whether there is any other system

n the country that has the features people
claim to want in this system. And they
ought to be asking what in the system ought
to be identified, and then somebody ought
to find out what is the cost of that system
compared to what we have here, and what
additional features does that have that we
don't have here.

And, then, is the additional cost, if
there is an additional cost, worth the
additional features that it has compared
with what we have now?

And then somebody else ought — or

some other thing that ought to be asked,
are there systems that have less, even
though they're single-provider systems,
regulated by a single medical control and
all that, that has less than what Multnomah
County now has?

| think someone ought to ook at the
cost of those systems and look at their
histories, because my understanding is that
systems came in promising a whole bunch of
stuff and have not been able to fulfill it
and have resulted in systems that at least
are more costly and have lower quality than
what was rxomised and higher costs and
lower quality than what we have here now.
And that ought to be evaluated in any
process.

And another thing that has to be
looked at is, what is the upcoming revenue
changes from health-care reform, from tax
effects of Measure 5 and other things golnF
to do on the revenue streams now supporting
this system? And what is going to be the
effect of those on ambulance rates?
| think everybody knows th

3% AN R RS

significant percentage of ambulance rates
are paid by Medicare and that if Medicare
allowances are frozen or go down, system
costs continue to increase, and those costs
are going to have to be recovered from
someplace, and there is a question about
how that is going to occur. Now, that may
mean that our system has to be leaned up.
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9 - And the question is, If that's true, where
10 should it be leaned up? In other words,
1" what we now have is going to have to give
12 way to have the most cost benefit with the
13 least medical impact? And that should be
14 studied before decisions are made.

15 Now, it seems to me that this really

16 is a cost benefit analysis, and yet there's
17 been tremendous resistance to approach
18 ambulance planning based on a cost benefit
19 analysis. ought to explore what the
20 basis for that is and whether that is still
21 a valid, analytical process in llght of the
22 current realities facing the health care
23 industry generaily, facing county and

24 budgets generally.

25 Another related question is, what is

into the cost benefit

B

£

1 value that's

2 analysis? There are certain aspects of

3 this that have intangible value, that have

4 a cost associated with them. One is system
5 stability. One is avoiding delay. One (s,

6 is there a benefit to competition from

7 keeping, you know, one provider honest

8 because another is available to step in if

9 there's unavailability?

10 Seems to me that all of these

11 questions must be asked in any rational

12 process with respect to both medical and
13 cost effects of issues, and that this would
14 apply to the issue of paramedic concerns,
15 but it also ought to be applied to all of

16 the other issues and changes proposed b!
17 various proponents of change, and that this
18 process ought to occur in a context in

19 which those issues are faced head-on rather
20 than avoided in order to give the rlannlng
21 process any validity and ultimately

22 minimize the chance that well-intentioned
23 but superficially arrived at proposals

24 don't adversely affect the citizens of

25 Multnomah County.

1 An ought
2 explored in the context of the PAPA
3 r'roposal is where the PAPA proposal differs
4 om the Collins proposal in terms of

g philosophy, in terms of choice between
7
8
9

options, issues of provider selection.
These are specifics that were alluded to in
the MAB discussion but were never
specifically articulated. And the problem
10 with the process like this is that without
11 those being articulated, no one can
12 participate by submission of additiona!
13 written materials, comments on the
14 statements that were made at the MAB
15 meeting, or anything else which should be
16 relied on and reviewed and analyzed and
17 considered by the MAB in its process of
18 fine-tuning its template.

19 So it seems to me that at a minimum
20 this process ought to consider these kinds
21 of concerns in this sort' of an analytical

22 wan

23 R. ROBEDEAU: Okay. Thank you.

24 MR. SKEEN: Dofvfgu have a list of all
25 those questions, Je

SRR
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We're going to provide

S
it MR. KILMER:

B

2

3 " MR. PRAGGASTIS: 20 cents a page.

4 MR. ROBEDEAU: We will provide that.
5 That's one of the things that — one of the
6

7

8

9

reasons | want to address this, speed up
the process, get them out probably right to
the board members, I'll mail them out
myself so everybody has all of the same
10 questions and the same information. | know
I'd asked Bill for some information. He
12 has brought some or perhaps all. | don’t
13 know. I'm going ta have to let him speak
14 on that. | think we're going to need
15 copies of that for everybody too that's on
16 the board.
17 | do have — my question on this, it's

10

" I'think, | think they're planning on

not on the agenda, is, does anybody know
exactly what the MAB did adopt? Because |
don't. Nobody —

MR. SKEEN: Well, nm!npresslon Is
that they adopted the PAPA template as a
basis to start making modifications on it.
That was mglmpression.

MR. LAUER: That document is a draft,

Page 18358

changing it based on a lot of the questions
that Jeff put out.

MR. ROBEDEAU: As a template — you
know, I'm not trying to seem dense here.
Maybe | am. The PAPA plan, I've read it.
Quite frankly, to me it doesn't seem to say
much other than it's a philosophical idea.

Well, anyway, | am not sure what the
MAB adopted. Did they adopt the idea that
they’li use the plan and redo everything
that's in it, or were there specific things
in it that they adopted, or -

MR. SKEEN: Pete, | think the root of
the problem is that both plans came forward
with options as to who the provider should
be to fulfill the plans. And | think
that's convoluted the process somewhat
rather than working on the ASA and the
basis for how the system should operate as
opposed to who should operate it. And it
may very well be that MAB accepted PAPA's
template because they liked the Tlons
g‘erhaps better there than they did the one

Il put forward. But it would have been

nice to have —

MR. ROBEDEAU: Bill, what's your
understanding?

MR. COLLINS: We didn’t put forth any
options. We dput forward the options we
looked at and made the recommendation for a
tiered system. We didn't make any
recommendation for options.

MR. SKEEN: it listed options. PAPA's
listed options.

MR. COLLINS: In reading that in the
glean that came from our office, you should |

clear that we did not put that out as,
choose one of those options.

MR. SKEEN: Suggestions on the table
basically then?

MR. COLLINS: No, we did not suggest.
We just said we viewed three options in
making our recommendation.

MR. LAUER: | thought it specifically
said that you recommended option one.

MR. COLLINS: We did. We did.

MR. KILMER: Was it your
understanding, Bill, that the MAB read the
PAPA proposal that way and that it

recommende option one?

MR. COLLINS: No.

MR. ROBEDEAU: What's your
understanding of what the MAB did?

MR. COLLINS: Just what they said. As
far as | know, they adopted the plan put
forward by PAPA as a template, whatever
that means, for further discussion. |
mean, that's what they said, and that's all
that | could - that’s afl that | can say.
| don’t know what eise — | don't thin
there’s anything to read into that. They
just chose one of the two plans.

MR. KILMER: The PAPA plan was really
three options, three different plans. Do
you know which of the three that they
adopted?

MR. COLLINS: | don't think they
adopted any of the three. | think they
just adopted the document that you saw.
And then, according to their time plan,
they meet in the middie of May and
fine-tune the template.

MR. DRAKE: | think there's —
MR. KILMER: That's all you understand
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MR. COLLINS: Kis. | don't
understand anything else about it.

MR. ROBEDEAU: They adopted itas a
template. They really know nothing about
it, and now they're going to meetin a
month and fine-tune it and adopt it. Is
that right?

MR. COLLINS: | don't know that |
could say they don't know anything about
it. Their motion, if | remember correctly,
was to adopt the plan as a template and to
fine-tune it, | think it is. Weren't those
the words, John?

They were going to fine-tune it. |
don't have the minutes, so | can't say
exactly what their words were.

MR. DRAKE: | guess the problem |
have, when ggu say fine-tune the plan,
under what basis are they going to
fine-tune it? And what components are they
going to look at to fine-tune?

MR. STEINMAN: { think the point is,
we all know what's going to happen with the
MAB and the PAPA plan, so why are we

SRV

spending a lot of time on it?
| thought we were here to look at the

county plan and see what the providers

wanted to do with that. | think everybody

here knows what's going to happen with the

PAPA plan.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think it's important
to understand what they did. | don’t think
anybody understands.

MR. STEINMAN: | don’t think anybody
knows. | think you've got everythlnﬁ on
the record that you need to get on the
record. Let's get on with that, because |
don't have a lot of time to spend on PAPA
without the MAB here and telling us what
the‘want to do.

R. KILMER: Tom, can | ask one
question? You understand they will
uitimately adopt plan No. 1?

MR. STEINMAN: | didn’t understand
that. In my opinion, they adopted strong
medical control, and | don’t think they
care on the provider, on the four votes
that were there. So | don't know what
they're going to do. | think they're going

SR

to put it through as written because |

don't think they have a concept of what an
ASA plan is. | think this was mentioned at
the MAB, an interhospital battle that is

still going on. And I'd like to look at

Bill's plan and the county plan and see

what we can do with that. | think that

more addresses our needs on an ambulance
service area plan.

MR. ROBEDEAU: The MAB said this was
an interhospital battie —

MR. STEINMAN: No. Peopie said. You
know what's going on, Pete,

MR. ROBEDEAU: | was just curious. |
didn’t hear that, but | was just curious
gloat maybe that got on the record after 15,

ars.

R. STEINMAN: | don't know if it got
on the record there. I've seen Jeff's
letters.

MR. LAUER: Somebody said it.

MR. KILMER: Mr. Brusse said it.

MR. DRAKE: We are going to look at

the proponents plan, we re going to look at
the gAI?X plan. | think, Rang;. ygou or
Trace said there were some rosmve things
I£ the PAPA plan you liked. is that fair

sa
MK) LAUER: Mark, | don't know that
I'm in agreement that we should adopt a
plan, take the same course that MAB did. |

think we're really setting ourselves up for
never coming to a conclusion. if the MAB

PAPA plan that people may find positive

that opti

goes to the county comwmissioner saying, we
want this plan, if we go there saying, we
want that plan, then the commissioners are

ing to be really confused because their
nput is in conflict.

MR. DRAKE: | guess what I'm trying to
do in a sense, Randy, is narrow some of the
wide range of options that we have. |
think in talking to other providers, the
ones in agreement, a third type of service
from the county is not reasonable in
today’s market. So if you eliminate that
out of the options, what you're looking at
under the PAPA proposal is a single
provider by competitive bid as a vehicle is
one of the options for vehicle delivery,
there are several other components in the

TR Wﬂmm%wwm...gag.g..ﬁ
that they want to pursue.

MR KILMER: Mark, can | make a
suggestion here? You have made the
statement that everybody agrees that the
third service is not any good because of
time constraints and things like that.

MR DRAKE: And financial —

MR. KILMER: We have a PAPA guy here.
h MR. PRAGGASTIS: Wait. I'm a guy

ere.

MR. KILMER: You're not here for
PAPA?

MR. PRAGGASTIS: No. 'mhere as a
citizen to see how my tax dollars are being
paid toda{

MR. KILMER: We have somebody that
participated in the PAPA plan, regardless
of his role here. | think our process here
ought to be what we wanted from the MAB and
never got, and that is for somebody to make
a statement like a question, not an
assertion that is not subject to debate,
and allow peoplie the opportunity to say, |

disagree with that, and here’s why | think

SR S R
on one of the PAPA plan makes
sense.

And in deciding the other plans, |
know everybody wants to get to the bottom
line real quick. The problem is, you don't
have a process in that situation, and one
of the concerns that the MAB expressed
concern about were the interests of the
providers — of the paramedics. Those have
never been expressed. And | think at least
if you're going to look at the Collins
plan, you have to understand those
concerns, among others, and then look to
see whether they can aiso be realized in
the Collins plan as part of any rational
decision by this board eventually to
recommend that, if that's our tentative
direction. But al:r;fvs leave it clear that
our tentative direction is subject to
modification based on what we hear here
because this is going to be an open-minded

ocess.

MR. DRAKE: mer.

MR. PHILLIPS: Bill, will the county
council see both plans?

2t

MR. COLLINS: Yes, they see anything
mybodg wants to give them.

MR. SKEEN: | think Connie
indicated — she indicated an open

ocess.

MR. COLLINS: Right. She's handed out
some tentative public hearing times. it's
the obligation of our office to make a
recommendation to the board, and | am not

oaching this from "“These are the two
ans and you've got to pick one® kind of
thing. We're going to make every effort to
reach a situation that will be able to go
through the county commission process.

It isn't going to do any to come
up with options that nobody can vote on in
the commission, so we’re going to look at
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18 what's been presented by PAPA, but what's

19 been put together out of our planning

20 process and any other information that we

21 can to make that recommendation.

22 Now, other peopie will also make

23 recommendations to the board. The MAB has

24 chosen to make a recommendation, the

25 Provider Board. Anybody can make a
X % x ‘y 2% ".a

RS R
recommendation. They're not bound

anything that happens until they vote.

there could be other — | haven't heard of

any other plans, but they could certainly

Pop up.
MFE PHILLIPS: | guess my pointis, in

light of the county council looking at both

ans, the Provider Board, there are some
things we're not going to agree on as a
10 3:oup, but maybe we ought to start with the

ings we can agree on and make the

12 decisions based on the facts and back that
13 up, and if it comes down to something we
14 can agree on, provide the council with how
15 the vote went on that issue, and we agreed,
16 disagreed on some things, and put it in
17 their hands and go with that.
18 MR. ROBEDEAU: That was the idea
19 behind the minority report, rather than
20 just one report. In order to do a lot of
21 that, we have to have the information in
22 front of us first. And some of the things
23 that we looked at, what exacvt\z did the MAB
24 adopt out of the template? ich nobody
25 seems to know. What are the paramedic

1 at tl B

2 meeting that were never articulated. And |

3 don't know what those are.

g [;oes anybody here know what those

are

6 John, | know you've worked with PAPA.

7 Maybe you're not a member of PAPA. Do you

8 know what those are?

9 MR. PRAGGASTIS: Well, to be honest

10 with xou, I'm just here as a citizen to

11 watch the process. You all employ all of

12 us. Certainly you must know our concerns.

1 2 You meet with us every day. You employ
us.

15 MR. KILMER: But why don't you state

16 them again, John, for the record, so that

17 they will be articulated and everybody will

18 understand them the same way. To sit

19 silently requires peopie to speculate about

20 those.

21 MR. PRAGGASTIS: I'm not really

22 tamiliar with the county process where the

23 county board asks citizens specifically to

24 comment when it's trying to do its own

25 work. I'd just as soon sit quietly here

Ty
1 for just a moment and listen to you

2 concerns. )

3 MR. KILMER: Okay.

4 MR. SKEEN: John, I'm trying to do

g some comparison between the two plans to
7

8

9

SRR

get to the guts of it. I'm looking on page
of the PAPA — I'm sorry. You are probably
more familiar with this than anyone else.
it appears that page 10 through 23 is

10 essentially the plan per se?

11 MR. PRAGGASTIS: |don't even have a
12 copy of the plan in front of me. Frankly,
13 ntiemen, if 'm here to be deposed,

14 at's one thing.

15 MR. SKEEN: I'm just asking — I'm not

16 taking anything to task. I'm just trying

17 to get down to the roots of it so we can

18 compare.

19 it talks about system elements, and it

20 goes through division of service types,

21 response times for each ASA provider, level
22 of care, and personnel. | assume that's

23 kind of the guts of the ASA plan?

24 Has ar&tﬁcﬁfselse studied that?

25 MR.C : Keep in mind, both

10
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documents that you received have more in
them than the actuai plan. The pian
itself, the format and content of the plan
is completely controlied by the state. You
might read the — when | read the format, |
will have to comment, | read the format,
and it's a bit bizarre, but that's the
format.

So when you look at the plan, it's
sort of like you can't real:x complete the
plan if you just filled out the plan.

MR. DRAKE: PAPA included a copy of an
actual plan in the back. Right? They

followed --
MR. COLLINS: No. It's the same
plan. it's all the —
MR. D! E: That's what | mean. They

followed the state plan in the back.

MR. PHILLIPS: i follows the same.

MR. DRAKE: Right. That's the last
document, which is rages 1 through 30 on
the back, this part of it.

MR. PRAGGASTIS: 31.

section. That's an actual plan that
follows the state guideline. That's right,
that's essentially what it is, that you've
seen, that PAPA oposed‘>
MR. SKEEN: it begins after you get
past the definitions.
MR. COLLINS: The definitions are part
of the 'glan. There's a page that starts
there that says, proposed ambulance service
lan. it doesn't have a number on it.

ay?

And it's followed by page 1 of their
last tab. !f you look at the format of the
glan and the format of the plan submitted

y our office, those are exactly the same

format. We should go down plece by piece.
| looked through, and | didn't see any
difference. ‘

MR. ROBEDEAU: You have proposed
ordinance and —-

MR. COLLINS: Ordinance is different.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Because I've got
proposed ordinance.

MR. COLLINS: That's not the plan.
The plan has to be adopted by the county in

0 age
a nonemergency ordinance. But that coul
be as detailed as the ordinance proposed by
PAPA, or it could be as simple as the
;loumy b?adrd of commissioners adopt the

an, period.

MR. ROBEDEAU: You're talking about
just the second half of the Tgroposal.

MR. COLLINS: Right. That's the
plan. That's in the same format as the
plan that was submitted by our office.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think this really
illustrates the problem. Nobody really
knows quite what's been adopted by anybody,
but we're going to go to the county
commission with it. | think that hits the
nail right on the head.

MR. STEINMAN: At our last meeting, |
didn’t think it mattered what had been
adopted by anybody. We were going to come
up with a process here.

MR. COLLINS: 1 would suggest we look
at both these things.

MR. PHILLIPS: First, maybe we ought
to formally invite PAPA to provide
testimony as we work through this.

SRR e
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MR. ROBEDEAU: We did.

MR. COLLINS: We invited everybody.
We sent out the same mailing list.

MR. ROBEDEAU: And | sent a letter to
PAPA asking for information, the same
letter that was sent to Bill. | have not
got copies of those out, but | have them
with me here. And the memo with t was a

(503) 299-6200

Lord, Nodland, Studenmund

Page 27 to Page 34




copy, itwas a corx of the request for
information that | had sent to Bill, and
n'sd.t:lst identical. it's even addressed
to .

| will supply everybody with copies of
that so you know what they got. | have
received no return, no comment, no nothing
from PAPA.

MR. PRAGGASTIS: | will tell you that
we have not received your letter, sir. |
will go and check the post office box
today. But as of this morning, | have not
rece ur letter, nor has Gary, nor has
anyone. And no phone call.

MR. ROBEDEAU: We sent it —

MR. PRAGGASTIS: I'm just putting it
on the record that it's interesting, but we

53 T Page 50

have not received it.

MR. DRAKE: That's fine. No one's —

MR. PHILLIPS: I'd just like to say,
there’s good in both of these plans, and |
zuess my point is, if we'd like to hear

om Bill and get the information out on
the table, good, or ma we ought to just
start at the first area, do we agree on
it? Do we not? What data do we need to
support it?

And let's just start putting these to
bids piece by piece, and if Bill can
comment or PAPA can be here each day to
comment on that section. If we don’t agree
—~ {t's two to one or five to zero or
whatever — this is a vote. We submit that
information to the county and let them make
the decision.

MR. ROBEDEAU: That's on the agenda to
start with. We're going to take each,
address each section of the plans.

Some of the agenda, part of it says,

uestions from Bill and conclusions on his
ta. But nobodg had the data in time. We
need to have a chance to study it. t's a

matter of getting that passed out.

We've got about one day before we meet
again to read over the data and any
questions on it and make any
recommendations. it's going to be fast.
We're not going to have the PAPA data,
aithough | understand from the last meeting
that there is very little, if any. So
we'll just have to wait and see.

MR. DRAKE: What kind of information
do we need, Pete? We have a list of
memoranda, the number of paramedics in the
system now, paramedic turnover. We have
g'el;mnd summary table one, which is from

That’s the information you put
together in the demand analysis?
MR. COLLINS: (Nods head.)
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what the recommendations come out of here
are things that need to be fixed, and the
data is going to say what needs to be

fixed.

MR. SKEEN: Well, it seems to me the
issues | know, that everybody took
exception with, were response time, which
you've probably brought that issue up,

response-time compliance.

R. COLLINS: Although that's not an
issue in the plan. In fact, it's not an
issue in either plan. The goal is
reiterated.

MR. SKEEN: That's my point. Turnover
was — | think everybody took — most
peopie took exception to the conclusions
with that, but I'm not sure how relative
that is to setting up the plan. That
becomes almost more characteristic of the
govlder selection process, what's put

rth. Certainly the rate-settin?
methodologies become critical to this
process.

| just would hate to see us bogged
down with a lot of documentation or
analysis that Bill has that may not be
pertinent to what we're trying to
accomplish here.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Mark?

MR. DRAKE: | think part of the
problem, Trace, historically what has
occurred here is people make assumptions

and based on those assumptions they design

a vehicle delivery system for Multnomah
County. And | think part of the problem
we've had in the past is those assumptions
are based on false information or
information that's not accurate.

We need to make sure we're dealing
with accurate information in order to base
our assumptions, make sure all the
information is accurate, we're all talking
about the same sheet of music. We need to
know how many paramedics are currently in
the sxstem. current FTDs there are, rather
than how many paramedics, say, a company
has on their list.

Buck has a lot of paramedics on their
list, 120, 130, whatever the number is,
maybe more, but not all of those paramedics
work in Multnomah County. And the same way
with CARE, we have other paramedics
listed. We have part time. They don't all
work in Multnomah County at the same time.
These are some of the numbers we have to
agree on.

MR. LAUER: Well, this is real

MR. DRAKE: And the current unit hours 1 right now, because on one hand, in the last
in the system and unit hour savings under 2 meeting, there were statements made that we
the different scenarios. We can start out 3 ought to adopt Bill's plan, and the meat of
with those pieces of information and at 4 that, most important part of that is
least get that — a lot of that stuff we 5 provider selection model, the tiered
get from the cogran‘.ve 6 s m.

MR. ROBEDEAU: ||, what Bill has on 7 But now, and then the last meeting

rereto -~ — . 8 too, we are saying that the data that was
R R SRERN [ 9 used to reach those assumptions that led to
his data, and the 29 points — some of it 10 the recommendation of that tiered system is
he says he doesn't have, and we need it. 11 inaccurate. So -
We'll mark it and say we don't have it on 12 MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't think we said
the list. Some of it he's brought with 13 it was inaccurate. | think what we said
him. We can run it out this afternoon. 14 was we need to look at it so we know what

MR. COLLINS: I've got copies with 15 itis. It's the same deal with asking the
me. 16 question that started the meeting on, what

MR. ROBEDEAU: You've got copies for 17 was it exactly that the MAB adopted? They
ever . Can we pass that out? 18 adopted a template. Bill says they adopted

R C NS: Yes. Do you want to 19 a template based on the PAPA plan, the
pass it all out, or do you want to talk 20 template, and followed by whatever that
about it, or what do you want to do? 21 Is. .

MR. SKEEN: | guess my question, Pete, 22 I'll have to admit, Randy, I'm not
is how relevant a lot of the data is to 23 real sure what that is either. if we're
this process. 24 adopting a template based on the PAPA plan,

R. ROBEDEAU: | think the data is 25  apparentiy the MAB has made a bunch of
very relevant in that the data — a lot of
1ge 34 to Page 41 Lord, Nodland, Studenmund (503) 299-6200
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assumptions based on some kind of
information, and if | read the PAPA plan
rlght. you have one of two options. And if
it's the template, only one of those two
options wili be considered. Oneis a
municipal system, and the other one is a
single-bid model.

R. LAUER: | think it's broader than
that, Pete. The state statute calis for |
think four main points to be addressed, but
two of those are the system elements,
describe your system, things like what are
the response times going to be, what's the
medical supervision going to be like,
things like that. We really need to talk
about those. One of the other four things
Is what sort of provider-selection process
are you going to use.

t we tend to | think walk around and
conclude that the ASA plan is just that one
element, what kind of a provider-selection
process is there going to be. We need to
not forget the rest of the planning
process. And | think that's where we've
got some common ground rather than talking

1 about a majority and a m ty vote at
2 this point. ought to talk about things
3 we've already | think reached some
4 consensus on.
5 For example, a single physician
6 supervisor, as described in the PAPA plan,
7 is a ﬁ)b that no human being can probably
8 do. It's much too large. We need to talk
9 about that. Resgonse time, what kind of
10 response time should this county have? And
1 things like that. | think we've got some
12 areas there where we can make some progress
13 and put those behind us, and then later on
14 we can work on what kind of
15 provider-selection model we want to see.
16 MR. DRAKE: Pete, if | can comment for
17 a minute — sorry to interrupt you - |
18 think that's true. We need to do both of
19 those things. But | aiso have to agree
20 with a comment made earlier. We did last
21 time vote and adopt Bill Collins’ plan as
22 the kind of methodology we want to follow,
23 based on the components of his pian.
24 Everybody voted and that's what we
25 decided. To go back on that —

. : miss
the meetisx}?(
dldMR. D E: We didn't? | thought we
MR. ROBEDEAU: No. We voted. The
only vote that was taken was we voted to
look at the plans, spend the time and
review everything and make a
recommendation,
10 MR. COLLINS: | would really suggest
11 that you try to look at both plans. To say
12 that -
13 MR. DRAKE: That's fine.
14 MR. COLLINS: To adopt a plan as a
15 template, that the MAB did, at least in my
16 mind, doesn’t make a lot of sense since the
17 template of the Flan Is alreadY set by the
18 state. t's ?ot big blanks, butitis a
19 fill-in-the-blanks plan.
20 MR. DRAKE: Okay. The second part,
21 let's not do that, let's look at the
22 components, let's look forward, look at the
23 components, agree what the components are.
24 Is that fair to say?
25 MR. LAUER: M-hm.

part of

age.

" M’R. DRAKE: Everybody agree with

at

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think it's also fair

to say the most important aspect is
govider selection. That's the thing.

nce 1977, | know that there has been no
opposition to a single physician
supervisor, but we have listened countiess

ONONHBWN -
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times to MAB members refuse to recommend a
single Ysician supervisor because they
were afraid by recommending a single
physician supervisor, that would lessen the
desire to have a slngie ovider. There's

a lot of things on that, Randy, | don't

think there’s really a lot of controversy

on.

A single ician supervisor has been
agreed on b‘;hgl? the providers for the last
16 years, that | know of; it's just never
been adopted because the single physician
supervisor indeed is not an EMS problem,
it's a hospital problem that's been a fight
for 16 years.

MR. LAUER: Exactly.

MR. ROBEDEAU: But we're the ones that

......... RS Page 450

are ng the heat for it. That's one of
the things that's been being used for years
and years and years and years, to say we
have to have a single provider so we can
have a single physician supervisor. Sol
think, uniess I'm wrong, we can do away
with the single physician supervisor issue
here by, if we have to, do a vote on
whether or not we shouid have a single
physician supervisor or a single medical
system, if you would prefer that, rather
than adoptlnF the actual PAPA plan where
you have a single individual who is going
to be Lord Goci Almighty of everything and
have duties and assignments that he can't
g:'sslbly fulfill, so you set it up to

If | remember right, reading the PAPA
proposal, it says this person cannot
delegate to anybody anything. | have to
agree with you, that with a hundred, 120

ivate EMTs, paramedics, 200 — Tom, what
s it, 850 Portland Fire people?
MR. STEINMAN: No.
MR. ROBEDEAU: What s it?

R0 N B RS0l
MR. STEINMAN: Under 700.

MR. ROBEDEAU: And Gresham has about?

MR. PHILLIPS: About 75.

MR. ROBEDEAU: So we're dealing with a
thousand people, give or take. We have
Corbett, ine, a few other fire
departments.

MR. PHILLIPS: Probably 150.

MR. ROBEDEAU: So | think a thousand
is fair. | have to agree with you, it's
g:rsicall impossible for one single human

ng to foliow state guidelines and state
law and be able to a equately supervise,
ride with, observe, and in other ways do
everything that's required by state law and
have only one person doing it.

MR. LAUER: | think we're in
a?veement. | think that’s one key element
of the PAPA plan. We asked the question
earlier, what exactly did the MAB approve?

The thing that kept recurring
throughout the discussions we had about the
medical direction months ago was that the
wanted to have a single person accountable
for the medical care that's provided in the

county. And where the discussion ensued
was, how do you do that?

We had a group of physicians who were
the physician supervisors group who wanted
to continue to act as a group. The MAB and
others wanted one specific person to have
the final order. There's some merit to
that, because we discussed how siow the
process is now. For example, it takes
roughly a year to implement a new protocol,
and that's because you've got to go through
this committee, group process to do that,
taf:‘dt it was felt that one physician could do

at.

And they used the Clark County system
as an example. Granted, that's a smaller
system, has a condensed group of
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paramedics, but you have one doc who says
what kind of care is provided and things
move npldlr. Muitnomah County wants to do
something like that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't think —

MR. THOMAS: Pete, let me make a
suggestion here. You guys have nine
meetings, and if we do a

e S NN Page“
stream-of-consciousness approach, where you
jump from topic to topic, you're not going
to get through the nine meetings and have a
product that will have the impact whichever
ones of you want to have.

We started into the medical supervisor
issue, but | don't know if ever y's
ready to discuss that as a main topic
agenda. That in itself is probably a whole
meeting to discuss and go through and
analyze and figure out what your
conclusions are. That may be one of the
easier ones. There's topics like that that
you can go through. And | don't know what
they all are. Okay?

d it seems to me you can map those

out so that on this meeting, you can hit
that topic, that meeting we're going to hit
that one. That's one set of issues. That

obably orients — well, it can orient

towards responding to existing

proposals that are on the table and
potentially arriving at a proposal that
this group might want to recommend. That'’s
one approach which | think needs to be

And maybe | think it's really
important to pin down what those topics are
and when they’re going to be discussed. |
think the other thing is there are
proposals on the table, and at least some
of the members here are hopeful that this
group will, in addition to whatever it
proposes affirmatively, also have some
critiques or suggestlons for revisions,
whatever, for the proposals that are on the
table. Major aspects of those are based on
conclusions as they're argued. | think
Bill's is the example of that. Some of his
conclusions are argued based on the data he
had in his analysis of it.

Seems to me it is appropriate for
members here to want to get the total
package of data he arrived at and have a
discussion with him | guess after they
reviewed the data, do you have a common
understanding of the data and how did he
arrive at his conclusions and did he agree
or disagree with that? | think that's the
relevance of the data. | think those are

R RRRERRRR
the two things that need to be done.

| am really concerned that unless you
have a road map of when you're going to
consider each thing and go through each
thing in depth, you're not really going to
produce anything that's going to be useful
to yourselves or anybody else. | guess I'd
rather see you map that out right now than

into a topic now for a surface

scussion that you're going to have to

come back to and discuss in depth at some
point later. | know a lot of stuff that's
on today's agenda has been discussed
already, and you're not ready to have a
dialogue with Bill about his because
nobody’s seen it.

i sort of think that time's runnin
here. You will be well oriented to deal
with items five and six, figure out what
the system elements are, and set your
agenda for the next meeting, which might
have to do, say, with one system element
and a beginning of a dialogue with Bill
about whatever his conclusions were, and
PAPA may have gotten their letter by then

ONOBWN
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three, get through the whole plan.

n
I think you will get frustrated if yo
don't do it that way ultimately.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think you're right.

MR LhAUER: That's the rational

oach.

MR. COLLINS: The elements that need
to be considered, they're actually laid out
in the plan. We can start from the top and
go down. The only plans that are not
explicit in the plan — and I'm talking
about the actual plan, not the rest of the
documents — but the onlg parts that are
not explicit in there are things that are
not discussed in the state plan.

For instance, there is no real
discussion of first response as part of the
system. So you've got to kind of put that
in where you want to put it. There is very
jittie in the plans about the
organizational elements within any

risdiction. But it lays it out. You can
st start at the top and decide if — item
two is speaking about, item two, item

SRR SRR,

MR. DRAKE: | think that's the method
we should use. Both plans, both PAPA and
Muitnomah County, foliow that outline
essentially, and we ought to go through
that outline.

MR. PHILLIPS: What do we like, what
don't we like.

MR. DRAKE: Right. Take both plans,
put them together, take elements from both
plans, magbe come ug with other options.

MR. ROBEDEAU: But what we're ?olng to
talk about at the individual meetings
think Is important so when we come
Thursday, we know we're going to be talking
aboiut '3( topic and maybe start the next
topic F.

MR. THOMAS: Maybe you can look at the
list here. There may be some things you
figure we don't need to discuss.

MR. COLLINS: If you look in the
county document, at the beginning of the
plan portion of it is the table of
contents, which will be page 1 of the

an. it's in the second section, just
ike in PAPA's. There is a table of

contents, which essentially is the outline

of the state requirements.

MR. DRAKE: And PAPA | think has the
same thing.

MR.C NS: You can start at the
top. We probably don't have to spend a lot
of time on the language of the
certification document. The chair of the
county commission will probably leap ahead
to the next item.

MR. KILMER: I'd like to suggest that
that is not the best way to approach this
thing because it's too unfocused. It does
seem to me that Randy Is right and Mark is
right and Tom is right, that there are
several elements to the Collins plan built
on that, that there is relative consensus
on. Because there’s relative consensus on
those doesn’t mean there's total consensus
on all of it.

It seems to me if you went through and
identified the way these things were
handied as proposed by the Collins plan,
which eve y seemed to think would be a
more fruitful starting point for

discussion, that that would be go. Around

this table today, you could identify those
portions of the Collins proposal about
which there seems to be general agreement,
single medical control, maintenance of
eight minutes 90 percent of the time, first
response, all that stuff.

d if there's any discussion on any
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9 of that, people can have it. But that
10 reserves the issues then for later
11 discussion about the methodology that
12 Mr. Collins used to arrive at some of the
13 recommendations he made in his plan. With
14 respect to a single provider of the
15 public - or the private component of the
16 tiered response, option one is one big
17 example. With respect to that, you don't
18 have to worry too much about provider
19 selection if you decide that the current
20 providers will be left basically in place
21 doing what they do.
22 Buck rnar have a different view on that
23 point, in which case on that point there
24 may be a minority report. That's what's
25 lacking here today, is a focused response

R AR
1 which | think starts from areas of ?enera
2 agreement but invites people to discuss
3 each one of these.
4 The second part that | still think you
5 ought to tatk about is the paramedics have
6 concerns that are not articulated, and
7 private providers have their concerns that
8 are not articulated. The medical community
9 has their concerns that are not
10 articulated. The fire department has their
11 concerns that are not articulated. Those
12 concerns ought to be invited here.
13 We run the great risk, if this thing
14 goes the way it is, we're going to be
15 conceived as somebody with a preconceived
16 agenda that is doing the superficial stuff
17 to create a record to support that. That's
18 dangerous. You need to go into these
19 things in detail and on at least every
20 single point give peopie a chance to
21 res&ond.
g |§‘ PHILLII,PS: :Ne méo;ald do that, do
wouldn’t we, by going, 2-1 geography, does
24 anybody have anything to complain about the
25 way the geography is written in the plan?

1 Is there some disagreement?
2 MR. DRAKE: | think, Jeff, going

3 through this, we will hit all the areas.

4 We can talk about all the areas we agree or
5

6

7

8

9

disagree with, and those areas of concern,
we should invite people - obviously we
have a lot of the information from PAPA. |
agree there are some secondary paramedic
concerns that were articulated at the MAB.

10 it wouid be nice to get a list of those

" paramedic concerns.

12 We can certainly go back to our

13 companies, from individual companies, what

14 those concerns have been articulated and go

15 to the PAPA group, representative of some

16 of the paramedics and get their concerns

17 certainly listed out so we can put all

18 those on the table. Certainly the medical

19 community has concerns, and we should

20 contact those medical people, again invite

21 them to the meetings and tell us what

22 medical concerns do they have, what part of

23 this plan are they concerned about, and

24 address those issues. And the same way

9e 37

1 I mean, cenalnlg' ifwe're oln%oto
2 write up a plan and do this right, for
3 example, hazardous materials, are the fire
4 bureau and districts happy with the way the
5 hazardous materials - happy with the
6 integration of private service with
7 hazardous materials? Is there something
8 else we can write to strengthen that to
9 make it better? | don't know. You gu

1(1) ::han let us know how you want to deal with

1 at.

12 On the first responders, we can talk

13 about the response times, response time

14 zones, staffing levels. | think,

15 personally, there's olng to be a lot of

16 discussion just on definitions. That's

17 going to kind of set everything else out

ONNOWAUN-A%
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good task

from there.
Does that seem like a reasonable plan,
ocess to proceed? Anybody have any
ssues?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Mark, if you're going
to use that, I'd prefer to go through and
mark off the points in complete agreement.
We don't need to take this step by step in

1ge 58772

the subsequent meetings.

MR. DRAKE: Right.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Because ali of one |
think is agreed on. Ambulance service area
boundaries are agreed on. System
elements —

MR. DRAKE: | don't think ambulance
service area boundaries are agreed upon.
We agree it's Multnomah County. We don't
agree with what the ASA should be.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | stand corrected.

MR. DRAKE: About the only one we can
agree on possibly is the overview of the

coung.
MR. LAUER: We can agree on the
certification part.

MR. DRAKE: Okay.

MR. ROBEDEAU: What certification?

MR. LAUER: That's the letter from the
county commissioner.

MR. SKEEN: Pete, it seems like
sections three, four, five, six, and seven
are tae ones thait re'ally 't':ledi discussion
on. My suggestion is — this is a pr

?gr somebody - that somhlng
5 Page 59 7%

T

that would be helpful for me is to see kind

ofa slde-bxalde comparison of the two

plans nlnd ow theyicompare and lthen allow

us to give opportunity — opportunity or ‘
ln;;:t om tﬁe PmVIZr Board as it relates |
to that. |

I like Mark's idea setting up and |
perhaps in a particular day to invite
testimony from the work force and then
maybe go to the ATU, a representative from
your roug.

MR. ROBEDEAU: We need to do an agenda
today for the remainder - | didn’t mean to
interrupt you; sorry about that - for the
remainder of the Provider Board meetings so
that each agenda item is known today, the
remainder.

MR. DRAKE: Okay.

MR. SKEEN: Okay. | think in doing a
side-by-side co rison, like | said, it's
a rreny good task, but | think it will
allow us to look at the two options that
are on the table and see if we as a group
reach consensus on other considerations for
that and, like you said, there may be a

e o Pages0rin
ority opinion as to how that might
interface.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Those minority opinions
be allowed to be expressed.

MR. SKEEN: Right.

MR. DRAKE: i don't know, Trace. |
think the side-by-side comparison is
something we need to do as we go through
this process. | don’t know if someone can
sit down and say what those things are. We
need to hear from both groups. need to
hear from PAPA and from the county maybe
some reasons as to why they came to that
conclusion,

MR. SKEEN: My thought was to do that,
provide a oo% of that to PAPA and
obviously to Bill and make sure that the
assumptions are drawn up there — I'm
talking about bullets - make sure the
assumptions are accurate, we're not
misrepresenting their position, and use
that as a basis. | think that would hel
us get through what Chris is talking about,
because we're bouncing all over the place
here without getting into any substance.
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MR. DRAKE: Possibly could | suggest
to the chair that maybe a subcommittee, not
just one person, do that; that maybe a
representative from each one of the
providers just sit down quickly and do

that.

| think it's a idea, Trace.
There are peolp e that are interested that
want to participate could do that quickly.

MR. ROBEDEAU: We can do that. It's
going to have to be ready by the next
meeang. We need to definitely decide on
an a?{nda item before the next meeting.

MR. THOMAS: You can do it by piece
for each meeting.

MR. DRAKE: That would make it
easijer.

MR. LAUER: My question, do we have
here today the road map that Chris talked
about?

Bill, in your section headed,

Muitnomah County ambulance service pian
index, is that by state statute?

MR. COLLINS: With the exception of
the first response to be added in. | don't

2 age |
know. PAPA's got the same thing -- don't
you %ys have something in here someplace?

MR. PRAGGASTIS: I'm sorry?

MR. LAUER: We need to look at what
the atlas looks like.

MR. COLLINS: You can get it out of
the state statute.

MR. ROBEDEAU: If you have to move
South America a couple of the feet to the
left, it doesn’t make any difference.

MR. COLLINS: This is the state
format.

MR. SKEEN: The only comments | would
make, Bill, you talked about the first
response being in there. | think somebody
was remiss in setting thisupon a
statewide because it's a major —

MR. COLLINS: itis not required. If
you look at the actual state statutes and
administrative rules, it is not required.

They don't require you to say that. When
we put this together, we did not feel that
that described the system sufficiently, so
we just added the first-response stuff.

, there is not a great deal of

e

stuff about first response, bu
at appropriate places. But the one, two,
three, four, five, those are the titles.
It's the same. it's the state statute. We
can get you a cop?; of the statute if

t.

anﬁodgbrou ht

R. DRAKE: It's in the PAPA plan.
MR. PHILLIPS; It's in the PAPA plan.

John was just telling me that these

definitions have to be, as far as what

the — if we don't want to believe him,

that's fine. Let me state what he's told

me.

These definitions need to be stated as
they are stated in the Oregon
administrative rule verbatim and if we
wanted to add any, we could have them
added. We can use the definitions or the
ones that are in here.

MR. DRAKE: There are plans that have
been submitted to the state that have been
approved that don't follow them verbatim,
and they have approved them. | think most
counties are better off to at least include
the verbatim portions of the state

definitions.

MR. COLLINS: The thing you have to
look at the definitions, and actuaily on
any of the state statutes, is we can't
propose and adopt a standard less than the
state standard. The state says, the
minimum standard for X is whatever itis.
We can add to it, we can make it more, but

the ASA

we can't make it less.

MR. DRAKE: Most of the counties,
though, ad definitions that the state
doesn't have. They adopt the definitions
the state does have and then add in
addition to first responders, or whatever
they want to do, quick response team.
That's certainly a good place to start.

MR. LAUER: | would suggest for the
purpose of starting to form an agenda that
we ook at the broad topic of system
elements first and then break them out as
agenda items. I'll make that as a motion,
if necessary.

MR. D E: | would second that motion
if you would add, why don't we start with
definitions, look at that first.

MR. LAUER: I’'m not so sure we can
chanae the definitions.

MR. KILMER: Mark, | think it's better
to start with the issue, and if you have a
problem that makes that difficult —-

MR. DRAKE: Okay. I'll second that.

MR. COLLINS: What you can do is look
at the definitions as a piece you're
:;)tgklng at and make sure they support each

er.

MR. DRAKE: I'll second his motion to
look at system elements to start. So, we
can move on.

MR. COLLINS: That's a fairly good one
to start.

MR. ROBEDEAU: We've had a motion.
I'll move discussion.

MR. THOMAS: Why don't you — I'll be
quiet until you vote on that.

MR. SKEEN: The motion is to look at
that first. Do you want to break that
down?

MR. LAUER: Yes. The motion is
essentially, take system elements out of
process to look at first and then

to create an agenda, which would be th
road map that has the subtopics of the
system elements to discuss as an
item-by-item aEgenda topic.

MR. DRAKE: Okay.

MR. ROBEDEAU: For how many meetings?
Provider selection, which is No. 7, you
know, | would not want to just do system
elements for the whole road map for the
nine meetings that we have and miss

ovider selection, which comes out as

. 7.

MR. KILMER: Pete, I'm going to think
you can handle most system elements in a
meeting or two because most are going to be
uncontroversial, and there will be two or
three that will be controversial, and those
can be anticipated, and those can be
scheduled in for time at subsequent
meetings. But what Randy is suggesting is

a startir:; cg;lnt.

MR. EDEAU: Okay. | understand.
Is there any more discussion?

MR. SKEEN: Pete, we had talked last
time about - | think just in closing it

would be good to get these recommendations
to MAB, that there was a desire to get them
to MAB by the 7th so that they would have
them the week prior to the 14th. f that's
the desire of this group, then really on

the Tuesday-Thursday format we're looking
at about seven meetings left. And just
discussion on Randy’s motion, if we start
with system five, | don't think — item

five, | don't think there's any way we'll

get through that on Thursday.

But if we can set that up and do
side-by-side comparisons prior to that
meeting and start through with a goal of
veatcl‘y trying to get through that by the
third session, anyway, and then that should
give us adequate time to move ahead.
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18 MR. DRAKE: Sounds reasonable.

19 MR. SKEEN: | do like the idea, too,

20 of inviting comment, at the appropriate

21 time inviting comment, both comment from

22 paramedics, fire medics, private sector

23 medics, union medics, particularly

24 ph¥.sician supervisors. And, to be honest
with you, I've found that difficult at

g :
1 times to pin them down on what it is
2 the&re after.

3 R. KILMER: All you can do is give

4 them the chance.

5 MR. LAUER: That's true. You can lead
6 them to the water.

7 MR. KILMER: Exactly. The big problem
8 has been that no one's even led us to water
9 in the past, at least some of us.

10 MR. THOMAS: ! can make a

1 sug?estion on specifically what you do, I'm
12 just looking througix this, under system

13 elements, under 5.1, two, and three,

14 response times of personnel —- I'm usin

15 Bill's modei at this point — he has tiere

16 response. The proposed shift of some of
17 the emergency calls that would not be part
18 of what would be transported by the fire

19 under his concept to 12-minute response
20 time, and he has his proposal on the

21 changing personing, rather than manning,
22 personing of the plans. That's sort of

23 rt of a total single concept that he
24 as.
25 It seems to me that that's one topic.

g
R
1 s r
2 discuss those separately. | could see, for
3 example, seninE that as a meeting agenda
4 maybe. I'm looking at how do you break

5 this down. That's sort of one set of

6 topics.

7 Then when we go into the system

8 elements. There's medical supervision,

9 training, and components. Those are a

10 separate category. Then you have patient

" care equipment and vehicles, which probably
12 is not a topic at all or something you can

13 dispense of pretty quickly. Atleast!

14 haven't heard there's going to be a lot of

15 discussion about that. Those two things

16 are at least two meetings worth of

17 discussion. So | could see those. Then

18 you've got —

19 MR. STEINMAN: Could we stick on that

20 for a second? If we took the medical

21 supervision and the patient care and

22 equipment and lumped them together, then we
23 could hopefully attract the docs to come to
24 that meeting and keep those together in

25 case they have something they want to say

about egﬁlpmem.

1
2 MR. DRAKE: | agree.
3 MR. THOMAS: I'm trying to give you a
4 feel for how the meetings might go. Those
5 would be two different meetings.
6 Under "coordination,” 6.1, probably
7 the main thing he's got there which you
8 guys would want to discuss is rates. Seems
9 to me that's a major topic.
10 Mutual aid agreements, disaster
11 response, personnel and equipment
12 resources, which has to do with haz.
13 mat.’s, and special response team, those
14 probably aren’'t major topics. Maybe you
15 want to discuss those provisions at some
16 point.
17 Emer?ency communications and system
18 access, |'m not sure about that one. d
19 then provider selection obviously is a
20 rna{or topic. It seems like the super major
topics are medical control, tiered response
22 and what goes with that, rates and provider
23 selection. And you ought to specifically
24 figure out when you're going to do those
25 and maybe do the balance of the plan,

ONOINBWN=
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uniess somebody has another major issue

that's in there that | haven’t recognized,

ma all in a single meeting Just to

polish off.

If those are the topics, you've
maybe two meetings for each of those four
major topics, because there were four that
| listed, which woulid cover eight meetings
and polish off everything else. I'm tryin
to give you a feel for how it might go an
an approach.

| think people said, the medical
peopie, you can invite them in and invite
them into the other meetings, and say, “if
you have something to say about thig issue,

eage come to this one,” that thesewgeople
ow when to come and you know when you
want to ur ﬂeo#'e to come.

MR. LAUER: That's a good point. |
guess we have a consensus that we're going
to look at system elements.

" lg’R ROBEDEAU: Do we need to vote on
at
MR. DRAKE: Does anyone disagree?
No one’s in disagreement.

MR. LAUER: As we proceed, | agree
with you, Chris. We need to the horses
in the right order in front of the cart.

One thing, | don’t know if you mentioned or
not, is level of care. In mind,

defining what the ievel of care is should
precede a lot of the other discussion

points because you will outline your
response-time requirements, standards based
on your level of care. For exampie, if you
have an ALS first response, BLS ambulance,
you've got different response times than
you wguld have if you had it the other way
around.

MR. COLLINS: That's what Chris said,
putting response time, level of care all in
one chunk, one meeting.

MR. THOMAS: They ail Interact with
each other, the way he'’s proposed it.

MR. SKEEN: Go through this one other
time and adopt this. You're talking about
5.1, .2, .3 for Thursday?

MR. DRAKE: Right. For this
Thursdaky. Okay?

MR. KILMER: Is that going to involve

R 3
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the doctors?

MR. ROBEDEALU: | thought we were going
to do that Tuesday so we could invite the
doctors and invite them to be here.

MR. THOMAS: There’'s a number of
%‘aces the doctors might want to show up.

at's one of them because it involves,
you have two EMTs and do you want to change
the response time for some emergency
calls? There’s a lot there.

MR. LAUER: That's a full meeting.

MR. THOMAS: Frankly, | would suggest
that you pass the data out and use
Thursday’s meeting, since it's going to be
hard to get people to think about something
substantive ahead of time, for people who
have reviewed that, have a dialogue with
Bill here about any questions they want to
ask him about the data or the conclusions
he arrived at from it. That's something
rou all can do internally. It doesn’t

nvolve people who aren't here today.

Then you have your meeting maybe next
Tuesday on 5.1, two, and three, and let the
medical community know you're going to be

e e page 7ATHE
discussing those because they do have
interest in those,

MR. DRAKE: | might suggest we look at
Bill Collins' data and any other data
that's presented to us as we come to it in
this process.

R STEINMAN: | think if we take his
data now and use the next meeting to figure
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out whether we want to hammer Bill quietly
without inviting other people or —

MR. COLLINS: | would like to strongly
recommend that you all take this data now
so | don’t have to haul this back,
regardiess of when it's going to be
considered.

MR. KILMER: How many copies do you
have of your data?

MR. COLLINS: | don't know. There
must be 15 or so here. There's enough for

data‘} K({MER: Bill, is that all your
MR. COLLINS: This is pr much it.

Any other data is in the plan. This is not
a — | don't think there's anything else.

S

REHLISATIR 2
itif there's a

2 R
You can look through
question.
MR KILMER: What you're giving us is
the data that you initially obtained and
all your notes and analysis of that data?

R. COLLINS: I've given you all the
summary stuff. | haven't given you all the
sheets, the yellow sheets | have. | tried
to go through and find anything that was
pertinent, that would fit into that, the
data that is not specific in here, and |
will be happy to hand it out to people as
long as all three companies agree, is that
when we did the - when we looked at the
cost data of the current system, we agreed
that we would not make this an issue
between co nies but we would aggregate it
and say, this Is what the cost of the
system was. So | did not bring each of
those.

If you want me to, | can hand it out.
If not, that's up to t¥:'.~u.

MR. SKEEN: | think we ought to go
through this data first.
MR. COLLINS: You can look at it if

: S :

it's a question. That was one of the
concerns, if we sat there and started
looking at the cost, say, well, Buck's is
this, CARE's is that.

MR. SKEEN: As it relates to the data,
the only thing I'd offer again, | think we
need to be careful we don't look at such a
historical perspective on this, that we
create a box that we have to fit. | guess
that's my point. I'm not sure how
relative —

MR. ROBEDEAU: I'm sorry. | couldn’t
hear you.

MR. SKEEN: I'm not sure how relative
all of this data is, if we want to talk
about ASA plans and setting standards.

MR. ROBEDEAU: I'm not sure how
relative it is, either, Trace, but too many

NN X
sort of

radio communications network, going to the

assurance. So that's a topic which is also
either one or two meetings.

The next one that | think is — by
leaving things out it indicates, | don't
think they’re major discussion issues,
would be 6.1.2, which is rates, and | think
that's a major discussion issue and is at
least a one-meeting discussion. That's

20

g:; lots of things that
talked about. It has to do with how the
system will deal with rates.
And then the other major one that |
saw was provider selection, which | think
also connects back to — that's topic
seven, and that also relates to topic four,
which is ambulance service area
boundaries. So it seems to me that's the
place where single, multiple, where that
discussion would take place, and also a
discussion about whichever the conclusion
is with what the selection process is, and
that's either one or two meetings.
MR. DRAKE: Did you go over 6.4, 6.5,

and 6.67

MFhL ROBEDEAU: Seven and four were put

ther.

MR. THOMAS: | left those out because
I'm not aware of those being major issues,
but if they are —

MR. D E: | think there are some
issues we need to at least discuss and put
into the pian, emergency medical services,
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800 trunk, what is the impact going to be.
We talked about multipie data terminals in
the system. Do we need those. We talked
about ASL necessity. | think we ought to
discuss those.

MR. THOMAS: That should be — that
catchall bunch maybe ought to be in its own
meetingl.)

MR. DRAKE: Right. | don't think it

will take a whole meeting, something we
should get past because that is something
we have to make a recommendation to the

county.

Mg ROBEDEAU: May ! make a suggestion
that we review the data, take that categor
Thursday, along with any questions of Bil
on the data and any questions on anything
that might be provided by PAPA, if they
wish to participate, and then a week from
today start with 5.1, two, and three.

MR. DRAKE: Okay.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Because those, the ones

u just discussed, are greﬂy easy.

saster response | think is going to be

ars. 1 ptlmarll& exactly as it is now.

MR. SKEEN: | know. 2 MR. DRAKE: So for the meeting on

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think we need to look 3 Tuesday, we're going to talk about
atit. Then if we decide it's not 4 rersonnel. is that the meeting we want to
relevant, then we decide it's not 5 nvite the respective paramedics to as well
relevant. That makes it easy. 6 and the union, too, to talk about paramedic

| would like to ask Chris to go on g cor;‘c;‘rr;(sl. Lt’a‘léll:r;g G:‘out pers'gm'a'e‘l?Le .

TS TTTT rrerverTTTETveTerrererTToetvoses n : o does Mr. McLean worl

with his deal and finish itemizing this o 10 MR. SKEEN: He works part time for
because | think he's on the right track. 1" us. He'tzoin to school, working as —

MR. THOMAS: 5.1, two, and three could 12 MR. LAUER: Nursing school.
be one meeting or two. | don't know. 13 MR. SKEEN: Nursing school.
You'll have to de that. The next topic 14 MR. KILMER: | think it's pretty
| would see would be 5.4 — actually, Tom, 15 important that invitation be extended to
were you suggesting we do 5.4 throu?h 58 16 him personally by some! at Buck, today
as a single group? That includes patients 17 if possible, so he'll have a chance to be
care equipment and vehicles. Thetz might be 18 here on Thursday. Apparently there wasn’t
sort of throw-aways. Essenual‘lx, at is 19 any formal notice.
medical supervision and ail of the thin 20 MR. DRAKE: On Tuesday, a week from
that have been encompassed in all of the 21 today.
different proposals about medical 22 MR. ROBEDEAU: Bill, did you send this
supervision that have floated around over 23 to him? You said you sent —
the last two years. 24 MR. COLLINS: Isn’'t that the one we

The key parts are the supervision and 125 sent to everybody?
then 5.7 and eight, training and quality

‘age 74 to Page 81 Lord, Nodland, Studenmund (503) 299-6200




22 2

MD'R. ROBEDEAlfﬁ Yolnlx said you had
people on your mailing list.
MR. COﬁlNS: Yes.

MR. THOMAS: | think at the next
meeting, somebody could come with a
proposed agenda for all the rest of the
meetings that identifies at this point the
proposed topics for them. And, Bill, maybe
you can send out, | know it's a Jot of
10 maillr}igs. but another list so peopie know
" specifically when that is.

12 MR. COLLINS: Didn't we do that now?
13 MR. THOMAS: No. They have that. But
14 theadon't know the topics.

R. COLLINS: No. We just went
16 through identifying groups of topics. Why
17 don't we come up with dates and send them
18 out. There's no sense of waiting, is
19 there?

WONODNHLWN -

20 MR. THOMAS: No.

21 MR. COLLINS: 1didn't hear anybody
22 suggesting doing it in a different manner.
23 R. THOMAS: All right.

24 MR. STEINMAN: What about Trace's

25 suggestion about doing a side-by-side

1 col

2 J)R. COLLINS: | think people should do

3 that, they need to look at this, for each

4 of these topics, know what's in at least

5 the two proposed plans and whatever else is

6 in their mind that they think needs to be

7 looked at in that. Otherwise, if both of

8 the plans have left something out and you

9 recognize it, then that needs to be added
10 in there for consideration.
1 MR. STEINMAN: Do we want to do the
12 subcommittee approach like Mark said or
13 everybody do it themselves? Or let Trace
14 do it, since it's his suggestion.

15 MR. DRAKE: | vote for Trace doing it

16 since it was his suggestion.

17 MR. COLLINS: Sounds like a unanimous
18 acclamation.

19 MR. LAUER: | vote he not be allowed

20 to delegate that.

21 MR. SKEEN: I'll tell you what,

22 between Mark and | — and he whispered to

23 me a minute ago, he really hoped he would

gg be appointed to this —- between the two of
us -

TR

1 MR. DRAKE: | did not, for the

2 record.

3 MR. SKEEN: My suggestion, since we

4 have a week, to get that taxed out in

5 advance, to make sure the conclusions that
6 are drawn from that and the bullets are

7 consistent with what you had intended and
8 also to Gary, to make sure they're

9 consistent there, so we're not

10 misrepresenting the position.

11 MR. COLLINS: | think you'll have to

12 look at the plan document, then you'll have
13 to look at both documents’ preceding

14 information around that area, both the

15 proposed ordinance and pianning report, to
;g secl: if there's anything in there that adds

to it.
18 MR. SKEEN: | would suggest —~ and |
19 thought actually John did a very good job
20 Friday in stating up front the reason they
21 didn't talk about first responders in there
22 is because it doesn't call for it in the
23 state plan.

24 My suggestion, | think the state

25 screwed up by not including that because
: age |
1 it's a very key, integral component, and |

2 would suggest we keep that in here for the
3 discussion part of this.

4 MR. THOMAS: As | understand it, if

5 next Tuesdag ¥ou‘re goin%to be discussing
6 whatever is 5.1, two, and three, the three

7 roups that you want to be sure know about
8 at are PAFPA, the MAB, and the physician

about rates.

supervisor group, because they involve both
paramedic and medical issues.

MR. DRAKE: Well, also and the
pa:amedlcs' groups, either PAPA and/or the
unions.

MR. THOMAS: The unions.

MR. DRAKE: Right. The ATU, they have
representatives at the MAB, and | think
they should be invited to speak here as
‘v’I‘el :gdl list out thfe ‘:?noerns and Issuesd

ey feel as of this process goes an
theylmpaci o‘r)aat'h‘e paran:dlcs from their
standpoint.

MR. ROBEDEAU: So that's 4-20.

Right?
R. THOMAS: Ves.
MR. ROBEDEAU: And then 5.4

through

3% - < iiPage 85000
eight is 4-227 Is that correct?

MR. COLLINS: Okay.

MR. SKEEN: That again would have —
we're talking about having them come back
for that, th;&hyslclan supervisors come
back on 4-.

MR. LAUER: You'd think they’d want to
be there.

MR. KILMER: Inviting them back.

MR. LAUER: it's a pr ambitious
plan here because it took the MAB about
eight months to discuss that one item.

MR. THOMAS: But a lot of the
discussion —

MR. ROBEDEAU: The consensus was last
time, we don't have eight months, Randy.

. MF_\’. COLLINS: The medical supervision
ssue

hlﬂ% ROBEDEAU: We have eight meetings,
period.

MR. THOMAS: You could do that, or if
you don’t want to have them come twice in
one week, you could do that one the
following Tuesday and put, say, rates in
next Thursday.

SERRE ISR AR SRR
MR. DRAKE: Why don't we invite them
to the meeting on medical supervision, and
of course invite them to the other meetings
as they are, tell them what it's about.
MR. THOMAS: That's a good idea.
MR. COLLINS: What's the dates now?
MR. ROBEDEAU: 4-20 for 5.1, two, and

three.

MR. COLLINS: Rates are going to be 4
what?

MR. SKEEN: 27.

MR. ROBEDEAU: 4-27 would then be 6.1,

.2.

MR. COLLINS: 4-29,

MR. THOMAS: Provider selection.

MR. SKEEN: | wonder if rates needs to
come behind provider selection.

MR. THOMAS: That would be fine.

MR. SKEEN: | think that might be more

opriate.

MR. COLLINS: | think you guys may
want to discuss more about rates than in
the plan. If you've read the plan, you'll
notice there is very littie in the plan

MR. KILMER: Rates, you'll talk abol
costs and rates together, and that shouid
come before provider selection, | think,
because the issue of rates and costs and
duplication and effect on costs and rates
that Mr. Collins is suggesting may exist,

u know, to the extent that they exist,

nfluences other provider-selection
issues.

MR. THOMAS: | think that's right.
it's a smaller nlece of the larger issue.

MR. SKEEN: So hit that on the 27th
and then have to come back to it, get rates
on the 27th? Pete?

MR. COLLINS: Wait. Cost of rates on
the 27th?
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MR. ROBEDEAU: Rates on the 27th, SRR R Page S
ovider selection on the 26th. That at that. That is the only thing that |
eaves us two open meetings that we can uess could have been asked for that is not
push things to it we have to. ere,
MR. KILMER: You can use to fine-tune, MR. KILMER: Thanks.
because other issues will come ? MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. Trace and Mark
MR. ROBEDEAU: May 4th and May 6th and

OONONLWN=

going to do a side-by-side comparison and

that's it. get it out this afternoon?

MR. THOMAS: Mark has some issues on MR. SKEEN: Of 5.1, two, and three.

------ ; : MR. KILMER: This afternoon. Right?
R i age 88 10 MR. SKEEN: | would think we could

6.4, , and six he wants to discuss. 11 have that actually before Thursday.

MR. COLLINS: We're going to do that 12 MR. DRAKE: problem.
Tuesdak E o 13 MR. KILMER: That he will delegate.

MR. KILMER: | would su aest you not 14 MR. DRAKE: We'll talk about it,
give up on the May 11th and May 13th 15 T

race.
meetings, because even though you may not : ] : 16 MR. ROBEDEAU: ls there anything
be able to get information from those (R 17 eise? Okay. Then we're adjourned.
meetings to the MAB with the one-week o 18 (Discussion off the record.)

deadline that Trace talked about, the fact : : 19 MR. KILMER: Let's go on the record.
is that there can be fine-tuning, that can : 20 There is one additional document that
be presented on very short notice, and 121 will be Exhibit 3, and that is at the top,
those two extra meetings are likely to be L R P demand summary.
the one where a whole bunch of things come B ' “ 123 (EXHIBIT JO. 3
together and the bigger picture is seen and 24 was marked for identification.)
its complexity and the interrelationships T 25 (PROCEEDINGS ADJOURNED)
is lnqrto be addressed. a2 .
R. THOMAS: | agree. You're going to . SRR SRR R

need those, plus some of these topics you 1 EXHIBIT INDEX
cannot ﬁf?lfhﬁ tﬁo you have those meetings 2 Exhibit No. kem Page
open to finish them up. 3 1 Draft 3/18/93 for public

MR. ROBEDEAU: ghey can be carried 4 comment pu 91
over. , 5 2 Tables 8TABLE4.XLS) 91

MR. COLLINS: We'll call that 6 3 Demand analysis 91
follow—u'g, prior toﬁcs. 7 (Original exhibit attached to original

MR. ROBEDEAU: Can be followed up at 8 transcript.)

9

any meeting. o 11

MR. KILMER: | think it's pretty clear 12
that this is a tentative agenda; that, you 13
know, we're not locked into this thing in : 14
some legal sense that we can't move it 15
around. . 16

MR. COLLINS: Some of this is stuff 17
out of the plan. It's what you asked for. 18
Some of it has supporting documents, some 19
of it does not. 20

MR. LAUER: This isn'tin the plan 21
now. 22

MR. COLLINS: | was asked to produce 23
what | had. 24

MR. SKEEN: Pete, you're going to 25
issue the invitations for people? : o
MR. KILMER: Pete's going to do that.

3 S 3
CERTIFICATE

MR. ROBEDEAU: | can, yes. 1

MR. KILMER: Pete is the chairman. 2 I, ROBIN L. NODLAND, a Certified
(Discussion off the record.) 3 Shorthand Reporter for dregon and a

MR. THOMAS: We're off the record. . 4 Registered Professional Reporter, do hereby
(Discussion off the record.) PR . 5 certify that | reported in stenotylpe the

MR. KILMER: On the record here. | .. 6 proceedings had upon the hearing of this

want to pin this down. 7 matter, previously captioned herein; that |
| think the board needs to know that 8 transcri my said stenotype notes through
nevw— 9 computer-aided transcription; and, that the

10 foregoing transcript constitutes a full,

11 true and accurate record of all proceedings
12 had upon the hearing of said matter, and of
13 the whole thereof.

Page 90

3 R R
this is the information that you have
submitted in response to the board’s
inquiry for all your data and analysis

’ 14 Witness my hand at Portland, Oregon,
;ogzu ned in Robedeau's letter to 15 this 15th day of April, 1993, go|
MR. COLLINS: Right. Most of what 16
;P:’te asked me for in the letter doesn't 1; Oregon USK No. 90-0056
st. : R
MR. KILMER: Are o going to return h 19
:;meth? ing that identifies it doesn’t ‘2??
st
MR. COLLINS: Yes. 2§
MR. KILMER: What I'd like to have, §4
then, is have this lady mark these two 55

documents. The Exhibit 1 will be draft
3/18/93 at the top, and the other one will
be the tables, beginning table4.XLS, and
g:i a couple of exhibit numbers on those.
d those are the two documents that
Mr. Collins has produced.
(EXHIBITS NOS. 1-2
were marked for identification.)
MR. COLLINS: | did mention earlier,
the detail of the cost by company | did not
bring because we had said we would not look
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H COUNTY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
Thursday, April 15, 1993

9:05 o'clock a.m.

Oregon Medical Association

5210 S.W. Corbett Avenue
Portiand, Oregon

THE MULTNOMAH COUNTY PROVIDER BOARD:
Mr. Peter Robedeau, Chairman, AA Ambulance
Mr. Trace Skeen, Buck Ambulance

Mr. Mark Drake, Tualatin Valley Ambulance

Mr. Barry Doherty, CARE Ambulance

Mr. Thomas Steinman, Portland Fire Bureau
Mr. David P.hill‘i‘ps. Gresham Fire Department

PEARANCES
ALSO PRESENT:

Mr. Wiltiam Collins

Mr. Jeffrey Kilmer

Mr. Christopher Thomas
Ms. Trude Scheidleman
Mr. Randy Lauer

Ms. Lynn Bonner

Mr. Steven Moskowitz
Mr. Knute Eie

LE X}

age 3

PROCEEDINGS
MR. ROBEDEAU: Before we do anything
else, up here we have four handouts. e is the
minutes that were done - and speaking of that,
Chris is goingto do the minutes until Steve gets
here, Chris Thomas.

One is the minutes, one is the
statements that Jeff made at the last meeting. |
had been asked for a copy of the request for
documents and the letter to Gary McLean, and
there's the last handout. There's a letter to
Bill Collins. There's the request for documents,
the letter to Gary McLean. The thing that Bill
may not have is a memo to me from my dispatch
supervisors about how the EMP plan was prepared
and what was going to haggen with it. So if
anybody didn’t get these, they’re up here and you
need to get them.

Has everybody had a chance to read the
minutes? Are there any corrections or additions
or anything?

Pause.)
MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay, the minutes then
stand. Do | get a motion for approval of the
minutes? Somebody?

ge 4.

MR. SKEEN: So moved.

MR. LAUER: Second.

MR. ROBEDEAU: In favor? Opposed?
Okay. We have a lot to go through in a
very short period of time. The one thing we have
done is put together a list of questions. We
faxed these over to Bill yesterday so that there
are no surprises.

N -
Hi Page 1

” MR. SKEEN: Which list are you looking
at

MR. ROBEDEAU: This is the list of the
agenda, proposed agenda, for the provider board.

d nu g: that, Trace?
R. SKEEN: il 15th?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Right, okay. Well, this
includes more than April 15th, and an who
has any additions or changes or anything you want
to do — it has April 15th, it has April 20th, on
g‘ five is April 22nd. On'fage six is April

, and there'’s Max 4th, May 6th, May 11th and
May 13th which finishes the process.

So this runs us straight through to the
end of the process.

We included all of the

gs

it was best to include them bg'cause there is an
awful lot of ground we need to cover, and | think
those meetings will probably have to be.

Do you want a minute to review these?

m MR. DRAKE: If we could, Pete, just take a

nute.
MR ROBEDEAU: Why don't we take a
minute and everybody just review the -
R. DRAKE: This was faxed over to Bill?
MR. ROBEDEAU: Yesterday.
MR. DRAKE: Yesterday? ay.
You might want to take some sort of
attendance to know who is here and who is r-ut

here.

MR. ROBEDEAU: It doesn't appear there's
any representation from the col ssioner's office
or from PAPA here, MAB or the physicians
supervisors group.

MR. D E: Are you going to start an
attendance list, Pete?

MR. KILMER: | have one started here.

&Pausa
MR. ROBEDEAU: Is ever;body finished or
Are you okay? Why

do you need some more time
SN Page b
don't we get started here?

One thing | wondered about, Trace Skeen
and Mark Drake were going to do a side-by-side
co rison with the PAPA plan and ~
R. SKEEN: That's just dang near

finished.

MR. ROBEDEAU: It's just dang near
finished?

MR. SKEEN: Dang near finished.

MR. ROBEDEAU: |won't say we're not
going to do that today.

MR. COLLINS: Can we enter that in the
minutes?

MR. SKEEN: [ think there was some
discussion that was going to be a Tuesday topic
rather than a Thursday topic. | committed to
PAPA that we'd run it past them before we made a
formal submission here to make sure we
represented them appropriately.

MR. ROBEDEAU: ere is PAPA?

MR. SKEEN: | don't know. They don't
work for us.

MR. PHILLIPS: For today it should be

etty easy to do. We can do it ourselves.
ere’s about a paragraph each for each topic.

S ; G

MR. ROBEDEAU: Today we should get mor
?1 an understanding of what the county's proposal
S.

MR. COLLINS: We sent the ietter out on
Tuesdag to all the interested parties with the
topics that were identified In the minutes, so
that's already gone out to everybody.

MR. KILMER: Do you have a fax number
for PAPA?

MR. COLLINS: No.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Their list was blank.

The fax numbers for everybody that was here last
time are on the -- they were in the back of the
minutes, but -

MR. DRAKE: Are the minutes here?

MR. ROBEDEAU: No. This isn't the
minutes.
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MR. PHILLIPS: They're in the back of
the minutes.

MR. ROBEDEAU: They are?

MR. DRAKE: Yeah, they are.

MR. ROBEDEAU: All the fax numbers are
in the back of the minutes.

MR. SKEEN.: As it relates to that
side-by-side, I'll give my best shot at that to

get that out tomorrow afternoon. Then
can put their input into that for the changes
prior to the rneetln%on Tuesday.
MR. ROBEDEAU: I'd appreciate your
getting it out as early as you can to everybody
so there's no surprises. It's an open process,
and | really don't want anybody to feel like
they've been ambushed.
MR. DRAKE: And | think, too, though,
Trace, wouldn’t you agree, that PAPA has a chance
to come to the provider committee and protest or
comment on anything that is raised on the
side-by-side assessment. Anybody does.
MR. SKEEN: All I'd like to do is make
sure we're working with accurate information.
I'd rather deal with it up front than have it
contested in a formal presentation to the
comssion that you might make on behalf of the
provider.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay, that's fine.
For today, the first portion is an hour
and 45 minutes on the schedule and it's mostl
asking for some questions. We can go past 11:00
o'clock, or at least | can if anybody else is
able to. 9:00 to 11:00 is the schedule, but | am
: age
committed to taking whatever time we need to.
it's just a matter of what everybody eise’s
schedules look like.
MR. LAUER: Before we get started, I'd
like to comment on the detailed agenda that you
oposed. | think it's real useful. You worked
out real well. And for this meeting | think
it's pretty much what we discussed, that we're
going to look at the data and discuss that in
some depth.
For the subsequent meetings beginning
April 20th, however, it's my understanding that
we were going to use as a road map the different
parts of the state statutes as a planning process
and discuss them, discuss the application of both
plans as it relates to those specific parts of
the statute and to discuss anything that may not
be in either plan that we think should apply.
Your agenda, however, indicates specl ¢ review
of Bill's plan, and | think that wasn't the way |
understood it.
MR. DRAKE: It probably should say
Collins' plan slash PAPA plan.
MR. LAUER: Or actually anything that's
not either plan. It's more of a general review.

38 i e SR e S 4 3

MR. KILMER: Can | comment on this? |
was the one that drafted this up. We met with
Steve afterwards and went through carefully his
minutes, his notes of what was finally agreed
upon. There was discussion, Randy, that you
talked about about looking at the state plan.
Bill made reference to his own plan in the
outline and scheduled his own outline. And
ultimately when we broke them out into topics
pursuant to what Chris Thomas recommended, he
specificaily mentioned these sections, and that
was what had ultimately been agreed upon.

Now, | think that what that reflected
was the inltial decision that was made by this
board to use the Collins plan as the outiine
against which everything was going to be
co red. This was never an intent to suggest
that use the Collins Flan happened to
identify all of the discussion that nothing else
would be discussed, and the PAPA plan and this
man’s and everybody eise’s ideas can't be
commented upon in the context of the level of
care.
So nobody — there's no effort on our

part to exclude the concerns you're suggesting
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ought to be covered. This just was the F eed
outline that | thought had emerged, and | think
Chris and Steve did, as well.

MR. LAUER: | think we had agreed that
Bill's —- the outline in Bill's plan mirrored the
outline of the state statute.

MR. DRAKE: Right.

MR. COLLINS: ‘re just using the
numberin% scheme off of this plan.

MR. KILMER: So everybody was looking at
the same spot on the same page at the start of
the discussion.

MR. LAUER: { wanted to bring thatu
because | think there are things that neither
:I;: a?tminlsters this and that we need to talk

ut

MR. ROBEDEAU: Maybe we could put that
in the agenda.

MR. LAUER: Sure, sure.

MR. ROBEDEAU: This is one of the
reasons that we had included — even though we
had kind of assumed we would be done prior to May
13th, we included May 11th and 13th to cover
everything and that was all we had. | think
Trace wanted to do an initial rough draft on our

report handed in on the 6th, which was fine.
But then we have the 11th and 13th to
finish everything. We're on a real fast time
track. And my notes show 5-1, 5-2 and 5-3 for
the 20th. That was what we agreed to be
dlscusslrﬂ That's using the Collins plan.

MR. LAUER: Okay.

MR. DRAKE: | think Ilt's Important to
note, Pete, that there are — the state just
simply requires that you address these system
elements, and that other counties have gone
beyond that. And you ask what they feel are EMS
system elements, and | think that’s what we kind
of as a consensus group agree needs to occur.

| don't think everyone has disagreed
with that, so we need to look at these other
system elements that we put in there, and now is
the time to do the things that need to be
addressed.

MR. PHILLIPS: Your concern is that

ple just don't feel like the door is slammed

n their face, because it reads our agenda is to

ook at section 5.4 of Collins plan.

it MR. LAUER: | wanted to make sure that
was —

MR. PHILLIPS: Maybe we should say what
the issue of 5.4 covers. We're going to discuss
that topic, which is basically what you need, but
it doesn’'t say that.

MR. KILMER: In every case | meant to
include that it discussed 5.2 level of care.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Let's go on. We're
already 20 minutes into the meeting. Is it all
ready, Bill? | just read the questions into the
record and you can respond.

MR. COLLINS: You want to read all of
these questions?

MR. ROBEDEAU: One at a time.

What kind of system do you envision?
Can that be accomplished with the current system?
With multiple providers of any part of the
system?

MR. COLLINS: How do you want to do
this? A lot of this is in the plan. | can just
reiterate it. { mean —

MR. DRAKE: You can refer to the plan,
however you want to do it.

MR. COLLINS: The system that we're
recommending, which we think is supported by the
data analysis that was done and the conclusions

we reached, is a tiered system and a single fire
meoc‘!,:ge provider and a single contract ambulance
pr r.

The reason that basically we reached
and tried to answer the question that has been —
seems to be foremost in this process from as Iong
as | can remember, even when | worked up at OHSU,
is anything to support or not support a multiple
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Lord, Nodland, Studenmund

(503) 299-6200



9 provider system, a multiple ASA versus a single

1 And in meeting with people around -- we

12  had some groups that met to look at work load and
13 to look at cost and try to see how we should

14 approach that. And in reviewing that it was -

15 we chose the rmthodolog¥ of trying to put

16 together a model of a single and look and see
17  what the demand analysis would be for that, how
18  did that match with what we have now, look at the
19  cost as reported by the providers and see what

20 portions of those costs variabies according to

21 the model could be put up, and see if there was a
22 major reason financially to do it and to identify

23 any other reasons that anybody brought up.

24 And what we gathered and what we looked
25 atindicate there's probably a substantial

financial difference in runningoa single ASA
versus a multiple ASA. That doesn't really speak
to how many entities are involved in the ISA. but
right now in theory we operate sort of a three
AgA system, even though we have quite a bit of
crossover because of the response time
requirements of the county. But that's in
general.

What we're running is a three ASA
10 system, so we're looking at it to see what would
11 happen it we)ust kind of put it altogether.
12 That's kind of what the findings in the report
13  show.
14 | guess the second part of this, can
15 this be accomplished with the current system, I'm
16  not sure what that means. If the question we're
17  answering is should you have one ASA or more than
18 one ASA, and we're saying it looks like from our
19 data that you should only have one ASA, that sort
20 of precludes then can you accomplish it in
21  another way.
22 I'm not quite sure what you mean by
23 that. How many f')vovlders you have within the ASA
24  structure that's finally deveioped | think is
25 still open for people to discuss. It's a matter

5 2 3

1 of showing that that's not going to be
2 detrimental to however the system design is. So
3 there’s kind of two levels to that ASA.
4 | mean, in my mind an ASA is the area
5 served by the plan. If you're going to have two
6 of them then you draw a line and you have two of
7 them. if you have one of them you go out in the
8 count‘and have a single ASA.
9 MR. PHILLIPS: Under a tiered system,
10 how many ALS transporting units do you foresee
11 that we would need and how many BLS do you
12 foresee we would need?
13 MR. COLLINS: The numbers of units will
14 depend on the protocols that are described to say
15 who transports —~ we don't have any protocols to
16 the plan. This is a plan, not an implementation
17 document, and a medical director or medical input
18  would really have to be the determinant on how
19 many would be transporting. You can — there are
20 tiered systems.
21 For instance, when-| talked to the
22 people at King County — that’s not Seattle;
23 those two are different systems. They all call
24 them Medic 1, but those are two totally separate
25 systems. The King County side of it, the Medic 1

SR R iPage 175
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units transport about 16 percent of the
gpulation. Now, in Seattie they do more, but
attle couldn't tell me how many.
MR. KILMER: Their data is just as good

1
2
3
4
5 asours.
6 MR. PHILLIPS: Is this something we
7 would be willing to discuss? These are the kind
g ogirekcomndaﬂons that this board has to make, |
think.
10 MR. COLLINS: In order to determine how
11 many - | mean, you can look at the total demand.
12  The total demand isn’t going to change. Then you
13 have to decide on how you're going to split it up
14  and therefore how many units you would need.
15 King County and Seattle, if you put them
16 altogether, | think the last time | counted there
17  were ten Medic 1 units. There could be more.

R

They are a tax supported system and they

go before their county boards to get permission

1o put on or take off units, so they don’t

operate like we do here where the companies —
MR. LAUER: Do you know how many private

ALﬁ?ambulances they have on their system, as

we

MR. ROBEDEAU: Bill, | have an
observation. The plan that you've produced makes
financial assu ons which now, if | understand
what you're saying, is you really don't have any
basis for those financial assumptions because you
don’t know how many units you ’:‘eeg'olng to
require. I've seen savings ot so ing like
$3 million a year in the pian.
MR. C NS: We looked first at the
uestion, that is, of one ASA versus multiple
's. The assumptions | made — first of all,
the financial data they used for the financial
part of this was the data that | got from the
providers. There's no data in here that was
aJeeneuted by our office out of independent means.
said - the group that met said this
looks like what we ought to collect, and that's
what we collected. Then we just looked at, okay,
if you're having one instead of three, we looke
at demand analysis and the cost identified - I'd
have to look at the page that's that.
But there's paramedic salaries and
billing and collecting and all the different
categories, and we just looked at that just to
answer that one question. And | think, you know,

R SRR R U IR
we look at the data and you can decide
whether you like it or not, but | think it
answers that question.

The nu r of — the split of the
number of units you have is another aspect of
this that you'd have to do after you've decided
what the protocols are going to be. And we were
proposing a tiered system because we believe it
makes better use of the existing resources. it
gives a more stable long-range funding, and it
matches the resource requirements to the patient.

| mean, right now we send everybody the
same thing, you know. A twisted ankie gets
exactly the same response as a cardiac arrest.
Now, by the time you get there, then things
change. But they send ever¥'body, and the
assumption is evergvcall. with the exception of
the ones that are obviously triage, out in the
front. But we pretty much send everything to
every call. The idea is to try to, you know,
match up resources better than what we're doing

now.
MR. KILMER: 8ill, in the savings that

you are calculating then, what of those savings
come from reduction of three providers to one
provider, and what of those savings come from

ur assumptions about the changes that will
nfluence your system that will diminish the cost
of the private component of this because you're
better able to avoid sending everyone to
everything?

R. COLLINS: There's two - let me find
the right page. There’s kind of two categories
in that - if you'll look at that first. The
savings that are identified on the demand side

ing from our current deployment to a single

ployment are identified actually only as the
paramedic unit hour savings. | have to find the
rlght'fart of it here.

R SKEEN: While you're turning to
that, it seems like there’s another issue that
would come into this calculation individually.
That would be the assumption that you're still
working on, an independent 90 percent liability
response and -

MR. COLLINS: We are for part of it.

MR. SKEEN: That would be county wide as
Itis now?

MR. COLLINS: No. Actually the response
time, if you look in here, there are two
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different response times. The fire medic

response times are eight minutes. The contract

times are - what are they - ten, tweive
minutes

MR. SKEEN: So your system data is based
solely on the option one that you put forward?

MR. COLLINS: The system findings plan
is based on the one we're currently doing.

MR. LAUER: | was part of that gro:r and
n

| remember it pretty clearly. it had not
do with multiple providers.
MR. COLLINS: No, no, no.

g to

MR. LAUER: We didn’t ook at that at
all. How the fire medic system would play into

this was really not even on the table.

MR. SKEEN: So it was strictly an eight
minute, 90 percent response for the number of

units?

MR. LAUER: If you raised the ASA lines,
those boundaries, and you had a single provider,
couid you service that system with more or less
or the same amount of unit hours we currently
deploy? The difficulty that came into play was
an Arples and oranges co| rison because we were
looking at a 9-1-1 system; whereas with our

current system, it was impossible to break out

which of the currently deployed unit hours were
deployed only for 9-1-1 calls. So the data is
not going to be based on conclusions. It led to

some assumptions. That's about it.
MR. KILMER: Are you saying that

assumption was a dedicated system? You made your
analysis Iin the group based on a dedicated

system?
MR. LAUER: Yes, right.

MR. ROBEDEAU: That assumption did not
take geographic fix into consideration. The
assumption only took raw calls and raw unit

hours.
MR. DRAKE: That's right.

MR. LAUER: The program you then run —

MR. COLLINS: We sort of tried to

validate that to some extent at this point to
see. But when we looked at the demand, the

current demand, unit hour demand was

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think I'm going to
interject a little bit here. | think that comes
in later on, so why don’t we finish here and move
on, because | know question 22 is actually asking
for that starburst study that you had talked

about.

MR. COLLINS: Okay. What do you want me

to do? | mean —-

MR. ROBEDEAU: Do you want to take

question 22 now, take it out of order?

MR. COLLINS: No, no. Let's go down

your list.

MR. LAUER: Just with question one
though, is this a fair statement that the data
that you prepared looked at the existing systems
in terms of what kind of providers, looked at a

single private Srovider, idn't look ata
multiple provider within a single ASA?

ILMER: You're talking about his

plan?
MR. LAUER: Yes.
MR. COLLINS: Which part of it?

MR. LAUER: The option that you included

question that we were trying to look at at the
beginning of the process, so that would be fair

to say.

!XR KILMER: So the bottom line is you
did not study the relative cost of one ASA with
multiple groviders as opposed to one ASA with one
provider

MR. COLLINS: | don't know if that's
true. Let's go through the data and see if that
- because we looked at - we currently have a —
well, we have a multiple ASA with multiple
providers, so | don't know. You'd have to — we
did not - we didn’t create a model that was a
single ASA with multiple providers. | don't
think we did that.

MR. KILMER: So you didn't study whether
you could accomplish all of the purposes of a

coordinating the response in a single dispatch
system?

MR. COLLINS: Well, yeah, | think we did
to some extent. | mean, the demand analysis does
not — it's not going to identify what you need,
whether you need one or two or three or ten
providers. it's just looking at the number of
calis you have and the response time and trying
to make sure you met the geographic fix. And
then you apply a schedule to that, and that gives
you the number of unit hours you need. It
doesn't say who applies the unit hours.

MR. KILMER: Tght, right.

MR. COLLINS: The only other things we
looked at was some of the costs that had been
identified by the providers being more than one

ovider and looking - and making some very

oad assu ions, not detailed assumptions but
some general assumptions of the — of having more
than one organization versus less than one.

MR. KILMER: And where is that analysis?
Did you write that down or did you reflect it in

your report?

age.
MR. COLLINS: We just identified it in
the plan. When we get to that question I'll show
you. This is not a step by ~ we do not tryto
do a step by step of how many ple will you
actually need to do the billing, this sort of

thing.

?AR KILMER: Except for what's in the
plan, you have no other data identifying your
analysis of that point?

R. COLLINS: No.

MR. LAUER: In our analysis we did look
just at 8-1-1 calls and how many unit hours you
would need to deploy to that. | think t was a
very exercise as an exercise this county
would have to do to develop their system. The
status plan was done barorepvesentatives from ail
of the col nies who do that all of the time.

MR. COLLINS: Right.

MR. LAUER: And we concluded that that
system would need X" number of unit hours by
hours of the day, days of the week, etc., and |
personally think that data is valid. Iit's good
data, and we ought to keep that in mind.

MR. DRAKE: But that was just for 9-1-1
calls. It doesn't take into account those units

§ iPage 27 30

as your option number one as a tiered system was 1 are used for nonemergency and interfacility —
m‘yg the %ﬂata didn't take that into ys 2 MR. LAUER: Froma co rison
consideration? 3 standpoint, Mark, it may be a little bit vague,
COLLINS: No, no. 4  but you're just looking at this as a system we
MR. LAUER: Okay. 5 want or we wanted to study and how many unit
MR. COLLINS: The bulk of the data that 6 hou'rs you'd need to deploy to that system. And
was applied to this was to look at the current I4 u're not comparing it to what's out there now,
] T e ——— 8 | think if you're just comparing it to that
R Page 240 9 aspect | think that's a very good analysis.
system versus — the current three ASA versus the 10 MR. DOHERTY: Did | miss some meetings?
one ASA to see If there was any reason to move. 1 MR. LAUER: | don't know.
| mean, that was kind of the whole issue 12 MR. DOHERTY: Because | think we realize
that had been before us for years. People would 13 as we're going through that it is important to
say that there needs to be one ASA, and then 14  supply the data and then analyze what that was
you'd say why, and then they go, 'Wh‘ﬂ well, God ]g and what wi:' gteant. -nd' | dt:jn;:‘remmbe';h ang "
spoke to me,“ or whatever. will give an meeting re we analyzed the raphy data.
reason one way or the other. So that is Te Y 17 MR COLLINS: No. We didﬂsfe:'?ns back
age 21 to Page 27 Lord, Nodland, Studenmund (503) 299-6200
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—~ what | did was use the program we have, which
| can't give you a printout because we can't make
it print, to see if when we did the scheduling we
used your schedule and applied it and said,
"Okay, here is the units. ‘Il need to see if
those met the geographical requirements. lIs
there enough in there." And by just doing each
one of them on whatever the level was, whatever

the lowest level was, eight, nine, it covers the
county. It's kind of like our level eight.

think after doing this people wonder
why we're at level eight. That seems to be the
number with the county, also. Maybe that's why
it showed up back wherever.

MR. LAUER: We looked at the volume and
how many unit hours would need to be produced to
cover the volume.

MR. DRAKE: But, Randy, to sit down and
discuss and analyze that to see if it was
accurate, you're going to kind of be making an
assumption to say this is accurate. | don't
recall that we sat down and poured through the
data and said, "That is accurate and it does meet
the demand.” I've never done that.

MR. LAUER: We did, | think, agree this
would be a unit hour production plan we would put
into place if we were tasked with stacking that
kind of system. We also had a lot of discussion
centered around the fact of that as being the
start-up point, to get into any system would then
be further fine-tuned because you can't really
validate it until you try it.

2

eady had some fine-tuning and that we were

mparing, you know, the work load and the time
associated with the work load compared to other
systems that we learned about in school to try to
develop these plans.

And | don’t think that the Multnomah
County system and the time it takes to run a call
or the average time our units are on assignment
or the amount of time that they’re at the
hospital before they're availabie to run another
call and those type of thlnqs are comparable. |
think it's higher, and that kind of skews the
numbers.

So | thought as the work group was going
that that particular work group, the data from
it, you know, | figured we had another four or
five meetings to go before we were really able to
say how many units we needed in Multnomah County
by hour of day, day of week to start the plan, to
ensure we were going to be able to meet those
response times.

R. DRAKE: Randy, there were other
issues raised that we've never answered in that
process.

ur doln%was assuming that this was a system that
alr
co

>age 30:
MR. ROBEDEAU: What Mark and Barry are
saying is exactly what Dave Higginbotham told me.
I don't know if you know, but yesterday was
Dave's last day. He took a job with a service on
the coast.
But that's what he told me. He said
all of sudden this just stopped. He said we were
still scheduied for meetings, and all of a sudden
there were no more meetings, and here is data
coming out and no one was ready to make any
assumptions. Nobody knew what was happening,
that all of a sudden the process just ended for
no apparent reason.
R. LAUER: | think we arrived at that

kind of data —

MR. DOHERTY: Based on some assumptions
we did,and | -

MR. SKEEN: Without geographical
considerations.

MR. DOHERTY: One without geographical
considerations. And at least it's my opinion
that the numbers we were coming up with did not
take into recognition what the difference in
Multnomah County may be on an average length of
call versus other systems.

WONOUNHUWN = oo

ONOEWN =

R,

MR. DRAKE: And the third thing we
didn't take into consideration — my
understanding is we didn't take into
consideration the actual scheduling of the units.
Because it's one thing to say you could meet the
unit demand with X number of unit hours, but
men you have to plug it back into a schedule and

en —

MR. LAUER: We did that.

MR. COLLINS: We did not jook at
purported differences between length of time,
say, in this system and another system, because
we started off the process and we made the
assumption up front the calls for an hour. We
did that purposelz because there's no way to do
myou don't make some assumptions to start

Also, this is not intended to be the
actual deployment schedule to be used by any one
company. That was to look to see If the
magnitude of the differences was worth paying any
attention to or not. | mean, that was — it was
not to come up with, "Here is an implementation
system status plan, take this and plug it in and

go hire the people.

2 SR
RENR SRR
And | kind of reiterate what | wa
saying. The idea of this exercise was to look to
see if there was any basis to move ahead with
answering the question of one ASA versus multiple

s

Now we did have an issue that the only
way that - and correct me if I'm wrong, Randy —
the only way we felt we could deal with it was to
set it aside, does the current deployment
schedule include hours for non 9-1-1 service.
However, it does not include all the hours for
9-1-1 service. | mean, we could have done it if
we had 100 percent of it, but we didn’'t. We had
sort of an unknown amount. We knew the
deployment was greater than 9-1-1 calls but less
than all the calls.

So we made that assumption also at the
beginning that we would only look at 9-1-1. You
know, I'd certainly be the first to admit that
the unit hour savings are moving from a kind of
semi-dedicated, undedicated, semi - whatever you
wanted to call it ~ to a system looking at onl
9-1-1, because there was no way to look at the
other one.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Bill, did your analysis

S

ae"mlfy where any of the extra unit hours might

MR. COLLINS: No. If you look at the
unit hours, | mean, you can make — | guess you
could draw two assumptions from — since we're
into that, the number of hours that we identified
as being saved was 39,000 hours. So we went from
125;000 to 86,000. Some of those — in fact, |
can't even sa%whlch one it is, but some of those
are because there are three ambulance companies
and there are more hours deployed because of the
additional boundaries. And some of those are
because there are more hours deployed in order to
run the nonemergency calls.

Now, we don't — this did not — there
was no way to say how many fit into what. But
those two things would have to comprise the
difference because we're using the same 9-1-1
base, and | don't think — you know, | guess the
third thing is - well, no. That's before we did
the scheduling, so that that was the number, like
when you did the schedule that you worked off the
wrong number.
So it's those two things, unless I'm

missing something ss there's some other
feason yo savings.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Did you do anything in
your analysis to determine which onvider may be
provldln%too many hours and which providers —

MR. COLLINS: No.

MR. ROBEDEAU: In other words, which
provider was efficient and which -

MR. LAUER: That was impossible to do,

(503) 299-6200

Lord, Nodland, Studenmund

Page 27 to Page 34



Pete. | think for the sake of comparing the
current system as opposed to the 9-1-1 system, we
can't do that with the current data we have. The
rolm | was moving to, | think it would be very
nteresting and very revealing if we looked at
the initial system status plan. The unit hour
deployment that we arrived at from the 9-1-1 only
system has X" number of hours in it, compare the
provider options, whether you have a single
ovider versus a tiered system, and how many

ours would be necessary in each of those systems
to match the system status plan. That would be a
very interesting exercise.

MR. SKEEN: Essentially you're coming up

with three different system status plans. One is
for time critical transports, the fire medic
units. The other is for secondary stretcher
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carriers, and the third one is for the
nonemergency market that appears to have been
totally segmented in this process.
R. PHILLIPS: Didn't they decide not to

make that — it's not in the plan, the
nontransfers and the —

MR. SKEEN: Well, it’s not in the plan.

MR. PHILLIPS: It's a factor for you.

MR. SKEEN: it's a factor for the

blic.

MR. LAUER: When you loock at the overall
cost, you've to factor that in.

R SKEEN: Somebody has to be
responsible for that, the whole issue with
mnna%:d care. It'sd::st the oproslte.

MR. DRAKE: | think there is one other
issue here, too. You mentioned two conditions.
There's more hours for additional boundaries,
more hours for additional calls that aren’t in
the system. There's also more hours that we have
to put on the street to meet the levels required
by the county, s0 we can’t pull our units out to
run code one calls —

MR. SKEEN: Under the option one you're
talking about?

3 R A «
MR. DRAKE: Right. Well, under his
supervising we're doing an apples to orange
comparison when you try and take the current
:ystem and try and fit it into this narrow scope

ere.

MR. SKEEN: What's the third one here?

MR. DRAKE: We have to put on more
additional street hours because of the levels
required within the county.

MR. ROBEDEAU: The county ordinance, you
had to have the 50 percent rule which required
two ambulances for every one needed. The county
did away with that but kept an eight —

MR. COLLINS: You're right. There is
some because the current system artificially
stops at eight, and so even though the demand and
me scheduling could be at seven or six, aithough

at —

MR. KILMER: That would be provider
number neutral, regardiess of the number of
providers, if you had to keep that number in the

system.
MR. DRAKE: Rl?ht. But Jeff, the point
is, when we make this assumption for that

exercise to draft up the number of units you'd

need for just 9-1-1 calls, we didn't base it on
any minimum number of units or any of that stuff.
Of course, any additional calls — and if you
wanted to look at a true cost co rison to say
you as the provider now take all the provider's
unit hours, and say if you were a provider you
had to run all your calls under a single how
many unit hours would you put on the street,
that's your difference between three providers
*ndoR ?:35 "V cati
: You're saying complications

in scheduling? ying comel

MR. DRAKE: Right. No. | mean, if you
want to just do that, if you wanted to make an
apples and ou‘gnes co rison between two
providers and three providers and -

MR. KILMER: didn’t do that.

S

MR. ROBEDEAU: Under your system we can
run out of ambulances, and that's the way most
single provider systems I've seen — the longer
they're out of ambulances and have nobody to
respond more efficiently to the system, that's
what we go for.

MR. SKEEN: You're tatking about the —

MR. ROBEDEAU: Yeah.

KILMER: Which has medical
consequences. | wish there was a medical person
here to address this.

MR. ROBEDEAU: With the comparison we
have here that Mark is getting at, he's
absolutely right, and | complelely missed it.
This system by ordinance has built-in
deficiencies | guess that are beyond the control
of the provider. And what Mark | think is
getting at - and it's a point — is how
many of the 39,000 unit hours that you're talking
about are mandated by county law.

MR. DRAKE: Of the current —

MR. ROBEDEAU: Yes. The 39,000 unit
hours that are excess within the system at the
current time —

MR. COLLINS: it's probably very few,
but | don’t really have a number because the
geographic fix s going to come into play when
you get down to minimum units.

MR. DRAKE: To a certain degree.

MR. COLLINS: { don't want people to
raise their hands and agree. if you were to pick
eight and s:g that level eight actually

e geographic minimum, that you just
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can't get to the rest of the county - | mean, if
that's what it is, then anything below an eight,
even though that's a unit, potential unit hour
savings, you're not going to realize it because
you can't actually get there, ‘nu know.
Because we showed - | think at one part

in here on the demand study there's some days
where the demand is like three hours. It's real
low. But you can't get down that demand because
that would leave two-thirds of the county totally
uncovered.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Well, then the other
thing that's not taken into consideration here,
Bill, is a iot of unit hours that are on the
street also depend on what the deployment pattern
is. If you're using a 24-hour car where you take
time to get out of your quarters and into your
car and you're going with an eight minute
response, you need actually more unit hours even
though the cost of those unit hours is cheaper
than if you were using a twelve-hour or
eight-hour car sitting on the street corner.

MR. COLLINS: That's true.

MR. ROBEDEAU: But unit hours are more

expensive.

age 40

MR. COLLINS: Actually, the schedule we
used since it was the only one that was offered
"ﬁ' Barry, | think it did hold on a twelve hour
shift basis.

MR. DOHERTY: There were some 15,

MR. COLLINS: There were a few that were
a little bit longer, but there were no 24's.

MR. LAUER: We said for this exercise we
did set 2a maximum shift length of 15 hours.

MR. COLLINS: Something like that. The
idea was to try to use 12 as kind of the rule of
thumb, and then when Barry did it there were some
times when we bumped it up to 13 and 14 hour
shifts. But that's it. There's no 24's. We
didn’t look at that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: See, Bill, what I'm
g‘enlng at with that, you have done all 12 hours

ere. We currently run two 24 cars in unit
hours, but they come up double. What you've got
gpu know, the system has historically done
s. | think most everybody but us has done

away with 24's. The reason | stay with two 24's
is because of the way the ASA is, but it also
skews the picture.

f you had to go to a singie ASA and had
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to do with those 24's, you would have to
eliminate some of the unit hours. But you're

%
1
2
3 ing to more unit hours in, especially at
4 e northp:rzd. The north end is very difficult
5 tochange, and going to a single rrovider Is not
6 glng to change the geographic layout of North
7 rtland. Risn't gom to change.
8 MR. COLLINS: en we put together the
9 demand model we essentially did what you're
10 saying. Because the current unit hours are just
11 whatever was on the schedules, 24, 12, 8,
12 whatever anybody had. And the model went to the
13  single ASA basically on a 12 hour schedule model.
14 So it showed - | mean, that difference is in
15 there, whatever it is, both coming off on one
16  side and adding it on the other.
17 But we didn't — you know, there was no
18 way to go through and say each one of these
19 pieces, what happened to them.
20 MR. KILMER: Can | ask whether, aside
21  from what you gave us at the last meeting there,
22 there are any other notes of the work group
23  meetings that Randy and Barry and Mark are
24 talking about, an analysis of that data that you
25 used to finally arrive at the model that you r:st

1 yo

2 MR. COLLINS: Oh, there's no other

3 analysis. | guess there’s the sheets, the

4 individual company’s data that we put together
5 like we did with the cost, although the cost

6 stuff people asked not to see it. | don't know

g if anybody asked that on the other, because this
9

was really —-
-2 MR. KILMER: Did you provide that with
the —~
11 MR. COLLINS: That's notin here. |can
12 give you those sheets.
13 MR. KILMER: | wish you'd make a note to

14 t that. The other part then is, did you take
15 that and play games with various -

16 MR. COLLINS: No. | just put it
17  together.
18 MR. KILMER: But you have raw notes of

19  the various options you considered before putting
20 the one in that you elected?

21 MR. COLLINS: No, no. This was not an

22 option process. This was — you just collect up

23  the number of calls and then you go through —

24 there's different statistical inferences on each

25 one of these, and we actually did — which it

SRS

1 states in the plan — we actually did two things.

2 We used the current ambulance system status

3 planning methodology, and then at one of the

4 meetings — when was that somebody said — that

5 was Praggastis who brought up that this didn't

6 really meet the percentile analysis, so we did

7  the same thing which was also on here.

8 So there really isn't — this wasn’t

9 like a whole bunch of different guys put this

10  together. You just sort of added them up,

11 applied the statistics and printed them out, and

12 then it gives a certain number of units required

13 per hour, per day of the week.

14 And then one of the members of the group

15  said he would take a shot at doing a 12 hour

16 schedule, so he did a 12 hour schedule, and we

17 put that in, and that identified what the total

18 numberis.

;g : MR. DRAKE: But that was for 9-1-1 calls
only.

21 MR. COLLINS: Hopefully | was clear in

22 the plan. We made no attempt in here to try to

23  figure out the non 9-1-1 part of this because we

24  could not take the current amount and do it

25 because we didn’t have all the calls, plus the
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9-1-1 calls are seen — though | understand, you
know, your comments about the larger health care
system, this plan is what to do with the
emergency calls. This plan is not what to do
with the private business and nonemergency calls.

MR. KILMER: Here is the probiem [ have
with the methodology you've |ust adopted. Number
one, you have in your plan at least made it

NN DWN -

R

appear that every ounce of the savings that you
would get would come from the reduction o
providers. The distinction between reduction of
providers and reduction of ASA’s is not clear in

that re#'on

e second is that you have not
identified or apparently made any effort to
Identify what really are the differences between
reduction of providers and reduction of ASA’s so
that you can dispatch as a single system.

But the third is a large amount of this
cost reduction really results from a cost shift
from the emergency side to the nonemergency side.
What you have ignored is that you are going to
administer the cost of the emergency component,
because many cost shifts are going to occur away
from emergency and toward private that are going

o a .-
to require an increase in the rates for e %ee
calis only because these units are going to
used less often to generate revenue.

And so !our methodology ignores the
efficiency and the cost benefit on the emergency
side. You have assumed that that cost will
remain the same and will only be deducted from
the changes that you're proposing and, in fact,
that doesn't work. You're going to increase the
cost of the system if you have a dedicated
system. And Pete tells me there are studies on
this, and I'm wondering whether you considered
that in your cost savings analysis because that's
a provider number neutral.

MR. COLLINS: | hear what you're saying
because of the difference of the number of units.
That's one of the parts that we have rroblems
with about the nonemergency part of it. If the
current plan — if the current deployment plans
were in place based on the 9-1-1 business and any
other business that was run was sort of using
excess availability and you could really - you
feit that was sound, then | might be able to, you
know, might follow what you're saying.

But that doesn’t seem to be the case

SRS 22 AR T SN Y,
when you look at the difference in the number of
hours. There’s no hours on the street. They're
all there for 9-1-1. If they are, then the
utilization is very, very low,

. LAUER: We didn't take it to the

end. What we did — and Mark, you can relate to
this because you developed the number of system
status plans in questions for proposals.
You're given a geographic area,
number of calls identified by day of the week and
hour of the day, how many unit hours would you
have to pay to deploy, what would your staffing
schedule be. And that's information that you use
to arrive at what it's going to cost you to
service that system. That's what we did using
Muitnomah County as a whole.

9-1-1 calis were the base of those
calls. If you wanted to make an accurate
comparison you would do the same thing taking the
three existing ASA's and doing that same exercise
for each of those three ASA's, adding all those
hours together, and compare it to the single ASA
onm:lel. didn’t want do that because we ran out

me.

S

third ana{gl n you do what Bill
wants to do, which is to reduce the whole number
of units in the system and maintain muitiple
providers of the optimum number of units?

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think the other thing
that should be put in here is - my %uestion,
Bill, is: Did you do any analysis to find out
from the providers how many non 9-1-1 calls each
ALS unit does a month or week?

MR. DOHERTY: We provided that
information and that was — I'm sorry to
interrupt you, Pete, but | want to know the
difference between that data and the savings in
unit hours. s it a similar rercentage?

MR. COLLINS: No. if you remember the
beginning of this when we first laid out the unit
hours, we had that included — we were trying to

(503) 299-6200

Lord, Nodland, Studenmund

Page 4110 Page 47



look at BOEC data, total provider data, and we
decided we couldn’t make that analysis, that that
was not %oir;?Eto work.

MR. DOHERTY: Well, that's given what
our ﬁo}ect was.

R. COLLINS: Right. So all we did is

what — all that this represents is exactly what
Randy said. This would be like if you were ~

R ~: 2 SAODEREER T A SRR ot~ el
you know, if we were a group and some of us were
3joing to bid on a proposal and somebody said

ere are 39,000 9-1-1 calls and here's the
geography and we got as far as we could without
actually putting the plan on the street. | mean,
the next piece of this — if this was, you know,
compieted this would be to put this on the street
and fine-tune where the units are and maybe move
some hours around, because we can’t go that far.
| mean, we can't actually deploy it.

MR. DOHERTY: We could have done the
?eo'graphy distribution. But what I'm wondering
s: Is that information in the data the total
number of calls that the ALS units ran compared
to the 9-1-1 calls?

MR. COLLINS: That's in the first set of
data that we used that we decided notto —- |
think those numbers are around there. | could -
I'd have to go back and see if | still have that.
We decided we weren't going to use them.

MR. DOHERTY: For that first part of
what we were working on, if we were going to then
take the information and compare it to the next
step, then it would be important to do that.
That was my assumption all along, that we weren't

oo age 49
going to use those calls in that process because
we were‘::t starting. That was like the first
phase. |-

MR. COLLINS: | didn't know we were
going to do any other phase. The idea was just
to see what would it take to run a single 9-1-1
system.

MR. DOHERTY: If we were %oing to take a
look at if you would do a single ASA with
multiple rroviders providing service, and | think
you would have to do the next ster.

MR. THOMAS: Could | ask Bill a number
of questions?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Dave has some.

MR. PHILLIPS: Did your analysis tell
you the maximum amount of ambulances you would
need, transporting ambulances?

MR. COLLINS: Yes.

MR. PHILLIPS: Do you know what that
number was?

MR. COLLINS: | have to go through and
see which day is which.

MR. LAUER: We gotup to 13 or 14,
didn’t we?

MR. DRAKE: | think 14 was the maximum.

MR. COLLINS: There's a 15.

MR. DRAKE: Based on that, there's
another - there's a couple of hours that have
15. I'd have to look at the schedule. If you ~
H‘you just dro those off - 9, 10, 11, 12 —

14, 15, 16 — 16 ambulances at one point.

MR. PHILLIPS: So to determine how many
ALS and how many secondary BLS transports with
the one paramedic under your system, you would
need — you would have to decide how many of
those calls were true ALS and how many were BLS
and how many hours you would have to add to be
able to adequately staff so that you could have
16 ambulances. 12 or 10 would be ALS or 6
would be BLS, run ALS for BLS transport.

MR. LAUER: My point was: If you were
to do a tiered system to do that 16 ambulances at
that particular time of day, if you had private
ambulances, ar?;mem is you're Vlng to need a
lot more than 16 units on the street. You're
going to probably need 30 units.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Not necessarllr. i think
the problem — | want to get my question
answered. | guess you've got 39,000 hours. If |
remember reading it right, that's about a 50
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s there anything — you dropped it from 120 to

80 something?

MR. COLLINS: From 125 to B6.

MR. ROBEDEAU: You dropped it a lot.
Was there anything ever done —

MR. KILMER: One-third.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Was there anything ever
done to try and figure out if that’s really an
accurate number, or are those 39,000 hours being
taken up with private nonemergency business, or
are those 39,000 hours being used because o
mandated inefficiencies in the system? Why are
those 39,000 hours there? When you have that big

ofa discreﬁncx‘—

See, Bill, that to me clues off that
something is drastically wrong, either with the
data or with something eise. And | think | -
see, the assumption here says, well, then it’s
the providers that are drastically wrong and
that's all | wanted to know.

Was there ever any follow-up to try and
ﬁggre out exactly where that 39, hours came
up

MR. COLLINS: First of all, 1 don't

SRR R
think it implies there's anything wrong.
Just if you look at the current staffing, the
current number of unit hours — we just talked
about this. | mean, some of it's due to having
three ASA sets of lines. Some of it is due to
the running of nonemergency calls. | don't know
what the difference is, but you —

MR. ROBEDEAU: There's where | am. How

man‘—
R. DRAKE: We never did that.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Why?
MR. COLLINS: Because we don't know.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Why don't we do that?
MR. KILMER: You could have found that
out, though.
h MR. COLLINS: | don't think we could
ave.
MR. LAUER: We decided not to take it
that much farther, Bill.

Your argument, Pete, if | can try to
paraphrase, is that the current system cannot be
co| red to what the proposed system would be.

R. DRAKE: Right.
MR. LAUER: Yes, that's true.
MR. ROBEDEAU: In either a tiered

s

response system or a single bid system, this

system can't be compared to that, | don't think,
because of the way everything is changing. You
know, one time in a system — | don't know if we
were hammered for all these unit hours, but we
were rec‘ulred by law to have two cars on for
every call we ran.

And then we were hammered on the unit
hours, and | kind of see the same thing coming up
here. t's the same type of a deal where we are
required to make response times now that — I'm
not sure if they're still required within the
system or required in this. That we don't know.

There's nothing — | know how many
calls, non 9-1-1, calls AA's ALS unit runs.

Some of them run none, some of them run very few.
The difference in unit hours that are required fo
staff AA's ASA as a dedicated 9-1-1 system and
the difference in the number of unit hours

required to staff AA’s district as it currently

I& lTn: virtually zero. Now that's my experience,

MR. COLLINS: But you cannot — you
really can’t compare — | mean, we're not trying
- this is not trying to compare the detalis of

S age 54
the current system based on — put it this way —

MR. ROByESDEAU: | only have information
on a third of the system.

MR. COLLINS: We do not dictate to an
of the companies how they should deploy their
ambulances. We only require that if you run the
calls you — in fact, we don't even require - if
you look at the ordinance there's no requirement
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9 that any one of the ambulance companies run any
10 calis, onlg'that calls run in your area you're

11 responsibie for, and you have to meet the eight
12  minutes 90 percent of the time.

13 MR. ROBEDEAU: Butthereis a

14 requirement that you can't take a unit out —

15 MR. COLLINS: We have an overall level

16 eight requirement, and we've already talked about
17  that. | agree that at times it may be greater,

18  but it may also meet the requirement for the

19 geographical distances that have to be covered in
20 eight minutes.

21 But | think you're trying to read more

22 into this than is here. The idea was to look at

23 what would a model of a single ASA 9-1-1 look

24  like, period, and so we did that. Now —
MR. LAUER: But you can't then say
e 00000 R
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1 because we deploy more hours than that, now this

2 is more efficient. That wasn't the conclusion.

3 MR. DRAKE: Right.

4 MR. COLLINS: The only thing you can

g conclude - and | think you can conclude this.
7
8
9

if 'm trying to put together a 9-1-1 response
system, you do not need 125,000 hours on the
street to run the calis that are available in the
9-1-1 system now. You don’t need them. You may
10 need them for something else or you might not
11 need them at all or just some portion of i, but
12 you don't need them for 9-1-1.
13 MR. KILMER: Don’t you now then have to
14  look at the cost implications for dedicating them
15 exclusively for 8-1-17 The ones that are left
16 are a:ln%to cost you more money.
R. COLLINS: That's something we need
18  tolook at.
19 MR. KILMER: So a study wouldn't be
20 required to look at that to say there would be
21  savings to the system from doing what you're
22 talking about?
23 MR. COLLINS: The savings were showing
24  for the unit hours deployment - | mean, that's
25 what you'd save, or something very close to it.

1 MR. ROBEDEAU: My question, Bill, still
2 comes back to: With that number of hours, a
3 third, was there anything done to double-check it
4 to make sure that number was right? Because |
5 g:lte frankly think something has gone
6 sperately wrong, and | don't believe that
7 number is right, unless my understanding of what
8 the other two providers are doing is ~
9 MR. COLLINS: If everybody —
10 MR. SKEEN: [t sounds to me like you're
11 ail saying basically the same thing. This is the
12 number of hours that would be required to run a
13 single ASA, to run 9-1-1 calls on it, and you did
14  areduction of force over what is being used
15  currently.
16 MR. ROBEDEAU: That's not what I'm
17  saying. I'm saying the number, the 39,000 hour
18 reduction, it's my understanding that if what the
19  other two providers are doing is the same it's
20 very, very wrong. But when you take from what |
21 have firsthand knowledge of — and | know that
22 there's virtually no unit hours that that request
23  be eliminated within A A.'s ASA, so that takes
24 anddu virtuaily that whole 39,000 hours on to
25 Buck and CARE.

g’ AR 2R ARSI NI ':,aaeszﬁ?ﬁi\\\‘i
1 Are Buck and CARE so inefficient that

2 they're wasting 39,000 unit hours? | don't think

3 so. Buck's system says they're not inefficient,

4 so then it's all on CARE.

5

6

7

8

9

MR. COLLINS: This is not a comparison
between ambulance companies. We took all the
der?an'd, put it into one pool and did a demand
analysis.

R. ROBEDEAU: ! understand that. |
10 want to explain to you where I'm coming from.

11 MR. COLLINS: That's what you did when
12 you went to bid for it.

13 MR. THOMAS: Let me make sure |

14  understand.

15 MR. KILMER: We're covering a lot of

16 assumptions in here,

17 MR. THOMAS: The 39,000 hours, whether

it's right or wrong, the assumption that it
relies on those units are going to carry any BLS
calls, so something is going to have to carry the
calls. So some study will be done to determine
whether there's more BLS calls and what the cost
of that wouid be.

| think it is true, Biil, it sounds like

you're saying by going to this you're going to
B i Page 58330
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save 39,000 hours in the total system, and |
understand you're saying that's not what you're

saying.

%ou're saying some of the hours may be
transferred and have to go on the BLS side. We
don’t know how many those are. We don't know
what the cost is associated with that, etc.,
etc., because you haven't looked at that. Am |
right so far?

MR. COLLINS: Yes, that's true.
MR. THOMAS: Then in terms of your
option one, | want to make sure you don't deal
anything in there with tiered response, and what
portion of the 39,000 hours or whatever the
number is would be credited or picked up through
the fire bureau having part of the tiered
response and handling that stuff. We don't know
how much.
2 MR. COLLINS: How much would be picked
up
. M?R. THOMAS: How many would be picked up
ere
MR. COLLINS: You really have to do the
protocols ::ofﬁure out what that is.
AS: And you don't figure out

minute res&nse time.

MR. COLLINS: Say that again.

MR. THOMAS: Presumably on the other
side that lets them have less numbers of units
out there, $0 you're reducing numbers of units
and how that relates.

MR. COLLINS: No.

MR. KILMER: And there's nothing in
there that doesn’t equate to your option one.

You shifted the manning of the ambulances that
aren’t handling the fire bureau calls. Obviously
there’s some savings there, and that changes the
multiplier, | surpose, that you would multiply —

MR. COLLINS: Say that again, Chris.

MR. THOMAS: Well, if you change - |
think you've recommended not changing the manning
of the ambulances that are not carrying the time
critical calls.

MR. COLLINS: Of the staffing?

MR. THOMAS: Rl?ht. That's the word I'm
searching for. | don'tjike to use “manning.”

Staffing is better.

if you change that, that changes the
T ;Page 6051
cost per unit hour d that
would be a lower cost per unit hour. What I'm
trying to get at is the 39,000 hours and the
savings associated with that doesn't equate
reallaat all with your option one.

R. COLLINS: The savings, the unit hour
savings, of that exercise was done to look at a
change from — look at what the effect would be
of going from three ASA’s to one ASA and look to
see if that's it for rurposes of — is that a big
number or a small number.

MR. SKEEN: Well, it wasn't only from
three to one. It was from segmemln? it

MR. COLLINS: Actually, originally that
was not what we tried to do.

MR. THOMAS: What I'm thinking about is
the issue that — maybe it's not obviously in
your option one of one provider for the private
side or two providers or three providers or
however many for the private side.

And at least as | understand the

discussion so far, the analysis that you came up
with, the 39,000 hours and the dollars associated
with that really doesn’t bear much, if any,
relevance to the decision in your option one as
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to how many pr
side. |s that -

MR. COLLINS: Well, yes and no. The
number of providers on the private side, the
rrlvate side in that option, is more tied to what

ooked like duplicated costs. The unit hours —
| mean, in theory we could put in a 9-1-1 single
ASA and buy unit hours,

| mean, that's what the PUC models do.
We could just buy them from the ambulance
companies. They'd give us the cost and we'd buy
them and run the system.

MR. SKEEN: Same day delivery?

MR. COLLINS: Close to same day. You
could look at it in that — like that nu r of
hours doesn’t presuppose one provider, two

oviders, three providers, four providers. it
ust presupposes a single ASA sxstem operated as
a single system status plan. So it does not
divide it up.

MR. DRAKE: That's the problem.

MR. THOMAS: Let me put it to you this
wa?n If you say ~— if somebody said to you,

Bill, you've done this thing that shows 39,000
hours going through this process and this amount
R age 62
of dollars associated with that. Does that mean
if we have one tgrc.wlder rather than two, in your
option one on the private side, we're going to
save that amount of money from that change? Your
answer to that, | assume, is no, it doesn't mean
that at all?

MR. COLLINS: | would assume if we were
to put the whole system out to bid that we would
come somewhere close to this demand. f we
didn’t, then | would -- then the data we've
received from peo&le has been wrong.

MR. DRAKE: Maybe you're making an
assumrtion. and ¥ou re trying to go — as an
example, there's 18 ALS units now within three
providers on the street. And for your system
you'd have nine ALS units. The problem is you're
taking the current system and saying we're going
to respond just to 9-1-1 calls. You'd reduce the
number of units. The question you need to ask
them, to go back to providers and saY, i you as
a provider responded to just 9-1-1 calls, how
many unit hours would you have in your district,”
and then take that number of unit hours.

And then say, "If you had a single
system, how many total units would you need on

SRS ;rage
the street responding to just 9-1-1 calls?”
other words, compare 9-1-1 calls to 9-1-1 calls.

That would then tell you how many unit hours you
could go from these providers to a single

provider, and that hasn't been done here.

MR. COLLINS: Although, you know, when
we were discussing that that was — basicaily the
provider said they couldn't do that.

MR. DRAKE: We can do that. That wasn't
the question that was asked.

MR. COLLINS: We did ask about can you
separate the 9-1-1 response from the rest of your
g‘eployments, and he said, "Well, we can't do

at.”

MR. DOHERTY: We were talking under the
current system.

MR. DRAKE: Right. Yeah, you can do
that. If you asked me to do that we could sit
down and say how many units we need to provide to
just 9-1-1 calls. The answer that you 1
think at ieast from the conveyer ambulance is
that, but that doesn't make any sense because
that's not what our units do. That's not what
our units would do under a singte provider
system. They would respond to 9-1-1 calls,

R Page |
nonemergency and interfacility transport, because
that's the most efficient use of that unit.

MR. LAUER: If we had been asked would
ﬂsubmlt a system status plan that responded to

single system we could have done that, and we
deci not to do that because there was — for a
variety of reasons.

MR. KILMER: And if asked, you could

| mean, we cou

have said, "For us to continue to respond to the
same value of private calls we would have to make
these adjustments, and those adjustments would
cost this amount of money. So it would be
possible to compare between a dedicated 9-1-1
component to your company and a 9-1-1 component
of your company to continue to deliver emergency,
nonemergency, interfacility transports, which is
the real system that everybody ought to be
concerned about.
And that probably would have led Bill to

the determination that the 9-1-1 system you're
talking about would have increased in price and
that the other side would have increased in
price. Now you're shaking your head.

MR. COLLINS: | don’t think so.

MR. KILMER: But you haven’'t done any

ey age 6

eems to me it's important.

MR. COLLINS: We haven't looked to see
if that's it.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Hf| can interject
something. I've a feeling that a lot of
those hours are Clackamas County hours. That's
mst my opinion off the top of my head, that

ere's -

MR. COLLINS: I'd be happy to give you
— you've got the data. You can do your own
system status ?lan. I'm not ‘going to do another
one. The data | got is from the companies, and
if you gave me the wrong data that's your
problem. You've given me data that is not
correct.

MR. DRAKE: Bill, what table one says is
the current system of 125,684 unit hours is our
unit hours of our units responding to 9-1-1
calls, nonemergency and interfacility transport,
and then proposed 86,476 as those unit hours
dedicated to just 9-1-1.

MR. COLLINS: That's correct.

MR. DRAKE: So you're comparing apples
to oranges. What you need —
MR. COLLINS: We said that

R

MR. THOMAS: He's agreed with that.

MR. DRAKE: So you can't say the unit
hour savings and then — okay, okay.

MR. THOMAS: | think the probiem and
part of the reason for these questions, | wanted
to say what | said before, is that the impression
- and maybe I'm wrong, but | think the
impression people would get from reading this —
| don't think they would understand what Mark
just sald.

| think what they think all this says is
it's 39,000 hours inefficient. And | think it
would be important for people to understand that
that's not from you, that that's not what you're
saying here, that you really haven't addressed
the issue of the interhospital transfers and the
BLS calls of these units.

What I'm saying is: | don't think
that's, to most peopie reading this, that that's
apparent, because | actually didn’t understand
that, and at least | know something about this

stuff.

MR. COLLINS: We're not proposing in
this pian what is in effect in, you know, some
communities, which is a top to bottom franchise.

HiPage 67
say, okay, we want a franchise.

Nobody can operate an ambulance unless you're
part of the franchise. We've separated out the
nonemergency care, and | think that's the
appropriate way to go. | don't think you should
try to franchise that. That's another piece of
business that, for the most pant, is co titive.
The 9-1-1 stuff is not competitive by definition.

MR. THOMAS: | want to be sure you hear
what I'm uying.

MR KILMER: The issue is when you have
a dedicated system, Bill, where the emergency
provider of services is precluded from using
those ambulances to also compete in the private
market as opposed to being able to compete in the
market that you're not regulating in order, if
possible, to reduce costs.
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My understandin%_is that most dedicated
— most single provider 9-1-1 systems allow their

providers to also deliver nonemergency care and
do that with their emergency units.

MR. COLLINS: Most do.

MR. DRAKE: Which ones don't?

MR. ROBEDEAU: As a practical matter,
Bill, the fact that you're leaving really

S
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anything without 9-1-1 for private business is
just not there, especially with what's oomlna
down the pike, and everyone knows that HMO'’s are
e e s0ing to be — It's going 1o tak
's going to be — it's goin: e
10 years g: everybody to quc::ldge that's nota
od idea before we Fo back to doing other
ings. As a practical matter, an HMO gives to
the provider who is going to give them a cut in
his business. it's just the wayitis. So when
everyone is on HMO it will be only the emergency
oviders who will be able to do nonemergency
siness. That's just the way itis.

MR. DOHERTY: That's a change in the
syndication laws which is going to affect the
cost of doing the transfers and the level of
personnel that you'll need to do the transfers.

MR. THOMAS: Don't we move on there?
br l':R. ROBEDEAU: Let's take a five-minute

eak.

MR. DRAKE: | think there's one more
comment that needs to be made here. To me it's
obvious we haven't finished what we started out
to do with that committee on studying the unit
hours. That's never been done by the discussion

CRRPARREEE 9 St

today. We need to complete ca
several other things we need to look at.
One of them is can we get more
efficiencies out of response time zones. We
started to talk about that and never completed
that discussion.
h MR. SKEEN: There's so many components
ere.
MR. LAUER: I could take two years.
MR. DRAKE: If you had a response time
of 20 minutes on the other side of 220th going
east and Sauvie Island was a 25 minutes response
time zone, how would that affect your response
time coverage?
| know you could figure that out, Randy.
MR. LAUER: But you'd be doing so many
different analzses that are still theoretical
until you t:(yt em.
RS
closer.
(Discussion off the record.)
MR. KILMER: Let's stay on the record.
There is still some conversation going on.
MR. ROBEDEAU: We never — | won't say
never. There have been a couple of accidents

EEN: |think you could get

2 SRR 2
where we had a car on Sauvie Island and - you
know, you do one call a month and it's a — every
o':\e of them is over eight minutes. | believe
that.

Let's take a five-minute break.
Recess taken.)

MR. ROBEDEAU: | would state staying on
the unit hours and the number of hours there are
double cost savings associated with that. One
was the cost of the paramedics and the other was
the cost of administration. And as long as we're
here, why don't we go ahead and cover that?
There's a couple of questions on those in here.
Skip down to number seven.

MR. DRAKE: Number seven?

MR. COLLINS: Let me find that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Then you go to number
nine. Seven and nine are both cost, and then |
think we can just go through real fast.

MR. D E: It's quarter to 11:00 now.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | know. I'm looking at
my watch now. | think a lot of them have aiready
been covered.

The supposed cost savings are
elimination of providers and the elimination of

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
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then 16 has to do with, you know, did he do an

S N age 7188
supposedly duplicated administrators are
addressed all the way down to 16. This whole
uence of question deals with various aspects
of the statements in the plan about how a
reduction from three providers to one could
theoretically save from one-half to two-thirds of
the administrative costs that he took from the
provider plan.
MR. LAUER: So you're saying we've
alreadxdlscussed through number 167
MR. KILMER: No. That is what ought to
be discussed in this component. What Bill said
earlier, he believes his data with respect to
reduction of ASA’s from three to one involves
some cost shift to private. it involves some
efficiency bY reduction in the number of crews
and things like that, and to some extent there
would be a savings by the elimination of three
providers and having one provider do it.

He has not quantified any of those
differences. And what! thou? t Pete's question
was going to be now is what information, if any,
do you have on the administrative cost savings
components of this in the plan that's broken gown
to dispatch savings, which is sort of a separate

233

issue,
And then there is also his discussion on
gages 17, 16 and 17, regarding duplicated costs.
hat's 3.4.2 of his comments plannln%re rt
which says that there would be up to $1,525,(0
in administrative and overhead savings.
MR. LAUER: |don't know if we're ever
going to auanti that.
MR. KILMER: | think it ought to be
nned down, though, to the extent of what Mr.
ollins relied upon to arrive at that number.
Tg:t's what | thought Pete was going to ask
about.
And then there's an additional
indication in here of 594,000, almost $600,000,
in private control centers to emergency calls he
feels is inappropriately applied and is now an
additional savings.
MR. PHILLIPS: You're on 17?7 Well, 13
deals with the management costs which might be
available from the proposed changes. And 14
deals with the assumption that there are
economics of scale, and 15 deals with how would
xou define administrative and overhead costs as
e uses them in his analysis on page 17. And

Page

analysis of the likelihood these savings that he
hypothysizes might be there would really be
realized.

MR. COLLINS: Which one do you want to
¢s’:(a’_r’t with? Should | just go through what we

MR. ROBEDEAU: Yes, that's fine,

MR. COLLINS: So we're done talking
about the demand summary for right now?

MR. DRAKE: | thought number six, basis
for determining savings —

MR. ROBEDEAU: Maybe we should just
start with two, and should we just read them into
the record and go straight through, Bill?

MR. COLLINS: Two has to do with number
of paramedics. It has nothing to do with costs.
Analyzing, let's start with six. | don't care,
whoever wants to do that.

MR. ROBEDEALU: | can go. "Basis for
determining savings alieged to be made from
reduction of number of providers: From reduction
of overhead, from changes in the system which
would occur whether or not providers were
reduced, from cost transfers which would be

X %

S i %
realized regardiess of number of providers.”
Do you want to take number six, Bill?

MR. COLLINS: Sure. Anyway, when you're
looklnaon page 14 —-

MR. KILMER: That's 16 and 17.

MR. COLLINS: When we were trying to
look at the cost associated with the potential
change, there were three areas of cost that we
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looked at. One we just talked about, which is
unit hour reduction, and the cost applied to the
unit hour reduction was only the — it you look
on table three over on unit hour there's a figure
of $26.83 which represents paramedic salary and
benefits.

And the unit hour reduction, that's all
we applied, and | think it describes that
someplace in here, that that's — | mean, there
could be other savings having to do with vehicies
and things, but that is not — we did not apply
that nu r. We were trying to follow the logic
of this through and be as conservative as we can

. So we're not making — | wasn't making

statements that were greater than what we could
be. So the first savings is based on that.

Now, the other two areas, that

S A SR
identified what essentially either duplicated
costs or costs that | felt should not
associated with the 9-1-1 service at all. The
two duplicated costs that seemed to make a
reasonable amount of sense are the administrative
costs and the general overhead costs that were
provided to me by the providers.

if you only have one organization versus
three organizations in which that cost has to be
associated with 9-1-1, the process you're going
to be able to reduce that is someplace between
probably half to a third. | mean two-thirds. |
mean, in theory you could do it in two-thirds. |
don’t know if that's good or not.

You don’t need three sets of overheads,
three sets of owners, three sets managers, three
sets of everybody. What the exact amount would
be wouid be dependent on how you organized
whatever the slnq!e entity was. But itisn't
going to take trlr e of each of those areas.

Now, we didn’'t look at any of the other

costs that were on table three because that is —
you know, to say what you're actually going to
say to billing, | don't know. You're going to

won't need the same number of supervisors or
t'wlhatever. but we made no attempt to try to do
at.
We were just trying to pick out those
areas that seemed to be very obvious on the face
of it. The third area was in the control center,
and we've had a discussion someplace about that

alread&.‘

t my contention is that even though

the control center activity may be necessary for
some other aspect of the ambulance company, itis
not necessary for the 9-1-1 service. It already

is a control center. It's already been paid for

by tax payers. Whether you don't like it or like

it or it gives you what you want or doesn't give

you exactly what you want, | don't think that's

the issue.

The issue is: Do you need to have
duplicated control centers for the same vehicles,
and again you need to read this plan in the
context of this 9-1-1 system. If you need them
for other things | can understand that, but you
cannot tell me that the cost of that should
allocated to the 9-1-1 system, which is what we
ask for in developing the cost. The rate for

AR Page 77 R
ould not su

That's baslcarpo
no other magic little things. We didn’t get into
any other of these other categories because these
are just too dependent on the number of runs of
which ambulance does which.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Bill, that theory was
applied in San Mateo County in California back in
the late '70s. Did you do any checking into what
h ned to that system?

R. COLLINS: To San Mateo County?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Yes.

MR. COLLINS: No.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay.

MR. DRAKE: | have a couple of questions
to make sure I'm hearing you correctly. You said
your first area of cost savings was based on unit

hour of reduction. Was that based on the fact
you go from 125,000 to 86,000 unit hours?

MR. COLLINS: Right.

MR. DRAKE: As we discussed earlier,
that really is an associated cost savings because
you're co rin% apgles and oranges.

MR.C NS: | heard what you said.
You asked me if that's the way we did it. This

RS ...&.-EY:\}Q\\ N 2 age 7
is the demand analysis and staffing plan for a

1
2 dedicated 9-1-1 system, and there are — if you
3 take the number of paramedic hours or number of
4  unit hours, now you have less unit hours that
5 should be aliocated to 9-1-1.
6 What you do with the other unit hours,
7 the cost may go up or it may go down. | guess it
8 wouldn’t gl? up real high because you have to
9 negotiate it.
10 MR. DRAKE: Negotiate with who?
11 MR. COLLINS: With whoever you provide
12  the service for.
13 MR. DRAKE: You can't negotiate with —
14  you don't negotiate with each private patient you
15 go pick ug?
}g MR. COLLINS: No, not the 9-1-1, the
er —
18 MR. DRAKE: We have other private that
‘119 arenot9-1-1.
20 MR. COLLINS: Whatever. There's no
21  attempt to try to determine that.
22 MR. PHILLIPS: BiIll, do you have an
23  figures on what a one or two-minute reduction in
24  response time would do?
25 MR. COLLINS: No, I don't. To do that |
1  think you'd have to — you'd have to do a demand
2 analysis, a geographic distribution again,
3 because each —
4 MR. PHILLIPS: To start all over,
5 basically?
6 MR. COLLINS: Yeah. You're making a
7 different set of assumptions on what the criteria
8 are for the response and then you kind of feed it
9 into this. in theory, the longer the response
10 time to some point, the less number of unit hours
11 are — at some point you're going do — it's more
12 on the geography than it is on the — there's
13 still the same number of calls.
14 MR. PHILLIPS: Right.
15 MR. COLLINS: But you have to meet the
16 demand. Let's say the demand is down at the five
17  and six call level and you now have to meet an
18  eight minute response time. You have to have a
19  number of unit hours to meet the eight minute
20 response time.
21 if you had the same number of calis, g:u
22 could do it in 12 minutes, and there would
23  some savings in there. | can't tell you what it
24 is. | have to think it to do it.
25 MR DRAKE: You have a computer that can
1
2 MR. COLLINS: The co r program that
3 | have, which is working at about half right now
4 because there's a probiem with the memory — but
5 the computer program will tell you any given unit
6 location, what area it will cover in any set time
7  frame. Butit will also tell you how many units
8 you need and where to put them based on the time
9 parameters you want to feed into it.
10 MR. D E: So if you fed in different
11 time parameters —
12 MR. COLLINS: Right. It has a work load
13  ~ifithas the geot?ra ¥lnlt.lfyou said we
14 want a response time ot 12 minutes and you set it
15 at-—it's got a top and bottom, so you'd set it
16 on 10 to 12 or something like that, and it will
17  tell you what you need.
18 MR. D E: Okay.
19 MR. ROBEDEAU: h tells you — well,
20 never mind. | want to come back to that.
21 MR. COLLINS: Because that's - we have
22 notused all that. All | did was use the
23  geographic placement part of it. Actually the
24  program is too big for the computer, for a P.C.,
25  s0 I'm cutting the program down. I'll explain
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i=at later.

MR. ROBEDEALU: | have a couple of
o -stions.

MR. COLLINS: On the question you asked
about number six, that's all the level of the
financial analysis. This was not — there was no
attempt to compare one company to another
co ny; you know, one is good, one is bad. |
didn’t do that. Again, | just added up the costs
10 that were provided. And those areas where it
11 seemed evident that you have less organizations
12  involved in the 9-1-1, there’s going to be some
13 savings again to the 9-1-1 system which should be
14  reflected to some extent in the rate.

15 MR. ROBEDEAU: But did you do any

16 analysis on what additional personnel would be
17 required, both at Kelly Butte and at the

18 individual providers or provider, depending on
19  what you come up with, what additional cost would
20 be incurred by the provider, not having a control
21 center to be able to keep track of things that

22  their cars were doing? at kind of ~ how much
23 is going to be added back into, quote-unquote,
24  the control center costs in order to carry on

25 functions of a business that the control centers

OBV B LN = s

1  nowdo?
2 MR. COLLINS: Add it back into whose

3 control?

4 MR. ROBEDEAU: The 9-1-1 cost, whether

5 itbe through public or private.

6 MR. COLLINS: There shouldn't be

7 anything added to Kelly Butte.

8 MR. ROBEDEAU: Well, if there's no

9 control center and the provider or providers have
10  no idea what their car is doing, as in the case
11 of San Mateo County, | think when they were doing
12 that twice a day, San Mateo County provided a
13 list of calls that the particular providers' cars
14 had run, you know, all of that stuff.

15 San Mateo County provided a supervisor
16 who went out and met with each car to pick up
17 tient care information. The county guaranteed

18 Information to the provider in San Mateo County,
19  and the county guaranteed that their call volume
20 and cali stats were absolutely accurate and that

21  they were all included.

22 There was quite a bit that went on down

23 there, that if you were to do that kind of a

24 system here somebody is going to have to make up
25 those costs. Those are all costs that are there

1 ver golnF
2 thatcurrently is bein
3 center, and you could call that an office
4  function or a billing office function or

g something on that order.
I4

8

9

0 away
one by our control

But you're looking at at least computer
software. You're looking at at least one full-
time additional person, and you're looking at at
least one additional full-time supervisor on 24

10 hours a day, seven days a week, who is going to
11 go around and meet with each one of these

12  vehicles.

13 That would be off the top of my head a

14  plan, that if we take and kind of compare this as
15 to what they had done in San Mateo County in the
16 '70s, | know the only contact that Medivac had
17  with their cars at the time is that they had a

18 scanner in their business office, and that was
19  all they knew what went on. That was all that

20 was provided by the county.

21 But that function being listed as

22 control center has a %reat eal more than just
23 sitting there dispatching cars. There's a lot

24 more to it that isn’t taken into account here, or
25 atleast that | don't see as taken into account.

2 3
MR. COLLINS: Well, | don't think
there’s any increase in personnel to do the
dispatch and system status control. | will agree
that if we would try to do this right now that
there would be a problem getting new data from
BOEC. | think everybody is aware of that. The
change in CAD system will aliow you to get the
call data essentially on line if you want it.

ONOU & WN = o
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' understandin 'at'{hls |

So as far as | know, the incident dispatch data
or you can get it in batches, that's not
available right now.

MR. LAUER: What Pete is saying is
that's currently a function of the private
dispatch center.

MR. COLLINS: | understand that. I'm
making an assumption here also that the CAD is in

ace and that the city’s data is functional.

, If that does not occur, then | understand
ma:”v‘ve'd have to figure out what eise it's
worth,

But as far as the dispatch function, the
system status controlling function and the data
that's available through the dispatch activity,
that's — | mean, that's all available ~

MR. LAUER: Right.

R

MR. COLLINS: - From the city.

MR. LAUER: | guess the main point is
that the communication center does more than
dispatch and maintain a system status plan. It
has a iot to do with recovery cost. BOEC Kelly
Butte has never done that function. it's been
totally supported from other sources, and they've
never had to worry about how to cover their cost
from the co ter. A private dispatch service, a
col nent of it, is doing exactly that. That has
to still be there.

MR. COLLINS: You need to get that
information.

MR. LAUER: Right. That's the first
step in the cost recovery process.

COLLINS: That should be the same
information. You shouidn't have a different set
of information.

MR. DRAKE: Can BOEC give us the
Information to format what we need? Secondly,
can BOEC alve us the information in a timely
manner, which is daily; third, can BOEC be able
to provide us on late responses information
Insununeouslﬁ

S: Wh

at | just said, my
S ai Page B6
int is that the CAD
management information system can provide it to
you on line. | mean, you can just get it right
off the machine.
MR. ROBEDEAU: The other part, you know,
still is — | don't know. Again, | can only go
by my experience with A.A. Our, quote-unquote,
control center is also all of our data ent?;.
All of our stats, all of our billing, everything
is done in our control center. ether Buck does
that or CARE does that, | don't know, but that's
where ours occurs.
You're dealing with any savings, at

least on our part, with at least one full-time

rson in the billing office. All you're doin
s just changing a bunch of what you call a lot
of this in order to do that. The savings that
show by the elimination of the control center,
Bill, I'm afraid just plain don't exist.

Who is going to the patient care

reports to make sure they're completed on a daily
basis? Is that going to become a function of
EMS? If that's done like we do it, every time a
crew s off duty — or more often, if we could
come in, then the supervisor picks up those

patient care reports to match them to the calis
to make sure everything is there. And those
reports are completed and signed.

And then Kelly Butte, almost four or
five or six times a day, is going to have to make
sure somebody, a runner, takes that to the
provider, whoever that Erovlder may be, in order
to match this paperwork. The paperwork as you've
sent it out is absolutely mandatory for hospitals
and stuff.

MR. SKEEN: You know, just from a pure
system design | understand where Bill is coming
from. If the three of us took our tasks on the
communication centers, control centers, and upon
the cut we reduced our unit hour cost by $4.98,
or whatever it was, and thereby reduced rates,
and then said to BOEC - took them some nice cake
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and said, "Congratulations, we're now in business
together, here are the tasks we want you to
perform.”
tf you took that approach, BOEC would

clearly have to add staff in spite of the 60
Reople they have. They'd have to add staff. So

— the other thing is for BOEC to say, "We're
not going to do that. That's not part of our
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mission. We would do the dis tchln?.
So then the 4.98, or whatever it is, per
unit hour then goes to the control center into
administrative tasks that will have to be
provided either by multiple providers or - the
other side is to say, "Could we perhaps save BOEC
numbers by havign them into 9-1-1 dispatch, by
having them transferring the screens to the
ambulance control centers that's already working
with those additional tasks, and that control
center from ambulance provider.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Multnomah County, from
\:hat | understand, said that's just not going do

appen.

MR. COLLINS: That's not true, not from
my perspective. That is certainly another
option, but that is not an option - that's not
an option that will work with multiple providers,
but it is an option if you have a single
provider.
MR. ROBEDEAU: That's brand new.

MR. COLLINS: |didn't put it in there,
because | don't think we ought to do it that way.

MR. ROBEDEAU: But, see, the fact that
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this minute is brand new information for me,
because this has been coming up periodicaily for
over, God, I'd hate to say how many years. And
each time this has come up in the past there’s
thl;‘h ';l'hls will never happen, don't do
anything.”

MR. COLLINS: I'm not in favor of doing

it under the current multiple provider system. |
don’t think it could possibly work. If you have
only one — if you have only one dispatch center,
it doesn't matter probably where it is.

And, in fact, if you have one provider
with one dispatch center, there might be an
argument of why you move it to one provider,
because then you can hold the prior
responsibility for the time the cali is created.

But there are some other issues. One of
the things we're looking at currently in the
change to BOEC changes is that the fire alarm
dispatch, as you well know, is not going to
exist. it's going to go away, and many
dispatchers are going to dispatch fire.

The proposal is the same people are
?olng to have to dispatch both fire and EMS,

nstead of what we're doing now, which is — the

city maintenance is a five or six rerson fire
alarm dispatch, and they maintain a two person
EMS dispatch and they have a supervisor.

That's all going together to'being
reduced to either three or four people, depending
on who wins the argument in the . I'mnotin
that argument. I'm standing back. the
option of having the dispatch in the control room
being done away from BOEC is certainly an option
if the plan that's put in would support that.

Now, that has not been proffered in this plan
because there isn’t any reason to do it right
now.

That's the same kind of thing. Ifa
eon?anydld it - let's say we had a co| ny. |
would the cost to go away from BOEC and
the tax payers shouldn’t have to support that
portion of it, although that's kind of a basic
question that's a little more complicated.

MR. DRAKE: | have to leave, but | do
have one question. I'd like to see what you have
on ‘pagg . There could be savings ovérhead up
to $1, .80.

MR. COLLINS: That's off the sheet,
table three.
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MR. DRAKE: That's off table three.

MR. COLLINS: Add up general overhead,
g:'r;eral administration. i think lcutitin

MR. COLLINS: You cut it in haif?

MR. DRAKE: So you didn't take into
consideration any — it you had a single provider
building, the administration building, in the
system they would have to have building in the
infrastructure for both management —

MR. COLLINS: I took that into
consideration because | eliminated it all.

MR. DRAKE: But you didn’t actually try
to build the system?

MR.C NS: Rtht. We currently have
three organizations with aggregate costs. Again,
these are aggregate costs and nothing to say
whose costs these are. If you add up those two
according to the information | got from the
providers, it's two-million-four and, you know,
what s it? 600,000 or —

MR. THOMAS: Let me say something about
that. And say what you think about this, Bill.
Let's make an assumption which may or may not be
true, but at least for purposes of discussion,

that each of the current providers has maximized,
optimized its efficiency so that you know for

each lower level of employee you've got a span of
control determination you have to reach about how
many supervisors they'd need, and they set
themseives up so they go right up like a pyramid,
and the tor person has just the appropriate
number of people under him or her,

it seems to me if that were the case for
each of them — and let's forget about total
number of paramedics, that side of the equation.
And if you combine the three of those, you
wouldn't change any of the personnel at the
administrative level because each of them has the
a?proprlate number of people under them for span
of control purposes.

And possibly you would need one more
person on top so that you don't have three people
at the top of each of those pyramids. That seems
like ?a correct analysis to me, but it doesn’t to
you

MR. COLLINS: Well, no, not from the
definitions that we had identified. Supervisors,
training officers, incremental costs for like
training people are not included. That's in

another category we didn't touch.

MR. THOMAS: I'm talking about the
personnel who are in the administration.

MR. COLLINS: Let me give you an
example. If you have three organizations
currently and if each one of those had a
personnel officer, if you only had one
or nlz;tlon would you have three personnel

cers

MR. THOMAS: That's what | wanted to
tatk about. Well, wait. Let's talk about that
here. Wait, wait. Just let me tell you what |
was saying, and that's what | wanted to talk
about, use | want to see where our thinking
differs.

If each of the personnel officers has

the appropriate number of people on a span of
control approach that they are training, you
can't have one officer then triple the number of
people. You actually do need three people
training more ple. There's a point at which
you have to add more people.

MR. COLLINS: | understand what you're
u*lng, and that | think holds probablr quite
well at the line, at the line of supervision

SRR AR (20 Page_

level. |f you've got one — if you have one
fieid supervisor and 20 paramedics and you
combine three organizations and have
paramedics, you're probably going to need more
than one. You're going to need two or three
field supervisors. | would grant that. That's
why it's separated.

But | would not agree that you would
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assu ion,

need three or two of what is considered to be
management level positions, personnel officers,
CEOQ's, financial officers, any of those kind of
levels, because their jobs are not span of
control oriented. Only in the very broadest
aspect of it.

| mean, if you are the CEO of a small
company and you ended up as the CEO of a gigantic
company, you might have to have some other little
management in there. But for a lot of these
functions that fall into — and again, | didn't
try to &)ethrough here.

just asked each company to say how
much was in that area of it. There may be things
where you have to have more of it. | don't agree
with you at that level that would hold.
MR. THOMAS: That's part of your

s at that jevel actually span of
control is not an issue.

MR. COLLINS: My experience is that that
does not hold once you get to that level. It
definitely does at the line of supervision.

MR. THOMAS: | understand that.

MR. COLLINS: We left that, and you
might even — might have to add more.

MR. SKEEN: Generally you're always in a
range where — the smaller the organization,
you re always in the range generally. There are
90::? to be incrimental increases in your
administrative tasks to a certain point. You
wou'ldn't think that it would be duplicated in
tota

MR. COLLINS: That's why | did not make
the assumption what it should be like. There's
now three. if you go to one it ought to go
two-thirds less because there's some - you know,
it's well taken it's not going to be even. You
could pick a third or {ou could pick two-fifths
or — | mean, | just picked half because that was
what | picked. That is not a detailed -

MR. THOMAS: It is sort of interesting.
What's implicit in what you're saying is small

R

organizations are aimost inherently less

efficient, at least less than middle size to

large organizations. And actually, | think - at
least | think most people's experience is the

most efficient businesses are small businesses,
maybe because they g:t their administration to do

more stuff than some
might not do.

Anyway, | understand where you're coming
from. That's what | wanted to understand, what
was the assumption you made at that level.

MR. SKEEN: | think there's kind of a
template for that structure in the requirement
for them to respond to all 9-1-1 calls. And I'd
Irlu:ve to go back and look at it, but it seemed

(X

MR. THOMAS: In terms of the hierarchy
and how high the pyramid has to go.

MR. SKEEN: Itis usually impressive.

MR. COLLINS: The infrastructure
necessary to do the operation of the ambulance
company, which is what they're saying to add to
it, isn't there at all. What is there is the
general organizational infrastructure which you
would not change. And this implies that at least

AR
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dy in a large organization
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u know that the stuff is already there, that
's a duplication and not an add-on. | mean -
MR. PHILLIPS: Realistically, nobody is
oing to go away out of this system. It's just
at It won't all be involved in the EMS, the
9-1-1 section of it.
MR. COLLINS: Well, | didn't try to make
any analysis of what goes away or doesn't go
away, only what should be allocated and
identified as 9-1-1 calls. And the logic that |
think prevails in this is that if all these costs
are in the 9-1-1 system, then in theory the rate
has to support these costs. And if these costs
either go away or belong someplace else, then
they should not be supported with the rate. They
can be supported by contract providers or some
other rate or — I'm fully aware that you move

10

costs and you pump them up on the other side and
there are going to be some problems.

But we're not proposing a top to bottom
franchise, and | haven't heard really anyone
support that. These 'a.r:i:n't a:l wtzyl ‘.’:m

ng to get a compilation of what people say,
and Fhavﬁot heard anybody yet really suppo

that kind of a system.

: Page 98
| suppose some can raise their hand
:hnd we could Tdd I'toln. i b“'t er\l'l.t that o
at's appropriate for a c service system
really be providing services that can be well
provided by the private sector in that manner.

MR T : You didn't do any — |
know you didn't, | guess.

other thing that some might
consider in doing your kind of analysis of what
happens when you put three into one - | mean,
I'm guessing that — well, | don't know.
Conceivably there could be pay level differences
as somebody is responsible in a larger
organization.

MR. COLLINS: | didn't look at that.

MR. THOMAS: | know you didn't.

MR. COLLINS: ( think we made the
statement somewhere in here —- | can't remember
what page - that the actual dollars would have
to do without being reallocated once you were in
whatever organizational framework. it's true.
You could put a bunch of stuff together, and you
could pay the top guy - you know, greater
responsibiiities might increase, but those weuld
not be substantial.

MR. THOMAS: A lot of people who are
reading your report are thinking you're saying
all these things are absolute cost savings that
go away. | was even talking to Lynn out in the

all, and she was saying the $39,000, she thought
it went away, whether they may be BLS transports
or Imerhosfltal transports or something else.

i think it will help people if you make

sure what it is you're saying in there and what
it is you're not saying, because there's a lot of
misinterpretation out there about what it means.
| know you had to write it fairly rapidly, so
it's not your fault.

MR. SKEEN: Just for the record, so |
don't remain quiet on your comment about anyone
who believes it should all be on an integrated
system.

MR. COLLINS: You'd fike to —

MR. SKEEN: | think it clearly should be
on an Inte?rated system.

MR. KILMER: Are you talking integrated,
exclusive public, exclusive private? You're
saying at the very least the franchisee of the
public part of it should be able to compete in
the private part of it, or are you saying they
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have exclusive private as well?

MR. SKEEN: They should at least be able
to compete. By arbitrarily segmenting you drive
the cost up on both —

MR. KILMER: | think every provider
agrees with what you said. They drive it up on
both sides, segmented between emergency and
nonemergency.

MR. PHILLIPS: And | think the problem
that you're trying to get away with in the system
is someone coming in and out of the system,
ﬂoatlnaln and out of the system?

MR. COLLINS: I'msorry. | don't follow

MR. PHILLIPS: With a BLS or transfer
and also 9-1-1 generated system, you are trying
to separate them. Aren't you aiso tryln? to
experience whether or not a car is 9-1-
dedicated or can float in and out of the system?
MR. COLLINS: Actually, we didn't reallr
pro?ose it's a dedicated system. We just did the
analysi

s of the demand on a dedicated system
because there was no way to do it realistically
on a combined system. , | still hold that's
the demand that ought to drive the rates, and
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that if you add to that in order to do what we're
doing now, that that should not affect in any way
the rates for the franchise part of the system.

And | don't think you can say - | mean,
you can say it, but you know the cost is the cost
that was reported. If you're going to have units
that can gg in and out and you're saylngelt's
going to be more efficient, you have to be able
to make that argument when looking at the rates
that you are not adding unit hours that have to
be somehow supported by the rates.
So | don't even know - | know in theory
it should be more efficient, and | su se that's
something we could probabIY‘do. could look at
what's going on now on a unit hour production
ratio and look and see what you'd do on this.
MR. SKEEN: Barry and Randy, when you
uys met in looking at the demand model, did you
ook at a reasonable utilization ratio that coul
be e: d in a single provider system?
R. LAUER: | don't know.
MR. SKEEN: If you took an estimation at
.3 on, is that a reasonable county wide —
MR LAUER: 1don’'t know if it's an
assumption we reached individually, | don't know

S A S PR
if we agreed to it by virtue of setting a maximum

shift length. At least what | thought we were
saylraq is that this demand, unit hour production
would be a highly utilized one.

MR. SKEEN: Would be?

MR. LAUER: Would be, and would have a
high utilization ratio, and therefore we were
3:’ ng to limit shift Iengths to 24, recognizing

at would be kind of busy for them.

MR. COLLINS: You mean they would die
soon after?

MR. ROBEDEAU: I'd like to go off the
agenda here for just a little bit.

MR. SKEEN: Pete, let me follow that
Jjust for 2 minute. .5 is going to be stuff to do
at eight minutes, 90 percent county wide. And,
m now, | don't know what you guys are doing,

| would think county wide .30 or even .32
would be considered reasonable for eight minute;
90 percent county wide if you look at the volume
of calls ggu're looking at, which 1 think is
around 38,000, 40, 9-1-1 calls.

MR. COLLINS: 40,000 calis?

MR. SKEEN: Roughly 40,000, at 60
percent transport ratio, it takes you —

MR. COLLINS: 70 percent.

MR. SKEEN: Well, you're not counting
disregards. You're counting 70 percent — 60
percent, which is even somewhat liberal, of all
calls and a transport per unit hour — transport
per unit hour utilization. Go through that
caiculation. it takes you back to unit hours, to
about 140,000 unit hours, a .32 in an eight
minute, 90 percent, which goes back to what you
started with the utilization ratios.

Now, that was quick and dirty using your
calculator, and | assume the batteries are up.
There's various ways of backing into it, and
that's a single provider system. | guess
greater concern is, even if I'm way off on that,
even if you can do it .4 or .4 t0 .5, when you
mitigate that with kind of two system status
plans with that 9-1-1 system you're getting -
gur ugi:h hour requirements are going to go well

yond that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: You're s‘agﬂng rather than
89,000 your calculation said 140,000?

MR. SKEEN: Backing into a different
direction at roughly a .32 - | figured a .30

130,000 based on the number of calls.
MR. DOHERTY: That's one of the thln?s.

though, | had in mind, we'd used to verify the
applicability, if you will, of the data we
generated in a itional meetings in that work
group and see whether or not it was realistic.
MR. ROBEDEAU: That just backs up my
deal that when you come up with 39,000, that

large a savings, that should have set up a red
fiag that something is wrong, and apparently

MR. SKEEN: That's only one aspect. it
doesn’t mean there aren't some other positive
reasons to modify this whole system. I'm
concerned about the unit hour reductions that
have been calculated to this point. | don’t want
to go back and beat that horse.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | wanted to go off —
it's not quite in the agenda. But one thing |
keep hearing, and I've heard for years and years
and years, is that the two remaining or the two
uniucky or two providers that don't win the bid,
if there is a bid, will be left, and we'll have
plenty of business to do in nonemergency.

And | would really like to know, Bill,
ince I've heard that several times, has the
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county ever really done any analysis — and |
don't mean just you. | mean the county, the
county commissioners, John Acker, anybody else
along the line as to how true that assumption is.
You know, will there really be a -

MR. COLLINS: | have not done that, nor
have | made that statement.

MR. SKEEN: | don’t know if I've heard
that statement.

MR. KILMER: it's been made by many
people, though.

MR. ROBEDEAU: That is an underlying
assu on that remains because it's been made so
many times. And | have heard that in these
meetings. | have heard that at the MAB. | think
| heard it here.

MR. COLLINS: Not from me.

MR. ROBEDEAU: And | would have - |
would like to see something --

MR. COLLINS: That assumption is made in
the PAPA plan.

MR. STEINMAN: You heard it from that
dumb kid from Gresham.

MR. PHILLIPS: The dumb kid from Gresham
was asking you about it.

MR. COLLINS: | have not made any
statements in this plan at all about anything
except the 9-1-1 business.

MR. SKEEN: It depends on whether it's
a dedicated 9-1-1 response or integrated.

MR. COLLINS: Of what?

MR. SKEEN: How much business there will

be left and how co itive it will be.
MR. ROBEDEAU: As a practical matter, |
think | would like to say that there is no way
that the loser could survive, absolutely not.
MR. COLLINS: | do not have any
reasonable information on the number of
nonemergency ambulance transf)orts or calls. We
don't collect that. it's not a requirement. The
only thln% we have to do with nonemergency
anything is that we license nonemergency
ambulances, make sure they've got what they're
supposed to have on them. We don't look - the
rates that follow, the general rates, people
aren't supposed to follow rates on discounts
or —
MR. ROBEDEAU: The discounts on the MAB
level, county level, any other level I'm aware of
is that there wilt be plenty of business left,
RRSS

and that y
ovider and a winning provider wiil be the
h:a rrovider will be requiring fewer calis,

but will have ample income to maintain their
status. | don't believe that's -

MR. LAUER: Part of that belief was
based on early 1980's thought that 9-1-1 was only
a little part of the total call line. People
thought that just up to a few years ago. Private
companies, 90 percent of their calls are
nonemergen , and that's not right.

MR. ROBEDEAU: In the late '70s, up
until 1980 when this ordinance passed and the
county took away 70 percent of our business and
then gave it back to us and is now calling the
public business, 90 percent — in fact, in AA's
case, more than 90 percent of what we did was
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18  private business. That was emergency and
19 nonemergency, and you had police districts then,
20 and then the county passed an ordinance requiring
21  us to give them most of our business.
22 d in passing that ordinance they
23  stated before the ooun?; commissioner and before
24 the council that as ong as we followed the
25 rules there would be no probiem. We could
G : Page 1083
1 continue to do bilis for as long as we were -
2 willing to foliow the rules.
3 , we have foliowed the rules right
4 along the line. You know, as far as | can see,
5 Kou now, there has been a contract. Now, what
6 appens is that we have — 70 percent of our
7 business is given to us by the county in 9-1-1
8 business, and now | am hearing all of this —
9 they come out and say this is public business, it
10 doesn’t belong to you. What this really is is
11 this is business that is our business and was
12 taken away from us.
13 MR. KILMER: For the record, Mr.
14 Robedeau, | want to say what you're saying is not
15 really what we have ever talked about. he*_
16  never took your business back in the '80s. They
17 did impose certain regulations on you as a
18 condition of continuing your business which you
19  have assiduously foliowed since that time.
20 MR. ROBEDEAU: That's correct.
21 MR. KILMER: You have usedin a
22 colloquial sense “take away,” but | think about
23 that as being any interference, that that is
24 never really what happened, and | don't think you
25 really mean to suggest that that was what
1 happened.
2 MR. ROBEDEAU: No.
3 MR. KILMER: Am | correct on that?
4 MR. ROBEDEAU: You're correct on that
5 Mr. Kilmer.
6 MR. ROBEDEAU: I'm not an attorney.
7  Maybe mg terminology is wrong. | do know what
8 happened. | was an eyewitness to it.
9 MR. LAUER: We'd talk them all out of
10 going to the hospital.
11 MR. COLLINS: We are not going to try to
12 do "B"in this? Are we on disaster responses?
13 Are there ang real issues that anybody has?
14 MR. ROBEDEAU: No.
15 MR. COLLINS: Mark was the one who
16  brought up something about communication. |
17  mean, the disaster response | can tell you right
18 nogw, yt.heve is n'o plar;:;a blmean. wh;t you saw in
today’s paper is pro| y as good as we've got,
20 not MCIF?.
21 MR. ROBEDEAU: There's an MCI which —
22 MR. COLLINS: We have an MCI plan, but
23 response to disasters that destroy the
sg infrastructure, the county has no plan, nor does
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so there will be

the city. The earthquake woke us up again, and
: BRI Page 110
urry of activity around

that.
MR. ROBEDEAU: According to Bill
Stafford we're going to have another one here in
a couple of months.
MR. COLLINS: Do you know what Mark's
concern was about communication?
MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't.
MR. SKEEN: Probably about the items we
were talking about a few minutes ago.
MR. ERTY: That was my assumption.
The costs associated with savings, costs with —
MR. SKEEN: The whole method of BOEC.
MR. COLLINS: Okay.
MR. LAUER: Did we talk about turnover?
MR. ROBEDEAU: Well, | think we need to
get back up —it's 11:30. We really need to
move it along. | think we need to go ahead and
finish the —
MR. KILMER: Can | make a suggestion,
Mr. Chairman? The issue of paramedic turnover
and the analysis that he did involves PAPA. No
one from PAPA is here today. I'd like to suggest
that you defer this portion of this until one o
the meetings that we have saved for additional
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" discussion in the hope they woul

' assdmptlori was the fire 'depar't'rmnt was going to

opportunity to show up at that time.

This invitation can be refiected in the
minutes, and they'li certainly be aenlna copies
of the minutes, and the record will be clear
they've been offered an opportunity in this
process to participate in that discussion and
make their comments on it. So I'd fike to
sugg‘est u defer it until another time.

R. ROBEDEAU: Randy?

MR. LAUER: Can you just enwulm the
conclusions you reached in your pian about
turnover as it applies to the direction your -

MR. COLLINS: Oh, ok:y. Well, yeah, we
can go through what we did. | mean, | gave you

uys — you all have a copy of the information.

wasn't too tricky. | think ail we were trying
t0 do — let me get to the part that - | don't
want to tell you something we didn't do.

What we tried to do was to look at
turnover as a function of two issues that had
been identified. One issue was, | guess for lack
of a better word, the stability of an
organization that had been brought up in the

past.

An e with the
training that would be necessary, like the number
of paramedics and how that might affect patient
care, but not — we didn't do any real analysis
of patient care. This was kind of a — this
question had come up enough that | felt we needed
to look at it from the data we had.

MR. LAUER: So did you conclude that
turnover was high amongst the private providers,
and therefore the system —

MR. COLLINS: concluded the system —
turnover was higher among the private providers
than the -

MR. LAUER: Is that part of the ratio
that Stéfpons having a tiered system?

MR. COLLINS: Yes. Well, supports using
the fire department as part of — as a part of
the system, because you're iooking for the
stability of the - now, again, the date that we
used to do this is exactly the date that that was
reported by the companies.

MR. LAUER: Kind of collated
differentl

MR. COLLINS: It's -

MR. LAUER: When | read that th

build better paramedics because they’re going to
be around longer, | take exception to that. If

you want to address that issue you can, but |
think we first ought to look at the turnover,
because the data that | have that was put
together to address specifically this question
was different. | mean, | show our 1992 paramedic
turnover as being eight percent.

MR. COLLINS: | don't think we included
your 1992 turnover, if | can remember.

MR. KILMER: What was his methodology in
determining turnover? | understand there's a
question about whether he determined turnover as
a turnover, even though a paramedic went from one
system to another system, and there was no skill
degradation that's normally associated with
turnover, assuming the paramedic goes out of the
system.

And | think it's appropriate at least to
pin down the methodology to determine if the
turnover rate is really as low as his numbers
suggest, and then to ask whether the fire
department'’s turnover includes those that come
into the EMT system for a period of time and then

R

pass out, and
that's applied to that.

Those are methodology questions that
have to be pinned down before you can draw any
conclusions about the validity of the results.

MR. LAUER: I'd like to end that with
revised data, revised statistics. | think they
will be dramatically revised.
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MR. KILMER: | think you ought to pin
down Mr. Collins on how he did that and what he
did do and what he didn't do.

MR. LAUER: { guess we could do that.

MR. KILMER: If you're going to do this
in this process, it probably s help to have it
done for the record.

MR. COLLINS: We did nothing real
tricky. if you look at these, what we did is we
used the reports provided to our office for 1987,
'88, '89, ‘90, '91 and '92 that are required by
the ordinance that each licensee has to report to
us, the EMT's in their employ, and the level of
training of the EMT went through from year to
year. And we looked at who was working for each
provider in 1987. And then we wentto 1 and
said who was added and who was deleted,

"""""" Page 1158

numberwise, | mean.
if you iook at the sheets, they actually
have peopie’'s names on them. They just went
across. did not try to differentiate those
paramedics who are on the schedule working in the
car versus those paramedics who are in some other
position in the company. Because that was not —
these are all people who ostensibly are certified
paramedics. So therefore, they need the same
training, they need the same whatever it is to
keep them certified.
So there’s no assumption as to what they
do in the company. But we can certainly go and
look and see what the effect is of seeing [
somebody left one company, did they show up in
another company. | tried to do that to some
extent, but it was very difficuit on the pages to
try and figure that out. And that's all we did.
Now, we did have — we got to Buck in
'92. We did not do a comparison for ‘92 because
there was sortof a gggmlc change. it looks
like the whole methodology of reporting changes,
so | didn’t do it. There was no way to compare.
But everybody else was pretty much the
same. We did the exact same thing with the fire
SRR Page 106
departments. They report to us the same way, so
this is whatever was sent in. That's all we did.
And you can look and actually see the
sheet for whatever co ny. You can see who the
rson’s name was and did they work. The little
s means they were on the list for that year.
If they were on the list for '87 and they were
not on the list for '88, then they were one of
the people who left. And actuaily, some people
did come back to the same company after a number
of years. We identified those.
MR. KILMER: Did you count every person
on that list as a whole year employee
MR. COLLINS: We got the listonce a
year, so | made the assumption that whoever was
- we were going in theory from the same time
gerlod to the same time period. Now, you could
ave somebody who came to work and left within
the year, but we would not catch that turnover.
But if you had somebody who came to work
in the last month of the year they would show up
as being on that list. We have no data to show
who started on what date. That just isn't

eported.

MR. KILMER: Did you ever report — ask
NS NS Page 11
AA. Or CARE or Buck how many full-time
equlmllerg ramedic positions they had?

NS: No, because we were not
interested in looking at full-time equivalent.

We were looking at ple.
MR. KILME%: ﬁoby ur failing to do

that - let's say AA. Has always had 25
paramedics. You've shown them as having 45 in a
particular year. And then you have taken the 45
and drawn your conclusion about the number of
paramedics in the system. In effect, you have
double-counted a whole bunch of people.

MR. COLLINS: No, | don't agree with
that. Attachment “A” gave me a list in 1987 that
had 43 names on it listed as paramedics and they
had 43 people that were paramedics, uniess they
gave me a list that wasn't true.

al MR. K"BMERA:. Ihlgu fa'ct l:h th:y weren't
emplo ring that year.

m &EE : | think what he's saying is
at a given time there were 43 peopie on the list.

MR. KiLMER: No. At any given time

there wasn't 43 people on — actually employed by
AA. At the end of the year they may have had 43
different names that occupled a position for a

pa me.
MR. C&LINS: We're looking at people
not FTE's.
MR. KILMER: What I'm saying is: You
took this list, totaled them up, and arrived at
the number of private paramedics in the system.
It overstates that. That may show up in Buck,
AA. And CARE over the course of a single year.
MR. COLLINS: There could have been that
- like | said, | don’t know how many crossed
over. But if you look at the numbers that are
listed, whether the person worked for one month
m&ed months, that :'asl "t‘h individual wAhn‘:! vlvfas
oyed as a paramedic in the system.
you are looking at the effect of the number of
people on issues like training and availability
or experience, it's all there.
I mean, '¥ou still have that number of
geople, even everybogy was part time. in
ct, if ‘you had everybody part time you'd have a
whole lot of people. You'd have a big problem.
You'd have more people. You don't give different
training to anybody who works part time as
opposed to full time.
MR. LAUER: In the police bureau, for
SRS 2 A
example, if an officer went from working the
traffic in the streets to the detective division,
by your methodology it would be turnover?
MR. KILMER: No, it wouldn't be
turnover.
MR. LAUER: My point was —
MR. KILMER: K should be turnover.
MR. LAUER: if we had an employee who
went from Clackamas County to Multnomah County,
he's our em&oyee. It's not company turnover.
That would be viewed in your methodology as a new
employee in Multnomah County. If the opposite
were true, if somebody went from Multnomah County
to Clackamas Counv, that would be turnover?
MR. COLLINS: Yes.
MR. LAUER: Then, In fact, there is kind
of a different way of defining turnover.
MR. SKEEN: Jeff's point about
paramedics with air fire service, that goes from
a first responding apparatus to a Sauvie Island
or engine apparatus. And it's probably —
R. COLLINS: The fire service would be
the same way, though, Trace. If they list them
on the report as being a certified paramedic in

the fire service, we did not try to figure out
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what all these people were doing. If they got
ten peopie, they got ten people.

If we're going to do - the issue came
up, | think, training officers in the MAB in
the past of wanting to use paralytic agents and
how are you going to get all these people
trained. You could, but the position people are
taking is you need to train everybody. So if
training was an issue, you'd have to train all
these people. it doesn’t matter if they're
working on an engine now.

riw, if they gave up their certification
and do not list themselves anymore as a
paramedic, then they would not be on this list,
and they would be listed as somebody who left,
even though they left as a paramedic.

MR. KILMER: Are you troubled at all by

the fact that while the fire department licenses
106 paramedics, only maybe 30 or 40 of them are
working as paramedics in the system at an
particular time; that when you list all 106 o
them as paramedics, that others might draw the
conclusion that we have way too man dparamedics
in our :'xstem. as Dr. Trunkey | think did in one
of his missals to the fire board; and that all
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statistics based on total number of paramedics
which seemed to be involved in your unit hour
characterization and your numbers of turnover
misstate the real picture of this system? Are
you concerned about that?

MR. COLLINS: i don't think they
misstate the real picture of the system from what
we're trying to look at. If you have all those
paramedics, one of the schedules would have - if
10 you have 100 paramedics wherever in the system
11 and 75 of those paramedics were assigned on a
12 regular basis to staff ambulances in the street
13 and the other 55 aren’t, but they're still trying
14  to be certified paramedics and they're still in
15 the system, that to me is an issue.
16 MR. KILMER: Isn’t the object to
17  concentrate the number of paramedics into a
18 smalier number so they serve as paramedics
19  full time; in other words, put caps on the number
20 of paramedics that can be certified?

OCONOOMBWN =

21 MR. COLLINS: That's an issue. Thatls
22 done in some places.
23 MR. KILMER: | know it. Did you think

24 about that as an option to realize the savings
25 that your statistics suggest might otherwise be

1 available?

2 MR. COLLINS: Well, the turnover doesn't

3 identify any savings. There was no attempt to

4 show any savings in this. We were just trying to
5 look at the - seemingly whatever the number of
6 turnoveris.

7 MR. KILMER: Don't you divide the number

8 ofcalls bé the number of paramedics?

9 MR. COLLINS: | did not look at the

10 statistical — it would be the mean of whatever

11 we used to try to look at this as part of the

12 number of paramedic questions, is if you have all
13  of these paramedics, are there enough options for
14  experience to keep their skills up?

15 And | think we said also in the plan

17 who — you know, one group is seeing the bulk of
18 the patients and one is not seeing very much.
19 But if you look at the number, itis a

21 to patient care to be able to say you can still
22 doit. Itidentifies a potential problem, that
23 there aren't very many exposures.

24 MR. KILMER: It identifies a potential
25 problem, but does it identify a problem that

1 really exists in this system based on the way

2 paramedics are actually used?

3 MR. COLLINS: | think it's a real

4 problem in that we don't differentiate, you know,
5 paramedics that are working as paramedics and
g paramedics that aren’t. And in theory, any one
8
9

of them could go to work tomorrow and have maybe

not seen a patient in a long — you know, | don't
know whatever the requirements are. There aren't
10 any actual requirements for certification for
11 having a certain number of actual patient
12 contacts.
13 Some other jurisdictions who have a
14 medical director model will impose that over and
15 above the certification, and they'll say yes, you
16  could be certified with the state or whoever
17  certifies you.
18 But in order to be qualified to work in
19 the system you have to have a certain level of
20 continuing experience with patients. We don't do
21 that now. That's something we'll, you know, get
22 Into, the medical director and what they want to
23 do and what they might want to discuss.
24 That's brought up mainly in the plant because
25 people — that was the question that kept being

b 3

1 :

2 Interruption in the proceedings.)

3 MR. EOLLIPFS‘: You know, that came up in
4 discussion, that with some paramedics
5

6

7

8

that were seeing more of whatever our number was,

1.6 per week or —
MR. DOHERTY: Right, a lot more.
MR. COLLINS: Paramedics on the street

referenced that | know some paramedics, you know, around here.

responsibility to have enough continuous exposure

on a daily basis on the schedule are going to see
more.
MR. DORERTHY: But, Bill, when you end

m:wng three or four paramedics on one call

one patient, then you can’t take the number
of patients and then divide, Kou know, responses
and divide paramedics into {t and do that. |
mean, clearly when you do it that way that
assumes that three of the four paramedics on the
call have their eyes closed.

MR. COLLINS: We didn't do that. We did
just opposite. For every patient there were two
paramedics and the counted them twice.

MR. KILMER: That could be to derive
your low number of contacts per week.

MR. COLLINS: That's what we did.

MR. KILMER: What you've come up with in

TP

a statistical approach bears absolutelgeno
relationship to the real world of EMS delivery in
this county. And now the question is: When
glanners are making their decisions, do they do

based on the real world or do they do it based
on statistics which bear no relationship to that
real world? The process ought to at least
identify between the statistics and the real
worid and then see which is the more valid basis
for making proposed changes or evaluating
proposed ¢! anaes.

MR. COLLINS: How would you argue that’s
not the real world?

MR. KILMER: Because these guys are
seeing more than 1.2 patient contacts a day.

MR. DOHERTY: Some of the people on my
list are working full time for the fire bureau.
There's some people on my list that work full
time for the Portland unit.

MR. LAUER: The last complete year's
data you have, you have listed 337 paramedics
that you've construed as being - 337 Paramedics
that work in Multnomah County. That's not true.
That's probably how many work in four counties

SRS Page 1260
MR. KILMER: Not all of them are working
at PAPA at ang t?Iven time.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Some of this is not
accurate on our part. it may be my fault. I'm
looking at wheeichair drivers, EMT-1’s.
Apparently somebody just sent in a list of
ever y on this stuff. | know people on this
list that are working for %ou people who have
left us and are working for people that are
working at CARE. And | have ten here that are
wheelchair drivers. | have one that got divorced
so she changed her name back to what it was. And
there's three on my list, Bill.
We kind of work with some rural areas,
and we bring them back to work for a while and
then when they go back to their rural area
they’'ve got experience in this system. The state
is trying to fix up what they especially want to
have in North Portland, stuff people will never
see again in their lives.
LAUER: That gives us a list of all
the names of people so we can match their
certification numbers and be sure they're
certified and can be working in Multnomah County
this year. We gave you a list of paramedics we
: : i Page 127 3
employed that could potentially work in Multnomal
County. If | thought you were going to use this
for turnover figures, | would have given you a
different fist for sure.

MR. ROBEDEAU: You know, system turnover
figures need to be compared. We have a couple of
ri-time people who aren’t Portland firemen or

re fighters, whatever you guys are calied
nowadays.

MR. DOHERTY: Let's pretend for a second
the figures are accurate. Then what — another
question | have is: Do we compare - borrow
ratios between public and private or between the
two year paramedics and the six year paramedics?

R. COLLINS: There is nothing in this
plan, and | don't think there's anything in the
other plan, that speaks to quality of care
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specifically. There's nothing in the system to
indicate quality of care is good or bad or
indifferent. Nobody has ever done anything to
look at that. So I'm not making any statements
that this currently is bad quality, that this is

good quality.
M& RgBEDEAU: So we're doing all of
this just strictly for rates? is that what |

S I D

hear'xou saEIn ?
R. SKEEN: Bill said earlier this is
not related to cost.
MR. COLLINS: The turnover study?
MR. ROBEDEAU: I'm talking about the ASA
an and desire to change. We're not doing it
quality care, so we're just doing it for
cost; is that right?
MR. COLLINS: We're required by the
state to come up with a plan as to how we're
going to run the system. We're looking at as
many components as ple identify and trying to
incorporated them in the plan. But the major
co nent that seems to come out in looking at
mu 'gle ASA versus single ASA is a cost issue.

R ROBEDEAU: So the cost is the total
justification for changing the system. The state
says we have to come up with an ASA plan, so we
have to come up with an ASA plan. That's why
we're doing this, to come up with an ASA plan?
The proposal to change the system then is totally
based on nothing more than cost?

MR. COLLINS: The datain my planis
predominantly based on the efficiencies of the
system. it's not based on patient outcomes of

the system.

R. ROBEDEAU: But the reason for the
change is cost and rates, and the whole basis of
this change of either single private or a tiered
response is to lower cost?

MR. COLLINS: That's a major factor.
You'll hear from other people like the MAB and
some other positions who will tell you there are
quality of care issues, but | was not able to
articulate those in the planning process. |
mean, we don't have — there's no data to support
that one thing or another. There are some
studies that people are looking at from the MAB,
but not anything I'm aware of.

MR. KILMER: Did the MAB people say
their quality of care issues Identified those
issues or did theg identify those for you?

MR. COLLINS: You've heard the same
thing I've heard. No.

R. KILMER: | have heard no

identification.

MR. COLLINS: You just hear people say
- one of the things we tried to do at the very
beginning of this was ‘get a bunch of people
together and identify the issues that needed to

™

addressed.
MR. KILMER: Did that process identify
what issues needed to be addressed?
MR. COLLINS: I didin - letme ~
MR. KILMER: And those are to do with
organizational and administrative, not with
medical?

MR. COLLINS: Let me find this.
They're on page seven, 2.2.1.
R. SKEEN: Pete, back to your question
You asked Bill. | thought he was pfettz clear.

n the introduction on paae two he talked about
five goais for the ASA and EMS planning process.
:‘ersonally | don't have any argument any of

ose.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Well —

MR. SKEEN: Personal interpretation of
them rrignht vary but —

MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't — you know, the
only thing | see really addressed is rates and
costs. System status dispatches isn't really
addressed other than a plan that, bY your own
Quick caiculations, is probably highly
guccurm; 86,000 hours as opposed to 140,000

ours.

WRNONBWN -
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And what | heard Bill say was we're
talking about costs here, and that's all there
is. There's nothing eise that is really pushing
the system. And | think we have to It down
to — what is it? What is the impetus behind
changln%tehelngs'? Is it the continued prejudice
that has been going on here for some time that
Just said single provider, single provider,
damned with the facts? You know, | don'’t think
Bill is trying to skew anything here or trying to
skew any of the numbers. But | have listened
from, you know, the beginning, and he keeps going
back. ‘I've listened for years and years, and
even the MAB refused to do anything to the
system, stating that any change in the system
might deter the need for a single provider
system.

And regardiess of the fact that the
single provider system has never been proven to
be needed to accomplish anrhlng of the stated
desires of the county, there (s a preconceived
notion on some people’s part, and it seems to
have gotten to the point where it is nothing more
than a demand by certaln individuals because
their egos have been hurt that they haven't been
; R age 1

able to push their will on everybody else, that
the single provider system is the only answer to
this system.

And there are countless times that the
MAB has rejected suggestions for system
improvement because — their stated reason was
that it might detract from the perceived desire
and need for a single provider system, and |
think that's just plain wrong.

And part of this is to try to to the
basis for the exact reasons why it is impractical
or impossibie to come up with something besides a
single provider system. Granted, this time we've
got a tiered response system, but we still have a
single provider system. What is it that makes a
single provider system so attractive other than
€90 by certain individuals? And | don’t think
¥ou were even involved in that, quite frankly.

his was &InEgNon long before you ever arrived.

MR. SKEEN: The issues that | hear are
duplicated costs.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Redundant response. What
was the term that Dr. Trunkey used? It had to do
with the organizational aspect, demand structure.
A single demand structure was the terminology

used.
MR. SKEEN: A single demand structure.
MR. LAUER: Accountability. That's
thrown out there all the time. ether or not
you advocate any of those positions, those are
some that have already been thrown out by single
provider. Joe Acker used to say he preferred a
single provider because he — those are all
reasons.
MR. SKEEN: | think Skip Kirkwood
mentioned that again In a letter, as well.
MR. KiLMER: Where is any data to
support the idea that it's easier to administrate
one more than several? | submit there is none.
Second is that once you have only one, the ease
of administration in the sense that you can only
call one person to tell them what you want is
counterbalanced by the fact that you have lost
enormous leverage in the ability to obtain
:cntrllmee from that one because of the hostage
r.
That is, once there's only one, the cost
of punishing someone for disagreeing rises
exponentially. That has never been discussed,
addressed or factored into this ease of

x:

administration issue. Any politian will tell you
that particularly a verY hlghlr popular
government body is almost immune from political
regulation because of its indispensability.

MR. ROBEDEAU: But the fact of ease of
administration is not listed here. it's not
here. If that's something that is on the agenda
that's not listed in the plan, then | think it
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needs to get listed in the plan.

MR. KILMER: And discussed, right.

MR. ROBEDEAU: What | heard here was the
reason we were doing the plan the way the plan
was, regardiess of which plan it was, was all of
a sudden because of costs that there were no
medical implications. There was nothing else.
We're talking about costs. That's when | asked
Bill, if that's what we're talking about is cost.

I'm trying to nail this down to exactly,
you know, when this came up, what we're talking
about. We have prejudices that have been thrown
out over many, many years in the system. We have
lots of people on record stating that they have
absolutely no desire to do any%llng but have a
single provider system.

we really have no data. We have

some system things here, rates and costs. We
have system status and dispatch. All of these
things that are listed here have had options
proposed for taking care of them. People in
authority have repeatedly said no, no, no, no,
no, no, no, no, we don't want to do this because
it will detract from the perceived need or our
desire to have a single provider system.

And what | was getting at is, ¥ou know,
why, if h'séusi raising costs here, if that's
all we need to fook at for looking at whether
this system really goes — maybe I'm starting to
:?sle ; u. | guess I'm starting to ramble a

ttle bit.

MR. LAUER: | understand exactly what
you're saying. What the issue has been, people
say we need a single provider because it's not
all these economics, and Jeff says where is the
data to support that? They say prove it won't.
So you've got -- you prove it does and you prove
it won't an u never really get —

MR. SKEEN: We go through cycles and you
have gone through cycles, and I'm now in one
where ¥ou have to justify yourself, and lots of

ries that are public services are asked to

indust
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do that.
MR. KILMER: What Pete has articulated
without saying it, he's complaining about the
rocess that has been followed in the past,

cause many aspects of it seem to point to the
idea that no one was open-minded. But instead,
the process was defined to facilitate the
adoption of a preconceived agenda.

And those process issues have been
repeatedly -- our concerns about them have been
expressed and will be expressed again. But the
fact is that if anybody is saying it's our
obligation to prove it doesn’t work, otherwise
you're golnﬁ to go with something they haven't
proved might work better, that's a highly fluid
process,

it seems to me the burden ought to be on
those suggesting changes, that the changes will
cause a reduction of cost and greater efficiency.
Any study of any other systems outside of
Multnomah County will find perhaps one or two
that someone might argue delivers better care and
higher levels and standards than ours ata
comparable or lower price.

What it will aiso find is many, many,

S i Page 137 &
many other systems that don't provide as good of
care at higher prices, and that ought to be

looked at. And the people that are proposing
change ought to be at least required to address
the issue of why don't they expect that will
happen here. That has not happened.

Now, it seems to me it is not a fair
ocess to tell us that we have an obligation to

ustify our current system beyond the level that
we have done before. The burden shifts then to
the other side to s:g. despite everything that

you have said, we think you're still wrong,
without them having to come forward and saying
why they think that; that the proponents have
never really listened to anything we have said,
and they have never been asked or taken the
initiative to put any data on the table or even

specify the basis for their belief that a change
would work.
Am | reflecting some of the other
ocess concerns you have, Pete?
MR. ROBEDEAU: | would say so.
MR. KILMER: And this is why | think

that this current process is based on everything
that happened before. The idea that we have some
..... Page 13

se?r gal the moment that Mr.
Collins walked in here | don't think will ever
apply. itis so vulnerable to litigation.

And | don't want that to sound like a
threat, because this whole process here is an
effort to try and demonstrate that, if you really
do look at these issues and look at the data for
proposals for change and then take a look based
on that data, change is desirable.

And based on that, you would find that
it wouldn't be — any process that relies on that
data is one that is already anxious to arrive at
a result that that data hva’fgens to support, even
though it itself doesn't wit stand analysis.
That's our concern about this current process.

And nothing about the MAB process or
anything that's promised by the county
commissioners promises an optgonunhyto go into
the flaws in the data underly?;‘g e
recommendation in any detail, and that is another
concern about our process, particularly when this
is such a highly complicated issue.

And all of that seems circumstantial

a preconceived agenda.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Anyway, you know, you had
made the statement, as | understood it, that
rates and costs were what we're really primarily
deallna with.

MR. COLLINS: That's a big Issue. You
saw on the first page or second page of what we
think the goals are to put it together, and it's
obviously a big issue. And you can argue about
the data or not argue about the data. The data
does not support the status quo.

MR. KILMER: The data doesn't support
changes from the status Quo as it stands.

R. COLLINS: | hear what you're saying.

MR. ROBEDEALU: Well, Bill, is there any
contingency if this were to go through and the
cost didn't change? Then what? Has there been
given any thought as to that or how you're going
to know If the desired cost reductions are going
to actually occur prior to a change?

OLLINS: Well, we would know — I'm
trying to think of how you'd know. You'd know if
peopie were submitting information that was
different. Most of the argument has been the
And, | mean, you can
S e St Page 14058
argue that and | understand most of what Reople
are talking about. But | still think most of
still applies. So I'm not sure what you mean if
it wouldn't haEBen‘

MR. ROBEDEAU: Suppose you're going to
?o to a single provider anJ you got — the rates

think are marked in here at, what, 560, 580,
somewhere in there.

MR. COLLINS: Or the average rate, the
average current rate,

MR. ROBEDEAU: Right.

MR. COLLINS: That's not the rate.

That's the average invoice, rates and mileage.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Well, that's rate —
okay, the average bill.

Somewhere in that range you're talking
about, what, 20 percent reduction by overhead.
You're talking, | think, more than that. You're
talking about several millions of dollars,
probabiy a 45 percent reduction. I'm just trying
to figure it off the top of my head. | haven't
exactl&ﬁ ured it out.

ere any contingency for a bid if
gtoagedgcﬁon doesn't materialize? What do you

en

data doesn’t apply somehow.
AR
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MR. COLLINS: Well, | don't know because
we didn't propose that option. We proposed the
tiered system option which would most likely have
a negotiated rate rather than a dead rate.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Negotiated rate with a
single grovlder?
. MR. COLLINS: Well, that's what's in

ere now.
MR. KILMER: Who would the negotiation
be between?
MR. COLLINS: k would have to be
between the county and whoever the providers are.
The reason I'm saying negotiated is that one of
the issues | think you d want to avoid in a
tiered s m is having different rate structures
depending on who is transporting or ones where
people would try to make the decision based on
the rate.
| mean, we have a bit of that now; not
from a transport standpoint, but we have people
who call 9-1-1 and do not want the ambulance
company to come. They say, "Do not send the
ambulance company, just send us the fire
department." They don't wanted to pvr the rate.
it's not based on care, it's financial. You

R S age 14277
don’t want to set up a tiered system that's based
on rates that has a rate structure that will
cause those problems.

Now, that's not an issue in some places
because some places it's all tax supported. At
least in my mind, anything that involves taxes,
that's not something that's Eolng to fly.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think | understand your
proposal then. You're saying a tiered response,
which | think that's the fire department doing
time. You also said a single provider, is that
correct, for the balance of the -

MR. COLLINS: RI%ht.

MR. ROBEDEAU: are you going to
chose who 8&; negotiate with?

MR. C NS: We have not specified that
in here at all. That's another step. | mean, if
somebody wants to — if this plan went forward
there is a number of things you'd have to do.
You'd have to figure out the details of how
you're going to deal with the contracts, how
you're oing to choose a contractor.

ere’'s no detall in here. This is a
contract for a proposal, whether you had one or
two or, you know, however you did it.

MR. KILMER: So under this system the
fire department, if it wanted to, could contract
with two gvovlders and -

MR. COLLINS: Under this system the fire
department can't contract with anybody except
Muitnomah County. There's no provision for the
fire department to contract with the other
providers.

MR. KILMER: How did the selection of
the zlvate &ﬂvlder occur?

R.C NS: We'd have to go through
some kind of bid process. There's no
specification in here of exactly what that is,
but my - and the reason | didn't do that one,
that's a tremendous amount of work to put

er in a proposal. The only reason | puta
bid in is my discussions — not written opinions,
but my discussion with our counsel was for the
county to have to use some kind of public bid
process. They're still looking to see what other
options there are. Right now when the county
contracts for this kind of service, it's got to
be a public bid.

R KILMER: Have you considered that
the county could contract with the fire

pa the pon

the ASA in Multnomah County, single ASA, and the
fire department would then subcontract for the
private col nent of the system?

MR. C NS: Why woulid we do that?

MR. KILMER: Have you considered that?

MR. COLLINS: | don't know why we would
do that. See, the fire department technically

does only the City of Portiand. We would either
have them in a tiered system or we'd have to work
out some intergovernmental agreement that's going
to inciude the county. | don't know we'd want

them to contract. | wouldn’t want to have to go
through a subcontract process in order to

r ulated the system. That to me would be kind of

a rd.

MR. LAUER: Could the fire department
col for the remainder of the balance of the
9-1-1 calls?

MR. COLLINS: In a tiered system?

MR. LAUER: Yes.

MR. COLLINS: No.

MR. LAUER: Why not?

MR. COLLINS: | wouldn't think so.
MR MOSKOWITZ: Why not?

MR. COLLINS: | suppose they could.
That was not in anybody else’s discussion.

MR. SKEEN: In the issue of the two fire
departments and the county, you said the county
had two contracts for the time critical calls
with Gresham and Portland?

MR. COLLINS: The discussions to date
with Gresham were that they didn’t want to do
transports. In the discussions to see if this is
even feasible for Portiand Fire, it was clear to
them if we would proceed in this matter they'd
have to provide the transport capability
mromom the t:mn'ltx.°

SKEEN: So Portland Fire Bureau
would come to Gresham as well?

MR. COLLINS: No, the transport. Half
of Skyline and Sauvie island and - what's the
other one? And Corbett.

MR. PHILLIPS: And Orient and all the
way down to Bluff Road.

MR. SKEEN: That will be interesting.

MR. KILMER: And you wouldn't let some
of those outlying calis be contracted,
subcontracted?

MR. COLLINS: Some of the calls?

SR 3 wzPage 14
MR. KILMER: In other words, in those
outlying areas the fire bureau might want to
subcontract even the critical transports.

MR. LAUER: Anything out of the Portland
cnh'y limits, they could say, "We don't want to do

MR. COLLINS: | can't answer that. One
of the things that happens, with the exception of
- when rou're out by Gresham, when you get out
of the Clty of Portland and the rest of the
county, the population drops off awfully quick.
Now, when you get out of the east side there are
other cities and stuff but, you know, you get out
to Sauvie Island and there aren't a lot of people
out there.

MR. LAUER: Do you anticipate that the
fire bureau's rates for what you chose to
transport would be identical to the rates that
the private comfgny would discharge for the
balance of its ALS transports?

MR. COLLINS: That wouid be something we
would trx‘to make happen, either equal to or
greater than.

MR. DOHERTY: What if Gresham wanted to
transport?

MR. COLLINS: Then we'd have to — if
they did, we would have to work it out so it
geperated as a single system between the two fire

rtme

partments.

MR. DOHERTY: So you would stili have —

MR. COLLINS: That's like — King
County, Washington is like that. The Medic 1
program actually resides in three or four
different fire departments.

MR. DOHERTY: Iit's a matter of choice as
to whether they'd want it?

MR.C NS: [ltisn't spoken about here
because the information to date is that they
don't want to. They did a study last February or
something and that was the result of it.

MR. KILMER: The result was what?

MR. COLLINS: They did not want to enter

ge 141 to Page 147

Lord, Nodland, Studenmund

(503) 299-6200



18 into transport.

19 MR. KILMER: Gresham?

20 MR. COLLINS: Gresham. So that's

21 reflected in the plan. That's what I've heard.

22 MR. KILMER: When you studied Medic 1 or

23  Medic 4 in Seattie and you said that the medic
24 responses, Medic 1 response was provided by more
25 than one fire department particularly out in the

1 King County area, did you find any
2 that did not work well?

3 MR. COLLINS: When | went up to talk to

4 them they did not comment one way or the other.
g MR. KILMER: [f that's not an issue of
7

8

9

concern about coordinating first response among
multiple providers, why is there a concern about
ivate response?
MR. COLLINS: First response is still
10 run by other as of the fire department.
1 R. KILMER: Were they able to
12 coordinate the transport component of Medic 1 1's
13  response even though ~
14 MR. COLLINS: Yes.
15 MR. KILMER: Is there any reason that
16 couldn’'t happen down here with multiple
17  providers?
18 MR. COLLINS: Probably not. | don't
19 know why — | don’t think it's a coordination
20 issue.
21 MR. KILMER: it's a cost issue?
22 MR. COLLINS: | can't speak to wh
23  they're set up like that. | know the Medic 1
24 g;ogram started in the City of Seattle. And
cause they liked it, it got expanded out into

coordinatin

King County. And Kln? County, the non-Seattie
s

&
1
2 iece of King County, is where most of the growth
3 as been, so the program has sort of been done
4 plecemeal.
5 They also operate strictly on a tax
6 base. There's no fee associated with that. You
7  know, | don't have, you know, tons of depth into
8 their system. The only place | looked really
9 closely is on Vashon Island because my parents
10  live there,
1 MR. KILMER: BiIll, in your starburst
12  study did you submit data, going into their data
13  base, to do the work with the department of civil
14 englneerin&up there?
15 MR. COLLINS: No. What we did up there
16 to date on that is we contracted with them to
17 create a pro%rkm for us. We did not give them
18 datato run. 've only been able to do part of
19 what the program will do. | was able to assign
20 ambulance locations and look at the magnitude of
21 the regonse.

herwise, the say five to eight minutes
23 - they call them isochromes on their program.
24  Other parts of the program which match will give
25 you the best fit. | have to - | kept trying to

SRR
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lot of problems and
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run it, and
couldn't figure out what was going on. We had
the professor come down, and it turned out the

g SRR R
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4 data is too large for the program and we have to
5

6

7

8

9

we were ha

cut it down. I'd have to show you what I'm
talking about.

t, in essence, we used Metro's traffic
analrls zones to put the data into. Metro’s
size Is the Portiand Metro area which includes

10 Clark County and Washington County and a big
11 chunk of Clackamas County. We don't have work
12 load out there because we're only talking about
13 Multnomah County. But it has too many

14 calculations to one run. We're changing that.

15  That's just to give us, what, the placement of

16 :’he a lance. The eight minutes you can still
17 0.
18 MR. KILMER: When you talk about the

19  placement, though, that placement depends upon
20 the response time. Did you do that on eight

21  minute resgtnses or twelve minute responses?
22 MR. COLLINS: Eight minute. All that

23 was to do at this point was to see if when we did
24 the demand analysis and the schedule, the draft
25 schedule, if you went through that schedule —
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and | can’t remember what the minimum number was.
it was seven or eight, whatever the schedule was.
So was that enough to meet the geographic
requirements? erwise — for instance, | know
that five will not — no matter where y:'tllt:ut
them, you can't cover eight minutes five
ambulances.

MR. KILMER: Did you have data
correspondence between your office and that
10 office that identifies the parameters and
11 identifies exactly what the assu ons were and
12 identifies what they did with that in terms of
13 drafting the program and then the results of
14  these various studies as you —

OONOMBWN =

}g for MR. COLLINS: They didn't do any studies
us.

17 MR. KILMER: You gave them some data

18 that they then used to build a program?

19 MR. COLLINS: They have a program calied

20 EMS IMS. | can't remember what the IMS stands
21  for. That's all they did for us, was put some

22  data into the files. We didn't have anybody to
23  do that, nor had we used the program before.
24 So what we did was ship them —

25 actually, we sent data to Metro and Metro used

‘&W\\W\)}\N 3 5 ,«. ‘se 152
which is called a Point in Polygon

1 their progra

2 program, to take the data and put it in squares,
3 shipped it to Seattle. They put it into the file

4 format we needed.

5 The program is all done. lt's not
6 standard because they don't seli it. it's an

7 academic program, | guess you'd say. And they

8 shipped that back to me, and then we were running
9 parts of it and we found out that the links and

10  nodes are too great to do this one part of it, so

11 then | had to go call the guy back up, and he’s

12 VMng to figure out how to get it smaller so it

will run.

14 MR. KILMER: Can we get copy of that so

15 we can play these games, too?

16 MR. COLLINS: Copies of the program?
17 MR. KILMER: Yes.
18 MR. COLLINS: You'd better wait until |

19 a:t one that will do all the pieces. The '92

ta we have not gotten into that format.
21 MR. KILMER: The data that you submitted
22 in order for them to even develop this program
23  and give it to you so you could play games with
24  it, is that data documented somep(!ee so that we
25 can get it?

G e
MR. COLLINS: That's the — which data?
MR. KILMER: Whatever data you used to

1
2
3 do this supposed study.

4 MR. COLLINS: The work load is the '91

5 work load data.

6 MR. KILMER: Muitnomah County data?

7 MR. COLLINS: The rest of it is Metro

8 time analysis data. R's not our data.

9 MR. KILMER: How much of it comes out of
10 the data used to build a grogram initially, which
11 lassume is Seattle data
12 MR. COLLINS: None of it is Seattle

13 data. | mean, I'd have to break —- you'd have to
14  look at the program, Jeff, to see all the -

15 MR. KILMER: Obviously that's what we

16 want to do.

17 MR. COLLINS: | can't explain it real

18 clear exactly, the data.

19 MR. KILMER: I'mtrying to find it in

20 here. You made a reference in here to a study
21 that you had done. You made reference to

22 identifying the eight minute response pattern,
23  which is only a piece of — | mean, it doesn’t
24  print it out because - your statement here
suggests that you have run a rather full scale

R 33

simulation of what you're proposing?
MR. COLLINS: What page?
MR. KILMER: Page 13 and 14.
And was that significant in your
arrivin'g at the 38,000 unit hour savings?
MR. COLLINS: It was to the extent that

did the demand analysis that we do to cover the
geographic fix of the county.
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MR. LAUER: If the level was eight, all
that's doing Is saying that if you have eight
different positions in the county covered, you
can respond to every place in the coun

MR. COLLINS: That's all addressed.

MR. LAUER: And that's based on the
traffic analysis and all that different —

COLLINS: Right. We did not run the
part of this that —

MR. LAUER: They compiled that using
time of day, using street patterns and all sorts
of things like that.

MR COLLINS: Everything except the work
load numbers is all from — it's really all from
Metro. Metro has a traffic analysis system. And
actually what we did was — in Seattie they made
up their own and they didn't have a Metro to do

3 R S R gge]ss
it. So the civil engineering department made a
grid and essentially made a traffic analysis

program.

Instead of doing that again for us for
Portland, we said, "Can’t we just use what Metro
has?® So they looked at that and said, "Sure,
that will fit.”

} So Metro sent them that piece of it, and
we sent them the work load, like which one of
these little zones is the work load in.

MR. ROBEDEAU: So your analysis is
drlvlnﬁ time, and assumes that the unit is
actually there all the time? So if you have -

MR. COLLINS: We have to assume it

someplace.
R. ROBEDEAU: So if you're down to four

units or even down to seven units, you're not
going to make it?

MR. LAUER: No.

MR. COLLINS: But you don't necessarily
make it now.

MR. LAUER: All this is based on if you
have an ambulance in this spot on the map?
* aﬂR ROBEDEAU: It has to be there al

e time.

<.

MR. LAUER: Where can that make it in
eight minutes?

MR. KILMER: The point you're making and
Pete’'s making is this is another study that
doesn't replicate the real world of delivery of
ambulance services.

MR. COLLINS: Yes, it does replicate it.
That's what we do right now.

MR. PHILLIPS: it could tell you where

u need to have eight ambulances.

MR. KILMER: at we now have, it would
take 16 to guarantee that we've got eight at any
particular point in time?

MR. COLLINS: That's not true.

MR. LAUER: Being able to respond to all
of the calls is one thing, Jeff, but being able
to respond everywhere in eight minutes is a
different thlr;?.

MR. KILMER: | understand that, too, and
that's another deviation from the real world In
terms of having a cost efficient ambulance

ny, system.
R 'COLLINS: That's what we do right
now. Buck and A A. And CARE had a system plan
that says how many ambulances they have on and

y're located to provide the coverage an
the response time. As calls come in you're
constantly movln? them off there, but hopefully
u‘ve used the right statistical data to

ndicate that at this time of night when we've

this number of ambulances on you expect to

ave a certain number of calls.
So you don't rut on twice as many
S ju

ambulances as calls just to do that. Sixteen
doesn't guarantee you eight.

MR. KILMER: Ma | missed what Randy
said. Basically what dy is saying is that the
study you're doing Is going to station ambulances
$0 you can respond within eight minutes to, say,
the furthest reaches of Sauvie Island and the
furthest reaches of Corbett within eight minutes,
and that is not really the way we do R.

What we do is staff them differently so
we're going to respond in the county in eight
minutes 90 percent of the time, but the 10
percent that we miss Is going to be concentrated
out in the fringes, and staffing patterns that
are going to result are going to be significantly
different.

MR. LAUER: Didn't you drop boundaries,
e S s hage 15875
like you say, some line in East Muitnomah County,
or ar; we looking at something inside the urban
area

MR. COLLINS: PAPA's su tion makes a
lot of sense using a different time zone. You do
the time requirement within the urban zone. What
you're trying to match up is not only the number
of calis but where the calls occur.

So if you've got — like we have lots of
calls downtown and kind of near Northwest and
Northeast,

MR. LAUER: Jeff says the analysis you
did doesn't try to get an ambulance to Sauvie
Island or to Bonneville in eight minutes. It
looks at the primary response area in terms of
volume, right?

MR. COLLINS: Actually where level eight
positions are, the ones that had been used by the
county for quite a while does cover pretty much
almost all the county. h does not get you to
Bonneville.

MR. PHILLIPS: & barely gets you on to
the freeway.

MR. LAUER: You didn’t look at that

0200

SR rage 1=
MR. SKEEN: Before we adjourn, I'd like
to go back to what we were discussing a few
minutes a?. and that's on clinical issues. And
Bill, If you have anything from your office or
from MAB or whatever on clinical issues, | agree
it's been real difficult, as | said last time, to
n those things down, and | think it's going to
a necessary ingredient for us to continue once
we into the meat of things next time.
R ROBEDEAU: Let's call it adjourned.
(Proceedings adjourned at 12:30
o'clock p.m.

|, Pameia Beeson Frazier, a certified
shorthand reporter for Oregon and a Registered
Professional Reporter, do hereby certify that |
reported in stenotype the proceedings had upon
the hearing of this matter, previously captioned
herein; that | transcribed ni'gesald stenotype

notes through computer-aided transcription; and,
that the foregoing transcript constitutes a full,
true and accurate record of all proceedings had
upon the hearing of said matter, and of the whole

thereof.
Witness my hand at Portiand, Oregon,
this 16th day of April, 1993,
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; PROCEEDINGS
3 MR. ROBEDEAU: Has ever y had a
4 chance to review the minutes? Then let’s call
5 the meeting to order.
6 MR. COLLINS: | have two corrections at
7 page three at the top of the page when we're
8 talking about unit hour savings. | don't know if
9 1said It or not, but the part on billing and
10 collections, that wouldn't be a savings.
11 MR. ROBEDEAU: Where are you, Bill?
12 MR. COLLINS: Top of page three, first
13 paragraph. K says, the sentence starts at the
14 B;evious page at the bottom. Kt said there would
15 savings from paramedic salaries and billing
16 and collections, and I'm not sure how that got in
17  there. But billing and collecting | don't thin
18 ever came up.
19 And on page ten under discussion of the
20 role of the Portland Fire Bureau, in the first
21  sentence there it said his preferred option would
22 require a negotiated rate with the private
23 provider. That option would require negotiated
24 rates with all providers.
25 MR. ROBEDEAU: Bill, that's what |
%\ AR NN SRR RO Al Do
1 recall you saying. Maybe you can clarify thaton
2 what the negotiated rate was.
3 MR. COLLINS: Well, if we were going to
4 negotiate rates as opposed to bid rates, we'd
5 have to negotiate them with whoever was charging
6 rates. So the fire department and fire provider
7  would have to do the same thing. If | said that,
8 Ididn't mean that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | can understand that.
| have a coupie of things. On page
four, third paragraph, last sentence where it
says, "Robedeau sald that this company ran two
24-hour cars and that going to a single ASA would
eliminate those cars.” | didn't say - going to
a single ASA wouldn't make a% difference whether
ﬁ' not you had 24-hour cars. That's a correction
MR. SKEEN: Which paragraph?
MR. ROBEDEAU: Third paragraph, last
two lines.
MR. SKEEN: That it wouldn't make any
difference; is that what you're saying?
MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't think it would
make a difference. If | said what's there, |
didn't mean to. I'm kind of like, Bill. | don't

T T T e ge 5: g%

recall saying it, but what the hell.

Then on page nine, if | remember
correctly, Bill, we were ulkina about the
paramedic turnover. You sai u had not looked
at whether or not people went from company to
comaany ust that they left or —

R COLLINS: That's right. Does it
say somethlng different there?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Yes, it does.

MR. COLLINS: Where?

MR. ROBEDEAU: One, two, three, four,
five, six lines down which says he said that he
had looked to see if an employee went -

MR. MOSKOWITZ: it should be a "not.”

MR. COLLINS: it should be "not.”

MR. MOSKOWITZ: | think that was a
typo. | think | remember that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: That's all | have.

MR SKEEN: Pete, on page seven, first
pangwh three lines up from the bottom it
says, "Mr. Skeen suggests that a private provider
could screen calls to be dispatched b[y BOEC." |
have no idea what that even means. [ question
the context in which that was stated.

MR. ROBEDEAU: We were talking at that

X A S32RARNRRRR 55 2 ,99,,
time about calls coming into a private dispatch
with a CAD sgtem.

MR. SKEEN: And they could monitor?

MR. ROBEDEAU: No. Well, I'm not sure
that this is exactly accurate, but what it was
talking about was the private dispatch center
screening the calls and therefore having a value
within the system. I'm not quite sure off the
top of my head. | don't quite remember the
context of that right now, either, but there was
something on that.

MR. COLLINS: | think you were talking
about the dispatching, not call screening.
Because, you know, if you wanted to exercise that
kind of an option, a private provider or somebod
other than BOEC could dispatch calls, but no
other than BOEC would be the piece out. They
can’t be the answering point, even if you wanted

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think this was in
connection with a transfer.

MR. SKEEN: Transferring the screen
could receive a secondary screen from BOEC?
MR. COLLINS: You could be the
secondary but -- weren't we talking about

T 3 Page 7t
dispatchingé
MR. ROBEDEAU: We were tatking about

dispatching. If | remember right now, what it
was was we were talking about BOEC's interest
which was transferred directly. When they said
medical it went straight to —

MR. COLLINS: Is that what we were
talking about?

MR. SKEEN: Well, the followin
statement here where it says, "Mr. Collins said
that could be a possibility” on the discussion
that the private contractor could do the
dispatching of the units, and you said that could

be a slbillay.

taki aﬁ'?fc NS: Right, but not the call
ng.
Q?R DRAKE: if it came in as a medical
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call, isn't that what you were talklnF about,
Trace, that it would be automatically handed over
to the dls§€tcher?

MR. SKEEN: | don't think we ever got
to that point in the discussion.

MR. COLLINS: We never got it that
fine-tuned.
MR. THOMAS: Bill said you could have

dispatch if there was one provider, not if there
were multiples. And Pete said, "Gosh, that's the
first | ever heard you could do that.”
And Bili said, "l wanted to make it
clear | don’t agree with that concept but you
could do it.*
MR. ROBEDEAU: What shouid that read?
MR. THOMAS: K reaily should say that
Mr. Skeen suggests a private provider could
dispatch calls. | don't think he talked about -
MR. COLLINS: We just talked about the
dispatching.
MR. THOMAS: k had something to do
with the question of whether Bill had Lgroperly
eliminated dispatch calls from the ALS — your
dispatch center calls from the ALS rate and that
\glas wh:n you got into, well, we could actually
spatch.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Anything eise?
Does anybody have a motion to approve
the minutes as corrected?
MR. DRAKE: So moved.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Second?
MR. STEINMAN: Second.
MR. ROBEDEAU: in favor? Opposed?

age 9
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Carried.

Okay, two things today. We have Dr.
Norton here.

Are you here representing the Medical
Advisory Board, or are you here as a physician?

DR. NORTON: Both. I'm primarily here
as a medical advisory board representative.

MR. PHILLIPS: A concerned citizen.

MR. ROBEDEAU: I'm sure everybody knows
Dr. Norton.

Let's take a five-minute recess.

Discussion off the record.)

MR. SKEEN: | think there's about 12
copies here.

MR. KILMER: Why don't you give one to
the reporter and have the record refiect this was
gassed out at this meeting as the draft that Mr.

keen prepared, the side by side co rison
between the PAPA proposal and the Collins'
proposal.

Did you have arztchlng to do with that,
Mark? Is this a final ument or is this just
the first draft?

MR. DRAKE: First draft.

MR. COLLINS: We just faxed out what

. 3 N
you sent us as fast as we could put it in the fax
machine.

Discussion off the recotd.)

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think ever: here
knows Dr. Norton. If anybody doesn’t know Jon
Jui, Dr. Jon Jui is a supervisor. They're two
new ones that haven't been here betore.

| would like to go on with the agenda.
This first portion of agenda this morning was to
cover physician supervisors and MAB concerns on
the current szstem Mainly we're talking about
level of care here this mrnlv{g.

Do you have a copy of the agenda?

DR TON: | don't, no.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't know if | have
an extra one. Does anybody have an extra copy of
the agenda?

R. KILMER: Do you have one in front
of you?

MR. ROBEDEAU: 1 have one in front of
me. Here is one. | don't think I've marked on

DR. JUI: | have — yeah, | have the
genda.
MR. KILMER: Yes, that's it.

ONONMHBWN

OONOUDBWN

some notes on

that.

For your information, what we did is we
went through it at the first meeting and did a
tentative agenda that we got out to everybody
that's pretty explicit so we could stay on task
and get this — get this finished by and into the
county commission by May 14th.

what we have as the first item —
and these are suggested questions and we would
certainly hope an y would add anything that
they had to say or any concerns they may have
that are not here or anything that's addressed in
enhie'r one of the plans that we did not put on
our list.

But one of the things we had asked and
asked PAPA to attend, and they have apparently
refused, is what would be of concern to the

ramedics, and their answer was pretty much
nd out for x’ouvself.' But let's move on with
our agenda for today.

. Norton is a representative of the
Medical Advlsorz Board. | know the Medical
Advisory Board has some concerns. Could you
articulate those for us?
R : S
DR. NORTON: Boy, | don't think | want
to be the spokesperson for the Medical Advisory
Board at this time because | think my opinion is
different from some of the others on the board.
| guess the question is the level of care in the
current system and how the ASA plans should be
designed to address those issues. Is that the
question under review?

MR. ROBEDEAU: The concerns expressed
over the past or the concerns expressed by the
MARB at their last meeting and what are the
concerns the MAB has with level of care, if any.
And I'm not trying to put you on the spot. If
you want us to back off that and let you off the
spot, that's fine.

DR. NORTON: Well, | can express some
of my own personal opinions about it, | guess.
One of the issues, | think, in this system is
it's my belief that there are probably too many
paramedics in the system, so that the experience
of an individual paramedic is limited; and that
experience is measured by the number of critical
care patients that they take care of and of the
number of skills that they do. And in
particular, the one area that | have major

concern about is the airway management skills,
and | don’t have hard data to prove that.

| have anecdotal experience and that,
of course, is subject to a lot of bias. But |
think one of the problems in the current system
is that we don’t have a good way to monitor that
kind of experience. We don't have the data base
to look at that. So | think that is an issue.

That, | guess, would be my main area of
concern. | think there's issues still about
training, and the physician supervisors are
meeting regularly to address that and try to come
up with a cohesive, co ehensive, organized
training program which includes continuin
education; so that the paramedics are hearing a
more unified voice from the physician supervisors
rather than each individual physician
lmerpreuﬁ ‘zrotoools individually, which may
disagree some of the other supervisors.

So | think we've made good progress
along those lines. And it's hard to measure the
effect of that. | don't have any way to say
whether that's improved the system. it's my
belief it has.

So | think that my major concern, |

guess, for the system as itis is that I'm
concerned that the paramedics aren’t individually
seeing enough critical patients and maintaining
their skills and procedures.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay.

DR. NORTON: i'd like to hear Jon's
view of that, also. He offers another
perspective on that.
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9 MR. ROBEDEAU: Are you representing
10 physician supervisors?
" DR. JUI: { guess | could.
12 MR. ROBEDEAU: Why don’t we hear from
13  you?
14 DR. JUI: We share the same concerns,

15 aithough it's hard for us to determine whether

16 these concerns are in total valid, because we

17  have no data showing comparisons between
outcomes

18  of highly trained paramedics versus outcomes of

19 people with not as much critical experience.

20 In other words, | couldn’t say — it

21 would be nice to do a study between the Seattle

22 two-tiered system where you have, quote-unquote,

23  highly trained paramedics who have a delayed

24 response or paramedics who are not as hlihly

25 trained with critical patients. Does that make a

£0R000200%R22 323
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1 difference or not? And | really don't know.

2 i can't tell you any studies that has

3 shown that kind of outcome. Although it's

4 logical to assume that if you deliver, given all

5 the Jaarameters are equal, the highly trained

6 medical people you get a better outcome;

7 parameters being arrival at the scene, same

8 equipment, same time, same dispatch, same level
18 of care in the emergency department and final

care.

11 That's addressing Bob's - | have a lot
12  of other concerns, as well, if you want me to go
13  into that now.

14 MR. ROBEDEAU: | think Trace wanted to
15 saysomething here.

16 MR. SKEEN: | just had some questions.
17 When you talk about training and high

18  performance, is the training — are you looking

19 attraining as a component of having more

20 experience because of having more incidents, that
21  theyare —

22 DR. JUI: Yeah. I'm looking at patient

23  encounters. The axiom is usually assuming you're
24  the same intelligent person, the more experience
25 you have the better because you've been through

1 that scenario before and you know how to react
2  and you've thought about it before.
3 The more experience with medical
4  leadership the better, because at least you know
5 what you're doing sometimes. Sometimes the blind
6 canlead the blind. But given the contextual
7 sltuation of an equally qualified medic, the more
8 experienced medic, from a medical point of view,
9 is going to probably have a better outcome.
10 And there is a corollary in medicine
11 for that, and the corollary is it's obvious you
12  need to do an internship and residency before you
13 realla, quote-unquote, know what you're doing.
R. SKEEN: | think ciearly there is an
15 issue of the number of incidents. | guess
16 question is: Are you insinuating that there is a
17  higher level of training that's available to
18 current paramedics within the system that they're
19 notreceiving, or are you just talking about
20 experience?
21 DR. JUI: No. 1think experience — |
22 think the level of training is actualily quite
23 good within the system. It could be better, and
24 some of the areas where it could be better is
25 obviously airway. Some of that we're trying to

R 'age 175

1 work on right now, and that's access to airway

2 areas of training, specifically O.R.'s or

3 operating rooms.

4 So that facility has not been made

5 available to us, and that's a political as well

6 as an operational issue within the community.

7 But as far as the other areas of training, |

8 think we do a pretty good job. There is -

9 DR. NORTON: | would support that, too,
10 except that | think there are still some — |

11 mean, for instance, the paramedic program that
12 we're assoclated with up on the hill, we send our
13 interns, our students, for internships at other
14 systems because we don't feel that in this system
15 that they get enough of the intensive rience
16 and exposure to patients that they need during

22
23
24

25

| do ~ Is that the public must have easy access.

the concentrated time during thelr internship.

And | know that other programs in the
area still intern here. We do occasionally; I'm
not saying we never do. But I'm saying the
majority of the students that come out of our
program take their internship in other EMS
systems, because we feel the intensity of
exposure during internship is not there in this
system.

: re's
although if you take a look at our current
internship site location, that's not a hu
variable. We're sending peopie up to Tacoma and
some of the other places and the volume is,
guote. fairly similar. You can get experience

ere.

Most of the reasons for sending people
lwa%ehave been to see another system. They have
a different outlook, a broader outlook on how the
systems are arranged. The other would be do not
burden one system with the educational body of

{hamedic ucation. So there's more variables

at.

MR. LAUER: | might point out aiso
there's a lot of competition for internships.
There's a lot of paramedic training programs. We
certainly feel that we're inundated by requests
for internships, and there’s only so many that
any provider can reasonably acoomnod!te to
provide a good experience.

DR. JUI: | think there is a dichotomy.
The dichotomy is that essentially EMS systems by
comparison —~ everybody knows about it more than

SN SR Page 195
They must have someone to answer the phone, and
they must have someone to respond as quickly as
they can to the scene if it's a critical
incident. And they need to make an assessment at
the scene and, if necessary, take that person as
qulcklxnas possibie to the hospital.
d basically that's sort of our

emergency response from an operational ?olnt of
view. There's a lot involved in that, where If
you take a look at our system right now where we
are weak is not ALS response. In part, our BLS
response is only meeting it 75 percent of the
time. ALS is 90 percent or 85 percent or 95

rcent, depen Ing on how you draw your times.

‘re not doing CPR. We're having some
problem with 911 dispatch. Qur BLS responders
are not genlng there. Some parts of our area
are not having defibrillation, and in certain
cases alrways is not being controlied, and I'm
having a probiem from medical directors training
my BLS providers. There's only so many hours and
$0 many trainers that ~

MR. KILMER: Jon, how are you using the

term BLS provider? | thought we had an all ALS
system.

DR. JUI: First responders.

MR. KILMER: |s BLS response —

DR. JUI: Yes.

MR. KILMER: Thanks.

DR. JUI: As you know, Jeff, there is a
combination of BLS and ALS first responders, but
the majority of my problems right now is with BLS
first responders. |'m having a hard time as a
medical director getting to them and training
them. Not because there's not a desire, it's
just that there's 600 or so bodies. In order to
get efficient quality you have to be everywhere,
and that's what the major problem is that | have.

Getting back to paramedics, the top
dichotomy is having enough to cover time response
but having a small enough number to maintain a
critical experience, and there is a magic number,
whatever that is.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | just wanted to
interject something here. You're talking about
having a problem with your training of first
responders. Under either one of the plans or the
cct':rrent ?system is anything on that going to

ange
DR. JUI: Without — without getting
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into — depending upon what — let's assume that
the support of the plan is — the example Mr.
Collins pointed out, and | thought we publicly
said this, any support of the fire service which
is essentially BLS and ALS depending on first
responders would enhance fire's ability to train
BLS first responders.
And my point here, in putting my fire

hat on, is that the system needs to support each
other, and there is need within the fire service
to deve|or an EMS operation that would support
BLS training first responders.

MR. KILMER: Isn't it fair to say that
if the fire service was to do the first response
in the tiered situation that Mr. Collins is
talking about that it would greatly accelerate
the number of early ALS response and at least to
that extent address your concern?

DR. JU!I: Partially. If you take Mr.
Collins’ plan, plan B, which some of you are in
favor of here, and say that there's mone
allocation to first responders, that would also
address it as well. So we're looking at
resources that are finite within the system.

MR. STEINMAN: |f we're comparing these

SRR

two pians, | think the biggest problem with BL.
tralnlngels J)hyslclan time. | think PAPA's plan
would isastrous if we go with that single
medical czar. That gerson would be busy enough
just taking care of the paramedics in the system
and never touch the first response.

MR. LAUER: | guess | have a broad
question. We're talking about level of care, and
we seem to be focusing on first response right
now. What do we as a group want to accomplish
with first response? That first four minutes, if
that's the standard we ask for, what do we want
to have done between four minutes and when the
ALS unit arrives?

DR. JUI: | think that's pretty clear.
The major interventions that have been proved to
be of efficacy have been — actually three
interventions. Number one would be determination
of criticality of iliness, proper mobilization.
That's been a hidden agenda that most outcomes
have not really studied.

The second one obviously is paramedic
intervention, and third one is early
defibriflation. Qutside those interventions, |
don’t think you could be a sound medical model

s g

RS R
for sayin anythinF else. It's my bias th
certain other ALS interventions — of particular

interest is heart failure, dmysrhythmias can be of

benefit, but | don't have the data to prove that
right now.
MR. DRAKE: So if you wanted to, your

model for first responder service would be that

the paramedic engine co nies, paramedic first

response with early defibrillation ~
DR JUi: Yeah. There are two major

advanta to the ALS engine first response

system. The primary advantage for me is | have

noticed within the last 18 to 24 months that

there is a dichotomy between our engines, BLS

engines and ALS engines.

| go to an ALS engine. The Tﬁle on

the crew know they're EMS. Wh ere is a role

model, continuous feedback, there's 24-hour

training, there's questions and answers. So |
have represen . My agents are my medics
who actuall ss that information down to my
other 600 EMT-1's.

MR. DOHERTY: | was going to ask you

that question, if you can tel] the difference

between —

DR. JUI: Absolutely. K's like night
and day. it's not even — you have a hard time
believing you're in the same system. | go around
and | go around to — | do ride-alongs all the
time and there's a night and day difference.

| can’t get to that system and that
kind of ievel of training without putting a medic
in the house, and that's — that's sort of my

hidden agenda with ALS and first response. You

could make a case for early EEG's and good BLS

tralnlrg but | still have a training problem.
essentially the ALS engine process

futfills m%prlmary need and then it's EMS

training for EMT-1's and BLS responders, and

that's the real need that | have.

MR. LAUER: So to accomplish that, the
optimum would be to put a paramedic in every fire
station?

DR. JUI: Yes, that's correct.

MR. DOHERTY: Does it make a
ditference, have you been able to look at whether
or not you have a paramedic in any of your
stations versus a paramedic actually on the
englnei' i.e., the paramedic goes out on the
rescue

S R
DR. JUl: There's a difference and

1
2 that's dynamics, the difference between dynamics
3 in station houses. And the paramedic on the
4 engine is part of the crew. en they're a part
5 the crew, the crew responds when they're given
6 responsibility. When they're isolated to a
7  rescue, itis those guys that do EMS. We just do
8 fire, okay?
9 MR. PHILLIPS: The worst trained or
10 experienced EMT's that we have are the ones on
11 the engine that are stationed in the station with
12 the rescue because the rescue handies all the
13 first response in that station. They don't have
14  any patient contact unless the rescue is
15 somewhere else and another call happens in their
16  station.
17 MR. LAUER: How many fires stations are
18 there in Multnomah County?
19 DR. JUI: Thirty-three, plus Corbett
20  Fire, plus Sauvie Island —
21 R. ROBEDEAU: Bill, does your plan
22 call for a paramedic in Corbett and Sauvie Island
23 and Sigﬁne and that?
24 MHA. COLLINS: No. In fact, | think
25 there was a mistake in what we said. But on the
T T Page 26
1 rsonnel part of this, we proposed that the EM
2 g:sic list of the minimum requirement for anybody
3 engaged in any EMS response, and that was more to
4 set a standard for the smallier departments so
5 they could work towards it.
6 | mean, | know that Sauvie island isn't
7 going to scoop everybody up and round them out
8 and 24:( them trained all of a sudden, but that
9 was kind of — you know, being a predominantly
10  urban area that that was the minimum requirement.
11 That's all that we said. We didn’t say anybod
12 had to do anything with that. Now we have other
13 tralnlng.
14 MR. LAUER: | wanted to kind of follow
15 along on the map of the desired outcome. A
16  desired outcome would be to put a paramedic in
17 evers fire station.
18 R. JUI: Let me finish this point.
19 MR. ROBEDEAU: We need to determine
20 which fire stations you're going to put them in
21 in order to — | think | know where you're going.
22 MR. LAUER:eLfdyou put one in every one
23  of them, you'd n over 200 paramedics.
124 MR. KILMER: Can | just sugbg:st that to
25 address what Randy is talking a

ut, Jon said he

as additional concerns early on, and Trace aske
a question, and we never got all of the concerns
on the table. it seems to me as we go to desired
outcomes, we ought to be taltking about that in
terms of all of the concerns that Jon has and Bob
has and the MAB has if we can state them and talk
about it as a system.

Because we're focusing on the first
responder's ability to address a large number of
these things, and that's independent of the
privates or the numbers of privates, and that
needs to be segregated, at least from the medical
point of view It seems to me as we discuss this
around this table.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Well, | think thatis
E" of at least Bill's plan — and correct me,
I, if I'm wrong —~ and what Randy is getting
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at is how many paramedics under Bill's plan as
opposed to the number of Raramedks under the
current system or the PAPA plan.

MR. KILMER: I'm saying that you have
to discuss that in terms of ali of the concerns,
and those concerns are not on the table. So you
ought to get the concerns on the table and then
tatk about that. Because one without the other

is only going to leave you having ans
probiem but not addressing four or five others.

MR. LAUER: Well, Bob Norton and Jon
both brought up that they think there's too many
paramedics in the system, and | tend to agree
with that.

MR. KILMER: Those are on the list, but
he hasn't completed the list.

DR. NORTON: Well, if you want another
item, | think the turnover is an issue, so maybe
we can talk about that.

DR. JUI: Let's talk about the process
for a second. The process that I'm envisionin
riaht now this very minute is to establish needs,
physician and EMS needs, and then we can go and
decide which system would best fit those items.

| agree with you, Randy; for quality

ALS we have a problem with too many medics. I'm
not saying it isn't a problem. I'm telling you
there’'s a need from BLS first response to
maintain EMS expertise. I'm not sure if | have
the answer as far as that, but there is a need.
I'm just sfxing that. | know what you are —

MR. LAUER: | think you misunderstood
me. You're talking in a context of level of

care, and | think it's important to talk about
what level you want and what that means in terms
of meetlnﬁ your total needs, the —

DR. JUI: The other need, before |
forget, is that EMS is not static. Itis
dynamic. By that, | mean there are certain
advances that come along down the pike, as you
all know. It's not unique to EMT-4's or 3's or
2's or 1's or even first responders.

So, you know, 1994 may come to a point
for something ridiculous that - like we find
that magnesium would be efficacious at the first
resgonse level. How am | going to do that for
BLS without having someone that knows what to do
from an ALS point of view? Again, the training
needs are not static. Today it's AED. It may be
the PTL or — tomorrow might be early L.V. Drug,
a wonder drug, or whatever itis. So that's the
other need.

We're seeing creep -- creep up of
national BLS standards, are going to come up with
AED's and potentially intermediate airway. How
are you going to maintain that airway? There's
600 people you've got to pass through every year
to maintain that airway. there's continuous

education need and the need to incorporate newer
technologies and newer medical advances when
they're deemed to be appropriate for the system.

MR. DRAKE: So to clarify what you're
saying, what | hear you saying — part of what
you're asking for to put that paramedic on an
engine, they would be the medical leader for that
engine company?

DR. JUI: Absolutely.

MR. DRAKE: So you don't need to train
necessarily all the BLS technicians to do PTL and
to do ali of that stuff because you have a
paramedic that knows how to do all of that?

DR. JUI: That's right.

MR. DRAKE: So it simplifies your
training needs and your access to the people?

DR. JUI: Absolutel¥.

MR. SKEEN: Well, | thought | had it
until you agreed to that. If | understand what
Mark just said, is that you don't need to turn
the BLS people to the AED and those other issues
because you have the paramedic. My sense was
that that paramedic assists you with teaching the
rest of that engine crew or the BLS people on the
crew —

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

8

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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MR. STEINMAN: Why do we need an AED it
v:e have a defibrillator there with a paramedic on

?
DR. JUI: You don't need an AED. What
we need is an assessment and the skills of
knowiedge and assessment of the EMT-1's and BLS
ple to know what to do, how to do it, how to
Il out the forms and the proper oaches.
The actual technical skills of operating an AED
are real technical. They're almost - there's a
certain amount of finite hours you can learn, and
either you know it or you don't know it. With a
medic there you don't need that amount of skills.
On the other hand, what you do need is
good EMT-1's that can work as a team to identify
as a resource and deliver better patient care.
And | actually think there's a question of are
two medics better than an engine medic? In some
ways an engine medic, an EMT-1 and a medic is a
bit superior in some ways to a combination of two
EMT-4's, are superior. | don't really have a
solid answer as far as that's concerned
MR. SKEEN: Just to backtrack, so |
understand this, very quickly. You talked about
the interventions of the first response being the

1 determination of predictability and
2 immobilization and stability. ndly was
3 airway, and | guess my question on that is: it
4 basic airway management or advanced airway
5 mana&emem?
g DR. JUI: Basic airway management right
now.
8 MR. SKEEN: And third was early
9 defibriliation?
10 DR. JUI: That's right.
1 MR. SKEEN: Gtax. And then your
12 comments were that there is a marked difference
13  between a group of BLS people that has a
14  paramedic In their midst versus those that have
15 paramedics that they rely on to run the rescue,
16  to run all the EMS stuff.
17 DR. JUI: That's correct.
18 MR. SKEEN: What you're saying is that
19 u saw a real advantage with a paramedic being a
20 cilitator to help with the training process
21  with these BLS people to accomplish these tasks
22  as first responders
23 DR. JUI: Exactly. it's much more than
24 training. It's attitude, and the attitude
25 permeates the whole house. And those are
1 primarily the BLS needs. On certain of the
2 E:imary ALS, BLS airways are not being met either
3 use they can't do it. Their jaws are
4 clenched or they can't maintain protection
5 because they don't have any PTL tubes. Maybe the
6 PTL tube is an answer, but [ don't know how ~
7 MR. ROBEDEAU: One clarification that
8 needs to be made. If there's 33 total fire
9 stations between two de, ments, | think we're
10 talking about closer to 100 paramedics, assuming
11 that there's a paramedic in every fire station on
% every shift rather than 200. That would be 99
us —
14 MR KILMER: Jon, have you articulated
15 all of your concerns?
}g D JIUk !r:aver'l"t had lt’hee " iy
opportunity. There hasn't been the opportun
18 to do this at the Medical Advisory Board.
19 MR. KILMER: Right. But here you do
20 have the opportunity to articulate all of your
21 concerns.
22 DR. JUi: That's what I'm saying.
23 MR. KILMER: And have you articulated
24 them here?
25 DR. JUI: Oh, | have more.
& R i Page 34
1 MR. KILMER: Why don't you get those on
2 thetable? y get
3 h MR. DRAKE: Dr. Norton had one, too,
ere.
5 DR. JUl: The two primary ALS skills
6 obviously is, as we said before, paramedic skills
7 and knowledge. Some of those are numbers and
8 some critical encounters. | think our system
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needs an effective quality management program.
We're trying to integrate that right now. it's

not being put on hold, but this process has
superseded that process.

We need better community input and
feedback from our people that we deliver patients
to, both patients as well as other providers. We
hear a lot of bitching, and there’s no mechanism
to hear that bitching. | would prefer to get
before all the directors, nursing and medical
directors, of the emergency department and say,
“Okay, this is the forum. You're goin? to yell
at me, okay, and I'm going to hear all your
bitches. If you don't bring them up now, don't
say you never told me or didn't have an
opportunity.” That needs to be done, and we need
to work on solutions as a system to iron out

T
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those problems.

ere are other special needs, and
those include disaster management, hazardous
materials management, urban rescues as well. And
EMS needs to be integral to that. You don’t have
t0 be part of the same operation, but it needs to
be incorporated within those special operations
teams.

There needs to be more prevention, and
specifically In]uggneventlon. EMS, in order to
survive in the 1990's, is going to have to make
its case before the health care providers. And
as we're going through this MPH stuff you're
going to need to talk their language and do their
analysis in a way that they want to hear and that
the system needs to go to that.

From a user point of view, costis a
huge problem. Stability, system stability being
iow turnover of EMS dispatchers, BLS providers
and ALS providers and BP providers in all of the
systems. Finally, research is a need, continued
research and analysis of our system. Those are
my big needs of what | think or consider this
system needs.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Bob?

age .

DR. NORTON: Weli, | can just basically
echo all of those. | think the quality
management issue should assume a priority. |
think one of the advances that we’ve seen in the
last couple of years is the physician supervisors
are working more closely together, but they're
still stymied somewhat by access to the
information from the different companies and not
being able to share that and look at a problem
from a system perspective rather than from an
individual agency’s perspective. And | think
that clearly needs to be changed and coordinated
and make it more comprehensive, | think.

MR. KILMER: On that point, have you
made an effort to articulate those problems to
the various providers and seek to smooth those
out? In other words —~

DR. NORTON: | personally have not, no.
But in the different forums that we have,
different quality assurance activity, it always
seems to come up. Now, I'm not saying tzt:m can't
get any information, but there's always the
question, “Well, can we release this, can we
share this,” that kind of thing. Just some of —
it's just the cumbersomeness of going through all

of the agencies and trying to ask for it and
that information. It's improved. | have to g=t
admit that,

MR. KILMER: One of the issues that has
always been one that has been supported by the
single der components is the idea that
would be easier to administer a single versus a
:hulti de group ::' ambulance companies from the

an sy sor perspective.

v And | hgg had some conversations with
your department now that all of these are the —
all of the major groups in this area except for
Metro West, as | understand it, are concentrated
now in your department.

And I've heard that that problem has
diminished a great deal, and I'm wonderin
whether you can tell us in the complex of all of

s
AR

the things the physician supervisors have to deal
with how large a factor is the one you're
articulating now? Is it still 2 major factor in
allowing adequate physician supervision? Does it
take significant additional amounts of time?
Does it slow down your process of bring
uniformity to the system to any significant
extent, and has thére been resistance to your
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efforts to try and cure that problem?

Those are the kinds of things that |
think we need as a provider board here to decide
how big a problem that is and whether it can be
solved In a multiple provider situation to the
satisfaction of the reasonable physician
supervisor.

DR. NORTON: | think the answer to most
of your questions was yes, but there has been
improvement, and | want to make that clear.
Because we just have completed a study on
contacting medical resource hospitals before
using certain drugs for presumed congestive heart
failure, and all of the agencies cooperated very
well with that.

]egut it takes s:l)methln like that ether |
project to get people to work more together,
think. And what we need is a system designed to
do that on regular basis rather than going
through a research project to get it done. But
clearly over the last couple of years it's much
better than it was before. And | am not
discouraged. | think that it can improve even
more, but | think there still is a need.

MR. KILMER: Jon, you've had experience

supervising both the first responder a
more privates. Have you found it — have you
found you've been able to do your job in a
uniform fashion that way?

DR. JUI: | think, yes. Multiple
providers can work, assuming that they're all on
the same thinking as we are. | would rather have
two multiple providers that are pro EMS than one
single provider that really is anti EMS.

A good example would be Philadelphia
Fire where it's really anti EMS and that seems to
be stagnated. You could be sitting here with a
list of good single providers and bad single
Rvoviders and good muiltiple providers, as well.

is easier from a single operations point of
view to have a singie provider.

Essentially, a single provider will
automatically do single operations. So | want to
reiterate, if you have BLS first response and ALS

u already have two providers, and you need to
ntegrate the two systems, assuming you're only
on one system.

And so if you design a multiple
provider system, you need to have single
operations and a single way of quality assurance,
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medical direction and unified operations.

MR. KILMER: Based on your experience,
you see that as a reasonable possibility in a
fmuitiple system?

DR. JUi: it can be if you design the
system correctly. lt's more difficult.

MR LAUER: So systemn design would be
reallz ﬁgurlngvout how to coordinate —

R JUI: Yes.

MR. KILMER: | think the thing has to
start with making that a high priority rather
than it's something you have to do and a
drudgery. Quality management has to be elevated
to aimost number one in priority for everyone,
and then the organization comes from that and
operations from it will go smoothly.

DR. JUI: | think it would be helpful,
Jeff, to go through a process - let's assume
that we wanted to go for congestive heart
fallure. For us to do this rI?ht now, | would
have to go through each of the providers
education officer and operations manager and okay
that with him or her.

And so right now — before it was

three, so | would go to all three and that's
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1 duplicity of work. If there was one provider, |
2 would sit down with one or two meetings and you'd
3 bedone with it.
4 One of my biggest frustrations as a
5 medical supervisor is essentially the system,
6 although controlled by the super doc, is
7 controlled by legislative action. Legislative
8 action is the MAB — that's , but it's not
9 near as responsive as the dictator system.
10 An example, with Seattle, if you say
11 something is going to happen, it's going to
12 happen throughout the whole system. The danger
13 from the dictator system, if the dictator is not
14 knowledgeable, he or she will take that system
15 down the wrong pathway for awhile. There's no
16 checks and balances to that system.
17 As a physician supervisor | think there
18 needs to be checks and balances to the system but
19  not burdensome to quick medical direction and
20 changes and quick implementation of resources and
21  know ed%e and equipment.
22 MR. KILMER: In the whole context of
23 physician supervision though this difficulty of
24 mulitiple contacts for a new program, does that
25 represent one percent, five percent, ten percent
1 ot fifty percent of your duties? That's really
2 what 'm trying to do is quantify this problem,
3 because everybody focuses on the problems, it
4 seems, and no one focuses on how much would be
5 the same whether you had single versus multiple.
6 DR. JUI: It's not an insignificant
7 problem. R's moderate.
8 DR. NORTON: As an example, Jon has the
9 system of monitoring the skills and procedures
10 per paramedic instituted in his agency. But when
11 we talked about trylnito do this as a
12 system-wide, it was like it's a huge project and
13 it would be very difficult to implement.
14 But that should be something that the
15 whole system is doing now. And it's something
16 that | think we should still work for, but it
17 will be a lot of work trying to get that
18 coordinated through all the different agencies.
19  Yet it should be something that everybody is
20 doing routinely.
21 MR. STEINMAN: | have a question for
22 Bill, I guess.
23 gets kind of confusing when we're
54 talking about single providers and c:;uali|tyh
&) s
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management with everybody involved

R oo

possible to ever see a single provider EMS in
this sgtem? My way of thinking, you'd have to
have 9-1-1 for every fire first response agency
plus the ambulance. | mean, there is no such
thing as the possibility of a sInFIe provider
system in Multnomah County, Is there?

MR. COLLINS: If you are looking at a
single agency to do all of it, it would be pre
hard. Because even if you wanted fire, you'
have to have one of the fire departments assume
all the rest of them.

MR. STEINMAN: You know, | don't know
what the single provider system is that we keep
talking about. | don'tthinkit's a possibmm
There's always going to be multiple providers in
the system.

R. KILMER: | think the point that Tom

is making is so important from this, because
peopie tend to assume if you reduce three
providers to one you've eliminated all the

oblems. The factis: A number of agencies
nvolved in this are dispatch, police, fire, the
hospitals. And reducing from three to one is
really not going to solve very much at all of the
kind of problem that you were talking about.

And in that sense, this needs to be
xantlﬂed and put into perspective, as well.

d it's that depth of thinking that | think
everyone in the system needs to engage in when
they really talk about the relative benetits of
system change and where the burden ought to lie
in light of some of the risks that Jon has

Identified about going to a single system and

having it not work well or become extremely
expensive, as the Seattle system is.

MR. STEINMAN: I'd like to gﬂm out
for the record that was not a sate way for Mr.
Kilmer, that | was pointing out — | was just
getting confused, especially the Q.|. Process
when we get on that. | mean, it's a horrendous
problem to try to brlr;? everybody er now,
and | think it will continue to be a problem.
ae;aduse”l‘thlnk that's the biggest probiem we're

with,

The State of Oregon decided that the
only thing they could address on EMS was

lances, and that's what they've pawned off on
the county to do. And then we've ?ot you over
there s first

to do ALS, your questions about paramedics. And
we're ali sitting here and looking at ambulance
service area ,)?ans. not ALS planning, and it's
realla confus ng.
R. LAUER: 1| think the state must

describe first response in the statute.

MR. STEINMAN: It describes it, but
tells you to mention it. It doesn't tell you to
use it in your planning process, to make It part
g‘f’ your system. It just says, “Teil us what you

DR. JUI: The other major problemis a
regional problem. No matter what you do — let’s
assume there's a disaster hazardous materia’.
Those clouds are going to cross the Multnomah
County, Washlna:n County, Clackamas County line.
it doesn’t care. have muklple oviders in
those counties. They're goln? to be milling
around four or five countries in this area.

There needs to be an interaction between ali EMS
providers and health care providers that deal
tw;r':th EMS, and right now there's no forum for

at.

24 A good example is a disaster management
25 plan. have no area regional wide disaster
T T
1 management planning effectively going on. Wh
2 Theress no forum. There's no dictator. We haveW
3 essentially nothing that would be equivalent to
4 an Aten one or regional EMS authority. There's
5§ no structure hanging on. Citizens are confused.
6 They say, ‘Well, why can't everybody work
7 together?”
8 It's not that simple. You have no
9  structure to work together in. There's no
10 mandate from the state, etc. That hole is going
11 to continue to occur uniess one or two things
12 happen: All the EMS providers get together and
13 say, "t's going to kill us, we better work
14 together,” or “There's going to be a dictate from
15 the state saying you need to work together,” one
16 of the two.
17 MR. STEINMAN: But in this process I'd
18 like ma if the providers could figure out what
19 arewe ookln% at, just the ambulance end of it,
20 or are we looking at first response that Randy
21  wanted to point out would burden the system with
22 more paramedics? [It's two separate issues, and
23  I'mnot sure - I'm starting to get concerned
24 myseif.
25 MR. ROBEDEAU: | think what we're here
1 for, Tom, is to look at two separate plans. We
2 have the EMS plan and PAPA plan, and part of what
3 todayis is to look at the medical aspects of
4 both plans. And part of the medical as , &%
5 lunderstand it, as articulated by both Dr.
6 Norton and Dr. Jui, are the coordination. |
7  think what we need to do now is address how Dr.
8 Norton and Dr. Jul rexreseming physician
9 supervisors in the MAB see both plans fitting in,
10 addressing the issues that we've just
11 articulated.
12 Does the PAPA plan and the EMS plan, do
13 they or do they not address the issues, or do
14  they address parts of them and not other parts of
15 them? | think we need to keep this on — what
16 we're here to do is to evaluate the plans and
17 make a report to Bill Collins.
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MR. LAUER: We aiso, Pete, we talked
about addresslng&ssues -

MR. ROBEDEAU: We did do that, but
right now we've come along with a lot of concerns
addressed by the medical community, and | think
to keep this on task the way, you know, | think
we need to do it is to now determine off the two
plans if any of these are addressed or if they
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are not addressed or if they could be addressed,
and then address the things that are not in
either plan.

MR. LAUER: Tom's question was: Do we
look just at ambulance providers or do we look at
the whole system?

MR. COLLINS: | don't think you can do
that. | can't possibly see - and hopefully it
was somewhat refiected in our plan that we put

er. | do not see how you can look at
transporting ambulance services for 9-1-1 systems
and not look at a first response. | just don’t
know how you -- even if you say we're going to
keep the first response exactly like it is an
that's going to then drive these decisions. |
mean, ;just can'tdo it.
M EEN: You can'tlook atitin a
vacuum, and | think Dr. Jul specified that in
looking -- forget about who is going to be the
provider of services. What's the outcome, or
what are the outcomes you're trying to reach, and
what's the reasonable methodoiogy for reaching
those outcomes?
And you went through and enumerated
that. And 'm disappointed you didn't have the

oo EE Page 4
venue to provide that before, because we talked

last time about the difficulty of getting input
on the clinical performance of the system
heretofore. I'm fairly new to the system, but
what you've offered today is probably more than |
received in the —

MR. KILMER: Last two years.

MR. SKEEN: Two ¥ears for me.

MR. ROBEDEAU: That's what | was
saying. Does the PAPA plan address the EMS
system? No. That's my opinion.

DR. JUl: To be honest, neither plan

MR. ROBEDEAU: Does the Collins’' plan,
or this count(y Rlan, for lack of a better term,
address it? | think it tries. | think it could
be added.

DR. JUI: There’s more body in the
Collins plan that would sugpon a system wide
operations issue than the PAPA plan.

MR. COLLINS: You need to identify if
there are pieces missing because they need to get
into the - whatever the final document is going
to be"i

we need to -

DR. NORTON: | would like to just add
that one piece that | think needs more discussion
and review is the integration of air transport in
the system. | think the paramedical transport is
an ambulance system, and I'm surprised that
there’s not a representative from Life Flight on
this board. Because | think they provide ALS
::sponse, and they shouid be included within

& -

MR. COLLINS: They are included.
They're just not here.

R. ROBEDEAU: Dave Long, as far as |
know, is Life Flight's representative, but they
have not come to a provider board meeting, and |
can't tell you when the last one was.

MR. LAUER: Because they don't provide
first response.

DR NORTON: But we're not just talking
*POMR SKEEN: A

: Alr transport, yes.

MR ROBEDEAU: Are you talking also
about fixed wlrg: out of the alrtgorts

DR. NORTON: No. | think that we can
deal with the problem on a manageable basis |

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

ONONDWN

contact with critical patients that will ma

e
think just within scene response.
R. COLLINS: Well, plus, there are no

fixed wing carriers in this area that provide the
patient care component, that I'm aware of.

MR. LAUER: Well, | hope the fixed wing
people don’t start doing scene response.

MR. COLLINS: No, no. They just have a
big hook and they fly very low.

MR. KILMER: Swoop and scoop.

MR. STEINMAN: ! think that's a good
point, though, because one of our members of the
citizens' group did recommend we do all first
response using helicopters just like Emanuel, so
maybe we should get them involved.

MR. ROBEDEAU: All first response?
0 ?MR. DRAKE: Have we completed your

[

DR. NORTON: | think the research part
of it is a very important component of the system
design, and | think we're going to have to
justl?y what we do more and more. And we're
going to have to do outcomes research, and we're
going to have to look at the technology that
we're using. | think we need to look at the ALS

improve the system. | think that's open to some
question.
So | think more and more that that

should be designed as like with quality
management, one of the high priorities within the
system, to continually analzzeeﬂwhat we're doing
and ask the question is it e ive.

MR. KIL Si?h S&ould thc?'t be dt:hne before 2
you come u a plan to change the system

DR NOETON: No. Well, ldeallr, yes.
But, | mean, it's just the logistics of trying to
get all the questions answered Is just so
overwhelming. | think that we need to take small
parts of what we do in EMS and ook at them on an
ongoing basis and say does this make sense? Is
it reailly an improvement in care, and is it cost
effective?

And | think those are the measures

which we're going to have to justify our being in
the next few years. We might as well incorporate
thatin ar'o( s&stem desl?n.

MR. KILMER: Can | then ask this
question which was raised, it seems to me, by
your first concern, which is, there are too many
providers in the system to allow the level of

S age 53
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the skills, the paramedic contacts. And
considered in isolation, you can obviously
increase that level of skill by reducing the
number of people that are allowed to respond to a
finite number of critical care experiences in
this system. o blem Is th :
e major problem s that our people

are telling me that the number of crlticar
incident occurrences in the system is quite low.
it is probably 10, maybe 15 percent that might be
considered. When you actually arrive at the
scene it's 5, maybe 10 percent of the kinds of
things that are really going to respond to

rience where you have the unlglue situation, a
very severe injury and that kind of thing. There
is an enormous cost associated with concentrating
that group of paramedics.

Number one, you have to dedicate the
systern and, number two, you probably have to
concentrate that in the first responder. And if
you're goina‘to do it that way, the tax cost or
the cost of the EMS component alone of the system

is very high. And at some point is the cost so
high that you can't increase, you know, this

DR. NORTON: Weli, | think those are
good points. | think, though, the 10 to 15
percent is something that has been looked at in
other systems and probably it applies to aimost
all EMS systems. it may be even lower than that.
But the issue is not only just havin
those paramedics see those patients. | think

age 47 to Page 54

Lord, Nodland, Studenmund

(503) 299-6200



9 having a smaller group of paramedics aliows you
10 to do other training than just patient care and
} ; patlemi contact, aithou 't‘h‘ siti | belifve that'z
a very important part of their experience an
13 their maintenance of the skills. But ongoing
14 training, continuing education will be a lot more
15 effective with a smaller group of paramedics.
16 MR. KILMER: See, the reality of this
17  is that you have 40,000 responses a year. You
18  have something like 60 to 70 percent that you
19  actually involve transports. Of those, that's
20 the onl%group that is 10 to 15 percent. If you

21  divide that out, what rou have is a couple
22 thousand of these things, maybe 3,000 a year.
23 Well, then you divide that by days and

10 a day scattered all over this
shifts and two

S a%“s

1 paramedics on the private ambulance that
2 responds, plus an additional two on the fire

3 department that responds.

4 And you start taking these numbers and
g looking even in a system where the response is
7

8

9

24 you've ma
25 eountyg:td sc‘a'geered through all

SRR X006

concentrated in a small number of people, and
you're only getting one contact a week maybe or
two weeks per paramedic. And so now maybe that
contact is one every three weeks. Does the
10 increase in contact from three to two accomplish
11 anything medically that justifies the cost of
12 accom; ishing that?
MR. LAUER: | think that the point
14 that's being missed is that whatever that
15  percentage of time sensitivity to critical
16 patients is is not immediately known when you
17  roll up on the scene. The true experience is
18 needed to figure out who needs treatment real
19  quick, what treatment they need, and it could be
20 provided by somebody who has done it before. But
21 that's a lot more than whatever that group ends
22  up being, because there's a real gray area that's
23 alot bigger than —
24 MR. KILMER: How big do you think the
25 grayareais? |f we had even the most remote

1 E oup tria represe
2 ind of inj

3 MR. LAUER: K's hard to tell. Nobody
4 knows that, really.

g MR. KILMER: It seems to me these kinds
7

8

9

t that

ge,
ur

of questions ought to have been addressed a long
time ago in the process. When you look at the
cost benefit aspect of —
DR. NORTON: | agree. ButI'd also say

10 that | don't think we should agree there should

11 be four paramedics on the scene for these

12 critical patients. To me, it should be open for

13  review and discussion.

14 MR. KILMER: My clients have been

15 gvoposlng for years that you can change that. We

ave been proposing single dispatch. have

18
19
20
21
22

23
24
25

- bk
BWNSOOBNONIWN =,

13

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

-t
E-3

25

—h b b
NSOV NIN A WN = g

question. Until we do have that knowledge, we're
going to assume the logical things that they need
to see, the interactions and have good ical
leadership and guidance on that.

The other hidden agenda here is that
the doctor-paramedic interaction is a treasured
one in this system. That one is — for some
reason we have a very high doctor to paramedic
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ratio, and that's something that | think my
medics like. For all good systems there usually

is a very high doctor to medic ratio. If you

have some probiem, you call the doc on the phone
and you'll have immediate interaction with that
problem.

MR. KILMER: Do you think the PAPA

threatens that?

DR JUI: Well, | can’t answer to PAPA.
it depends on whether PAPA uses agents or not.
In the current context without the agents it does
threaten it, but Bill's only calls for one as
well, but Bill uses agents that will work.

MR. KILMER: at would have to be the
qualifications of the agents?

DR. JUI: Same as the medical director.

MR. DRAKE: Dr. Norton, you had some
ot&er concerns. I'd like to have them out on the
table.

MR. SKEEN: Let me ask some questions
of Dr. Jul before we go on to Dr. Norton.

You talked about the high doctor to
medic ratio. Are you talking about
accessibility?

DR. JUI: Yes, accessibility and

interaction between quality of medical care and
what you shouid have done and what you should
have not done.

MR. SKEEN: Earlier | believe you
indicated when we talked about the quality
management process, quality managemerit as well as
::se_'arch. do you include cost benefit analysis in

at

DR. JUI: Absolutely. Absolutely.

MR. SKEEN: Also, | think you used the
term access when you talked about quality
manadgement. i guess it was Dr. Norton that
talked about access being stymied by individual
organizations. My question is whether there is a
orchestrated resistance or whether it's justa
difficult task.

DR. JUI: No orchestrated resistance
from my perception. it's just difficult within
the current structure as outlined. There is no
structure of a unifying quality management body
in this area right now.

MR. THOMAS: That's where you were
talking a littie bit about you sort of liked the
czar concept, the checks and balances, that

somebody could answer your question that this is

17  been proposing cutting back on people and TR e s
1 g tt;'aiintllng, sori?e g: the gt‘;\er su.:jff, and none of ; S e Page 60
s has really been addressed. 1 what' ingto h d it.
20 And we have suggested this ought to all 2 'p?;g‘}&g That"m'r';:rég, eve knows
21 be done as a cost benefit basis, and part of our 3 DR. NORTON: But | think with the
22 concern has been that the system has resisted 4 quality management you need input from more than
gg this Ban fdl.an' %v'?'l‘:att;o':.a ke three g ust the czar. I'll restate. | }hlnk there's
25 statements. Number one, we don't know what 7 bme ?3{::',}’{%%’:.’:0'32; f.’é?;“ i: ‘.’1.5‘""
1 amount of training and what of training is 10  high priority it's feasible to do in a multi-
2 necessary for retention, and there is a huge " ovider system, but it is more difficult just
3 dichotomy of abilities. 12 g;cause oﬁhe ifferent agencies involved. it's
4 Some people in my service right now, | 13  noti ssible but more difficult.
5 can have one code evelgoother year and they would 14 ME PHILLIPS: Can i respond to his
6 remember everything. me people can't remember 15 comments earlier?
7  anything after five codes in one week. So 16 MR. COLLINS: No.
8 there's a huge variability of retention of 17 MR. PHILLIPS: Thanks, Bill.
9 knowledge. 18 MR. LAUER: Thanks for asking.
10 There is not enough science right now 19 MR. PHILLIPS: In the current system
11 from an educational mode! to indicate which 20  with the multi-county system that we basically
12 people need what and what they need. | have —- 21  have, right now we're talking about what happens
13 you think you can run manikins. You can run 22  in Multnomah County. In Multnomah County when an
14 simulators. Some of them may be okay for certain 23  experienced paramedic fire fighter becomes burned
T A A L Y T A o
17  out there that's really needed to answer your 25 Sitferent station In Muftnomah Tounty, whereas
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the other ambulance compa
the potential exists that they do not get
transferred to somewhere eise in the Multnomah
County system. The ﬂ?ﬂ put somewhere in a
different county, and they may or may not come
back into our system until later or move up into
our county. But under a one-county system we may
never see them again if they’re to be excluded
from the county under a single provider.

MR. LAUER: That's sort of a regional

oach.

MR. PHILLIPS: | mean, eventually we
probably need to look at a regional approach, but
we're here talkinF about Multnomah County. And
when a paramedic goes down to a busy fire station
and gets the experience and becomes a good
paramedic and decides he doesn't want to be an
experienced paramedic an re and wants to work
at another station, he's still a benefit. He's
still a benefit in Mutnomah County. We don’t
send him to Tualatin Valley Fire to work.

| have to go here, but if | could just
make a couple comments.

We like the county’'s aﬂxoach in the
areas of levels of care. We like the county’s
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approach. We're resistant to anything that says
we shall rvovlde first response. By all means
our goal is to provide the first response. But
we have an MAB that is like a fire board that
recommends what we should do, and that
recommendation is that we provide ALS first
response. So our goal is to do that. We also
have a city council and a budget committee who
says what are we getting for our dollar.
So in light of that, our goal is to
provide ALS first response but we don't want
anything to say we shall. We're happy to
negotiate that, and we're harpr to do that. As
far as cost savings and level of care, by havin
paramedics out there we can do two things.
can either lower the cost to the system, i.e.,
the costs of the transport, or get more improved
service for that cost, leave the cost the same.
And what we're looking at is by putting
a paramedic on every engine for that same
transport cost, hopetully we can get some of that
transport money back to improve his training and
also maybe improve the system by if we could
provide a paramedic there on every call, maybe
eight minutes is too soon to have a transporting

SORRR R ENRRRRR IR BURROR Sl by ;
ambulance come. Maybe we can getbyinten. |
would put that up to talk about. That would be
less units, less paramedics in the system. |t
would be transporting paramedics, not first
vespondlnﬂ_&nramed CS.

MR. K ER: That's in your plan, isn't
it, Bill, to reduce the response time for the
private and tiered response?

MR. COLLINS: In the tiered response.
| think his statement, though, is another aspect
of this, that while we didn’t exclude it we
didn't expand the discussion to that. And that
Is, if you actualily have a guaranteed ALS first
response throughout the county, you might have a
different configuration on all of your
transports. But | think —

R. KILMER: Even without fire
transport?
R. COLLINS: With or without. But |

think that the key word in there is you've got to
guarantee the response. You can‘t have a first
responder system that sort of says, ‘We'll try to
get some out there.” But if we don’t then
you run into staffing problems. And we're not to
that point yet, and we did not try to push that

T Page o
in the plan. We just didn't.
MR. PHILLIPS: Our only concern about a

tiered response would be ng out there after
a four minute response, taking two to three to
four minutes to recognize the call; and then
eight minutes into the call after receiving the

I, calling for an ambulance that only has to
be there in 12 minutes, and therefore us sitting

e

24 concerns? We are tr ng to list
25 keep getting sidetracked.

9 on the scene for 20 minutes. That would be our
10 only concern. We're happy to stay another two
11 minutes to get that transporting, add another two
12  minutes, but maybe not the full additional 12.

13 MR. DRAKE: The ambulance is dual

14  dispatch, so it would be arriving there within 12
15 minutes. i

16 MR. PHILLIPS: But under the tiered

17 response it sounds like a code, but they're up
18 and walking around. They don’t need this
19  critical transport. Right now let’s call a BLS

20 ambulance.
2 MR. DRAKE: That needs to be worked
out.
23 Dr. Norton, do you have artlg other
ose out and

DR. NORTON: The stability and turnover
issue | think is a concern. And again, it's not
something that you can point to a study saying
that high turnover leads to poor care. [ think

more training and continuing education problems
and not effective use of either the physician's
time or the training officer's times and those
kinds of things. So | think it's an issue how it

1
2
3
g it's more intuitive that high turnover leads to
7
8
9

10 directly impacts patient care. | can't tell you
11 —{can’'t measure it, but intuitively | think it

does.
13 MR. KILMER: What do you understand the
14 real incidence of turnover here is? Biil's, we
15  believe, artificially inflates that because it
16 counts as a turnover. An rienced paramedic
17  that goes from A.A. To CARE, from Buck to A.A.,
18 that's turnover. Do we have any good statistics
19 in the real turnover rate here among active
20 paramedics?
21 DR. NORTON: |don't, but | have mgown
22 observations within the system doing t
23 paramedic conferences, and it's rare that you see
24  all of the same faces twice at these conferences.

e monthly

:tssue, and | don't have the statistics to support
" MR KILMER: The second question — and

1

g

4 | wish the PAPA people were here for this one —
g but is there a turnover? Is it money or is it
7
8
9

working conditions or is it something else?
DR JUI: Yes,
DR. NORTON: t'd have to defer to the
paramedics on that. | don't know.

10 MR. KILMER: What's your understanding,
11 though?
12 R. NORTON: From what I've heard in

13 talking to them, it's the working conditions and
14 the riay issues. There's no sense of pride in
wor

ng for whatever agency they happen to be

16  working for, and so they don't feel any

17 commitment to staying. They don’t see any chance
18 of professional advancement, iong-term career

19 stability. | think those are issues.

20 MR. KILMER: How do any of these plans

21  address that, though? Because the issue seems to
22  be if it's primarily money, that money is goin

23  to have to come from an increase in rates which

24  will then impact the ability of the s m to do

25 some of the other medical things that you want.

And has an -
DR Nm: Those are probably the two

1

2

3 major issues. | think still the frustrations

4 that the paramedics are feeling about ail of the
5 anxiety of what the system is going to be,

6 whether they're going to have a job, those kinds
7 of thlnas are vergmpomnt to them, as well.

8 MR. ROBEDEAU: Those things — | would

9 like to just kind of follow up on a couple of

10 things here. Those things you're talking about
11 are out of control as far as whether or not
12 m:{re going to have a job, stability, all of

14 The other thing | would like to suggest

15 that the paramedics who were saying there's no
16  career opportunities, there's nothing like that
17 for them in the system, they’re shortsighted.
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18  They want to see career opportunities in two or
19 three months. | know I've seen that, and I've
20 had peopie tell me there's no way for a paramedic
21 to advance in the system and become anything but
22 lower echelon management. And | think, at least
23  for some of us, that that's not true.

24 MR. DRAKE: Do you hear the same things
25 that Dr. Norton is hearing from the paramedics,

s Page 68}

1 Dr. Jui?

2 DR. JUI: A couple of things. There

3 are some very dedicated medics that have stayed
4  within the system. Some of them are sitting in

5 this room. l've noticed when | go outside

6 Multnomah County, all the good medics I've seen,
7  the older medics l've seen in Clackamas County

8 that are older, and I've known many for a iong

9 period of time. There's a higher turnover

10 seemingly within the core of the Multnomah County
11 area. I'mnot sure if that perception is true or

12 not, but that's my perception.

13 So from a regional point of view there

14 is retention, but from our point of view, sitting

15 downtown, we're seeing new medics every day. So
16 there is a problem with that. Within the county

17  we're not retalnin% the medics. The medics are

18 somehow staying in the system but not in the

count¥.

20 here is a high turnover, | think,

21 within the gﬂvate r many different reasons.

22  There might be a different bunch than public,

23  different career advancement, obviously different
24 pay and different working conditions.

25 MR. KILMER: Do you consider it as a

1 me

2 fire, does paramedicevaovk on a rescue unit, and

3 even though he retains his paramedic status,

g moves téack arlld I'aeclfmes Irﬂlgclpayl‘l’y a fireman as

opposed to princ an gqu

6 P DR. JUI: If1 cg: cyall on that medic

7 to work as a medic, that's not a turnover. If |

8 cannot call on that medic to work as a medic,

9  that's turnover.
10 MR. STEINMAN: Questions came up last
11 time about our turnover. We've got the same
12  thing that happened to you with people going
13 between the companies. When we move people up
14 for promotion reasons or whatever it appears as
15  turnovers in Bili's data, so we're all in the
16 same boat.
17 DR. JUI: If | can't get ahold of that
18 revson, that person is gone, that's a turnover.

f1can use them, him or her, as a paramedic,

20 that's a rare thing, whether he or she is within
21 the system.
22 MR. STEINMAN: One question, Jon, since
23  the court reporter is here and you have a lot of
24  paramedics that worked for you, you say the best
25 paramedics you know are in the outlying areas?

&

1 MR. LAUER: That's what he said.

2 MR. KILMER: Are you saying the best

3  are out there or some of the best are out there?
4 DR. JUI: I'm sayin? some of my best,
5 itt
6

7

8

9

favorite medics are sitting outside the ooun?.
MR. STEINMAN: Which type of paramedics
is that?
DR. JUI: All types. This is the
truth. There are some friends | know out there
10 that I've known for a real long time.
11 MR. LAUER: Multnomah County is a busy

place.
13 MR. ROBEDEAU: One of the things, too,
14  that needs to be looked at with paramedic
15  turnover, and | know to a degree A A Has done
16 that, has brought in rural paramedics, put them
17  with an FTO, brought their skill levels up, and
18 then they went back to the rural area. And |
19  know the state is trying to do thaton a regular
20 basis with rural paramedics. Especially they
21 seemto really like the district AA. Has because
22  we see stuff that real paramedics never see in a
23 thousand years.
24 And | know we have done that with some
25 of the coastal communities and a couple of

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
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with decreased turnover, see the same bodies,
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Eastern Oregon communities, and | realize in
looking at that that those raramedlcs that we had
brought in and done training with in order to
benelit the rest of the State of Oregon were
counted against us as turnover.
MR. SKEEN: Dr. Jul, there's a real

paradox with this, because most large urban
settings run into the problem of high intensity,
m?hkufmﬂllfaﬁor} and somle gvent;::l burnon’:'t.

nk that's going away industry-wise perhaps
because wear: getting a littie smarter about it.
But you have the issue of wanting, on the one
hand, to have a highly experienced - | think
intensity is what Bob used - hlgh|¥.experlenced
medic, and on the other hand you have the issue
of turnover that results often times as a result
of that, whether it be being transferred to
another company or to an outlying — within the
same eonma%to an outlying area.

DR. J ght.
MR. SKEEN: It's just a difficult
issue.

DR. JUI: | can guarantee with the fire
turnover | personally have less — | mean, you
can build advancement of increasing knowledge

same faces, same thing we talked about over and
over a&aln. You can build on that advancement.
th agencies — fire | believe has a
lesser
turnover than the private, and it's easier for me
to do my job as a medical director of fire
because | don’t have to teach the same things
over and over again.
And it's inherently one of the demands
of the job that's ~ it's a hidden agenda, until
u decrease the turnover as medical director and
is or her agents are going to be saddied with
continuing in servicing and not advancing the
system.

MR. SKEEN: Are );ou basing that on an
Intuitive perception of turnover, or do you have
hard data that shows that the —

DR. NORTON: We don't have hard data,
but | think our experience is probably the same,
is that we keep talking about the same thing with
new faces.

DR. JUI: The numbers don't make - |
would say that the fire turnover is smaller than
the public ~ | mean the private turnover. What

' SRS Page 73::80
quantity, | don't know. | don't really know.

MR. SKEEN: But you're basing that on
obse:vatlons oc: w“at yo'u;'rg seeing as far as
people you're dealing wit

DR. JUI: Yes.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | would agree with that
to a degree, and I'm not — | would like to make
one more observation. We didn't have, prior to
the ordinance that is currently in effect, the

turnover rate that we have now in paramedics. We
have experienced paramedics fully trained coming
into the system with their EMT-4 who suddenly are
there for a very short period of time and realize
this is not for them.

And by virtue of two EMT-4's being
required on every ALS unit, we have no way to
allow paramedics or potential paramedics to
decide it the%want to be a paramedic. The fire
bureau has that ability, and they’re responding
to these thlnas, and many of the firemen |
believe as EMT-1's learn whether or not they want

to go on and whether or not they can handie this.
And that's one of the things that's been bulit

into the system, as | see it, as an inefficiency
that has created probiems.

Quite frankly, | can remember one case
where we had a young lady who came to us fully
trained as a paramedic, came out of the U, worked
for three shifts, went on a rape-murder and
walked off the fob after that, and she has never
gotten back into it. it was something she was

not prepared to see. That's happened more than
once.
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MR. SKEEN: That's what you, Dr. Jul,
said about the internship that you have in the
pgrslclan community, is that opportunity to be
able to evaluate their career.
DR JUl: That's right.
MR. STEINMAN: Trace, | have a
question. You seem to be uneasy with the
turnover rate figures. Do you believe that
there's a big discrepancy een our retention
and yours?
R. SKEEN: My sense is also without a
lot of hard data that no one seems to have — my
sense is If you really get down and looked at the
experience factor between private and public
paramedics and what happens to those paramedics
as you track them through the system, that you
pro y wouldn't see a lot of ditference
5 s Page 75
probably between public and private. My sense is
that the public sector probably has a bit less
turnover, but 'onbably not a lot.
DR. NORTON: Can | ask a question? If
there's so many questions about Mr. Collins' data
about turnover, why don't the agencies provide
that information?
MR. KILMER: We're going to -
MR. SKEEN: That's a great question.
MR. KILMER: We're in the process of
Wn to work that out. We didn’t know until
r. Collins' data came out that it was going to
look the way it did. That's part of our concern.
We wish that he would have preliminarily
blished his view and said, "That is what it
ooks like to me. What do you guys have to say
about it before | make any plans based on it?"
A.A. Has 26 paramedic siots. itis
counted as having 40, 41, 42 paramedics every
year. The reason for that is that some of those
are part-time people in there. Some have been
promoted, some have left. But there reall?(
aren’'t more than that number of paramedics on a
staff at any given time. You take 40. You do
the same thing with CARE and do the same thing
A R age 7
with Buck, and all of a sudden you have a much
larger group of people that are listed as
paramedics working in the system that actually
aren't working at any given time as paramedics in
the system. And then you divide this much larger
number b¥ patient contact, and it skews
dramatically the contact figures that you fellows
are now basin ur concerns on.
DR. NORTON: But it just goes back to,
| think, one of the points we've made over and
over, ‘ve to have that information.
MR. KILMER: Exactly. And we gave him
the information that we thought he wanted, and
then he took more from that information and what
was legitimately available in it without asklc&
any more questions. That's our criticism.
talked about that last time.
We will be in the process of giving
more accurate data of how manr paramedics really
are in the system at any particular time. Now,
we can’t do that for the fire bureau. We don't
know how rnanr of them are on rescues, back off on
the engines doing paramedic work, how many of
them go into areas where they're not —
MR. STEINMAN: Trust me. it's publi

record, and | know you have access to anything.
MR KILMER: | don't mean that as
criticism, Tom.
MR. STEINMAN: I'm saying you could get

that data. if you want it, it's yours.

MR. DRAKE: We can also ask Tom.

MR. THOMAS: Dr. Norton is right. The
:rstem as a whole does not gather data well. |

ew that as compietely independent from things
having to do with nu rs and providers. The
system hasn’t made that a priority. That's
another area to actually decide exactly what data
it wants to coliect and coliect it and make
eve ovide it and all that. And thatis a
significant issue. it would help a lot of
th n&s. | think, over time,
R SKEEN: The other thing, Bill has

18  never represented his data to be anything other
19 than the process that he used. He said, “This is
20 the process | took.” And other people probably
21 ;:rmed assumptions that he didn't necessarily
22 rm.

23 MR. THOMAS: Something I've wondered
24  about, because we've hit both edges of it now,
25 one of which is experience and paramedics having

the chances, at least a number of them, to handle
the critical cases. And the other is the
potential for overload and its relationship to
turnover.

And | have always been interested in
knowing what is — | guess we talked about unit
hour utilization ratio is the way you measure in
that area what the right range is for paramedics
to fall in. k would seem thatis really a
critical number to know. There’s a number that's
too high and there's a number that's too low.

MR. LAUER: There's too many variables,
Chris. it depends upon the length of your shift.
For example, if you're working 24 consecutive
hours, you can't have near the observation —

MR. THOMAS: I'm trying to have Pete
get away from how you manage that and accomplish
something more from strictly a physician's point
of view apart from the economics of it where Dr.
Norton would like the paramedics he's thinking
about in terms of experience to fall.

MR. LAUER: The danger though, Chris,
is to use unit hour utilization as a measure of

24 work load. There's some correlations that it
“ j25 really doesn't do that well.

MR. COLLINS: There are no particulal
standards that have been put forth, that I'm
aware of, that says what the ievel of experience
should be.
DR. NORTON: | can just give you a
range, | guess. Keith Neeley, who many of you
know as a paramedic who works with us, came from
Denver, and he basically | think would admit he
became burned out with that system. And they
were seeing patients, doing at least one every
hour. k mean, it was continuous in a 12 hour
shift. So | think ciearly that's the extreme.
| mean, Keith is an excellent paramedic
and very knowledgeable, and it's a shame that
that kind of thing happens. | think for his own
gce»:d he has advanced, but — so that's too many.
ing one a shift is too few.
it's going to be around, you know,
five or six at [east. But again, that's sort of
my own opinion and it's not based on a scientific
study. it's something we need to look at,
though. And also it depends on the types of
patients that you're seeing. If you're seeing
six straight cardiac arrests, that's different
from seeing minor injuries that you don't

transport.
DR JUI: You have a corollary with the

doctors, as well, here. The doctors burn out. |
can tell you from experience it's harder working
constantly at Kaiser because you're on the go all
the time, and the same thing applies to our

ramedics. So that kind of — there's the

gue factor and there's more burnout in the
systems that are continuously under stress.

MR. THOMAS: Randy, part of your point

12  was if you're doing a 24-hour shift, one per hour
13 is different than if you're doing an eight-hour
14 shift. | mean, there's a lot of variables on

15 that
16 MR. LAUER: Yeah, right.
17 MR. STEINMAN: It's real hard, though.

18 | mean, we've been trying to figure out for a

19 long time — in fact, Jon and | had lunch the

20 other day and | got into a discussion with him.

21 | wanted to know why all of the E.R. Docs are so
22 alified, because some of them see one patienta
23  shift and some of them see 50. it's the same

24  thing there. He contends they’re all qualified

25  because they retest every two years.
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) even begin to adress ysician time for staffing

HOMAS: it would seem like in
system design, however you're going to design

your system, you want to figure out what you want

to accomplish there. It is awfully hard to do

that in that area, at least until we sort of hone

in on what the range is that we want.

MR KILMER: i seems to me aiso with a
system design that you want to compare what
you've got now with what you want, and you want
to take a look at what you've in other cities
compared with what we have here now. And then
you take a look at what's medically good about
the system, what is not medically good, and the
criticisms you've made of this system are issues
that are basically highly subjective in terms of
judgments.

And the more you stop and look at them,
the more tenuous some of the underlying
assumptions become. And in the meantime, we have
an excellent system here in many respects. We
are all ALS, two paramedics on every ambulance,
all of these paramedics are reasonably
well-trained.
There’s no indication that we are
having bad outcomes. The number of complaints

that come out of the hospitals, the number of
complaints that come from citizens to EMS, the
nu r of those complaints that ever resuitin a
'citatlon or further investigation is very, very

ow.

And so the question is: Do you want to
give u&what we've got and risk the current level
of pertormance for accomplishing a couple of
marginal additional improvements that may or may
not be needed and take the risk that you'll end
up with a system like many single provider
systems that are now around the country that are
more costly and less effective than ours

MR. STEINMAN: Is that the question, or
is the question if the county wants to know
whether they can continue to afford this system,
the citizens can continue to afford this system?
MR. KILMER: | think that question
involves two things: What will the new system
cost, and what are the risks that it will be more
costly than this one? You know, there's
assumption around here that ‘mu can reduce the
quality — cost of this system significantly by a
change. And | don't think that that would bear
analysis, but certainly it ought to be analyzed

before you make the change.
MR. ROBEDEAU: What | heard Tom kind of
say was there was a confusion between cost and

rates.

MR. STEINMAN: No. What you heard Tom
say was he wanted to take a shot at the Jeff to
see if he could get him to shut up.

MR. DRAKE: Is there anything else from
either doctor, ga/ other issues?

DR. NORTON: One last thing, and that's
the role of on-line medical control. And | speak
now as a medical director for a medical resource
hospital rather than an MAB representative. And
! think in terms of the system design, just
making that fully integrated into the system, |
think we do a rvet?' ?ood job of that from an
operations point of view but we don't froma
funding point of view. So | just want to
introduce that topic. R needs to be discussed.

MR. LAUER: For the record?

DR. NORTON: For the record.

We provide that service. We're
essentially a $10,000 contract from the EMS
office. it costs at least 175,000 to provide a
24-hour communications clerk, and that doesn't
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that. Comparable California systems with medical
nurses answering the call run anywhere from 300
to $350,000. So that's part of the system that
is not addressed or funded, and [ think it needs
to be discussed at some point.

MR. SKEEN: How were those California
models funded, do you know?

DR. NORTON: Bill can speak to that. |
think hospitals bear some of the costs.
MR. COLLINS: Most of them are funded
Eenr much like our MRH's here, littie or no
nding to the hospital, aithough | think that's
changing. it's the same — you know, the
concerns that Bob has. As it becomes more
expensive as dollars become tighter for the
hospitals, we have to start looking at whether
they can provide that service or not. | don't
know any that are fully funded. Well, that's not
true.
in the areas of California that I'm
familiar with, those areas that have EMS service
districts do fund out of their tax base. Most
tax supported or substantially tax supported EMS
systems tend to fund these things out of the tax

DR. JUi: I've got two other issues.
One of them is rural EMS. There are rural
aspects in Multnomah County, and from a medical
director's point they need to be addressed. |
don't know quite what their needs are besides a
slowness of response, perhaps maintenance of EMS
skills in the community. Those are the primar.
ones, particularly the Corbett, Multnomah Falfs
area and Sauvie Island.

The other one is there is no current
sxstem data handling within our county. | would
like to have numbers, and some of the numbers
we're talking about today had a comprehensie
data management system within the county that
would look at system performance. We don't have
all those numbers. don't have access to the
numbers.

MR. SKEEN: Well, system performance
relating to resgnse time?

DR. JUI: Qutcomes in process
performance, performance times, outcome
measurements, how ?ood we are doing.

MR. SKEEN: Patient outcomes?

DR. JUI: Patient outcomes. Those are

\:\:}‘ R SRR % ,,.,Ase,as
roughly - whether we're accurate in dispatch. |
mean, | have a lot more questions.

MR. SKEEN: On the patient outcomes, is
it because the health care facilities don't
partlc&ate?

DR. JUl: No. | have no idea how our
system performs except for anecdotal studies, one
ot them which we'll present at the physician
supervisors meeting. So the only two ones we can
potentially compare right now are the trauma
system performance compared to other comparable
cities with equivalent injury scores, as well as
cardiac arrest data compared to other cities with
similar resggnse times and similar capabilities.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Have you done any
co! risons on that?

R. JUI: The cardiac arrest study is

probably going to be presented, and we're doing
actually pretty good. Ventricular fibrillation
witnessed, we're running about 45 percent safe.
Unwitnessed, around 20 percent, around 20
percent. And there's a c%eat big delta between
with CPR and without CPR, as well.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Those numbers, could

you go over them again?
: i Page 8750
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DR. JUI: Well, actually, those numbers
will be presented formally at the physician
supervisors meetlng.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Can you go over them
informally again then?

DR. JUI: Roughly 40 percent by
standard witness with CPR. That's all the new
variables. And 20 percent unwitnessed with CPR,
and no CPR, no witness, about 15 percent.

MR. DOHERTY: That's really exciting.

DR. JUI: This is defib only.

MR. DOHERTY: Was there a co rison in
response times between first responders and
transporting —

DR. JUI: ALS response time in the 1991
stud&was rough{%s. minutes or even less.

R. DOHERTY: In comparison with the
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survivors and --

DR. JUi: Time of dispatch through time
of arrival.

MR. DOHERTY: Was there a comparison of
successful cases and what those responses were
co| red to unsuccessful?

R. JUI: | don't have that information
right now. | just have the information | gave.

But

bringing that up is that's the kind of

information that we need to evaluate the system.
MR. THOMAS: One thing that you have

eluded to but haven’t specifically talked about

is portions of Bill's plan proposal, not for the

tiered response but for changlng the staffing of

the ambulances that are not handling the ones

that the fire bureau would be handling, and the

g::rge in response time from eight minutes to
ve

I'd be interested if it would be worth
the grou'p's hea&:ng'.'whether you gluys ieﬁl that's
appropriate medically, not appropriate, what you
think the implications of that migﬁt be.

DR. NORTON: | think the key to thatis
working out the protocols for what would involve
a critical patient that fire would be
transporting. And | think as long as those are
well thought out, that having a single paramedic
on the —- transporting noncritical patients would
be acceptable.

DR. JUL: There are two demands. One
of them is a scene assessment, scene intervention
demand. That usually is cardiac or airway. The

w‘\ IRt N

second demand is to get the patient that's
traumatized to the hospital as soon as theg can,
and that's usually transport, obviously with a
ten-minimum model of trauma system.

So you need both. You need early
arrival, as well as early enough arrival to get
the traumatized Rpatient to the hos'rital.

MR. KILMER: is that your definition of
time critical transport?

DR. JUI: R's one of the examplies of
time critical transport.

MR. THOMAS: What | was thinking of was
for — not for the ones that the fire bureau is
carrgng under, or however you would define it,
but tor the balance do you see a problem with
shifting to — for the other carrying vehicles,
one for the paramedic and the staffing that Bill
has proposed the change in response time from
eight to twelve minutes

DR. JUI: That's one answer. Bill's
need is real. He needs to be able to guarantee
:‘hal person is there within a certain period of

me

DR. NORTON: To answer the second part
of your question, | don't think there’s a problem
e 5 age 90
with extending the time with the privates. |
think the eight minute is based on the Seattie
study for arriving at the scene and it's for
cardiac only, and { think it does make sense.

But when you have fire or ALS first response then
the time when you actually transport becomes
pe;'hapt: less important for those noncritical
patients.

DR. JUI: We do know, Chris, the
following scenario: You have a cardiac arrest
patient. That person does not have CPR. The
el?,ren minutes really doesn't make that much
difference. The outcomes between six and eight
and ten are about the same. If rou put CPR
involved, then it does make a difference.

So one of the variables is citizen CPR,
and the training of that issue. It turns out in
this study that | just mentioned, the CPR, about
50 reroem of the patients actuaily had an arrest
inside their own house, which implies that a
relative would be doing CPR, which usually is not
a probiem from an HIV, social disease standpoint.

MR. LAUER: The other part of that,

100, is that the four minute and eight minute
time came out of the Seattle study addressed —
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DR. JUI: That's correct.

MR. LAUER: The other thing that we
need to keep into consideration, the penetrating
trauma patient that needs rapid transportation.
| don't know if there's any independent studies,
but a iot of people would agree that's the only
way to treat someone in the field.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Should we take a break?

MR. SKEEN: One quick question,

Dr. Jui. How would you characterize either
currently or the need in a plan for expanding the
feedback groups from the medical - the medical
oversight arena, the physician supervisors, the
on-line medical control with the administration
of the provider, whoever that administration
might be?

DR. JUI: Are you asking me to comment
on the value in the 1plan. of each plan in
administering that

MR. SKEEN: Not of each plan. If you
were going to be the author or architectofa
plan, is that a co nent that you use?

DR. JUi: Absolutely.

MR. SKEEN: And | guess the other
s: How would you characterize that

DR. JUI: There are some people that
are left out of the planning, the community
feedback. We're not doing a ?ood job of getting
the AED managers, both medical and nursing
managers involved.

e Medical Advisory Board does that in
part. Certain critical components are kept out;
namely, one critical component is Kaiser. Kaiser
has one-third of the dpopulatlon in this town. |
don't know if an y represents Kaiser.

MS. BONNER: (inaudible)

DR. JUI: From a Medical Advisory
Board?

MS. BONNER: No.

DR. JUi: That's one component left
out. Other health systems are represented from
medical directors. at's also missing is the
nursing. The nursing managers are not
represented, as well. They actually controf a
lot of the operations in the emergency
department.

MR. SKEEN: Seems to me there's reall
two paths. One is the clinical training people
and clinical Q.A. People of an organization. The

make sure that you're carrying out the agendas
that are proposed.

DR. JUi: Part of my problem is there's
$0 many hours in a day. | totaled my amount
meeting hours and it's over 70 or 80 hours a
month. That's not including the super doc model
that is in the current plan. That's incredible.
You can't train the medics, be at the meetings,
go out to the providers, go to the paramedics and
meet with operations people. You're not —
there’s not enough hours in the day.

MR. KILMER: This will be talked about
next time in detail.

Are you going to break or are you going

to recess at this point?

MR. ROBEDEAU: | actually think we've
covered the whole agenda.

MR KILMER: | was going to suggest
maybe you take a five-minute break, let Bob and
Jon and an eise look at the agenda of issues
and see if they want to comment on anything else,
or have any of the people ask them any questions
on any other issue here,
MR. ROBEDEAU: We can do that.

| do have one question of Dr. Norton.
You were the first person to really articulate
anything here regarding paramedic desires, and
you brought up working conditions and wages and
advancement.

Other than nz ~  guess for lack of a
better term | should say self-centered response,
has anybody ever really articulated anything —
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9 do you have anything written down that says what
10 the paramedics really want?

N MR. LAUER: | have several volumes of
12 itright now.
13 MR. ROBEDEAU: I'm not talking so much

14  about union negotiations. The thing | hear is

15 there's no advancement. Well, | know if you work
16 atitthere is advancement. The chances of

17  becoming an owner are probably pretty slim, but

18 itis possible.
19 R. LAUER: i happens.
20 MR. ROBEDEAU: it happens once in a

21  while. You talk about wages. Wages as opposed
22 to what, and working conditions as opposed to

23  what?

24 DR. NORTON: Well, | don’t want to be

25 represented as a spokesperson for the paramedics’

1  attitudes and current beliefs because | think you
2 need to talk to them about it. All | was

3 commenting on is what I've heard in discussions
4  with them.

g MR. ROBEDEAU: What | was wondering is
7

8

9

if you were ever supplied with any documentation
that shows anything that would really lend
anybody to believe that there was a problem,
other than the problem perceived within the
10 individuals?
11 MR. LAUER: | don't know if there's any
12 documentation, Pete. | think what Bob said is
13 that - I've heard the same kind of stuff.
14  There's a real concern or fear factor of
15 ramedics in the system because of the
16  instability of the system. They don't know if
17  the system is going to be here as they know it
18 five years from now or ten years from now.
19 That's been going on for ten years.

20 MR. ROBEDEAU: We don't know if the
21 world is going to be here.
22 MR. THOMAS: He's talking about the

23 amdet&over the new plans.
MR. LAUER: Wages and benefits, those
25 are important issues with paramedics. Most

1 private paramedics believe they're
2 undercompensated, and | think they have some
3 valid points there. And then our side of thatis
4 we have to be able to fund that compensation
5 somehow.
6 MR. ROBEDEAU: That's right.
7 MR. LAUER: That gets into the funding
8 of the whole s)“stem, and -- but | think those
9 concerns are there, and | think they'd be shared
10 by the majority of the peopie that work in the
11 field
12
13

MR. ROBEDEAU: But that's a rerce ion.
That's what | was trying to get at. | was hoping

14 Mr;\\a(be somebody had submitted something to the

15 that perhaps could be shared with us. That has

16 apparently not been the case, but maybe Bob had

17 something that —

18 MR. LAUER: We do that in our company

19 through exit interviews. That's a real common

20 thing, lack of stability, unpredictability in

21 your future.

22 MR. DRAKE: We're trying to correct
23 that here.
24 DR. NORTON: | just wanted to expand on

25 thatonce. | think it's a very important part of
S T Page o7
what's driving the paramedics’ concern, at least
from the discussions that | hear, and there's the
perception, whether you think it's accurate or

1
g
4 not, that the private agencies are not very

g understanding or receptive to their concerns, the
7

8

9

between the gun that the providers have been
under on rates and the compensation leveis of the
paramedics. | mean, if they don't want to deal
with it or eise they're not hearing it unless to
understand at least the larger dynamics. That's
just an example.

DR. NORTON: Right. But aiso | think
Pete needs to be careful, because when you
present it as an issue and say, where's the data,

that's not the response they want to hear. They
want to have more understanding and dialog,
rather than let's look at the science of it.
Because it's an attitude and personal
satisfaction issue.

MR. DRAKE: | appreciate that. We need
to hear that from other sources. We need to hear
what paramedics tell you. Some of the things
they tell you they don't tell us.

MR. LAUER: Some things they've been
telllra us all for years.

R DRAKE: But | would like to thank
the docs for coming here today. | think this is
a real important part of this process. Every
component of this system essentially has three
parts: An operational part, medical part and cost
part. We have to look at all three of those, and
we need your input on all of these components of
the system.

You brought up about response time, you
brought up about air transport. That's a real
critical issue we need to look at when you start
talking about dividing this county into response

24 time zones, maybe 25-minute zone, 45-minute zone
25 for Sauvie Island or rural areas. Do we need to
R G 7 Page 99 ;
1 involve Life Flight? Do we need to be first on
2 the scene? | don't know. We want to talk about
3 thatand see ifit's an issue, What should your
4 response time be? Is 12 minutes adequate in Bill
5 Collins’' plan? | think it is, but we need to
6 hear from the physicians how they want to set
7 those response times up, what they feel is
8 adequate, talking staffing levels, what do you
9 feel is adequate. That gets us into training,
10 quallt‘assurance, rformance.
1" DR. JUI: | would personally like to
12 see aregional EMS plan, EMS service area that
13  looks at all aspects of the EMS, and ALS is one
14 component of that. The other point | would like
15 to make is the medical director in both plans is
16 glrly centralized, if | can politically say
17 at.
18 The PAPA plan gives him czarist power
19 - himor her czarist I?ower. | don't have all
20 knowledge, especially with EMS operation right
21  now, so the idea of having all that kind of
22 knowledpe of operations and is not feasible from
23 adoctor’'s point of view. | don't think that's
24  going to work.
25 MR. KILMER: I'm a little confused. |

SRR 000

think what the PAPA plan did is took what the MAB
plan has been saﬂn? they wanted for some time
and just adopted it. Is the MAB going to
reconsider?

DR. JUI: | want to go on record saying
that the doctor can't be the big kahuna.

MR. ROBEDEAU: I'm not arguing with
that. I'm just curious — never mind.

MR. COLLINS: One of the things that
happened in the medical director discussion
that's gone on is that the plan that PAPA put
forth has actually kind of come all the way
around in that they have a very centralized

14 medllcal d"emf"m h;ln if you oc;l; at ::e dical
dics’ ' 15 requirements of the plan, everything the medica
para":ndctsha‘i?sn::\?tshere's — | think 16 director does has to be approvye'd be the MAB, and
there's so much emphasis on having a third 17 | think what they've done is shifted to the — |
municipal provider or some kind of single 18 mean, the way | read it, the responsible medical
10  provider that would be more responsive to their 19  party is the MAB, not as an advisory group but as
11 concerns, their problems and their issues, and 20  an actual responsible group.
12 that's a very real problem, | think. 21 But, you know, your statement is well
13 MR.T : So, for example, | would 22 taken. You can't get one physician to do all
14  take it you're saying what you're picking up is 23  this, | mean, unless you want to stay awake. |
15 the companies may not be doing that good of a job 24  think 70 hours of meeting is okay. What do you
16 of translating to the paramedics the relationship 25 do with the rest of your time?
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DR. JUt: It‘s what we re
it's a combination of training and knowledge. and
at least | hope we're good at medicine.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | remember your last
proposal to the MAB. It called for more than
one —

MR. COLLINS: Whether you have an
identified medical director or not, just the
components that are in anybod rlan or even in
the current system, you can't physically have one
person do all that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: That's my point.

MR. COLLINS: | think you can have one
person who is the respons bie physician.

MR. DRAKE: Right.

MR. COLLINS: You can look at lots of
medical -

DR. NORTON: | would support that, too.
| think it's important to have the one person
identified as the last accountable individual,
but you need more than one to do all the duties.
| don’t think having the Medical Advisory Board
be that final individual authority or final
authority is really a workable situation. |
think it needs to be invested in a single person.

REDRSS

MR. DRAKE: Pete, it's after 11: 00
o'clock so we need to close. But can the
physlclans come to our next meeting?
DR. NORTON: That's Thursday?
DR. JUI: I'll be half asleep.
(Pro;:eedlngs adjourned at 11:20
am.

CERTIFICATE

I, Pamela Beeson Frazier, a certified
shorthand reporter for Oregon and a Registered
Professional Reporter, do hereby certify that |
reported in stenotype the proceedings had upon
the hearing of this matter, pfevlously captioned
herein; that | transcrlbed said stenotype
notes through compute tnnscrlpuon and,
that the foregolng transcrlpt constitutes a full
true and accurate record of all proceedings had
upon the hearing of said matter, and of the whole

thereo
hand at Portland, Oregon,
this 26th day of II 1993.

‘age 101 to Page 103 Lord, Nodland, Studenmund

(503) 299-6200



10

S Attt

2Ry e 9
BEFORE THE MULTNOMAH COU
PROVIDER BOARD

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

Thursday, il 22, 1993
9:20a my Aor

Oregon Medical Assoclation
5210 S.W. Corbett Avenue
Portland, Oregon

THE MULTNOMAH COUNTY PROVIDER BOARD:
Mr. Peter Robedeau, Chairman, AA Ambulance
Mr. Trace Skeen, Buck Ambulance

Mr. Mark Drake, Tualatin Valley Ambulance

Mr. Barry Doherty, CARE Ambulance

Mr. Thoma§ §t.elnman, Portiand Fire Bureau

APPEARANCES

ALSO PRESENT:

Mr. William Collins

Ms. Trudy Schidieman
Mr. Jeffrey Kilmer

Mr. Christopher Thomas
Mr. Steven Moskowitz
Dr. Jon Jui

Ms. Lynn Bonner

PROCEEDINGS

MR. ROBEDEAU: Why don't we call the
meeting to order.

Has everybody read the minutes? |
know they were faxed out in two different
sections.

MR. SKEEN: When were they faxed?

MR. COLLINS: |didn't get a fax

MR. ROBEDEAU: You didn't get a fax?
| got a fax, and then | spilled grease on
it so a lot of 633’3 hs are gone.

MR. MO TZ: You got faxed a
draft. | don't know if you've got the
final ones, the final version there, which
| already know there's some typos in that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: On page 2, the fourth
para%raph. where Dr. Jui is discussing BLS
and the training problem with BLS, |
believe that was in regard to fire first
responder, wasn't it?

R. JUI: Yes, it was.

MR. ROBEDEALU: | think that shouild be
clarified.

MR. STEINMAN: And the next paragraph,

BNONBWN -

I’'m not sure what -

MR. ROBEDEAU: Since 37 fire
stations. | think you said 27.

DR. JUL: 28.

MR. STEINMAN: Above that. The
24-hour training, the advantage to an ALS
engine response system is that the engine
crews know EMS because of 24-hour

training? ('m not sure what that means.

MR. ROBEDEAU: I'm not sure.

MR. SKEEN: | think what he meant is
24-r:our exposure, all the paramedics in the
station.

MR. DOHERTY: Specifically on the unit
with them.

MR. ROBEDEAU: 1| think the fire
stations should be, what did you say, 287

MR. STEINMAN: We have 28, but | think
he added in Gresham, all countywide.

DR. JUI: On page 3, there's a word,

Dr. Jui said he had been able to do so,
with regards to concerns of the MAB. |
think | said | have not.

first paragraph, page 3. The sentence
begins, Dr. Jui said that he had — it says

he had been able to do so. it should say,

he has not been able to do so.

DR. JUI: The statement on that, also
on g‘age 3, Dr. Jui also listed the
stability of dispatchers and providers. |
think | meant — that's not quite clear —

ALS providers, the last sentence on the
first paragraph - the second to the last
sentence doesn’t make sense to me.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: You want it to say ALS
providers?

DR. JUI: Just EMS providers.

MR. DOHERTY: What gage are you on?

DR. JUI: Page 3. The fir
para%aah, second to the last sentence.

M OSKOWITZ: Would you feel more
comfortable if we said, organizational
stablllty. as opposed to, any other forms
of stabili

DR. JUI: Yeah. I'm not quite sure.

MR. SKEEN: EMS providers | think is
what he said.

DR. JUl: | think EMS providers, it

R

should be.
| think on page 5, under the first
razraph, it says, Mr. Kilmer asked if the
AP' %Ilzn threatened that goal. | said,
yes, it did.

{ think | also said if Mr. Collins's
plan aiso had one single person, it would
also threaten that goal. Mr. Collins’ plan
has the ability to have agents.

MR. DOHERTY: On Bage 5, third
paragraph? He was talking about they kind
of have their own MAB.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Where are you talking
about?

MR. DOHERTY: On the third paragraph
down on page 5, second sentence of the
third paragraph, "He stated that MAB said
one thing and the city council gave other
directions.” What | recall him tatking
about is, he said there was kind of two
grouK: in Gresham. One was kind of their
own MAB

MR. STEINMAN: He said that, but he
meant their council.
MR KILMER: R's the fiscal versus

ey

the physical conflict that he was trying
talk about there.

MR. DOHERTY: | heard of that.

MR. STEINMAN: He did say MAB instead
of council, but I'm sure that's not what he
meant.

MR. KILMER: He did say the MAB wants
one kind of service and we've got the
council and budget committee telling us how
to allocate our resources and their
inconsistencies. There's no way the
resources they can bring to EMS would allow
them to fulfill the MAB requirements, is
what he was trying to say.

MR. SKEEN: And he said thaton a
couple of occasions.

MR. KILMER: Yeah.
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DR. JUl: Page 7, | think it would be
clearer, third paragraph on the CPR data,
the last sentence in the third paragraph,
it should be probably just simplified to
eliminate the - everything to the
semicolon. It starts from, it shows 45
percent saved; and cardiac arrest 40
percent witnessed with CPR, 20 percent

saved and unwitnessed cardiac arrest with
CPR; and 15 percent cardiac arrest with no
witness, no CPR. We're talking about the
same thing. Some of this is redundant.

Does that make sense to everybody?

MR. ROBEDEAU: No.

MR. SKEEN: You're saying you
eliminate the first two percentages?

DR. JUI: Everything up to the first
semicolon is redundant. The last portion
of the sentence has everything in it.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

MR. KILMER: Are you saying, Jon, that
the 45 and 20 are not right numbers or —

DR. JUI: We're talking about roughly
the same numbers. Okay?

MR. KILMER: All right.

DR. JUI: So the sentence should read,
specifically, it shows cardiac arrest saves
are 40 percent witnessed with CPR, 20
percent witnessed with no CPR and 40
percent no witness, no CPR. Is that
clear?

MR MOSKOWITZ: M-hm.
MR. SKEEN: And that was with defib?

DR. JUl: With defib, right. Cardiac
arrest —- should say ventricular — you can
make it specific to ventricular
fibrillation?

(Discussion off the record.)

MR. KILMER: What | asked him was
whether he is actually going back and

yslcallr revising last week's minutes —

ast session’s minutes with these changes
that are being made here as opposed to
simply reflecting the changes in the new
minutes.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: No. I've been
reflecting in the new minutes the changes
that should be made to the oid ones.

MR. KILMER: But no revised old
minutes will be issued?

MR. MOSKOWITZ: If the chair directs
me to do that, | can do that. | think —

MR. KILMER: You don't think it's
necessary?

MR. MOSKOWITZ: | don't think so.

MR. ROBEDEAU: 1don't believe it's
necessary, uniess we want to give the
minutes specifically to the county

R SR R
commissioners, and then it might be a good
idea, if we put that in as attachments to a
report. That would be my only -

MR KILMER: Even if we refiect the
chan in the next minutes, that would
satisfy that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. Is everybody
done with the minutes? Anybody not done?

Okay. Can we have a motion to approve
the minutes as corrected.

MR. SKEEN: So moved.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Second?

MR. STEINMAN: Sure.

MR. DOHERTY: Second.

MR. ROBEDEAU: in favor?

(Vote taken.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Opposed?
Silence.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. We're talkin
about medical control today, and Dr. Juiis
here, and we need to kind of move it
along. He's been up all night and would
really kind of like to get out of here and
go to bed, which | don't blame him.

[ really appreciate you coming. Thank

@NONHBWN -

OONONU D WN =

u.
o One thing | thought might be heipful,
| think will be helpful, is to get an exact
number or a very close number of what we're
really taiking about as far as paramedics
and BLS people. What is this physician
supervisor or physician supervisor group
really tgcing to have to do? And | don’t
think there’s anything that | have ever
seen that really nails down that number.

And so | was kind of hopln? Gresham
would be here this morning. | was thinking
about this last night, how many positions,
and | think is what we should be looking at
will be filled or not, because | think that
has the potential of the physician
supervisor having to manage those people,
how many does each organization have, ALS
and BLS.

And | think with the ambulance
services that should exclude wheelchair
cars, even though | believe that most
wheelchair providers, or at least the three
ambulance companies have EMTs on their
ambulance vehicles and by law they do

HERN S a&i&i e
require a physician supervisor but they do
aﬁolutelx nothing for %eatlent care. Sol
know AA has 28 paramedic positions and
eight BLS positions.
T;‘a?ce, o you know the exact number on
c

MR. SKEEN: Multnomah County?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Multnomah County only.

MR. SKEEN: No. I'd have to get you
that to get you an accurate number,
separate it out.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Barry, Multnomah County
only, how many paramedic positions, filled
or unfilled, and how many BLS positions,
excluding wheelchair, does CARE have?

MR. DOHERTY: 28 and six.

MR. ROBEDEAU: 28 and six.

Tom, do you know off the top of your
head about Portiand Fire?

MR. STEINMAN: No. I'll have to get
it for you.

MR. SKEEN: Pete, wouldn't we want to
generate these numbers based on current
status and then the various different
delivery models also?

age,

MR. ROBEDEAU: Well, you're talking
about current status. We're talking about
delivery models. Today what we're talking
about is a physician supervisor or a single
medical authority that is realistically
going to be abie to control just the
medical as| . That's all we're on this
morning. And | think it's really lrn?onant
that the numbers of people actually being
supervised, regardiess of the plan, if you
take the Collins’ plan and the Collins
plan calls for - I'm not exactly sure.

How many paramedic transportable fire
rescues are you calling for?

MR. COLLINS: it doesn't igeclfy
because it would depend on the protocots.

MR. ROBEDEAL: See, and a ot of
that's my problem with doing this. The
PAPA pian, I've read it. it doesn’t
specify any\hing. that | can find, really.
So we don't know what they’re doing.

And | think maybe what we need to do
is kind of set a standard of what's the
maximum that anybody — any one person or
any group of ple can do, and maybe using

3," Jui and his experience, can hélﬁ u

at.
DR. JUl: it depends on what's the
a! of the ?hyslclan supetrvisor.
jously it you're talking about —
assuming that you want to know the skills
and the ability of the paramedics on a
one-to-one basis with a relationship
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9 similar to Seattie, King County, which is a
10 very intimate relationship, the maximum |
1 would suggest that a physician could
12 probably handle is 100 minutes on that
13 relationship. it's a very time-intensive
14 relationsl:)lg.

15 MR. ROBEDEAU: You think one person
16 could do a hundred?

17 DR. JUI: Maximum. | think probably

18 60 comfortably. | can tell ?pu , for me,
19 from a personal point of view, is

20 stretching even me, and that’'s not even

21 devoting my BLS work as well. And | devote
22 approximately .5 or more of my time to

23 supervision of medics. So that's

24 approximately what | would say.

25 MR. SKEEN: Dr. Jui, what all are you

A i Page 1533
1 Includin%gt those duties, then? Are you

2 talking about the day-to-day oversight of

3 the paramedics?

4 R. JUI: The day-to-day oversight of

g the paramedics. Some of those duties are
7

8

9

s

administrative in nature.
MR. SKEEN: Continuing education?
DR. JUL: Yes. If you want the list
of duties, simply it is all the committees
10 that the physician supervisor attends.
11 That's a good start. The committees
12 include the protocol subcommittee, the
13 scientific review committee, the quality
14 assurance committee, the dispatch
15  committee, the MRH QA committee.
16 MR. SKEEN: What was the last one?
17 DR. JUI: MRH physician quality
18 assurance committee. The physician's
19 committee.

20 Did | miss anything, Trudy?
21 MS. SCHIDLEMAN: No.
22 DR. JUI: Those comnittees are about

23 four hours apiece. Those are the upfront
24 committees. There's usually within each
agency two to three two- to four-hour

1 sessions a month. q

2 assurance meeting, which is a two-hour

3 meeting a month; one operational meeting,
4 which is a two- to four-hour meeting a

5 month.
6
7
8
9

ARSI

How many hours are we up to?
MR. ROBEDEAU: It's a lot.
DR. JUI: Yeah. This is ali | would
consider administrative, besides the
10 teaching. And then the teaching would go
1 on — where we consider ride-along,
12 ride-along times and interaction with the
13 paramedics and special sessions, teaching
14 sessions, like ACLS, PHDLS, and one-on-one
15 evaluation of the medics' abilities on the
16 rlde-alon?s.
17 MR. KILMER: Jon, I'm curious. In —
18 have you ever been contacted by anybody
19 from MAB to ask rou what your load was as a
3

20 physician supervisor?
ER. JUI: No. ’
22 MR. KILMER: To your knowledge, was
23 anybody at your department contacted to get

24 that information?
25 DR. JUI: No.

ge 173
1 MR. KILMER: How about Mr. Collins?

2 Did he contact you about all that?

3 DR. JUl: No, but | have had

4 conversations, and he knows my — | think

5 he knows roughly my load.

g MR. KILMER: How about the PAPA

8
9

people? Did they call you?
E?lli. Jui: No

MR. KILMER: Or anybody in your
10 department?

11 DR. JUI: No.
12 MR. KILMER: Thanks.
13 MR. SKEEN: Jon, in the context of

14 those few small items that you just

15 outlined, where does what would you

16 classify as research fit into there

17 DR. JUi: Research is not even in this

area. | would classify the EMS ~ we are
activating EMS research, and ! would say,
if | can get time, eight hours a month
minimum.

MR. SKEEN: But it's not necessary
within the context of these
responsibilities, it's something you're
doing -
ST Page 18558

DR. JUl: it is required, but frankly,
research — no one watches research, and
that's sort of an internal driving force
within our rouE.A

MR. ROBEDEAU: Nobody watches — are
you referring to the system as a whole,
there’s nobody set up to actually do the
research?

DR. JUI: Yes. The excellence in
research does not — if you don't do
research, it's not as readily apparent as
if ’you don'’t do quality assurance or some
of the other operational duties. That
tends to be put on the back burner when
other duties call, and that's what
happens.

MR. ROBEDEAU: How many medics do you
supervise right now?

DR. JUI: Active, 70. Plus or minus
five. Probably minus 5.

MR. SKEEN: Have you done any National
Association of EMS physicians — have they
put in any guidelines of parameters and
scoge of control and ratios?

JUl: As you know, Trace, there is

R 4 e
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a handout published | think by the American
Coliege of Emergency Physicians on the
duties of a medical director, but | do not
believe | have seen any guidelines from an
EMSP on the exact workload of the medical
director.
MR. ROBEDEAU: That was going to be my
next question. Does anybody know of
anything nationally — has anybody else
heard of anything
Bill, do you know?
MR. COLLINS: No, | don't. One of the
oblems you want to —- when you try to
ook nationally, different systerns,
different states have different
requirements, and this state has a ver
specific requirement for each paramedic to
be directly connected to a physician
supervisor. In other states, you go to
California, that's not the law. Soit's a
totally different system.
The ACEP thing does identify kind of
the general parameters of the medical
direction.
MR. SKEEN: Doesn't go in depth.

S Page

MR. COLLINS: No. That may be why it
gets confusing to peopie when not only
reading these plans but discussing them.
We're really talking about two different
things. We're talking about the medical
direction necessary for the system, and
then we're talking about meeting the
supervision requirements for the individual
paramedics. And right now we have a number
of physician supervisors who are involved
in — they supervise the paramedics and the
EMTs, and they also are involved in the
medical direction.

But for our system in Multnomah
County, the medical director, quote, is the
Medical Advisory Board. That's who
approves and sets forth the medical
criteria.

MR. KILMER: To your knowledge, has
the Medical Advisory Board ever atte
to initiate any working relationship with
the physician supervisor co

MR. COLLINS: |don't know. |
can't - since I've been here, we've 3?ne
through some discussions prior to this
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point in the planning about physician
supervision and medical direction, and |
don't know what they've done with or
without the medical directors.

MR. KILMER: The thing people talk
about, inte ratInF the medical direction
here with physician supervision and say
this has always been separated, but
nobody’s ever tried to have the MAB
incorporate the physician supervisors into
its process, into its protocol making, into
anything, in any formal way where you could
acquire all the benefits of supervision
through cooperative interaction. At least
to my knowiedge have not done that.

Have they ever done that, to your
knowledge, Jon?

DR. JUI: No. | think there is a
confusion — and frankly | don’t know the
answer to this — of the real role of the
Medical Advisory Board. What |
understand — and correct — you're the
attorney — but it is an advisory role with
legislative authority for medical
protocols. | think they have taken it upon
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themselves, and there's no judgment to
speak on other matters. Thereis a
confusion between the physician supervisors
and the Medical Advisory Board, and
confusion is very simple, that the

ysician supervisors are ultimately
responsible with my license and our
licenses for the practice and conduct of
the EMTs and paramedics.

On the other hand, within the
county — and | agree with Bill - the
Medical Advisory Board has been the medical
director of the county, and therefore ¥'ou
have a system with two groups of authority:
one from a state authority, and one from a
county authority. And that has been a
source of confusion.
MR. KILMER: | think you are -

there’s nothing in the state statute that
identifies the Medical Advisory Board or
anybody else as the medical authority in
this county, the medical director in this
county. There's nothing in the county
ordinance that identifies the MAB in that
role either. The MAB is an advisor to

AR SRR RN SR
Mr. Collins, and that is all. Has no
direct administrative rights and
responsibilities, and, until very recently,
it never - in fact this is the first time
| every heard that it even thought of
itself as the medical director in Multnomah
County.

MR. COLLINS: i don't know if they
think of themselves as that. I'm trying to
put it in the context of this plannln?
process. However, | don't agree with you
on the county ordinance. The county code
does require that the Medical Advisory
Board approve certain medical protocols,
equipment.

| mean, | can write certain kinds of
rules, but if I'm going to write a rule
having to do medical-care protocols,
equipment to be carried on ambulances
and - | didn't bring the code with me, but
whatever eise it is, they do have that
little piece of actual approval authority.

MR. KILMER: They have oversight
authority; they do not have director
authority. They do not have direction
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authority. There's really nothing in there
that authorizes them to take any
initiatives on that. All there is, is to
review the initiatives you take. Has to go
through them on ical issues.

MR. COLLINS: Right. | think in
actual application, you know, regardiess of
what you call them, whatever medical
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9 direction the system gets, it gets via the
10 Medical Advisoyrsy Board. Whether m%
1 should be doing that or shouldn’t be doing
12 that, that is my opinion on what they're

doing.
14 | &ink both these plans, and tons of
15 discussion prior to everyone putting these
16 gans together, are identifying the need

r a medical director for the system.

18 Then how it gets implemented and what
19 they're responsible for kind of goes in two
20 different directions.
21 MR. KILMER: | think that the
122 appropriate way to view what's happened in
23 the system is that the day-to-day medical

R 7)) direction in the system has come from the

25 physician supervisors on virtually all
issues that are important. What the MAB
has done is taken the initiative in the
area of protocol development to create

1

g

4 uniform of protocols that the physician
g supervisors are then responsible for
7

8

9

imposing.
Until recemir, you had basically two
roups of physician supervisors. You had
ck and the fire bureau at the OHSU

10 through Dr. McNeil or through somebod
1 eise, and then you had for a long time
12 and CARE with Dr. Siqueira as its physician
13 surervisor. And then CARE went up to the

hiil and AA had a different physician
15 supervisor, but it's now up there too.
16 So there's really been physician
17 supervision from two different groups,
18 neither one of whom has been active in the
19 MAB process, mostly because the MAB has not
20 wanted that involvement. That's my
21 understanding of what has actually happened
22 here. To the extent there's been
23 direction, most of it has come from the
24 supervisors.
25 DR. JUI: I'm not sure — this is

BB GRS e e
mxlhlstor . | think there
e Medical Advisory Board

a2 NS

1 clouded beyond
2 was history of th

3 when Mr. Acker was here and that clouded

4 some of the responsibilities of who had —

5 who was responsible for what. And there

6 was clearly many different voices in the

7 community trying to provide input to the

8 EMS agencies.

9 MR. THOMAS: What do you think the
10 relationship — we're talking about
11 supervision, medical supervision such as
12 you do, and then the broader issue of
13 medical direction. How do you think those
14 two things ought to work in relation to
15 each other?
16 DR JUI: And this is my opinion. |
17 think the medical director and his or her
18 agent probably is the most knowledgeable
19 EMS operation, but they cannot operate in a
20 vacuum. And there needs to be a feedback
121 or advisory panel to the medical director
22 and the EMS director on EMS operations, and
23 that should be responsive to citizens and
24 the community’s needs.
25 MR. KILMER: Don’t you think the

1 director ought to be the physicia
2 supervisor, or do you think they should be
3 separate?

4 DR. JUI: | think they should be one
5 in the same. | think the medical director
6

7

8

9

]

should have the power not to be intimidated
by his advisors when there happens to be a
correctly — medical correct response. On
the other hand, | think the advisory board

10 should have significant influence when

1 there is a pressing community need as

12 well. Some systems don't have that

13 advisory board. | know for a fact King

14 County — | mean cv of Seattle doesn't.

15 h_’R. THOMAS: You say does or does

not
17 DR. JUi: Does not.
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MR. COLLINS: Does not.

MR. ROBEDEAU: One thing, Trace, |
assigned you eight FTEs. is that okay?
Eight full-time equivalents. So call you
48 paramedics for Multnomah County.

R. SKEEN: Eight FTEs?
MR. ROBEDEAU: Yes.
MR. SKEEN: | can adjust our

2R
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schedules.

MR. KILMER: Is that close,

oximatel

MR. SKEEN: That's quite close. We're
in the neighborhood — the number | wanted
to throw out was 52 paramedics for
gultnomah County, and that puts it real

ose.
MR. ROBEDEAU: | assigned you 48.
MR. KILMER: Why don't you give him

52.

MR. SKEEN: That's qualified until |
can research it.

MR. ROBEDEAU: All | wanted to look at
here, under the current system | gave the
fire bureau 70, | gave Gresham Fire five.
If | remember from talking to David, they
don’t have a lot of paramedics, as |
recall.

DR. JUl: They have two active units,
ALS units.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Do they have that

man{?
DR. JUI: They have two, engine
paramedics. Engine paramedics.

MR. ROBEDEAU: That would be six,
then. I'm %olng to leave it for my
numbers. | show 179 paramedics in the
system. And under Collins' plan, the best
case scenario would lower that to 157.
That would be cutting the privates in half,
14, 24, 14, returning the Portiand Fire
Bureau up to a hundred in order to have an
ALS first response, and | left Gresham Fire
at five. My understanding was that they
were not going to gear up; that the
Portland Fire, from what David was saying
here, was going to be covering transport
for time critical in Gresham. Is that
correct?

MR. STEINMAN: (Nods head.)

MR. ROBEDEAU: You still wind up with
157 paramedics, regardiess of which one you
look at. If you take the PAPA plan, which
tome is sketchY. and trying to make a
dedicated unit, | just come up with an
educated guess, which may be very
uneducated, at 209.

MR. KILMER: What's the basis for that
guess, Pete?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Was adding gramedlcs
and paramedic units. in order to be a
dedicated system where the paramedics did
nothing, you're going to have to add units

in order to make the same coverage you have
now, provided — now, a lot depends on how
much of the response-time standard is
lowered and what the protocols are going to
be. But if you maintain two paramedics on
an ambulance, | think you're going to have

to add ambulances.

MR. KILMER: But the assumption you've
come up with of 209 rests on a certain
amount of ambulances, the certain number on
the fire of first responses.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Right.

MR. KILMER: You should articulate
those for the record.

MR. ROBEDEAU: I'm sitting here trying
to remember what | did on that, and | know
this is really stupid, but | can't
remember.

MR. SKEEN: The problem is there's
about five different scenarios.

MR. COLLINS: { need to at least make

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
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like, for instance, in PAPA's plan they'r

numbers, the raw numbers in the system.

22
a comment on this. | don't think this is
the right methodology. If you want to try
to look, see what the workioad is for
physician supervisor, you need to count
geople. it doesn't matter to John at the

re department whether the person works

half time, quarter time, or full time.
it's still an EMT or paramedic that needs
to be supervised.

So counting the number of units, A,
it's going to understate the number of
peopie, whatever that number is, and to try
to - we can look at the current system.
;I’hekre'sdno qu:stion about that. c’:&
ook and see how many people you employ at
Buck that work in Multno County,
regardiess of how much they work, but |
don't think you can really do it on units.
With all the scenarios, | don't think you
can guess what it's going to be. | mean,
if you look at either the plan that we
submitted or PAPA's plan, there's no finite
numbers of how many peopie you need in
there. You can look at demand analysis we
did. That would give you part of it.

talking about transporting all the 9-1-1
calls and, at least my reading of it is al!
the other transports that need paramedics.

MR. SKEEN: ALS interfacility.

MR. COLLINS: So you can look at
demand ana%sls. that will give you an idea
for 9-1-1, but it won't give you an idea
for the rest of it.

MR. KILMER: Except there is a number
with respect to interfacility ALS
transports that could be pinned down to at
least a relatively approximate number, and
your assumption it needs to be supervised
the same whether or not these are active
paramedics, I'm not sure that's correct.

MR. COLLINS: If you have 28 FTEs, you
mlght have so many of those be part time
and filled with two people for every one of
those. So 28 FTEs could represent anywhere
from 28 people to God knows how many.

MR. KILMER: In doing an analysis, it
could do that. You have expertise around
this table that will tell you what are the

R

PeH??w many part-timers do you have,
te

MR. COLLINS: That's what | want to
know, whether we should collect that from
the providers. | don't think that's — |
understand you want to kind of get a
ballpark of number of paramedics, but the
question is, if you're looking at these two
rlans, one plan proposes that one single

ndividual supervise all the paramedics,
all the EMTs, and do alil the medical
direction,

MR, KILMER: Right.

MR, COLLINS: And the other plan says,
cne Individual would be the medical
director, and that, based on whatever the
established need is, you'd have other
agents. Those are the — both of them
speak to a single medical director, both of
them speak to that medical director being
the supervisor of record for all the EMTs.
| mean, you're talking about the fire
department paramedics. You aiso have
hundreds of EMT-Is or II's or whatever they
are. There's just a lot of people.

R. THOMAS: | e
discussion needs to go is for Dr. Jul to be
able to talk about how it works with one
person doing it all and how it works with
one person with an agent, sort of what
we're talking about. Uniess you some
feel for what balipark for the nu rs of
peopie they're having to supervise, it's
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your word against somebody else’'s word. |
don’t think that's an adequate basis for
discussion of that issue.

We need to be in the ballpark. We
don't need to be right. It's 100, 150,
200, 250, 300. And then you can really
talk about which — how are you going to
structure it, if you're going to have one
person of record be the physician, how are
you ln? to structure it to make it work.

MR. KILMER: | think you add to
that — | would add to that —

MR. STEINMAN: | think if we're going
to do this for the record, I'm going to go

home.
MR. KILMER: Tom, just a minute.
We're all on the same side here.

The big issue, it seems to me, is if
one person can do it all, then the PAPA
plan has some merit in terms of
coordinating that in one place, but if the
PAPA plan can't do it because it's going
to, as a practical matter, take several
peoEIe, then the option a lot of people are
thinking about, which is to contract with
some agency like the healith — the
emergency department of OHSU, as an
alternative to the Health Division, makes
it - hiring somebody directly, makes a

reat deal more sense. And that's part of
e reason an analysis based on numbers is

important. And then you have to get into
the balipark that Pete's talking about.

MR. STEINMAN: Mr. Chairman, I'd like
to say, | agree with Mr. Collins' concept.
What you need to do is look at the total
number of emglo es that are certified at
some level of EMT with each agency. It
doesn’t matter how many paramedics I've got
on rescues or whatever. Jon's responsible
for me when | work a call shift, for me
when | drive up on an accident. Jon's

responsibie for our guy that's issuin

clothing. Even though he's got a bad back,

he's an EMT-l. He's ultimately responsible
for every employee at our organization
that's certified at any level of EMT.

That's the numbers you need to look at.
MR. ROBEDEAU: That's to a degree
rtly what we're doing. You're right.
ay? Butin comparing the plans, what |

gtan down was 700 BLS people, just as a
lipark, and to answer the question what |

do was — to come up with the PAPA plan was

added 30 firemen to bring the fire bureau

up to full ALS first response to the

current number in the system. You're right

on that.

But | think the thing with the
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alotofh eticals and a wish list.
And it calls for one single person to be a
czar who is going to handle 900 to a
thousand people and do a good job, because
we haven't even counted any of the outlying
fire bureaus that are going to have to be
included in a plan somehow.

So is it fair to say, would | get

consensus from the whole board that one
person can't do it?

MR. DOHERTY: | think that's very fair
to say. | believe the people who were
supporting or are supporting a plan that
says one person can do it have never been

ysician supervisors. When that was
raised by the MAB, | don't believe there
was any members of the MAB that had ever
been a %hagician supervisor.

MR. EDEAU: Okay. Then the second
half of the question is, what can we do
that will really work?

That's why Dr. Jui is here. He has
experience, at is a realistic medical
supervision plan that will do all of the
things that are needed that Dr. Jui has
articulated yesterday and some of it today
and not kill whoever is doing it?

MR. STEINMAN: Mr. Chair, | believe,
contrary to what Mr. Kilmer had asked
Dr. Jui and he said no, the county has
that. The county had a subcommittee
looking at medical supervision. We spent
months in meetings on that, meeting with

the docs and everybody else. We made
recommendations to the MAB that were
totally ignored. So the county has that
document, and that work's been done
already, by all the providers, and
physicians at all of those meetings.

So we know that stuff's there. We
know the recommendations were made. And |
would like to get that stuff out and get on
with comparlngothese two plans and coming
up with some document instead of sittin
here and spewing out stuff for the record.
it's getting real frustrating here that
we're not making any progress at all.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think we've made a
lot of progress.

MR. THOMAS: Tom, | think there is
something that needs to be done, which has
nothing to do with the record. it has to
do with how you're going to present
whatever - say it's what the group came up
with or whatever, any revision that this
Eroup comes up with to the County

ommission. You all can sit around the
table and say, we all think — say it won't

exercise, or | know the thing with the % i T age
exercise on what | wanted to accomplish by 1 work, and the MAB can sit at the table and
doing this was to get a consensus on 2 say, yes, it will work. And there's very
whether or not one individual person can do 3 ImYe gsls on that for the County
:‘ as is called for in at least one of the 4 Commission, which ultimately has to make
ans, or whether or not we need to 5 the decision, to pick between those two
actually come up — what we need to do here 6 itions. That's my concern.
Is to come up with a workabie method that's 7 | think there's a level of numbers
AT SRR RN 8 that you don't have to work out today but
AN R 9  this committee ought to come to some sort
going to work. | think we can g\eﬁ a 10 of agreement on that will make it very
consensus that, with nearly a thousand 1 clear to the County Commission what won’t
ple, one individual person cannot do the 12 work anyway, and | think that's the thing
b. 13 you're going to need to identify to present
MR. STEINMAN: Wouldn't It be easier 14 to them at some point.
for you to go around and poll the providers 15 MR. STEINMAN: And | agree with that,
and ask them if one person can do it 16 and | say the county probably has that
instead of all this bickering and bantering 17 because we all have to send in that list
back and forth? | know one person can't do 18 every year to the county, and we should use
the job, period. 19 the numbers that are in the county’s
MR. ROBEDEAU: | don't think it's 20 hands.
bickering and bantering back and forth. | 21 | take offense at coming to this
think one of the problems, we have gone 22 meeting and having my physician supervisor,
around or some groups have gone around and 23 who | asked to come here after being up all
polied some people and said, what do you 24 night long working on patients, be
think, and this is it. So they produced a 25 questioned in such a way | can see he's
pian that, as far as | can see, is based on
age 34 (0 Page 41 Lord, Nodland, Studenmund (503) 299-6200
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%oln to spend a lot of time in court when
this thing comes out. Have you ever been
asked by the county, or Bill Collins and

that stuff, | find offensive.

We know the plan's there. We've
worked with the county. All the providers
have worked with the county. PAPA hasn't.
We know that. So let's get on with this
thing, and let's get on with comparing the
two plans and coming up with some
recommendations.

Don't we have some stuff from that
committee, Bill?

MR. COLLINS: Yeah, we do. We also
have the stuff from — we have whatever the
earlier positions were.

The end result of that process kind of
prior to this planning, even though there
was some differences of opinion | think
between the MAB and the eariler group, was
that there should be a medical director,
there should be a single physician who is
responsible for the medical direction and
supervision. Where it parted ways with
PAPA and other people — in fact really

with PAPA and pretty much everybody else —
was that as that medical director
supervisor, that person couldn't do all the
work. And whether the number is 700 or 600
or 500, if you even look at what Jon said
earlier today, with kind of a hundred
people the absolute outside max, we know
there's more than a hundred people no
matter how you count it.

| don’t disagree with you at some
point you need to count up all these so
that people can understand. | think from
looking at the options, it isn't like we're
on a fine line like we could do 600 but we
couldn’t ?o 61’3 Ilt seems tofme, fn}m my
perspective, this is at sort of opposite
ends of the dumbbell. Ppo

And | don’t think there was any
disagreement prior to the plan being
presented again at the MAB that there
shouldn’t be a medical director. Everybody
| talked to, which was all the providers,
PAPA, and the MAB, pretty much everybody
said, yeah. And then the only issue that
came up was one group says they can't do

anything else, it has to be the sole
person, and other people say no.

| Correct r:e it I'md\;vron . That was :t
east my understanding, that ever

pretty much agreed on that, inclum t¥|e
physician supervisor.

MR. SKEEN: My interpretation of that
is the PAPA plan said, it shall be the
medical director, and they went through to
specify what they perceived many of their
responsibilities were and said they could
not delegate to anyone eise without the
MAB's approval.

So | don't think theJ' contemplate that
one medical director doing it at all, but
for some reason they had the Medical
Advlsor¥ Board approving who the agents
were going to be, as opposed to your plan,
which talks about a medical director and
very obviously having‘to rely upon some
agents. I'm not sure how those agents are
specified.

it seems to me one way or the other,
there are too many people in whatever plan
comes up, there would be too many people

SRR G rage 44
for one person to do this all, under either
plan. | guess the question is whether that
medical director should control the agents
or whether the agents working for various
agencies should serve as an advisory board
back to that medical director.

It gets — to me it gets into all of
that teedback group and the control

happen to have a very similar standard and

factor.

MR. ROBEDEAU: What you get into, too,
Trace, is state law. The agents that are
actually working for the agency cannot -
as understanding of the state jaw, the
are the ones then that become responsibie,
and if the medical director comes down and
gives a direction that thed\( believe is
wrong, by state law, it's their
responsibility not to follow that
direction. Somehow or another that needs
to be blended in.

That's been what | have heard has been
articulated as the reason why that the MAB
and some other groups feel that the system
that has individual agencies having an
individual physician supervisor is a bad

T T Page 457

system that will never accomplish anything,
and then | have heard docs articulate that
any doctor who is working for a private
agg:tcy and receiving a s:layry will sell out
to that agency because they're getting
money for It?‘; don't believe that's
true. And | haven't had that as my

rience.

But whatever plan Multnomah County
does or whatever physician supervisor role
anybody plays, it has to fit in with the
state law.

MR. THOMAS: Since we've got Dr. Jui
here, | think Tom's right, we ought to make
his time useful.

You have some thoughts about how you
would like it organized — I'm guessing.

I'm not sure — but, with, say, a medical
director and then agents, who ought to have
authority over whom.

DR. JUi: I'm not quite sure if the
organization - all | can say, speak to the
medical issues right now. Let's assume
that my -- the people | have talked about

want to guarantee the quality.
Guaranteeln? the quality is one of my

medics working on my own relative. Okay?
And having that ability for the medic to do

the right thing.

| think within that context, and
havln? that medic save one of my relative's
lives, | think between 50 to 75 is a
comfortable number for a medical director
to personaily supervise and be assured of
the competency of that person. Much above
that, you lose the intimacy and closeness
of association and know which way the medic
is q(olng to decide one way or the other and
make sure that decision process is
accurate.

Above that number, it becomes an
administrative number where you are
delegating that responsibility to another
person. And it can be done, it can be
delegated, but you have to be very careful
how that &elegatlon is done, because
sometimes there are differences in
tolerance of some medical phg‘:clans.

Amongst us physicians at OHSU, we

. YT

we have a very organized way of arguing out
our differences, and we practice very
similar medicine. Obviously, we cross-
cover each other and we have the same
patients. | think that's one of the

reasons why OHSU's program works with
multiple physiclans: because we're
comfortabie with one another, we work with
each other all the time, we know how we
decide, and we're comfortable with the
decision-making process of the a?‘enu.

So what I'm trying te describe is when
the medical director has his or her agents,
that agent cannot be on a superficia
basis; it should be on a very close
personal relationship basis.
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MR. SKEEN: So what you're suggesting
with the Multnomah County system, depending
g thle an, at 50 to 75 paramedics per

cian —

gFL JUI: If you desire the
cioseness.

MR. SKEEN: The optimum.

DR. JUI: Yes.

RSl S AR reres Whaees

MR. SKEEN: So if you're looking at
that —- and the various models appear to me
to be requiring anywhere from 100 to 150 to
250 paramedics in the system, depending on
how it's set up — obviously, you're going
to need anywhere from three to five
physicians. So what I'm hearing is what

u're advocating, is similar to what you

ave up at OHSU right now, with a

preexisting network of the physician
supervisors that are working with those
different agencies.

DR. JUI: That's a system | know will
work. Whether it's an optimal system or
not, that's another question. There are
many different ways of operating.

R. SKEEN: How would you see the
medical director — if we assume that the
current people remain involved with the
agencies with physician supervision, then
how would you see the medical director
interacting with those physicians? Them
being subject to the medical director,
under the control of the medical director,
or in an advisory capacity to the medical

2 SRR
director?

DR. JUI: It depends on what Bill
wants of the medical director. If the
medical director is going to be responsible
for the medical care of everybody In the
system, then they would have to
subservient to the medical director. If
the medical director is an administrative
medical director and the agents are,
quote-unquote, independent of the clinical
responsibility, then they don’t have to be
under and they can be agents of the
agencies or the other —- do you sort of
understand?

MR. SKEEN: Yes.

So under the administrative concept,
would those supervisor physicians be an
administrator?

DR. JUI: Exactly.

MR. SKEEN: You feel that's the
optimum from what you see?

DR. JUI: The community has told us
that ther want one single medical director,
and | think they are implying within the

lines that they want one voice and one

point of contact. And we won't argue with
that need. And there's a logic to that
need as, again, we're flexible, and | think
we can work with the other system if the
communities all want.

But | think Bill is correct, that
there is —- there has been a consistent
voice within the community of that single
concept. So in spite of what might work,
the community | think has said fairl
straightforwardly that they would like the
former model, where the medical director
would be responsibie for all the agents
from a patient-care standpoint.

MR. SKEEN: So a clinical medical
director?

DR. JUI: That's correct.

MR. SKEEN: As opposed to
administrative?

DR. JUI: Yes.

MR. THOMAS: So that person would be,
if | understand, integrated with the total
group, but in cﬁarge?

DR. JUI: That's correct.

MR THOMAS: And I'm assuming from

ONORDBWN -

transter, whichever system it is.
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what you said that that person, if that
were the way it were set up, you would
think it would work best to that
integrated group if the medical director
had the control over who were going to be
agents and select them?

DR. JUI: That's correct.

MR. SKEEN: Do you see that being a
workable situation, to have those various
agents from other groups?

We've talked earlier about how
everything's kind of merged up to the
university currently.

DR. JUI: | think it couid be
workable. I'm actually scared of the
intrahospital rivalry or intra — the
medical care facilities are divided into
three camps now: Legacy, Sisters of
Providence, and Kaiser Sunnyside. And,
unfortunately, prehospital care is heavily

liticked as well, and so there will be

nfluence. And obviously | don't need to
tell ple in this room about that. And
that's the danger of that.

one small group who actually doesn't
the dominant force in the market is
over-represented in the medical
supervision, and perhaps there's been some
;:hrmcism of that. I'm not sure where

at -

MR. THOMAS: As | understand where
you're coming from, to really make it work
right, some group is going to be the
dominant - some hospital is going to be
the dominant hospital, because you need
that close team where they have the same
ethic and concept?

DR. JUI: Most likely, yes.

MR. THOMAS: And approach.

DR. JUI: Yes.

MR. THOMAS: At least from a medical
persgcﬁve. That's interesting.

DR. JUI: There's no question, one of
the things about our group, we don't go to
a meeting and have hidden agendas of the
systems you represent. You can
concentrate, hopefully, on the medical
issues of the care providers and leave your
interrivalry systems out of the medical

ave
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MR. DOHERTY: Dr. Jui, would you say
that MRH physicians are also providing
medical direction?

DR. JUI: Absolutely. Iit's on-line
medical control.

MR. DOHERTY: Would it help - do you
think it's necessary for consistency that
MRH also be at the same location as the
agents?

DR. JUI: it doesn’t have to be. it
would be helpful to have it at the same
location. | think on-line medical control
should be confined to a small group of
Reop!e that know the protocols and know the

ospital care providers, especially the
paramedics, so when they get interaction
over the radio, there's a huge element of
trust and knowledge of who's at the other
end of communications, and that requires
good knowledge of the system and the
paramedics.

Ideally, the people that would be —
one of the reasons it may have worked with
MRH is we know who is calling us, and it is

S BN 25 283 Pageﬂ54
a definite value being on the on-line
medical control receiving end to know who
Is callln?‘sme and why and how they - he or
she thinks. No question about it.

Right now we have approximately 15

facuity, five of which are very heavily
involved in the EMS and know the medics
very well,
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9 MR. DOHERTY: Do you depend, in Your 18 the various EMS disciplines should be
10 duties as an MRH physician, to assist in — 19 appointed to them by this overslg‘ht goup.
e

1} lack of a better of term, the intimate 20 of that the agencies should be al

12 knowledge or understanding of paramedics in 21 seiect their physician supervisor who then
13 the system? 22 would fall into this restriction?

14 DR. JUI: Yes. It's invaluabie. | 23 DR. JUI: Have to be careful about

15 think it's a necessary portion of the 24 that.

16 understanding of medical supervision. 25 MR. SKEEN: I'm not trying to be

17 There's on-line and off-line. |think the¥
18 go hand in hand. They're not necessarily
19 completely integral. They work better from
20 a single — from a unified, operational
21 point of view.
22 MR. THOMAS: Is there any argument on
23 the other side of that from a medical
24 persﬁctlve that people have made?

DR. JUI: The only argument, you can

cute,

DR. JUI: There are the county’'s needs
and there are the agencies’ needs. The
agencies need to have a responsibie person
that they can interact and have an intimate
relaﬁonsh‘if with. The county, on the
other hand, needs a responsibie person that
is not influenced by other thlnPs sides
the county influence. And | think there
are two needs. I'm not sure there's a
happy answer between the two needs.

e system has fallen much more
towards the governmental needs, and those
are the ones with the, quote-unquote,
strong medical director, and the needs of
the aaencles have falien secondary.

MR. SKEEN: Secondary.

MR. STEINMAN: | think most of that
was covered - and, Barry, correct me if
I'm wrong. Didn’'t we cover almost all of
that in that subcommittee on physician
supervisor stuff, interagencies and
committee deal? I'm not sure what yo..
still have available for that.
MR. COLLINS: | can look an
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1 work from another way.

2 MR. THOMAS: Any argument there's a
3 neg‘atlve from a medical perspective linking
4 on-line and off-line?

g DR. JUI: | can tell you the history.
7
8
9

Everybody knows that the medical
surervlslon prior to 1986 or '87, |
believe, when we developed associations
with prehospital care providers, was done
10 by non-MRH physicians, and there was
11 difficulties in understanding by the
12 prehospital care rrovlders of the
13 ditferences in opinions and orders between
14 their on-line and off-line.
15 There is always some differences. But
16 those differences have been minimized
17 having the on-line and off-line at the same

18 institution with the same people telling 5 RN

19 the orders. th at needs

20 MR. SKEEN: What would you looked at, if épu 3:: to a medical director
21 characterize as the unifying influence for or agent kind of thing, is whether there's

22 physicians within the same institution? any validity to it or not. The perception

23 would think there's a lot of of providers, whether they're public
24 independence by physicians that are providers or private providers, hiring
25 invoived in emergency medicine. What is it their own medical direction can cause

oblems in the system. That's not that
's actually causing any problems, but

1 bout having the same institution that : people perceive that as an issue. And |
2 brings about a unification? |s it internal 1 think that's something that has to be
3 research that's belng done? 12 addressed as we're going through this.
4 DR. JUI: | think it's we have spent a 13 MR. THOMAS: Maybe one thing the
5 lot of time within our group discussing the 14 committee ou?ht todois geta
6 objectives and where we would like the 15 recommendation that was developed before,
7 standard of medical care to be at. There's 16 maybe at one of the future meetings look at
8 a hugea time commitment and communications. - 17 that. Tom may be right. It may cover
9 And based upon those communications, | 18 everything that we're talking about. And |
10 think we agree, | think with 98 to 99 : 19 think there's more discussion of the
" percent, to certain standards of care, and . ] . 20 g:llosophy of it here than I've seen
12 we continuously do this at physician - 21 fore.
13 supervisor meetings every month. o 22 MR. ROBEDEAU: The recommendation that
14 And based upon that, based on a common . 23 was made to the Medical Advisory Board
15 goal of hospital care and community, you Co 24 before from the discussion that came out of
16 ave obviously your mission statement, S s 25 this committee, was there be a single

17 which would be equivalent to an

18 organizational statement of excelience for
19 the physiclan supervisors. Does that make
20 sense .

21 MR. SKEEN: | understand what you're
22 saying. What's the application of that or
23 practicality of that if you move out of

24 that host organization into multiple

25 hospital facilities?

1 medical authority and that the physician
2 supervisors had made the recommendation
3 that there be a chair elected from the
4 existing ph‘zsiclan supervisors from the
5 agencies, the chair serve for at ieast one
6 year, and that any contact between the MAB
7 or anybody else and this group would
8 through the chair so they'd have a single
9 person to report to.
: 10 And as | recall, the MAB was 0 angry
rersonal experience you would be involved 1 at that that they would not even vote on
n Intra-health-care-provider issues, and 12 whether or not they wanted it; they just

the politics would be heavily invoived. | 13 threw it out.

S AT AR §
DR. JUI: You could do that, but from

1
2
2
5 can't really walk into a room right now in
6
7
8
9

14 MR. THOMAS: Well, it seems to me you
this community and say, “This is Jon Juli, 15 could get that in front of you and see if
Portland Fm_:cm'gsician supervisor.* 16 there’s some little different changes that
Theyll say, U at the other end.” So 17 you would make based on the history that's
you'll be branded with the organization 18 gone on and see where that is. There were

10 that you're associated with. matter if 19 actually two of them, weren’t there? The

1 you agree with OHSU, you'll be associated 20 ph\;slc an supervisor group had a proposal,
12 with that. 21 as | recall.

13 There's no question the influence of 22 MR. ROBEDEAU: Yes. That's the one |
14 health care agencies have tremendously made 23 was talking about.

15 their i ct on this decision-making. 24 MR. T AS: Wasn't there another

16 MR. SKEEN: And is it, just your 25 group which sort of took that and refined

17 opinion, that the physician supervisors for
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it some more?

MR. COLLINS: There was a committee to
look at medical supervision. it went
through a number of iterations. But what
was presented out of that committee
originally for consideration to the MAB was
basically what Pete was identifying. Then
there was much discussion, gnashing of
teeth. And sort of what came out of that |
think was the concept of the
county-employed medical director and the
necessary hours of medical supervision that
needed to be put in place. But that
didn’t - that's kind of from our
pers ive.

en the MAB, you know, made their
statement, we did not agree with that. We
went to the Board of Commissioners and
said, we do not a?ree with that, and got
some informal — Fuess that's what you'd
call it - informal direction from the

board to move toward what we were talking
about. And then the board changed.

MR. THOMAS: Seems to me, we could
get — it would be good to get that earlier

proposal back in front of us and at least
see what it looks like. it was quite
detaiied, as | recall.

MR. STEINMAN: | think, you know, if
we get that, we're going to find out, and
Trace had a good point about PAPA's plan,
it really boils down to PAPA's plan saying
tBh"el MAB wi||lfeclde nr;o the a ent;saere and

's not really specifying, and ma we
need to look at that plan, and it might be
as simple as bringing that thing up again.

MR. THOMAS: That's what I was
thinking. From what Dr. Jui was saying -
personally, I'm not a physician; sounds
right to me — that's a critical
distinction because the MAB's approach
probably is to try to distribute the
physician supervisors, the agents around
among the different hospitals, to be blunt,
and at least Dr. Jui's argument is,
regardiess of which is the hospital or
facility, it actually makes sense to have
on-line medical control and off-line

medical control housed among a group of
peopie who work together on a regular

basis.

| think that's a key issue for
somebody to decide, and it's a major policy
decision, which probably the commission is
going to make ultimately.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Without some kind of |
think strong direction that the County
Commission can hang their hat on, going
against the MAB, | can guarantee you that,
you know, spreading this thing out into
different hospitals and different groups is
going to tie this thing up for another
rears ust like it's been tied up for the

ast 20 years. Nothing is ever going to
move as far as medical direction until
there's an edict out of the County
Commission.

And this will — medical direction has
never been an EMS issue. Since 1974, for
20 years it's been a hospital issue. And |
say we've to make a recommendation out
of the Provider Board that's strong and
aliow them to hang their hat on something.

MR. SKEEN: Both plans currently leave
it hanging.

...... N ————
MR. ROBEDEA now.
that.
MR. COLLINS: Leave which part

hanging?

R. SKEEN: The definition as to how
the medical control be facilitated, who the
agents will be. Both —-

MR. COLLINS: Did we leave ours

R RN
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hanging?
R. SKEEN: The PAPA plan says that

the medical director can't delegate this to
anybody without permission from the MAB.
Your plan says basically, this is going to
need more people than just the one.

MR. COLLINS: | better read my plan.

MR. SKEEN: Then it never goes into
any detail about whether that should be
housed within the same institution, whether
on-line and off-line should be consolidated
within the same group, who reports to who.

MR. COLLINS: We didn’t talk about
on-line/ off-line consolidation, but | think
we did talk about the other part.

MR. SKEEN: Dr. Jui, | think there are
some markets where there can be some

DR. JUI: Absolutely.

MR. SKEEN: I'm not the most well-
traveled person, but I've worked in other
states. The other observation | have is
Oregon and probably Washington as well have
much more advanced controlled environments
for the paramedic-physician relationship
than any that I'm familiar with.

DR. JUi: | would tend to agree with
that. There's something special. I've
been to a lot of cities, and there's
something special about this, and only a
few cities that | know have those kinds of
relationships. But that's probably biased,
from my point of view,

There's one area { really would like
to plead. The area is the following: It
depends on what you want as a medical
director. If you want the medical director
to be the medical clinical director, i.e.,
the standard of care, we believe, and the

ysician supervisors of OHSU i'm speaking

7, that that person needs to be a
practicing emergency physician. it cannot

9¢.
be a full-time administrator. We believe
that you would lose credibility with your
EMTs and paramedics if that happens.
Obviously, some systems do do that,
but we believe it's important and vital to
your position to have that continuing
experience. And, unfortunately, in order
to maintain — speaking very personalil
now — that experience, the standard o
workioad for emergency :hysiclans in this
community is anywhere from 12 to 14 shifts
ger month, 12-hour shifts. Dividing that
y three, that's three weeks, three shifts
a week, for 36 hours, and we believe a
minimum of anywhere from four to six shifts
a month are required to maintain skill. We
don't go much below four.
MR. SKEEN: Four 12-hour shifts?
DR. JUI: Yes. So what I'm trying to
tell you is the medical director
automatically is going to have four —
minimum of four, probably five or six
12-hour shifts out of his or her's life to
maintain his medical — their medical
schools.

MOSKOWITZ: {'m sorry. That

four 12-hour shifts a month?

DR. JUI: Yes. Out of four weeks, not
a month. And we would prefer to have it
slx|. You lose their edge to a certain
point.

MR. THOMAS: That's good.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Could we possibly get
actually brought to the meeting, maybe next
week, the subcommittee’s report that was

presented?
MR. COLLINS: Yes. I'il see what we

can -
DR. JUI: The other medical issue that

| would like to bring up is a hidden

issue. Both plans, nelther plan addresses

the expertise of EMS. Specifically, EMS is
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18 a new subspecialty in emergency medicine
19 and has a completely different set of

20 knowiedge and skills. Being board

21 certified in emergency medicine does not
22 necessarily make you an expert in EMS.

23 Speaking as a person that learned by doing
24 it, there's a lot to this job, and | think

25 i could do this another 20 years and learn

: s G Page 6B R

2293

g
1 more.

2 it's very difficult for someone,

3 especially just getting out of residency,

4 to be effective in this organization. |

5 think Multnomah County, being the more

6 densely populated in the state of Oregon,

7 should have much higher standards of the

8 medical director than just being board

9 certified in emergency medicine. | think

10 one of them shouid be expertise in EMS and
" perhaps expertise in other administrative

12 skills - public health or heaith

13 administration or some other comparable
14 training. I'm not {ust saw‘ng this because

15 we've had it, but | think it's really

16 valuable.

17 The other one is having access to

18 research methodology for further

19 improvements in the system. None of those

20 are sgeclﬁed in either system plan.

MR. COLLINS: Although | think those
22 are specified in the last document that
23 went to the board on medical supervision.
24 It didn't — we didn't put - the job
25 description is left out of here, but in the

AP age 69
al supervision, the

1 last proposal
2 requirements were — I'm trying to remember
3 exactly — they were board certification in
4 emergency medicine, X years - the county
5 had some numbers — three years rience
6 in EMS system management or medical
7 supervision of paramedics, research was |
8 don't think a requirement but a desirable.
9 So when that group had looked at that
10 before, that had been addressed.
11 DR. JUI: Some of this content is in
12 the American College of Emergency
13 Physicians.
14 R. SKEEN: Gentlemen, when you
15 back to the 75 to 50 paramedics optimal, we
16 can think of the paramedics in the system.
17 Back to the EMTs, is there a relationship?
18 Can you handlie 75 paramedics and another
19 hundred EMTs? How do you see that?

20 DR. JUI: I'm having difficulty

21 etting that kind of quantity because I'm
22 earning how to be a medical director for
23 EMTs, and there's a less — | won't say
24 less. | can't state. Thereis a

25 different — slightly ditferent

§
1
2 mportant.
3 MR. STEINMAN: A lot of that kind of
4 depends on what you talked about on Tuesday
g :bout the paramedic individual. if he can

ave —
7 MR. DOHERTY: Paramedics or agents.
8 MR. STEINMAN: - then he can get over
9 quite a few people. Without those, | think
10 he's probably talking about the same
11 numbers, if you want quality care.
12 DR. JUI: 1 must be clear with you.
13 An EMT-| doesn’t clear an airway, and they
14 fail to perform that critical but stupid -
15 not stupid but elementary step. That is
16 just as important as the paramedic not
17 recognizing a seriously ill patient,
18 because you're going to lose the patient
19 both ways. | don't think you can
20 shortchange the EMT-I's training.
21 MR. COLLINS: Iilooked up to see what
22 we said about that, because | should ~ I'm
23 here with one plan, and | can't really
24 speak for what PAPA is doing on medical
25 direction. But | want to make sure it's
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understand, they had ruied out this
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clear. What we proposed is a county-hired
medical director who then can figure out
what they need to support the duties that
are assigned to the medical director. We
did not specify there should be three

agents and these agents should be paid this
way. We hire the expert medical person who
then says, okay, for me to do this job, I'm
going to need, you know, three other docs
working so many days to do this or to do
that. didn't s fy any of the

details.

But it should be clear in our plan,
mpeer:kl: no — th;;rs;s nogav'lgg in eLe“that
[ to any of the pr rs, public or
ivate, hiring medical directors of any
ind, that that ail gets incorporated into
one medical direction supervision system.
MR. MOSKOWITZ: And there's nothing in
your plan, apart from some other documents
that were submitted at some other point,
regarding whether this medical director
ought to be the clinical director, someone
who continues to practice in the emergency
room.

MR. COLLINS: Yeah. Part of that - |
think we're talking about ~ the medical
direction is in the plan, but it was also
discussed in great detail prior. Those
documents do have, from different people,
requirements. We have the requirement |
think in the one that we presented that
they be a practicing physician. I'm
certainlr — if 'm the responsible person
for making sure we have medical direction,
| wouldn't in a million years consider a
physician that was not practicing. R
wouldn’t make any sense.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: So when the county
board looks at your plan here, that's also
what they will - they will know that's
part of what they are —

MR. COLLINS: Yeah. ltisn'tin the
copy that went out. There's an a‘rpendlx
that's ?'ot thmb description and what you
would hire. ‘Il have to make that clear
if there's any different issue in that.

But our position is that the medical
director should be a clinical director
responsible for the clinical care in the

S SRE i Page 73::
system and should not be, as | think in the
other plan, should not be the administrator
for all aspects of the system. That's even
more work piled on it.

You hire the physician because they
are the clinically competent people and
that's who you want.

MR. T AS: BIill, | think it would be
helpful to the other people here to know
about the conversation we had after the
last meeting about the county, when they
were talking about this one person and
designating an individual, they have
reached the conclusion that essentially
this person is an employee of the coun
and that that's how you would have to
it, which | agree with from a lawyer's
perspective.

But that did not mean that rather than
contracting with an individual, the county
couldn’t contract with a facliity and then
set the work tasks in a way that there
woulid be a director and there could be
aaems designated by the director. So |
think that's important for people to

3RS
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option.
(Mr. Drake entered the room.)
MR. COLLINS: Right. But again,
before this plan, going back to the other
medical-direction discussions, we had asked
the county counsel whether we could make -
whether we could contract with the person
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as an independent contractor, and the
county counsel's opinion was, no, that this
would not meet the test for independent
contractor because of the amount of support
the county would provide.

And the county doesn'’t happen to have
in their current employment process a
contract employee. Some places have
employees who can be contracted. They are

employees, but they're paid a lump sum.
A:? benefits and stsz ﬁl't conmn to

ay. They just don't have it right now.
at isn't that they couldn't invent it at
some point. So the advice we got was make
the rerson an employee, which is — we
could make them an employee.
d make th mploye
Now, that doesn't preclude us from

= AR RN R SRR
contracting with some ofganlzatlon
provide that. We just can't contract with
an individual. So if we found the ABC EMS
Director's, Inc., then we couid probably
develop a contract. What we're not
interested in at this point, at least at
this point in the planning, is contracting
with a whole bunch of different physicians
or employingra whole bunch of different
physicians. That's more complicated than
we would be involved in. That's why we
want to hire a medical director and have
them tell us how they want to do it and
then we can support that.

DR. JUl: Bill, do you have any idea
of other systems of | guess co rable size
and coverage and the amount of medical
director, | guess | would prefer to say
FTEs, that they allocate?
MR. COLLINS: My only other experience

really specific is in California, and in
Santa Clara CountY we were systemwise about
twice the size of this system as far as

number of transports. it was a dedicated
system, so we probably didn't have quite as

R R i 33¢.
many paramedics.

But that system, it's a different kind
of system. had a haif-time medical
director, and there, in California, the
medical directors are not only responsible
for supervising EMTs and paramedics, but
they are the certified authority, unlike
the state here. They certify. And that's
what we had.

Then there were other people working
for both the companies and the fire
departments who were involved in training
and quality assurance.

DR. JUl: The agents, however they
were, base station agents or —

MR. COLLINS: The base stations, like
MRH, had some, ! don't think you call it
supervisory authority, but they had sort of
an oversight authority. They were the ones
that did the — reviewed runs. They made
recommendations to the medical director
vegardlng any particular issues that came
up regarding an EMT or - so it's kind of

like the alﬁent thing, but not exactly.
DR. JUI: How many hospitals had those

MR. C NS: There were three when |
there, and there were two when | left
use it was a money issue on one
hospital. So there were two hospitals that
were like MRH. There were two MRHs.
That's the only one that | know of where |

can give ¥ou it on it.

STEINMAN: Pete, what are we going
to do on this? Are we going to continue to
talk, or are we going to start to try to
come to some consensus on which points we
support or which points we don’t and start

ng er some kind of document?
MR. ROBEDEAU: | believe — is it next

18 MR. ROBEDEAU: Week after that. We
19 have a couple more things to go through,
20 and there are four meetings reserved for
121 the preparation of the majority and

22 minority regort.

23 MR. STEINMAN: Can | get another copy
24 of that? Some physician stole my copy.

25 Thanks, Jon.

: ST ;

R. COLLINS: They're wont to do

1

2 at.

3 MR. ROBEDEAU: Today we're talking —
4 I npolo?ize. | missed some of it - but we

5 were talking about the physician supervisor
6
7
8
9

plus ent care equipment and vehicles,
which | don't think is a problem; then
system cost and rates, 27th; provider
selection on the 29th; and the 4th and the

10 6th to write the draft plan; and the 11th

1" and 13th if it needs to be revised.

12 And | believe Trace had asked that we

13 get the draft plan to the County Commission

14 on the 6th, if we can, or right after, so

15 we can some action from them.

16 MR. COLLINS: To the MAB —
17 MR. SKEEN: [t was to the MAB, because
18 of that meeting on the 14th.
19 MR. DRAKE: I've a couple issues
. §20 with that, Pete. | think there are some
21 issues as far as equipment and vehicles

22 go. There have been at least issues in the

past.
24 MR. ROBEDEAU: What we're trying to do
25 here is to finish up the medical direction

age 7
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R

1 so Dr. Jui can leave. He's been up all
;2; mght. Those are the other two agenda
4
5
6
7
8
9

ms.
MR. DRAKE: Rl%:lt. | am saying there
are some things with those.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Right. Right.

MR. STEINMAN: One thing I'd like to
point out, too, Chris talked about earlier,
about all these agencies that may want to

10 t involved in the physician supervisor.

1 our or five years ago now we went out with
12 an RFP to — because we were contracting

13 with two agencies that could not come up

14 with the malpractice insurance to cover our
15 EMT 800 ones. We had one respondent; that
16 was the unlversity.
17 | think some of the stuff that's gone

18 on in the not too far past, MRH — not MRH
19 but regional hospital -- nobody’s ever

20 wanted to do that. They want to pawn it
21 off on the one facility. Everybody gives
22 it a lot of talk like they all want to be

23 involved and they want their facility

24 involved, but when push comes to shove,
25 they never show up.

Q%\ RAHAR00

it would be interesting to see what
happens if this does go out to bid and Bill
sends it out to groups or whatever, if

1

g

4 anybod‘ ays the game.

g MR. ng)EAU: The involvement they
7

8

9

age.

want, Tom1 they want to be able to tell the
grou&that s doing it what to do.
MR. COLLINS: Having been involved in
bidding out — "bidding out® - putting out
10 requests for proposals in hiring the
11 medical director, the other aspect | think
12 Is not identified in at least one of the
13 ans, when | did that in Santa Clara
14 ounty, | couldn't find anybody who was
15 interested in pursuing the job who did not
16 also want to be connected with the academic
17 institutions, of which there were two.
18 it wasn’t they cared which one, and
19 they were certainly not coming from that
20 direction, but that was part and parcel the
21 kind of people that were interested in
22 doing the job. The research aspects that
23 Jon was relating to was of a lot of
124 interest to them.

week we start on the document? 125 it, unfortunately, took the same
MR. KILMER: Week after that.
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position it takes here, which is sort of on
the back burner because Feople get busy.
That was one of the recruiting efforts, was
focused on that.
But | think that's a good point, Tom.
MRH, there's nobody beating my door down to
be the other MRH.
MR. STEINMAN: But they like to take
shots at it
10 MR. COLLINS: Regional hospital has
11 basically told us, Grei has, that this is a
12 real hardship for him use he lost some
13 funding. He's willing to keep doing it,
14 but he wants it someplace else.
15 And again, we don't need to open up a
16 big file to put all the letters of the
17 peopie who are interested in the file. So
18 a lot of this stuff is being done
19 essentially for free, and that's — the
20 people that are interested are the ones
21 that are doing It.
22 MR. SKEEN: It seems an RFP would put
23 a jot of the issues to rest, ask them to
24 put it on the line. And | think you could
25 use some guidelines from ACEP and NEMSP to

OOENOVNEWN =

N I

sh what you are a

3
what we are after here, and the
subcommittees that you talked about, Tom,
that was discussed.

MR. STEINMAN: The other question |
have, question No. 1, have you done the job
description for that physician yet? Did
that ever come back from personnei or
whatever?

MR. COLLINS: Yeah. I've got a draft

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
1
}g report from the committee, the one that the
14
15
16
17
18
19

want to see how it's written.

MR. SKEEN: Pete, | would suggest a
letter to PAPA again, even though they're
not responding, ask these specific
questions, because they left this han%lng.

MR. KILMER: Frankly, | think you have
enough by sending them the minutes to let
them know what's being discussed here.
They have had re| opportunity to come
and specific invitation to come to this
meeting. If they want to respond here, If
iheg want to respond to the MAB directly
without participating in this process
because they are afraid of it or for some
other reason, iet them do it. | don't see
any reason for us to hold up anymore.

R. SKEEN: I'm not suggesting that we

hoid up, Jeff. | think it would be prudent
to send a letter out to them asking them
for clarification of it. | don’t have a

lot of hope that it will be responded to,
but at least the request is there.

MR. ROBEDEAU: If that's the will of
the committee, I'd be happy to do that, ask
them for clarification on their medical
supervision. A clarification by next
Monday, | think, is appropriate because
we're really working on a short time
frame.

MR. STEINMAN: And, Trace, just for
your information, | did talk to Dr. Dugoni
when he called me last week, and |
encouraged him to have his group attend,
and they just flat won't. They really have
nothing w.

MR. T AS: One issue | heard here,

of it. it's pretty much what was in that 20 which | don't think shows up in the work
21 that was done before — I'm a little bit
MAB finally agreed to. I'll bring a copy 22 apprehensive, but | think that has nothing
of that with the other — the piece that's 23 1o do with the merits of it - is the
not done that has to be done is what the 24 question of whether you want to look at
compensation is and how you do it. 25 whether MRH and the medical supervisor,
One of the things I've found, as | . - T — -
started to look around, to see who had done %P'SE“S&'@
a few surveys so we could use their 1 director, whatever we call it, thing ought
20 information and we can't find any. 2 to actually be in one place and whether
21 MR. ROBEDEAU: Bill, could you mail 3 that's a recommendation we wanted to make.
22 that out today? 4 MR. STEINMAN: You might find that in
23 MR. COLLINS: | will mail it out, if | 5 the report because | think we may have
24 can find ail the subcommittee report, 6 either had that physician on the
25 today. 7 subcommittee or on the physician -
8 MR. COLLINS: Yeah. Something was
9 discussed about that. I'll look back and
1 MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. And wait for the 10 see —
2 next meeting. 11 MR. THOMAS: | remember there was
3 I think | heard consensus that 12 something discussed about saying it
4 everybody’s pretty much interested in dgolng 13 couldn’t be that way.
5 back and revisiting everything that ha 14 MR. STEINMAN: That was the MAB.
6 been done in the committee before and 15 MR. ROBEDEAU: That's the MAB.
7 recommending in part of our plan, as part 16 MR. THOMAS: | think that's an issue
8 of that or ma a slightly revised version 17 for you guys to decide when you come to
9 of Bill's committee. Is that correct? 18 making a decision about what you want to
10 MR. STEINMAN: Clari?f that. If you 19 recommend.
11 mean go back and revisit it all, are we 20 MR. ROBEDEAU: | agree with Tom, that
12 goln%tto have multiple meetings on that? 21 was part of the recommendation, that MAB
13 MR. ROBEDEAU: No. We're not going to 22 and the physician supervisor group be at
14 have multiple meetings. We have had our 23 least in the same physical location.
15 meeting on it. We're golnﬁ to get it from 24 MR. THOMAS: MRH.
16 Bill, everybody re-get ail the information 25 MR. ROBEDEAU: Or MRH. And the
17 from Bill, ever y read it. reoreerm RN sttt o
18 MR. STEINMAN: Okay. Good. e s Page B7 ST
19 MR. ROBEDEAU: Pretty much the 1 physician supervisor ":::R' if  remember
20 consensus of the committee, as | understand 2 correctly, also had Qf authority over MRH.
21 it, is to represent the same or essentially 3 Was that correct?
22 the same proposal that we had through a 4 DR. JUI: That's correct. The one
23 different committee that Bill had set up, 5 issue that continues to plague that last
24 presented to the MAB prior to this on 6 consensus statement by, | guess, that
25 medical direction, which would have a 7 committee was accountability, whatever that
S 8 magic word “accountability” means.
b SRR e R 9 guess the wat¥'llmer et
1 trong single medical authority but 10 accountability is the ic’s ability to
2 necessarily only one physician. 1} influence the medical supervisor or the
3 MR. DRAKE: Isn’t now what we're 12 medical director. in other words, is it
4 looking at, is a slngle medical physician 13 responsible to the count¥, oris it
5 with agents? That's what the plans are? 14 resg:nslble to the agencies that hire it?
6 MR. ROBEDEAU: No. 15 that magic word, which is a little
7 MR. THOMAS: That could be a 16 bit cloudy in mx mind, was a major
8 refinement of what comes over. | think you 17 stumbling block from some of the advisory
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MR. THOMAS: As | recall, apart
from-I'm goln‘g to leave the providers
out of this at this point, but my
understanding is the consensus that's
developed so far is, what I've heard, is a
fairly strong direction so far has been to
have the accountability be on the medical

T
ot

side. | think that's what - most of what
| heard.

The arguments haven’t been made very
strongly in any form that I've heard by the
providers otherwise, although [ think
that's aiso a decision that obviously this
group has to arrive at a decision on,
whether the{ want to give that up.

MR. COLLINS: | think also rou might
want to look at both the plans in light
of - it's tied | think to the
accountability and responsibility, is all
through the process of the medical
direction, at least that I've been involved
in since |'ve been here, the move has been
or | think the consensus is that you need a
medical authority, however you describe
that, that has authority to act regarding
clinical care.

And one of the things that | - I'm
concerned about the way that it's
structured in the plan that PAPA presented,
is that that was -- everyone, including
PAPA, had all been kind of talking the same
way. Now there’s a new overlay that |

think | mentioned earlier, where, at least
the way | read it, the authority rests with
the MAB. And | think that's a big
difference that could — in my mind, that
could atfect who and how you would recruit
for medical director.

You know, does somebody really want to
work under that kind of a setting, that
kind of an 11th hour thing that came in?
And | think we need to look at that.

MR. DOHERTY: Bill, | remember the MAB
members were all interested parties and
therefore invited to be involved in the
work group on medical direction. Isn't
PAPA

MR. COLLINS: There were some
involved.

MR. DOHERTY: Dr. Norton is the only
one | remember.

MR. COLLINS: PAPA wasn't around.
That was before PAPA was organized. So it
had some - there were some paramedics
lét‘volved, but not from a focused group like

at.

SRR RS
me that's new from this discussion
in the other discussion about single
medical authority versus single medical
supervisor, and all of the lgrocess that I'm
aware of that Tom was tatking about, it was
assumed that whatever you came up with
would be effective. What you want to have
is effective medical control that is not
bound up with its own bureaucracy, that
slows down its ability to act.

What Jon Jui has raised today and what
Pete raised today is the very important
::allty. tha:l under the Pc:ﬁs proposal, it

apparently assumed proponents
that the agents would be selected from
various hospitals. That process is doomed
to create the situation where those people
will be in confiict because of political

was really no discussion of any agents.

group of agents that can work to er
e

ffectively with the director. And that to
me is the single biggest problem with the
PAPA plan and the reason why the medical
authority concentrated in a collegial
group, like the one Jon represents, is as
an alternative that ought to be revisited.

The alternative is you have single
medical control to avoid the problems that
used to exist with multlple medical
supervisors that weren't in contact with
each other. You're going to have the same

obliem underneath because you're going to
ave multiple agents fighting with each
other, that will create the same probiem of
lack of immediate opportunity to respond
because of political and nonmedical
concerns.

MR. COLLINS: Well, if you look at the
PAPA plan — we're making a big assumption
about the PAPA plan. If you listen to the
discussions prior, that the way the medical
direction was proposed by the MAB following
PAPA's pian for medical direction, there

There was really no intent, that | was
aware of, that there's anybody else
involved other than the medical director.

Now, they were not — in the plan they
proposed, | think it leaves it open to
discussion at this point, but there's
nothing in there that says one way or the
other. I've asked that question in a
letter I've written to them because part of
my responsibility as the director is to
make a recommendation to the Board of
County Commissioners. So | had a number of
a.luestlons in that plan, and that was one of

e qiuestions, because it wasn't real
specific.

MR. ROBEDEAU: in reading the PAPA
plan, | got the impression that the agents
were paramedics.

MR. COLLINS: | don’'t know. It
doesn’t really talk about it.

MR. THOMAS: That's his point. You
don’t know if they were contemplating

ysician agents or whether they were
reall thlnkin?dust one.

R. COLLINS: I'm trying to go back to

that discussion that we had before, and the
main difference in the discussions at the
MAB was one faction wanted a full-time
medical director who didn't practice
anyplace, who did all of everything,
medical, clinical, administrative, even
down to determining which radio frequenciles
ought to be used on the radio. it went on
and on. And the faction was supporting a
clinical medical director to handie all o
the medical input with whatever he or she
needed to do it with, but not this other.
| mean, this business of agents didn’t

really kind of come up as much. it was
sort of a single versus more. But no one
310! into any detail. You were involved in

at. | don't think we ever got into any

kind of detail as to how you would hire
agents and who they would be, where they
would come from. it was more, one person
can do it all or one person can’t do it

all.

MR. STEINMAN: | think it came up in
that committee that MAB would have some
type of input, along with the providers,

agendas, medical agendas and other things, 1 ] unty, ose agents
so that the director, even though he has 2 would be. It wouldn't be the agency hiring
the power to make the decision, will be 3 them, that sort of thing. | remember that
ha red from makln? it. 4 discussion.

at Jon Jui is talking about, as a 5 Question, did you get a response from
practical matter, as a single medical 6 PAPA?
director or not, you're going to have a 7 MR. COLLINS: No. |sentitout. §

8 didn't request one yet. | can't remember
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9 what date | gave. Not yet.
10 MR. KILMER: Seems to me that this
1 ocess has made it very clear that the
12 dea of a single person to do everYthing
13 that the PAPA proposal suggests is
14 Iml?osslble and that anybody looking at this

will recognize that. My assumption Is that

16 PAPA will now modify its proposal to say,
17 oh, yes, this person can now retain agents,
18 because that's the only way it can work,

19 and that their view will be that agents,
20 because of the interhospital aspect of
21 rivairy here that is driving some of the
22 peop?é behind the PAPA pro |, will be
23 those people come from various hospitals to
24 avoid the domination of OHSU.
25 That was the two assumptions

AREC0000000s

1 underlying this. If they won't even admit

2 that they need agents or if the agents are

3 gglng to have to be somebody less than

4 ard certified emergency physiclans, which

g Jon had testified last time would be the
7
8
9

minimum qualification for an effective
agent - did | understand you correctly?
DR. JUI: That's correct.
MR. KILMER: - then the PAPA plan is

10 doomed. lt's only with the modifications
" we're talking about to control this under
12 the county that that program is goin% to go
13 forward. [ think that's the MAB's rea
14 agenda, because the MAB feels it can
15 control that process, whereas they don't
16 feel like they can control OHSU, and that's
17 a political agenda that has no medical
18 component to it.
19 R. COLLINS: That's an agenda | can't
20 even figure out an re why that's an
21 agenda. If you look at EMS —
22 MR. THOMAS: That's Tom's point.
23 MR. COLLINS: If you look at EMS years
24 ago, back in not just this community but
25 any community, back to the time it started,

%?'k SN .
1 oftentimes the connection to the hospital
2 was very beneficial to the hospital. |
3 you look in California where base hospitals
4 were all over the place — years ago |
5 worked for UCLA, and | can tell you the
6 only reason we were a base hospital was
7 because people perceived that was going to
8 %‘et patients in the door, and actually
9 there was a great deal of influence.
10 That's pretty much gone.
1 MR. KILMER: Right.
12 MR. COLLINS: Unless now you guys
figure you're getting a lot of patients.
14 It's evident in the fact the hospitals have
15 backed off what they're willing to
16 participate in, if they saw that as a
17 rival. | don't think that that is a
18 hospital issue an re; | think itis a
19 personal issue of people involved,
20 regarding different physicians that are
21 involved in these aspects.
22 1 just don't think that there's
23 anything that you can show that would
24 indicate that the hospitals or the — maybe
25 more like Jon was saying, the associations

% EE R R
1 of medical providers in Portiand are
2 really - that that's a real high priority,
3 that they try to control the medical
4 supervision of paramedics. It's still
5 real — the Portland area is highly
6 competitive still in medical care.
7 But that faction of it which drove, |
8 think, a lot of decisions really is not as
9 big a deal as itis - as it was.
10 MR. DOHERTY: It was a really big
1 deal. | can make a couple of historical
12 observations. In 1978, | believe, the
13 university wanted ¢o do a study on
14 utillzlng one spot to get your orders
15 instead of always calling in the receiving
16 hospital, and they got a grant somehow,
17 somehow got some radios, and it was just

18 like sudden hysteria with the hospitals.

19 And they had to be very, very careful about
20 how they wrote up, making sure the

21 procedures did not have anything to do with
22 iving any advice whatsoever about patient
23 tination.

24 And the second historical observation
25 | would like to make is five or six years

ago medical direction in this community
wasn't working. Every agency was doin
things based on some interpretations qu
differently. In those days, we had
muttiple physicians doing multiple
systems. Presently, | think the medical
direction has improved dramatically, and

what we have now is muitipie physicians

doing the single system, and it works.

And so! mes | get - maybe I'ma
little paranoid, but I'm concerned that
some members of the MAB are kind of keeping
something from happening that works because
of their own agendas.

MR. ROBEDEAU: There have been
numerous times that certain individuals on
the MAB have openly pronounced they wanted
nothing to happen, least the drive to have
a sln'gle provider might be waylaid by the
fact that the system was actualluvorklng.
| don't think that’s a secret. It's been
pronounced often enough that it's in the
record a hundred times.

MR. THOMAS: I'm aware of the time. |
think, unless Dr. Jui has more, maybe - we
BTN Page e
want to be sure you've sort of gotten out
of everythlng‘you want to, and then we
ought to let Mark hit his issues.

R. JUI: There’s only one other
issue. On the medical supervision, in
order to improve you need dissent.

MR. KILMER: You need what?

DR. JUI: Dissent and interchange of
ideas. Dissent maybe. There is a proper
10 way to do that.

1 t an academic institution, we often

12 argue or discuss, which can be perceived as
13 argue. There needs to be a forum of, |

14 guess, discussion where you can improve
15 upon the system, and that needs to be a

16 collegial one where you all have the same
17 mind, but you can have differences of

18 opinion.

19 | think where I'm very comfortable,

20 especially from my institution, among the

21 physician supervisors, there can be major
22 disagreement. On the other hand, we all

23 know you need to come up with a single,

24 common goal and perhaps a single, common

OENONHEWN -

25 statement, and we end up coming down to an
SiaREEsvsg Page 10055

agreement. Some of us may feel more
strongly about that agreement than others.

What I'm trying to say is the
environment of a physician supervisor and
agents need to be a proactive — help me
with some words, Chris — conducive
environment for doing that.

MR. THOMAS: | think your description
Is good, as opposed to an environment that
acts by dissent and by undiscussed victim.
That's a good point.

MR. D : Pete, where are we at
here? | came in late. We had a model that
14 was made up before about —-

15 MR. ROBEDEAU: We talked about that.
16 MR. COLLINS: You were too late for

17 that.

18 Trace.

19 MR. SKEEN: Dr. Jui, | have three

20 brief questions, clarifications from the

21 minutes from the last meeting.

22 DR. JUI: Yes. :

23 MR. SKEEN: These should be very

24 brief. You indicated on page 2 in the

25 first paragraph, the minutes refiected, you
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indicated you thought progress was being

made in the paramedics hearing a more

unified voice from the medical community.

Do you have a reason why you think that's

the case?

DR. JUi: | need a copy of the
minutes.

MR. SKEEN: You eot yours there, Tom?

MR. STEINMAN: Yes.

DR. JUI: Which page?

MR. SKEEN: Page 2, the top paragraph,
very last sentence. | assume that's the
discussion we're having today. in other
words, if you're saying the things are
improving, | want to be clear what's
causing them to improve.

DR. JUI: From a medical supervision
point of view?

MR. SKEEN: You said the paramedics
are hearing a more unified voice from the
medical communlg.

DR JUI: Yes. Probably what's
happening, the last statement | made, the
atmosphere of disagreement and
decision-making is a proactive, conducive

environment for a single stance. The
second thing is, No. 2, there is an innate
reason for us to have to come to an
agreement. If we don’t come to an
agreement, we find the system not to work.

And so there is a need by physician
supervisors to work together, and that need
Is — surpasses all other needs.

MR. SKEEN: Okay. I'm sorry. That
was Dr. Norton's comment.

The other one, I'll just ask you maybe
to comment on it. Again he said there's
improvement within the system, that the
system needed to be des| ?ned so as to
incorporate cooperation. | guess that goes
to my third one, which was from you, that
there was — you indicated there was no
unified quality management forum in the
system.

| wondered if you have a model for a
quality management forum that's kind of
irrespective of who the providers are or
how to provide it.

DR. JUI: Biil and | were talking
about this later. There is in draft stage,

4

S 1ge Y.
| believe — Randy or one of your people
has that document -- a copy of what
consider the first document of a unified
CQM forum. And that's available — | have
it on my desk. It's available from Bill.
it's a very early conceptual paper. Trudy
has seen it.
h M‘I;L SKEEN: That's one you developed

ere

DR. JUI: it's very simple. it's four
pages long. i has the fundamental
concepts that the continuous quality
management group has met for four or five
times and has come to a consensus of some
important issues that we would like to
develop, and inside that document has a
rough structure of how all these committees
are — groups need to work together from a
single source.
DRAKE: Can we get a copy of

that?

DR JUi: Absolutely. it's been

circulated fairly widely.
MR. COLLINS: I'll send it out.
DR JUI: | guess needs to be
;:. & s k\ _.;.,‘ 4;‘\;» RS i
circulated more widely. Keep in mind
group. it's a draft document and is not a
nal product.

MR. THOMAS: is that one of those —
something that one of those subcommittees
that you had involvement in?

MR. COLLINS: No. i kind of came
from some different directions. We did

including all regions, did attend many of

- th ti, $0 we had wi sprea&.

some educational work on CQM a number of
months ago in the planning process, sort of
subsumed everybody's time, and then the
mershy had put on a couple of meetings

DR. JU!I: — Bev Ringerberg.

MR. COLLINS: — Bev Ringerberg, who
is the quality management physician at the
university, and this grew out of that with
people discussing the concepts of it. And
Jon rut to er just a draft. This is
just like this is not coming from a formal
committee charged with anything. But it
does give you ?ood initial concept of what

e are talking about, | think.
R. JUl: Many people, many agencies,

M'R STEINMAN: Are you guys done with

n

MR. SKEEN: Yes.

MR. STEINMAN: Does everybody know Jon
works with the Forest Service and us and
everybody else in the world? | suppose the
attorneys don't.

Jon works for the Forest Service as
thel': physician advisor for this district.

ngDg JUI: Yes. | do

. Yes, n't any mone
from it, but — getany y

‘MR. STEINMAN: He works with us. Are
you still director of the training program
up there?

DR. JUI: No. Modie (phonetic) is.

'MR STEINiMAhN: Some other one | was
going to pop in there.

Da JUI: I'm on the board of
directors of the American College of
Emergency Physicians and also currently
hold the chair of the state EMS committee
and on the academic — I'm sorry — public

S .
health committee of Society of Academic
Emergency Medicine, amongst —

MR. KILMER: Aren't you AA's physician
supervisor, too?

DR. JUI: Yeah.

MR. STEINMAN: Just had to get that
into the record.

MR. KILMER: Well, | think — he's not
solely for the fire department.

MR. STEINMAN: He's also probably the
one that's the chair of the state EMS
committee to come up with these new OARs
that pretty much eliminates all us
paramedics because under "unprofessional
conduct,” we have to have wings and halos
to be certified, or state certified.

MR. THOMAS: Well, fire people have
the wings and halos.

MR. KILMER: Right. That mandates the
public system.

MR. DRAKE: That hasn’t gone through

the committee.
DR. JUl: This was made by a lawyer.
MR. DRAKE: It was, as a matter of
fact. | haven't had a chance to talk to

e Page 107
Jon yet, Tom, but we probably need to
discuss that at a commiittee level. I'm
getting phone calls from all over the state
on that, and I'm getting phone calls — let
me tell you, | can't repeat what the people
say in a public forum, but it's not very
pleasant.

DR. JUI: I've been getting feedback.

MR. KILMER: They have an opening for
a smoke ju r?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Without a parachute.

MR. DRAKE: R's getting quite a bit
of feedback. We're going to address It at
the Oregon Ambulance Association. We're
having a meeting there, and Skip's going to
be there. | told him to wear more than one
flak jacket.
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MR. STEINMAN: It may absolve PAPA if
we let it dqo through. There won't be
paramedics.

MR. DRAKE: If you belong to a
monaster&, you mi'?ht qualify.

MR. ROBEDEAU: We have two more items
on the agenda, if we want to cover them.

DR. JUI: I'm here for good. I'm

nsleea now.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Patient care
y who has

equiﬁment. Is there an
anything to say? Mark

MR. DRAKE: Yeah. We have talked in
the past about standardization of patient
care equipment, and we've always as
gfeovlders agreed with that. { think that's

en an issue as well with the supervising
physicians, if they want standardization,
and with the EMS office.

So are we going to address that as a
group and make a recommendation that the
equipment all be standardized within
Multnomah County for the advanced life
support units? | will.

MR. KILMER: When you're talking about
equipment, you're talking about the
ambulance, the basic ambulance?

MR. DRAKE: I'm going to talk about
that separate, as a separate issue. I'm
talkln? about the equipment on board the
ambulance, both disposable and

nondisposable equipment.
That's been a problem in the past
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ns, one dr m one manufacturer
comes in a purple box, and it's a different
drug from a different manufacturer in a
purpie box. Somebody says, hand me the
purple box. There's been discussion about
standardizing the medications.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Mark, stuff like that,
quite frankl?'. | would rather refer to a
single physician supervisor or a %roup
after the proposal. | don't think this is
goln%to accomplish any of that.

MR. DRAKE: | think we need to make
recommendations, Pete. | agree with that.
But we recommend that it go to the
supervising physician, and they have the
authority to standardize the equipment.

MR. KILMER: That's a good idea.

MR. ROBEDEAU: We can do that with —
I think it should be said, you know, over a
period of time.

MR. DRAKE: Yes. It's not going to
happen tomorrow. But they have the
authority to do that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: |don't know if you can
afford to go out and buy a bunch of 10s. |

3 SRR N R N R N
think we're the only company running 10s.

MR. COLLINS: lelanning aside,
we're moving in that direction anyway. One
of the things the county through the
rule-making process has not done is specify
a brand name. Drugs are — some drugs are
specified by how they're packaged, doses.
So it's kind of moving along in that way.

MR. DRAKE: | think it's an important
statement from providers: We believe in
standardization.

MR. STEINMAN: You won't get it from
us. ['ve never figured out how we're going
to hook the trailers on behind those
engines to carry this standard equipment
that some physicians want us to all carry.
You know, we put a lot of that — a lot of
stuff on a fire engine, and when we start
adding ALS capabilities, it's a real
problem. If you come up with every
provider will carry blah, blah, blah
equipment, the rigs will have to be built
around that. That will take a long time to

do.
MR. SKEEN: That's why the importance

of the cost benefit analysis that we talked
about on Tuesday, is so that those
decisions aren't made in a vacuum.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Exacu|y.

DR. JUI: From a medical point of
view, as close to a standardization, the
beﬂerﬂlt is, ang me limits of
operations an .

MR. DRAKE: It does to a point,
and Tom makes a kind of aimost humor, but
it's true. When they're starting to talk
about the amount of equipment we need to
carry, we're looking at finding bigger rigs
or a trailer. So we need to agree on how
much equipment we have to carry.

| want to know what that process - |
just think we should spell out that
process.

MR. THOMAS: Tom, you wouldn't
disagree there's some merit to the concept
of standardization; your disagreement would
be over how far it's carried, | assume?

MR. STEINMAN: | think we should work
towards that, and | think we are, and |
think if we go to a single medical

R

authority, that would be a lot easier. |
don't think it should be spelied out in the
state Rlan; it ma should be spelled out

in a physician's Job description.
R. DRAKE: Okay.

MR. THOMAS: Right. You could
identify sort of where the authority lies
in that area and how it should work versus
what the end result is.

MR. DRAKE: Okay.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Anything else on that?

MR. DRAKE: No. That will meet both.
| think what Tom Is saying is true: As
long as we identify the equipment and the
amount is carried, that will identify the
kind of vehicle we all will need.

We're up to the limit on 2s.
18 We've got stuff in boxes, and | don't think
19 we Can carry any more in a type 2 unless we
20 make them taller.
21 MR. ROBEDEAU: | think realisticaily,
22 working with physician supervisors, | think
23 we can take a lot of equipment off the
24 ambulances, you know. 150 angio cast is
25 just not needed.

SEROO SIS RSRRERN RS R B
DR. JUI: Absolutely. |think we've

made a plea to the board of medical

examiners, when you look at the equipment,

you need to look at the intervention {ou

want, and the intervention, it should have

some scientific and medical basis for that

and can’t be piecemealed out. You need to

have the whole big picture, and that needs

to be incorporated in what you carry. |

10 agree with Pete.

" MR. DRAKE: And there needs to be,

12 like Trace is saweq. a cost benefit

13 analysis done. re not carr n?

14 everything in the world, stair chairs, plus

15 clamshells, plus four back boards, that

16 kind of stuff.

17 MR. ROBEDEAU: Aliright. is there

18 anfhhln else before we adjourn?

WONOOBWN =

19 ar ng nothing eise, we stand

20 adjourned.

21 (PROCEEDINGS ADJOURNED)

22 [ X X ]

23

24

25
R
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MR. ROBEDEAU: Why don't we call the
meeting to order. Shall we review the
minutes and get any corrections we may
have?

(Pause.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Has everybody finished
or do you need more time?

MR. SKEEN: Fine.

'.22‘ Rb"Q'éSEA"G' Okay. Everybody’

. : Okay. Eve s
finished? Are there any c%rrecﬁons?

| didn't have any this time.

MR. STEINMAN: On John Jui on the last
page, | think it needs to say that he’s the
chair of the state EMS committee instead of
amember. That's the only thing.

MR. DRAKE: | missed that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. Including chair
of the state EMS committee rather than a
member?

MR. STEINMAN: Yeah.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay.

Anything else?

‘&"'&g}@"-‘\"

Nothing. Can i have a motion for the
approval of the minutes?

MR. DRAKE: So moved.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Second?

MR. STEINMAN: Second.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Favor?

Aye.
O%eposed? None.

They carry.

First order of business, Cole
Theander's with us. Hi.

MR. THEANDER: Good morning.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Just have a question of
clarification. Are you here representing
MAB, PAPA, or Cole Theander?

MR. THEANDER: I'm here on my own
account.

MR. ROBEDEAU: You're here with Cole
Theander, okay.

Two hand-outs, if you haven't received
them yet. One is a reply from the original
BQPA letter — or letter wed;ent't‘o PAPA.

u guys - you guys don't have one,
okayy‘., Andy;ae oy&erg one is a copy of the
lettér | sent to PAPA after the last

e 3 age 530 =
meeting requesting clarification on their
position for physiclan supervisor. One for
each of you.

MR. SKEEN: Thanks.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Does everybody else
have copies of those?

Okay. Today's agenda, system costs
and rates. | think — 1 hope this one’s
fairly short. | understand from reading
the PAPA proposal there is nothing in the
PAPA proposal that addresses rates or costs
that | determined that was any kind of
specifics.

Oh, wait a minute. Can | back up on
one thing?

MR. DRAKE: Sure.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Just as we were ending
last meeting Mark passed out — Mark
Drake — this to me. Is this part of the
meeting? | don’t understand what it is.

MR. DRAKE: No, no. That's something
that I'll get copies out to everybody.
We're vedoln%them in color because you
can't tell much from that. That's a cost
of the number of providers in the EMS

PRRCR08s
1 system. It just shows all the people that
2 provide service in the EMS system including
3 the hospitals, fire departments,
4 eve’;ybods.
5 R. ROBEDEAU: Is this part of today
6 or Is this part of last week or is this
7 even —
8 MR. DRAKE: No, no. I'll introduce it
9 next week. | need to get copies out to
10 m';ybodsln advance.
11 R. ROBEDEAU: Okay.
12 MR. STEINMAN: I've got one question
13 before we get going, Pete.
14 MR. ROBEDEAU: Sure.
15 MR. STEINMAN: Bill, have you heard
16 anything on the time process on this with
17 eve'r‘ybod in the world announcing for —
18 R. COLLINS: No. | mean, we never
19 actually — | don’t think we've ever gotten
20 anything back on the original time pro |
21 that the commissioner made at the .
22 mean, that was a memo to other
23 commissioners, and then we've never
gg received anything back officially. And

then everybody’s, you know — everybody’s

R

running for everything, so, you know, who
knows.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Are you jumping in?

MR. COLLINS: Who knows. Every day
there's somebody new. | figure by the time
the ballot comes out it'll take more than a
29 cent stamp, so | don't know. We're
trying to find out what — time-wise what
that all means.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Who's new?

MR. COLLINS: Some guy that runs a

ocery store in southeast.
MR. MOSKOWITZ: And Paul McCoy.
MR. COLLINS: Paul McCoy was in the
r the other day.

MR. ROBEDEAU: The last | saw it, he

didn't list as a candidate, so | don’t know

(503) 299-6200
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what gives with him. | don't know. It
doesn't make any difference.
MR. THOMAS: | did talk to Carol
Kelsey to ask her what she thought was
g:lng to happen. And what she said was
sically that the other commissioner
members, the remaining commission members,
would be deciding at some point what their
2 2 5 : Giznrage
schedule is going to be. And she said she
thought everybody ought to move forward on
the basis the schedule was going to be what
Tanya proposed, but that it might not
actually be that. That was as much as she
could say at this point.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Well, as | understand
the schedule Tanya proposed, that would put
it before the board of county commission
with her not on the commission, and | don't
think she'd allow that to happen.

MR. THOMAS: Would put at least the
June hearings, that certainly would be the
case.

MR. DRAKE: Did she give any sense of

when they would let us know if there was a

chanae?
MR. THOMAS: No.

MR. COLLINS: No. We're talklna to
the chair's office now to see what they’re
going to do. But it's difficult to get an
answer because everybody’s getting into the
political running mode, and it's hard to
get them to talk about stuff.

MR. DRAKE: Pete, | have one other

&8
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question. On the minutes it sa
Mr. Collins said he had a draft job
description for the medical director. Have
you passed that out?
R. COLLINS: No, | haven't. In fact,
it's still over at the ?ersonnel office,
but I'll get a copy of that as soon as we
it back. They're still hanging onto it
cause the — we tried to get some data on
a study that was done on emergency room
physician salaries, and we haven't been
able to get that yet. And | don't want to
rsonally go out and conduct another study
f we don't have to.
MR. ROBEDEAU: | have one question,
too. Did you ever check into anything in
San Mateo County and what happened to their
system, or do you want me to do that?

MR. COLLINS: No, why donMou. |
don't know who's down there. Who's down
there now?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Oh, | know half a dozen
ple in that area.

MR. COLLINS: Yeah.

MR. DRAKE: San Mateo?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Well, see, they did
exactly what was being proposed here, and
it lasted for a couple years, and then
bottomed out. They did that | believe in
‘76 or ‘77.

MR. COLLINS: They did which?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Took all dispatch away
from the provider and tried to run it out
of a county dispatch where the provider had
no contact with the vehicles at all with
dedicated units. And it was a — | know
that it didn't last long and it was quite a
fiasco, but | don't remember all of the
exact details on it.

And 15 years ago it didn't - it's
kind of hard to remember. | know t was
quite the deal. In fact, a lot of — a lot
of the idea of dedicated units and eight

WENOMBWN

talk about, which is the thousand &ollar

the board asked — was going to get ahold
of a copy of the recommendation of that
subcommittee. As | recall, that was
something that -

MR. COLLINS: We mailed that out, so
you should get it.

MR. THOMAS: That'll be arriving.
Great.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Now I've forgotten.
Recommendation of subcommittee?

kidﬂR COLLINS: On physician supervisor

on.

MR. THOMAS: This was the original
subcommittee on how the physician
supervisor, whether or not it was set up.

MR. COLLINS: You asked for a report.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Right.

Okay. We're back to system cost and
rates. anybody have — | had said |
see nothing in the PAPA proposal about
system costs or rates,

MR. DRAKE: Well, actually, | do,

Pete. | think there are several areas that
they t!:;olnted some stuff out. They do
mention they have a fee structure that they

R

fees plus $365 Exear.

MR. ROBEDEAU: That's licensing fees.

MR. DRAKE: Licensing fees. They also
talk about a penaity over on page 18, the
beginning, first section. Notice of civil
violation, notice to correct, so they're
talking about monetary stuff. They talk
about the financial oversight board on page
20. So they address the issue | believe o
rates.

In reading what they talk about on

ge 20 and 21, | didn't get from thata
description of what they would look at.
Maybe I'm missing something from this. And
it's the authority to charge fees, and
that's for the medical director. But |
didn’'t get anything about actually how they
determine cost. If —

You know this document better than |
do. Did you notice armhing. Cole, or ~

MR. THEANDER: None more than you've
just said.

MR. DRAKE: Okay. That's ~so |
mean, they have a board set up to

R i age 13
address — | couldn't pull out of that
exactly what they were. 1t just says here
—~ it doesn't exactly say what they
address.

MR. SKEEN: Well, on page 22 it talks
about establishing the maximum rate.

MR. DRAKE: Yeah, that's right.

MR. SKEEN: But [ don't think they
went into any detail about the
methodolgxx.

MR. D E: Right. That's what | was
looking for.

MR. ROBEDEAU: You're establishing the
maximum rate as oomrared to what, you
know? | think that, 3:1 te frankly, in my
opinion, is a flaw with both plans.

it doesn't really say what benefit
cost-wise or rate-wise is going to come out
of any system being proposed, other than as
| read the Collins plan and he refers to
$3.1 million in savings approximately with
a — | know that there's is the
average emergency rate, with $3.1 miflion
in savings comes out at agproxlmtely $80 a
call, when in fact during the noncollection

rate on that it comes up you should

units for Multnomah County | know came from 1
the San Mateo system as they kicked it off 2 to reduce rates with that cost savings of
as what should be done. That's a lot of 3 $147 which wouid come out with a rate of —
whglspatch is done out of Kelly Butte. 4 an average rate of four fo ne. | quite
ay. Anything else before we get 5 fvanklr. knowing the cost of running an

goln{? 6 ambulance service, find it difficuit to

MR. THOMAS: I'm trying to remember if 7 believe that a rate of four forty-one would

8 support this system on an average rate of
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9 four forty-one.
10 | know Vancouver bid an average rate
1 of five twenty-two and Vancouver doesn't
12 have the indigent popuiation that Oregon
13 does, and Washin'?ton Medicaid, as | know
14 it, pays significantly better than Oregon
15 Medicaid. And | don't have any stats at
16 all on Vancouver other than the fact that
17 the demographics over there are better than
18 Portland and that's what I've —
19 MR. SKEEN: We've been successful in
20 finding the transients over there, those
21 that exist. They are there.
22 MR. COLLINS: if I'm correct, the rate
23 in Vancouver was not a bid rate, that was
24 averta,ﬁed out at the current billings and
25 established prior to the selection process.

1 MR. SKEEN: That's right. twas a
2 fixed rate.
3 MR. DRAKE: That was the methodology.
4 MR. COLLINS: It'd be just like if we
5 said five eighty-eight and went through the
6 same methodology, took a number of invoices
g aRndhﬁgured out what the average was.
ight.
9 MR. SKEEN: Yeah. And | think the
10 rationale for that, for whatever value this

1 is to this discussion, was that the rates
12 were not a particular — they didn't

13 rceive that the rates were a particular
14 ssue over there, and so they established

15 the customary rate and used that as a base
16 line and threshold.

17 it would appear here, and | think Bill
18 started to get into that in the county plan
19 as it relates to the costs and that the

20 variabilities on this ag:eln goes back to

21 the things that we've been talking about
22 the last several weeks, and that has to do
23 with the resources that are going to be
24 used within the system, whether you're
25 going to run dual systems with fire medic

R s SR Page 160
1 units at eight minutes and another system
2 at 12 minutes 90 percent, and what the

3 statfing level is going to be on those

4 ambulances that respond, how much of itis
56) oing to be offset with tax monies, if any,
7

8

9

the fees that come back to the medical
Rrogram - or to the medical director to
elp support that.
R. ROBEDEAU: But | think the point,

10 Trace, is that anybody reading the proposal
" with the numbers given Is going to say that
12 if we take this plan, we're %oing to save
13 this much money. And | think we need to
14 take a look and see how realistic the idea
15 ff saving three and a haif million dollars

s.
17 MR. SKEEN: Well, yeah. And | think

18 Bill went through that discussion a couple

19 weeks ago about the removal of the

20 communications aspect from it and the

21 reduction in the number of unit hours and
22 made some assumptions.

23 So | guess the key is, is whether we

24 want to follow on that line and determine

25 whether those assumptions that you made in

D e - AL
ngs are realistic, or take a

RSSO

1 the savi

2 different approach to try and determine

3 what the cost for the system should be.

4 MR. DRAKE: Or certainly a methodology

g :oh?e;efmlne that cost accurately, because
think -

g MR. SKEEN: That's what I'm saying,

9

yeah.

MR. ROBEDEAU: And part of that is, |
10 had assumed, and that's probably my fault
1 for assuming, that Bill was going to
12 some checking on what happened in San Mateo
13 County. | should have done that myself.
14 Part of that is how realistic is it
15 that the county can take over dispatch
16 without the provider having any knowledge

17 of what his cars are doing or where they

10

are and still expect the provider to be
able to function and accurately get
information and do billing and the core
tasks that a provider is required to do in
order to keep the system financially
viable.

MR. SKEEN: And | think on that
individual point, Bill can speak for

himself, but what | understood you to say,
that may have to be a phase-in at such
point thTt the eomty has the data
processing ca to generate.

MR C&Uﬁg: \;xen we were talking
about the dispatch, m‘y assumption in that
is that at whatever point the system s in
place in the county, that it will be able
to provide the same level of information on
those calls to whoever's doing the
billing. Now - and | think that at that
same time | agreed that currently today,
with the computer that catches on fire,
that's probably not a reliable source of
data for billing. You can’'tgetitina
timely manner.

MR. SKEEN: And then there was some
discussion also, Pete, | think that
indicated that a number of functions that
are currently being performed by the
communications centers would have to be
transferred to other administrative
functions in the absence of that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | understand that. But
| think our task here today is to determine

SR :Page 19
what, if any, system there is in the system
'a’:\d what methodology we use for determining

at.

You know, | don't — | personally,
from what | remember of San Mateo County,
don't believe that a system that has no
coordination from the provider is going to
work. | know San Mateo has been tried
once. There were other systems | know of
~ | cannot find my data on which they
are, it's been 15 years ago, that's a fong
time - that tried similar things the same
way. And to the best of my knowledge,
there is no system in this country le
doing what is being proposed here. Now, am
| wrong or am | rlamt or —

DRAKE: ich proposal are you
talking about?

MR. ROBEDEAU: I'm talking about the
Collins proposal where the dispatch is
completely out of the hands of the provider
and the provider has no idea where his cars
are, what they're doing.

MR. D E: 1don't.

MR. ROBEDEAU: And then you get down

NESASE
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the issue on that and you get into s
accountability, who's responsible for
response times then.

R. DRAKE: But | think we have to
decide, like Trace is saying, | mean, do we
want to first look at the analogies Bill
Collins went through in the EMS office in
determining the figures or do we rather —
and/or do we want to just simply say, okay,
here's the various proposals, options,
models in front of us - the tier, the
single provider, and there's two different
kind of options on the single provider, and
then the county-run system -- and determine
— how would we determine the cost of
setting those systems up and what costs
savinas would there be, if any, in -

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think we have to
determine methodology for what the cost
savings really is.

MR.D E: Right.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Anybody can stand up
and say, here, if we go with the Collins

an we're going to save three million
cks, if we go with the single provider
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we're going to save six million, if we go
with muitiple provider we're going to save
ten million. It doesn't make any right.

MR. DRAKE: | know, Pete. | know we
need to determine the methodology to
determine those costs to make those
comparisons. isn’t that what you were
uylna. Trace?

MR. SKEEN: Yeah. | think we need to
look at that. | guess the question is
whether we want to address specifically the
issues that Bill has brought up or whether
we want to do more of an independent
approach. Because we may come up with some
potential cost savings that Bill didn’t
contemplate and we may want to refute some
that were suggested in his document.

MR. R'?B EAU: | think it's a little

MR. SKEEN: Probablyis. The other
thing that {'d like to throw in, and | know
Bill has indicated that this is not his
charge, but | think that it really is
incumbent upon us to provide an analysis of
the overall system cost, whereas the issue

- the charge that his office has, in
looking at the 9-1-1 system, has repeatedly
said they are not responsible for the other
medical transportation that occurs in the
coum‘/.
| think there needs to be some very
careful consideration of those issues.
Because one of the approaches that one
undoubtedly takes is to remove unnecessary
redundancy. We need to be careful not to
create redundancy in that process.
MR. ROBEDEAU: What do you propose?
MR. DRAKE: One thing | would propose
right off the bat, Pete, instead of looking
at system cost and rates, could we look at
system cost and revenues? Because we need
to know what kind of revenues we're going
to generate from this system. We all have
a handle on that in our various areas of
expertise. Rather than looking at rates —
g:es is kind of the end product of ali of

S,
MR. ROBEDEAU: Rates is the end

rvoduct. but rates is the end product that

s looked at by everybody. You know, costs

ﬁ\;“q‘
are seidom looked at, you know, write-off
numbers are seldom looked at, but when you
aseand talk to a commissioner and you say
elghtzz-ealght. they don't look at the

fact that of that, and don’t quote me
on that number, is cost shifted to
medically indigent.

MR. DRAKE: But | think what we can
start out with first off is the assumption
is we're going to look at the current
system cost. That's what you were saying,

race. And also the other assumption’is

that we will then compare the costing of
the various models that have been presented
lrlt mht? PAPA and Muitnomah County. Is that
ng

MR. ROBEDEAU: That's fine with me.

MR. SKEEN: |t still seems to me that

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
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level eight unless it's a specialty
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throughout the city of Portiand, what his
costs would be. So | guess what my point
is, it's difficult to find a starting ﬁolnt
until we really have identified what the
various plans and the co nents are.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think we have our
starting point. It's what we have now.
That has to be the startin? point. | don't
see how it could be anything else,

And see, what | see you're - what
you're saying is you're talking about
designing a new system, and that has its
benefits, essentially if we had more time
to do it, but we have constraints within
our system that create costs $0 we have to
stay with those constraints.
'ou know, most systems that | am aware
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of run out of cars more often than we do.
We seldom run out of cars. Once in awhile
during the day. But we are never really
allowed to cut down to running out of
cars.

Everybody goes absolutely nuts when
we're down to level one and level two
within the system. And a lot of your
single provider systems out, as |
understand it, is really quite common.

It's one of the things that creates the
high volume patient contacts for the
paramedics.

Other than Tulsa, Oklahoma, | don't
know of another system that is going with
two paramedics in the rigs. You know, some
of these — you guys may have information
that | don't have.

There's a lot of things that we have
in this system. In order to compare apples
to apples, we have to compare this system
to this system. We can’t compare this
system to another system that is operating
differently than we are.

We're stopped from pulling cars at

K 2R
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transport. And | don’t know of other
systems that do that. The other systems
that have that capacity built in also are
talked about in the system, and they run
all the nonemergencies and the
nonemergencies then are just put on hoid
and, rou now, they do the best they can.
But if they get there, fine; if they don't,
that's — you know, the person who needs
the ambulance transport can just go fish.
They control the cream skimmers, as it's
called.

And there's none of that here. You
know, we've got several fairly different
qualified transport — gurney car transport
facilities, which that adds to the cost of
your system. That changes everything. All
of those things change what the perception
of costis.

MR. THOMAS: But at some point
somebody’s to make an intelligent |
sy, e cholice, has to do the best they can
to isolate costs that are associated wit
different ways of doing things. | mean,

TR :

presumably one e things you want to

we've to back to the various 1
opﬂonmu 2?2 sitting out there. 2 end up or the decision-maker should
MR. DRAKE: Yes. 3 have would - you've bunches — a bunch
MR. SKEEN: Because if you're going to 4  ofchanges, i mean, that have to do with
look at a unit-hour cost, then there's the 5 different regulations that are going to be
determination of what the incremental 6 ndo’ged for the system.
increases in costs are for excess capacity '81 ving‘a single m:tdtloct‘l szﬁfeﬂrvlso': has
. - some cost compone : Shifting the
AR S Page 2408 9  personnel on the vehicles, if you change
that one model might have over another, and 10 the criteria for what they have to meet,
the staffing levels, the cost of a dual 11 that has a cost associated with it. Those
paramedic unit versus a one-on-one 12 are Indeﬁendem of other structural changes
paramedic unit. 13 that might be made.
MR. DRAKE: M-hm. 14 d you've got to be able to figure
MR. SKEEN: | am sure that Tom has 15 out what costs are associated with what so
some interest in the cost of — if he was 16 you can sort of analyze each of the changes
mandated to provide ALS first response 17 and figure out what its implications are,
‘age 21 to Page 27
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18 and not confuse changes that are assoclated
19 with a shift to a 12-minute response time

20 for some calls, if that's what they want to

21 do, with - you don't want to contuse those
22 costs with costs that are associated with

23 how manxnprovlders there are in the

24 system. And | suppose - | mean, ideally,

25 those — you would have each of the
R %iPage 2858%
1 different sort of variables costed outin a
2 way that you can then ‘)ut together the
2 puzzie and see what's impacting costs and,
5

6

7

8

9

ultimately, rates.

My impression is that a lot of that
hasn't been done at this point. Bill's
projected what he thinks are some savings
associated with aigects of the system
which, you know, this group probably

10 debates and wouldn’t agree with him on.

1" But as | understand it, Bill has not taken

12 his total preferred option and come out

13 with a - what that would cost the total

14 system, what the cost of that would be. |

15 mean, it seems to me that's something you'd

16 want to know.

17 PAPA'’s got their proposal. And |

18 don't know to what extent you're able to

19 derive costs for that or they have or thex

go c:uld, but it seems somebody ought to know
1 that.

22 And then if this grour were to make a

23 proposal that's a variation of one of the

24 those two proposals, it seems like you'd

25 want to know what the cost difference was

ST
1 between that and the Rroposal it
2 variation of. | mean, there's gotto be a
3 way to come up with some numbers or, you
4 know, get yourselves within a range. |
5 mean, that's sort of what - sounds like
6
7
8
9

what Mark and Trace are talking about
conceptually.
MR. D E: M-hm. There's a whole

bunch of cost factors in the EMS system.
10 There's the cost of first responders, if we
1 have helicopter service, which we do in
12 this community, there's a cost associated
13 with that, with the ambulance service, with
14 — Pete is saying with the cream-skimming
15 operations, community and assist
16 transportation, transporting people on a
17 stretcher car basis.
18 You have the cost of the dispatch
19 center BOEC, xou have the MS office, the
20 regulatory authority. All of these are
21 costs involved in the EMS system. You have
22 the cost of the other outside providers.
23 The&add a certain cost to the system.

all those cost components, |

25 think, need to be identified and what cost

1 changes would change as a result of these

2 different models. As an example, BOEC

3 costs may not change at all, the regulatory

4 costs may not change at all across the

g board on all these models, or it might
7
8
9

change significantly, depending upon how
much work you have to do.
We may make this system so easy under
a tiered response that we're going to make
10 Bill's job a whole lot easier.
11 MR. LAUER: Or a whole lot harder.
12 MR. DRAKE: | mean, that's where |
13 think we should start, is identifying those
14 cost issues.
15 MR. THOMAS: | do agree, by the way,
16 that you've got to look at total sYstem
17 cost. | agree that Bill can't regulate
18 nonemergency. On the other hand, | do
19 think that he has some responsibility to —
20 if he’s shifting costs from the way it's
21 currently working out of emer?ency into
22 nonemergency, that at least his
23 decision-makers ought to know what that is
24 going to be.
25 MR. DRAKE: But | think, although he

SR age 3
cannot currently regulate that nonemergency
inter-facility work, stretcher cars, there
is a couple ways that they can possibly —-
counties have passed stretcher car
legislation, No. 1. No. 2, the state of
Oregon is passing — hopefully will pass
Senate Bill 95 which would regulate
stretcher cars and ambulance services, what
they can and can't do.
thereis a oougle different ways
that we may look at it and say, here's this
cost of the system and we can regulate that
cost. We can regulate either those
providers out of the system or we can say,
that's fine, we're going to recognize that
as a cost in the system, and that's all
it's going to be.
R. THOMAS: | think at least you've
to identify if there's costs shifted
om ALS calls to BLS calis. | don't think
it's adequate to :g. well, we're only
responsibie for calls. Atleast we
gotta tell people here's what the shift's
going to be.

1
2
3
a
5
6
7
8
9

1 to — regulating them | don't think is the
2 right terminology.
3 (Mr. Robedeau ieft the room.)
4 MR. COLLINS: We can certainly put -
5 you know, between the state and county
6 ordinances, we could regulate nonemergenzy
7 ambulances just like the city regulates
8 cabs. | mean, we can do that. | think
9 the —- when you're looking at this, you're
10 looking at the difference between a —a
1 noncompetitive portion of the system and a
12 competitive portion.
13 And while we might reguiate
14 nonemergency ambulances as far as the
15 standards of care, | don’t think it's
16 appropriate for the county to regulate the
17 business portion of that. | mean, there
18 might be ten people out there now. When we
19 shuffle it around it may be all that can be
20 supported is one or two, | mean, froma
21 business standpoint on the nonemergency
22 side. And that — | think the marketplace
23 should drive that.

Eolnt. And I'm saying, for example, if for
LS transports you gotta have a dispatch
center, it's actually the same number of
gersonnel and people that you have if you
ave some involvement in ALS and you're
saying they don't really need the ALS
dispatch function because BOEC can perform
it, but there's no saving to them, you need
to know that that is not a cost saving to
10 anybody who rides in an ambulance,
11 at you're talking about is saxilr-vg,
12 that cost shouldn’t be charged to calls
13 which means a hundred percent of it now is
14 ing to be charged to BLS calls. Now
15 at's something you can analyze whether
16 that's actually the way it works, but
17 that's something that should be
18 identified. Because you are going to
19 recover the costs, whatever the competitive
20 system is and modet is, and you can
g; ;ti:t#ally —that's sometiﬂng you can deal
th.
23 MR. DRAKE: Because | don't think
24 we're talking about actually lowering —
25 well, we are. We're talking about lowering

T
the cost in the srstem. but also we're
talking about shifting cost.

MR. THOMAS: ng::t. And you need to
identify which is which.

MR. DRAKE: Right. Where are we
actually going to lower the cost and where
are we going to shift the cost? Because in

ONON BN = e

a couple of the models that have been
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presented they're just shifting costs
across the spectrum.

MR. SKEEN: You may very well discover
also that the nonemergency portion the
county does not want to regulate may very
we“ be subsidizing the 9-1-1 system as
well.

MR. THOMAS: Those are the things you
have to figure out.

MR. D E: | believe to some degree
that's true.

MR. THOMAS: Am | just — | want to be
sure. I'm assuming, Bill, from the first
meeting | think we had, that you haven't
actually costed out the — your preferred
proposal in terms of what either the ALS
side of that would be in terms of the cost

W Page X
of the total system.

MR. COLLINS: No. We didn't do that.
All we looked at was the current system,
the unit-hour cost and to see if there were
any pieces of the current system where the
cost was not appropriate and just
identified a couple of areas. e was the
number of unit-hours in the system and the
other was what { termed to be redundant or
repetitive costs because of the number of
providers. We did not go in and figure out
what is it going to cost and, therefore,
you know, what the rate should be of any

rticular system regardiess of whose it

[
MR. THOMAS: Do you know, Cole, did
PAPA do that kind of an analysis sort of?
MR. THEANDER: | wasn't the author.
'm not the author on that portion of the
an, but | honestly can't tell you just
ow in dejnh any cost analysis was
performed.
MR. DRAKE: So where do we want to
start, just identifying the costs, factors
in the system current, and trying to come

up with a unit-hour cost or system cost?

MR. LAUER: | think you can do that.
| think you can broadly identify the things
in the system that you can attach a cost
to, but | don't think we're ever going to
ﬂet as definitive as a lot of peopie would

ke to get. Because no matter what data

you have, kind of an analysis you do,
|soﬂ'iebodys going to be able to shoot holes
n it

MR. ANDERSON: Didn't you aiready
identify the criteria and what the costs
would be identified as? | thought you had
already done that.

MS. BONNER: In the work groups.

MR. COLLINS: Well, we did for what we

10

get the wi

cost.

MR. COLLINS: Not the system cost, the
9-1-1 cost.

MR. DRAKE: For the transportation.

MR. COLLINS: See, part of this was
like - for instance, with the first
responders, the assumption at least that |
made in this plan on the first response was

R0 P

that there isn't going to be a radical
change in the first response as itis
currently financed. ether peorle agree

that it ought to be financed out of tax
base or it ought to be paid for in some
other way, nevertheless it's currently
g:;anced. so that didn't enter into any of

S.

And | don't know what we gained by
golng through and detailing out the cost of

rst response unless you can somehow try

to incorporate that in the rate structure.

Now, we did mention - | think we
mentioned in here, at least we've had many
discussions about recovering some of the
cost of first response, the supplies and
equipment costs. | don't think we
Identified how much it was, but said that
mat was a factor that we wanted to put in

ere.

But [ don't really know what you're
going to gain other than trying to figure
out what the whole system costs. | mean,
what are xou going to do with that once you
ole system cost?

e

2

MR. DRAKE: | don't know that we're
going to actually find out whether we agree
and care that the first responder cost out
of the fire bureau is two million, three
million, four mitiion. That's not really
going to tell us a lot, because, like you
said, it may not change. If it doesn't
change under any of these models, what
difference does it make?

But identifying that it is a cost
factor that we have to consider when you're
looking at the overall cost of the system
— because if you do start playing with it
and saying we're going to either eliminate
it or significantly add to it or change it
in some way, then it is a cost factor
you're going to have to consider, depending
uﬁn whatever model you finally come up
with.

The same way with the BOEC. We're
saying they're a cost factor in the
system. Ris. | mean, it's there. There
is a cost associated with the system. They
do a function with the system. They
dispatch 9-1-1 units.

w;;ﬁt doing. | don't know if you're talking SR .
MR. ANDERSON: It sounds like you're 1 Now, what you're saying | think under
ng to reinvent the wheel, If | uny:e 2 one of the models is Bg'E(? is goingto do a
unt. . 3 different function. it may have more of a
MR. DRAKE: He took a look at a narrow 4 function than they do currently as far as
scope of what a provider does, 5 regulating the control of ambulances than
transportation providers did on page 15, 6 thexncu"ently do.
and iy onked t it e i P AR SIS, e ang
R Diaaaae SEEK Page 3 13 they'fe not cur;:nt!y' to&ally mlanagin% ;he
cost is and tried to at out of system status plan, is that going to add to
system for g-'1 -1 resp:tiln‘:es.ol hgvemae 1 the cost of the BOEC? Is that a cost that
problem with the particular methodology 12 we have to consider?
that was used for thaebut we're talking 13 Now BOEC may come back to us and say,
about system cost. We're talking about the 14 no, we don't have to add any personnel,
cost of first responders, which has not 15 there's no increase in time. Fine, then we
been identified. ' 16  don't have to worry about that. |
MR. ANDERSON: But couldn’t you use 17 personally think if they're 3gln to take
the same methodology, identify the criteria 18  on more of an active role, eysre going to
that you agree on that would constitute the 19 have to add some costs.
mgr 20 And where is that moneJ‘ going to come
MR. DRAKE: That'll get into a lot 2] from? ls that going to be charged back to
us, the pr rs, 10 - s passed on
mree discussion, but, yeah, | think we can, 53 to taapém ,?g ls' this m‘n}" pa
THOMAS: appr 24 : | agree with you. An
It —‘I‘Fr}'ean, Blﬁast.aﬁeh?r: t%oeugvee oach 25  variables that are going to affect the Y
companies and from that he got total system
"age 34 (o Page 41 Lord, Nodland, Studenmund (503) 299-6200



ice need to be considered. | just don't
now how much will be accomplished looking
at variables that do not affect the 9-1-1
price. it's like the whole nonemergency
side of the business.
| mean, the cost could change, people
could restructure how they’re doing.
mean, there's a whole bunch of changes that
could be made, none of which will
10 specifically i ct the ftloe on the
n emergency side, If you identify what costs
12 are going to be allowed into that side.
13 R DRAKE: Bill, { tend to disagree.
14 And the reason is that depends on how you
15 structure the system. |If you automatically
16 said there is going to be one provider top-
17 to-bottom franchise and decide that's the
18 most cost effective methodology to use it
19 for, say the backup ambulance service could
20 be fire bureau under a tiered response,
21 there's certainly going to be a cost change
22 if you're going to say they can do top to
23 bottom as compared to just this small
24 segment of the market and we're going to
25 aliow the — this other part of the market

=

2

WENOUNDBUWN - 2

1 to be unregulated. There is a cost impact.
2 MR. MOSKOWITZ: Can | ask Bill a
3 question? Let's say the county adopted
4 your plan and then somewheres down the road
5 the nonEMS reguiated portion of the
6 ambulance business went up in cost and
7 citizens were upset, would your response
8 be, well, that wasn't our job to regulate
9 that and what the providers do in that
10 gonlon of their business is their

usiness?
12 MR. COLLINS: Yeah, pretty much |
13 would. Because | think it's inappropriate
14 to tie the two cost bases together,
15 especially if it affects the rate on the
16 emergency side. So if it went up, then the
17 implication is, is it was — the shift was
18 to the emergency side. If it went down,

make wheelchairs and make van conversions

and do all kinds of things. So obviously

if you're costing out the compensation that
to the owner of the company, that

comes from a bunch of different places, and

if you want to cost that out, you can’t put

It all into one side or the other.

MR. THOMAS: Well, let's take Mark
Drake. And were you a hundred percent in
his — in the data that he got?

MR. DRAKE: No, no.

MR. THOMAS: So you did allocations?

MR. DRAKE: Yeah. Because I'm
allocated — corporate peopie are allocated
to cross all the pr%)enles that we have,
ambulance properties. And in addition to
that, though, for my salary we took out

N Y Page 4555

that section which Is -Epn'ed by Portland,
and then again we took out a percentage

which lied only to 9-1-1 calls.
MR. ﬂOMAS: Oka

y.

MR. DRAKE: And that is the flaw |
believe in the methodology that was used,
but we won't mt into that.

MR. COLLINS: I'm not drawing any more
of those lines.

MR. SKEEN: | want to go back to your
statement, though, Bill, about if in fact a
non — cost of nonemergency business
increased, that that would be evidence that
it had been shifted previously to the 9-1-1
side. And | don't think that's a correct
assumption, because essentially what you
are doing is creating a redundancx. And it
:lhoe;zt 1necessarlly mean it was shared by

e 9-1-1.

MR. COLLINS: What redundancy wouid be
created?

MR. SKEEN: Oh, duplicated
infrastructures, for one. If Kou segment
the business. It's just like txou ao to
BOEC and indicate to them that the

dis| tchln I ow goln to done by the

;8 th;n you could imply that the shift was the 1
other way. 2 private contractor or contractors, can you
21 MR. Josxovmz- And | think you're v
22 speaking fromwhat your sense of your 3 Their relponse it kel 1o B aa, there'e
23 misslon?s in terms of the job that you've 5 no way we can do that and still maintain
24 been given. These folks here feel a 6 the bulk of the other business that we're
25 responsibility to at least prepare or make 7 domiuemere,
I e
[ R S A Xa .
1" knowledge avallable to the public, f not 10 departmentalize cost-wise. They Rave two
2 ! e ﬁg:trll;yn s ':: tt'\:t u:t s&n::eotf:g;fness n major functions; they answer telephones and
4 mpM R. COLLINS: Nopal understand that. }g g:‘:’?s“p:c'ghl? nlt:.sl‘flgo t;\‘ew e&g':g :vhairfltt
5 I've got no probiem with that. And again, 14 any dis%aatcﬁ ofygoec, we want 1o go with a
6 separating the regulation of patient care 15 single provider because that's going to
; :hﬂn:eafdg‘ gom the actual, Wl;‘ know, what's 16 alve us better control over the response
¢ best u can put together to get 17 me, then that portion of their - they'd
13 :g:::::: :N;‘S ness. Tﬁat sa 3°°d example. 18 have no reason to keep those people because
uge provider and has a big 19 there would be no function for them.
12 MR THOMPSON: Wel, there’s something 20 wantto'g0 o the Dty and say, maybe
13 | don't understand. You gEn data from the 22 you're n%? budgeting this rig t, but
14 three companies, and based on that you went 23 they're — | know that those are dedicated
15 through your analysis and you said by doing 24 FTEs that do that job. Now, they cannot
16 XY, and Z you can save this amount of 25 shift out call taking because that's a
17 money. The data you got was for costs of . 5 oo e
18 emeraenc calls only. e datssinivaPage 4 L4
19 MR. COLLINS: That's what we asked 1 different function and they do that.
20 for. There seems to be some concern about 2 But should they charge you, for
21 they gave us something else, but when we 3 instance, for the call taking? | mean,
g sathI‘nRt.h_lgHrS&ng Certainly the g ‘hgul:d e tlry WY shl!f,tuthe c;llataklln ink
: and keep their same et? But | thin
24 administrative costs could have been 6 that's a grlme example.%gecause we do have
25 emergency only. 7 & choice there. We could do it at BOEC or
g we ﬁo;lg do ItEso_rrr:plaee :lse.
RAKE: That'’s right.
1 MR. COLLINS: Yes. We asked prorated 10 MR. COLLINS: But wegcan only do part
2 out. 11 of it and we know what BOEC — how much it
3 3& Ewomﬁsmﬁt'l A it }% S0 the diss '“f: Whapposedmey e °?‘y§‘u'°
: For instance, if you e dispatch as o meve n
5 have a large company that has — well, CARE 14 else. So if you were to move it out of 9
6 is a good example. | won't pick on you. | 15 there, one would expect that the city
7 mean, I'm just using him as an example. | 16 budget for BOEC would go down. It'd have
8 mean, they make — as far as | can tell, 17 to go down. Well, it wouldn't have to. |
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suppose they couid ignore it, you know.

MR. SKEgN: What percentage — do you
have any idea whagercentage that is, that
represents of BOE

MR. COLLINS: No, | don't.

MR. SKEEN: Would you guess 15
percent, 20 percent?

MR. COLLINS: | don't know. | mean,

o - < RN e MR
it's — | know that EMS out of the total

BOEC is not a big number because the big
number is the police. So when you look at
their total activity, EMS is this chunk

here and the R°| ce is this.

MR. LAUER: it's not insignificant.

MR. SKEEN: The $64,000 question is if
that represents 25 percent of BOEC and that
part was removed, that function was removed
and transferred to someone else, would
BOEC's overhead be reduced by 25 percent as
well? And I'm willing to put money on that
one.

MR. COLLINS: | don't know what
rercentage of the business itis. | mean,

can't -

MR. STEINMAN: What do you pay for
BOEC out --

‘ MR. COLLINS: [ don't pay anything.

! MR. SKEEN: So I'm trying to ﬁ?ure
out why we're sﬂendlng so much time, since
the county or EMS pay nothing for the
dlsnatch center.

R. COLLINS: That's why | brought
that up, you know. Like first responder,

REREXK
BOEC is not a —- it's not a price in what
we're talking about.
(Mr. Anderson left the room.Le
MR. COLLINS: | mean, it could be the
city could decide to make it an issue. But
at this point, there's no indication that
they're going to change that. So the cost
of — essentially the cost of dispatching
ambulances has been spread out over the tax
' base. That's how it's paid.
(Mr. Robedeau entered the room.)
: MR. STEINMAN: It's a system cost, but
; it's not a cost in the ambulance rates or
. anything else.
5 MR. COLLINS: it would only be of
> concern if we got a letter from the city of
. Portiand that says, we're not going to pay
3 this anymore.
1 MR. STEINMAN: And | haven't been able
) to get them to do that for years. ['ve
been trying.
2 ; MR. DRAKE: | think we could kind
3 of -
; MR. COLLINS: So, | mean, | agree it's
) a system cost, but | don't know what is

. R .
ined by :ﬁendlng a lot of time trying to

! gure out what it is.

MR. DRAKE: No, I'mnot. -

. MR. STEINMAN: We're looking at the

> ambulance rate. And he's right. had

) the committee put er the information,

. and Bill's got alot of itin here. Are we

here today to ook at ambulance rates or

e

3
2 chan% this over to system costs? | sat
) here for an hour and am totally confused
i now. What the hell are we looking at?
2 MR. LAUER: | think there's some use
3 in looking at whether or not any of the
v existing system cost can be decreased, but
5 | don‘t know that we want to spend a major
5 amount of our time on that.
MR. DRAKE: No. | think we just need
3 to identify what factors go into a system
2 cost, those elements, and move on. And
) quickly we can decide just like he's
' - saying. And we talked about first
2 responders, | mean, we just simply ask Tom,
3 are you going to increase your costs on the
b tiered response, he says no, so we have no
5 increa cost on the current tiered

DONONBWN

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

- oost of the government, that the

to know, if I'm on the county commission,

response model.
R. LAUER: Did you say no, Tom?

MR. DRAKE: | mean, | don’t know if
he's saying no or not.

MR. STEINMAN: Why are we looking at
system cost though? | mean, if this is a
ambulance service area plan that's just
looking at just the ambulance industry.

Mr. Anderson entered the room
and Mr. Collins left the room.)

MR. STEINMAN: I'm not sure where
we're going with this.

MR. THOMAS: Well, | mean, | think
where you want to get — | mean, if I'm the
county commissioner sitting there, { want
to know two things.

{Mr. Collins entered the room.)

MR. THOMAS: And | think it's
correct. | want to know what the variable
costs are, not the things that are uniform
no matter what we're talking about. BOEC
Is uniform no matter what. | don't give a

mn.
But | want to know for this particular
configuration we're talking about, what is

s q

3::vemmem absorbs, and what's the cost

at is dgolng to ultimately have to be
passed on to rate payers one way or
another?

And | don't want to know just on the
emergency side, | want to know the total

ckage, because I'm going to take a hit

om the nonemergency patients potentially,
too. And so | want to know, you know, what
the constituencies are.

And I'm going to want to know for each
of the things that's presented to me what's
the — in the variable area what's the
difference in terms of what the

vernment's going to pay for and what's

e difference in terms of what the total
ﬁﬂent pulation is going to pay for.

at's the beginning point it seems to me.

Then you get into saying, well, we're
going to strictly only charge the emergency
patient for the emer?encr side of that,
that's a policy decision. If you make
that, that's fine. But I'm going to want

9e 5
what does that mean for the BLS riders who
happen to be more in numbers than the
emer‘?ency patients as { recall. Is that
right

MR. COLLINS: |don't have any
numbers.
MR. THOMAS: Well, depends on where
draw the line | suppose. Those are the
nds of things | want. So that's what you
want to know. So if it's going to cost you
more to do the uanspo"r:tgou would
doing, 1 think that's so ing somebody
n to know. | think the assumption is
I&';probably not going to cost a lot more,

MR. STEINMAN: There isn't a plan on
the table here that will not cost the city
more to provide first response or first
response and transport. | mean, when you
start moving everybody going to AED's or
alt ALS first response, yeah, there's a

cost.

MR. THOMAS: But then the other side
of it is there may be a revenue associated
with that, which side there's not a net

cost, and that's what they want to know.
And they want to know, but how is that all
going to work?
So seems to me it's not that difficult

-~ well, maybe it is — to identify. !

mean, the way | think about it Is you've
got you and you've got the private
providers.
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| mean, you can identify whatever you
assign your costs as, | don't know, or
mayge nothing or whatever. But, | mean,
thg can say, okay, here's for an ALS and
BLS patient, here's what our cost is, and
x:u've got the aliocation to the ALS side.

d you can say, here's how we do it and
allocate to the BLS side, that's the
total. And then you can say, if we make
shitsto A B,C, D, E, F, G, in those
areas here's how those numbers change. And
just do that by the — you know, what the
different elements are.

And | know it's not exact. ! mean,
g:u've got to be able to approximate,

cause that's how you make a business
plan. if there were a shift, you'd come up

with some kind of pro forma.
And then you say, you know, so for
this one it ends up with this kind of cost
and this one ends up with that one. If
Bill Collins wants to allocate costs
differentiy within the system so that none
of our dispatch is charged to the ALS
tient, well, fine, we can do that. We
ust — we've allocated some costs on the
ALS side from dispatch, what we'll do is
we'll put all the costs on the BLS side
from dispatch. So at least you can compare
t; you know, show what happens when you do
at.
| mean, that's not - is it that
hard? Is it — | mean, how difficult —
now when you get into talking about we're
?:lng to shift to 12-minute response times
r some of the calls and we're going to
change the personnel on the ambulances, it
may become more. But you can still do your
best guess as to what those are going to
be, can't you?
MR. DRAKE: M-hm.

MR. THOMAS: | mean, you gotta do

R Y
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at.
MR. DRAKE: We can come real close.
MR. STEINMAN: But why are we trying
to do that today? | mean, | agree.

MR. THOMAS: The reason you want to do
that is because one of the issues here is
what the rates are going to be. In other
words, if I'm making a presentation to the
county commission, at least this is what |
want to do, and I'm Bill Collins, | would
feel like I've got some obII?:tlon to give
them predicted rates both for ALS and BLS,
| think, what the predicted rates are going
to be. So that -

MR. COLLINS: You can't predict ~ |
mean, | couldn’t predict the nonemergency
rate, because what we — | mean, when

you're looking at —
MR. THOIfAS: What you can do, though,
is you can sar— you can —
MR. COLLINS: Ican'tdoit.
MR. THOMAS: Well, they can do it.
MR. MOSKOWITZ: They can do that.
MR. THOMAS: Ther can do that for you.
MR COLLINS: Well, they can do it

e SaRN Page 57N
under, again, a number of series of
models. But if you're looking at the ALS
cost of the emergency cost, we've
Identified what the requirements are, we've
also identified exactly or as close as we
can what the revenue is based on the number
of calls. We know the number of calls, we
have all that, so you've got a very finite
package.

On the nonemergency side, one, we
don’t have all the business everybody has.
Their nonemergency business may be tied to
services in other counties. Not to pick on
Kaiser, but Kaiser's got a big pool of
transports, nonemergency trans!aorts.

And whoever wants that is going to tr
to give them a price that is most favorabie

: TR
about that, don't worry

) cos ‘s going to

to them, so it isn’t going to be driven by
ate set.

a third—q_a rate

MR. AS: Whoever's going to do
that at least has to recover their cost or
they won't do it. They'li go out of
business. So at least you gotta recover

costs.
MR. COLLINS: But they can spread

their costs over all kinds of other things
that have nothing to do —

MR. THOMAS: Let me tell me what it
sounds like you're saying to me.

MR.C NS: Well, for —

MR. THOMAS: Let me tell you, because
I'm the county commissioner, and I'm going
to sit here and say —

MR LAUER: Are you running?

MR. THOMAS: No. | don't have time.

You're saying, we're going to isolate
costs for the ALS system and we're going to
onl chargre those costs to the ALS
patients. The ambulance companies are
saying that means that there's going to be
some ~ that's not all cost savings,
there’s going to be some costs shifts.

Then you're telling us to account
differently for how we're going to char%e
our calls and we're going to charge to BLS
patients. And you're saying, well, that's
okay, because nobody can ever tell you,
Mr. Commissioner or Mrs. Commissioner, what
the impact of that is going to be on the
BLS rate payer, and you should just forget

SR

about it.
That's not — that's nota
satlsfactor{ explanation of the total
cture to the county commissioner.
cause there Is going to be an impact on
BLS rates and they need to know that.

MR. COLLINS: Well, | think gou can
discuss how much or what kinds of things
are shifted. But, | mean, a good example
is your control center also dicpatches or
talks to people that - units that are out
of this county that have nothing to do with
the cost base in this county.

MR. DRAKE: That's correct.

MR. COLLINS: And you can try to
figure out what that's worth, but that's
going to be very hard to come up with a
rate. it's hard to come up with a rate for
a piece of business that is —

MR. THOMAS: Well, but somebody is
goln%to up come with a rate.

MR. C&UNS: What are you going to
come up with?

MR. LAUER: We don't know.

MR. COLLINS: They're going to say BLS

SNt

0

BT %

, except
we have this big contract over here, that
rate will be 210, and we have this other
contract over here, and that one will have
to do 312,

MR. THOMAS: All you're sayingis it's
complicated, but it's complicated,
therefore, | throw up my hands.

MR. LAUER: it's complicated, Chris,
because | couldn't right now begin to tefl
you what our rates would be under a tiered
system because | have no idea what the
market base is, the revenue base is. We
don’t know how many calls we're going to be
responding or transporting. We do now
today from a historical perspective.

MR. THOMAS: | understand that. But
I'm the decision-maker. For me to make a
responsible decision | have some
concept of what the rates —- what the costs
gd. therefore, what the rates are going to

'MR. LAUER: Well, you're never goin
to get to that point uniess you answer the
basic questions. How many calls are going
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to be run? Which you have to look at that
first and then figure out what your cost

for doing that is.

MR. STEINMAN: And that's what |
thought we were dolng here, is coming up
with what the system design is, not the
nitpicky details of how many things.

MR. LAUER: You can’t even do that
until you establish protocols - if you're
lookln? at the tier system, until Kou
establish protocols and dispatch guidelines
to say fire medic unit’s going to end up
transporting 10,000 patients a year and

ivate ambulance co nies are going to
ave — one or three or four are going to
each transport X number.

But until |, with Buck, look at what
the Xis, | can’t begin to tell you how
many units | have to deploy and, therefore,
what my costs are going to be to determine
what the rate’s going to be.

MR. THOMAS: i, make the assumption
that they're ten, 20, and 30 percent,
that's %?Ing to be it, and run a scenario
for each one.

I'm sitting on the county commission.
| wouldn't et you get away with this. |
wouldn't let Bill get away with what he's
saying here. I'd say, come on, tell me —
| don't want to know - what | want to know
ultimately is, what are the rates going to
be? What, Bill, is your projection as to
what the rates are going to be for ALS
calis and BLS calls in the county?
MR. STEINMAN: 9-1-1 or the whole
eoung’l What are you talking about?
MR. THOMAS: just 9-1-1.
MR. DRAKE: Everything.
MR. THOMAS: | want to know that.
Because they're all going to be affected.
And my constituents, some of them are going
to be mad and some happy, and | want to
know which ones and how many. Plus, apart
from constituents, it's important to know
that information so | can decide as a part
of pollc§what's the best design.
MR. SKEEN: 72 minutes ago when | said
we've got to figure out, make sure we've
g,'ot the cart behind the horse on this,
at's exactly what I'm getting at, is that

SR 3
to determine what thos
are. Chris, we need to know what the
scenarios are, what the resources are going
to be required for that. And there's a
whole — | think back to Bill, if | recall,
what he was talking about in the cost
reduction in his model was the
communication center.
(Mr. Lauer left the room.)

MR. SKEEN: And he indicated he
thought there could be a two-thirds
reduction in administration and overhead,
but he said even on the 50 percent
reduction we can save this much money. And
then the third component was reduction in
unit-hours | believe.

MR. THOMAS: Right.

MR. SKEEN: Well, | think there's some
flaws in all three of those.

MR. DRAKE: Right.

MR. SKEEN: But that's kind of an
aside to get to the plans that talks about
the number of unit-hours that are going to
be required in these different Is s0
that we can - so that we can determine

what our costs are going to be.

MR. THOMAS: Okay. I'm for that. So
if you could have that ready by the next
meeting.

MR. ROBEDEAU: How about a
subcommittee?

MR THOMAS: So, | mean, you're
actually — that was a proposal. You

identified the unit-hours that would be
needed, say, for Bill's proposal, which
means you have to make an assumption about
what the g:}ocol's going to be.
MR. D E: First off, you have to
start off with the number of calls that
we're going to run, then you have to figure
out what your range of unit-hour
utilization is for each one of those units,
which then telis you how man\/(unhs you're

ing to have in the system, okay. That's
ow you get to that figure.
Mr. Anderson and Ms. Bonner
ft the room.)

MR. SKEEN: Yeah, utilization. But
that'’s also going to be factored by
response time requirements.
R. DRAKE: But you figure that
with — yeah, you have to figure your
response time area, include that with this
amount of unit-hour utilization to meet the
response requirements takes this many
units, and you have to do some working with
the numbers, make sure that they'll work

out.

MR. SKEEN: This is really the key to
the whole process, though, because this
goes back to the staffing levels we tatked
about in previous sessions, medical control
issues. None of these are really
free-standing and independent concepts.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Butis it possible to
take each of those variables and plug in
different assumptions and come out with
different conclusions? | mean, it maybe a
very long or multiple-page set of
scenarios, but is it possibie to do that?

MR. DRAKE: Yeah.

MR SKEEN: | think that's what you'd
have to do.

MR. DRAKE: But | think aiso it's
important to note here that we do have to

consider the i ct of control agencies on
the s:tem. such as Kaiser and the VA

MR. ROBEDEAU: Well, first of all, you
have to determine —- VA is kind of out of
it. But | have heard both ways. Bill has
said he's not going to be allowing any
contract agencies to get special rates.

MR. COLLINS: No. The only thing we
said about that was, is that the
discounting of the rate charge for 9-1-1
calls is not appropriate. | still don't
think it's appropriate.

MR. DRAKE: Okay.

MR. COLLINS: Because you have another
contract, you ought to be aliowing a lower
rate on 9-1-1.

" MR. DRAKE: |s there anybody doing

at now?
, MR. COLLINS: As far as | know, there
s

MR. DRAKE: Who? Because we're not
doing that for VA that | know of.

MR. SKEEN: Contract rates?

MR. ROBEDEAU: You're talking about
Kaiser. I've got a couple contracts.

MR. SKEEN: There's contract rates
across the board.

MR. DRAKE: For 9-1-1?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Yes. I've got a couple
contracts on 9-1-1, and Buck's got Kaiser.
I'm assuming others. You know, it's just
an assumption. I'm assuming that you've
got a couple, too, Mark.

MR. DI E: | didn’t think we made a
break on the 9-1-1. I'll have to check.

MR. ROBEDEAU: For VA, their contract
isn’t for emergencies.

MR. DRAKE: Right. So we don't have a
special rate for 9-1-1 is what I'm saying.

MR. ROBEDEAU: But there are other
outfits out there. And my assumption is
you said you're not - the new system was
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18 not going to allow any contracts for
19 special rates off 9-1-1.

20 MR. COLLINS: Right.
21 MR. DRAKE: So what ~
22 MR. COLLINS: For 9-1-1 calis, right.

23 Because even if you have a contract, you
24 have no way of fulfilling the contracton a
25 9-1-1 call because you have no control over

1 goes.
2 (Mr. Skeen left the room.)
3 MR. ROBEDEAU: So —~

4 MR. DRAKE: To get to the models — we

5 want to go to where we started out awhile

6 back, is we have to say we have several

7 assumptions. Those assumptions are, A,

8 there is a cost associated with first

9 response in the system, there's associated
10 cost with BOEC, we're going to assume that
" the contract — there will be no breaks for
12 9-1-1 calls on the contracts.

13 (Messrs. Anderson and Lauer

14 entered the room.)

15 MR. DRAKE: Right. We can all make
16 that assumption.

17 MR. LAUER: What assumption are we
18 going to make?

19 MR. DRAKE: Just agree.

20 MR. LAUER: I'm not agreeing to

21 anythlngwlthout hearing t.

MR. COLLINS: If you're tryir:{%to do
23 this, the first thing you have to do is
24 what we did in the plan. You've got to
25 decide what costs you're talking about, |

1 mean, what that's going to be.
2 (Mr. Skeen entered the room.)
3 MR. COLLINS: No matter how you work
4 this out, you're coming out to some kind of
5 unit-hour costs you can plug in and say,
6 this is what it cost us to put this many
7 units on the street. Because that's your
8 basic variable.
9 | mean, you have variables that go
10 into the unit-hour cost, but the thing that
11 #ju provide is hours of ambulance service.

12 at's the product. And whether they're
13 roductive or not is — changes the rate.
14 ut that's what you provide, and so you
15 need to talk about what costs go into that.
16 And then you can applx it to the

17 modeis to the extent you have data, but

18 it's going to be pretty hard to apply —

19 then you'll have to make some assu ons
20 about the various models and say, well,

21 this model is X and these are the

22 assumptions for this, but we've already -
23 | mean, unless you disagree with the costs,
24 not the dollar figures but the categories,

25 we've already done that

1 I mean, we spent a great deal of time

2 with a number of people golng throuah all
3 that stuff. Now, you could say, | thin

4 you should add this and | think you should
g delete that or something. | mean, we could
7
8
9

o through that again, but — I'd do that

rst.
1 think that gives you what's, you

know — to use an example of the absurd,
10 should the cost of converting vans at CARE
11 be in the cost accounting for a rate for
12 9-1-1, and you'd say no. So you don’t put
13 that in there.
14 MR. DRAKE: Right.
15 MR. COLLINS: But there's a whole
16 bunch of — we listed them all out. There
17 are Ma Rpage of them.

18 DRAKE: Pa%:15. The problem
19 is - 1 didn't like the basis of putting

20 that together.

21 MR. ROBEDEAU: 15 in the Collins
22 plan?

23 MR. DRAKE: Yes, at the beginning.
24 Because you tried to pull out a

25 specific number, and | think that we should

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
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use the total unit-hour cost currently th
we're using to provide service.

MR. COLLINS: | hear what you're
saying. But | think you'd have — to do
that, you'd have to go through each of the
categories ~ | mean, if these are the
categories — decide whether the costis
m:a . I mean, this is a long - this will

e a long time to do.

For instance, if you're going to say
that the paramedics, the staffing costs for
unit-hour on ALS cars is going to be
different than on a BLS car so why would
you use the same rate? | mean, if you use
the same rate, it sort of averages
xrythlng out, but it tends to discount

MR. ANDERSON: Yes.

MR. SKEEN: |s there a disagreement on
the assumption made on the unit-hour cost;
seventy-five forty-five?

MR. DRAKE: Yes, | agree with the
methodology that he used to get there. And
men by using that comparison and using

R Page 720
MR. COLLINS: You disagree with the
methodolo%\éon the figures that were
provided? Because | think those are two
different.

MR. DRAKE: | don't disagree with the
figures you provided, because you base
those figures on the information that the
companies gave you. | don't disagree with
that. You took the figures and you put
them together.

| disagree with the methodology that
you used to arrive at those figures in
making that conclusion. That's what we
went over. That's what we were drawing all
those lines for.

{Ms. Bonner entered the room.)

MR. STEINMAN: Have you got another
methodology you want to throw out here
or —

MR. DRAKE: Yes. The methodologx,ls
to take the total unit-hour cost we use for
ALS and BLS units and not try to pull the
9-1-1 out of that and try to apply the unit

unit-hour cost just for 9-1-1 calis. We

have a unit-hour cost to put an ALS unit on
the street. And that unit responds to
9-1-1 calls, facility transports,
nonemergency calls, everything.

MR. SKEEN: Multipte county?

MR. DRAKE: We do break it down by

county.

Mg STEINMAN: But Bill's charge is to
only worry about the 9-1-1 calls here, so
how -- and | think that's what — | know
the county commissioners want to know every
vote they may lose or may gain in this.

But the charge in this thing Is to provide
a 9-1-1 ambulance system. And Bill's
methodology I think Is correct.

And t‘mu ve gotta break out those
things that you said you included in your
unit-hour stuff, you know, the other
business that you do. You can't subsidize
or either side of that equation with the
other, 0 ~

MR. THOMAS: Well, | think you can do
it that way, and then what you do is then
compute a unit-hour cost

PRNEanes

calls.

MR. DRAKE: No.

MR. ANDERSON: Can i make a
suggestion? | think you could be tatking
about this problem for hours and hours, and
there's been lots of discussions about this
for hours and hours and hours. You might
be worth — it might be worthwhile to have
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some independent third party come in who
knows financial analysis and cost based
analysis and look at this and discuss this
issue with you, because | don't think —
you go around the room and somebody who
doesn't agree with you and another person
doesn’t agree.

You need to get some sortof a
consensus about the direction you're going
to go, because otherwise you're going to be
here until the cows come home arguing about
which methodol makes the right sense.
And without somebody that has some really
grounding and basis in financial management
and economics, you're not going to get
anywhere.

MR. STEINMAN: | think | heard that at

5

G :
one of our other meetings.

MR. ANDERSON: I've said it before.
This is sort of a recap of what | said a

year ago.
MRQBRAKE: Well, the onlY problem

with that is we're unfortunately under a
time gun that’s being held to our head by
the county.

| agree with you. That would be a
preferred method to do this, is to %o out
and some other financial peoge
involved. We have an in-house CPA that
does this.

MR. ANDERSON: You could certainly get
somebody on fairly short notice to come in
here and at least be part of the discussion
who wouldn't have an interest in the
outcome, who could steer you in the right
direction or say, this doesn't make sense
or this does make sense. | don't know.
That's just — | mean, I'm invested in this

ust as much as everybody else so | can't

%n to sag' which makes the best sense.

R. SKEEN: Well, | think you're
exactly right. And we'd indicated that —

in the letter to the MAB some time ago, is
we thou%\et there's a number of issues that
deserve better analysis than what we can
provide. And as pure and righteous as we
all tend to be, we still have interests
that we're looking after.

MR. DRAKE: M-hm.

MR. SKEEN: | guess in the meantime,
because of the time considerations, | feel
like we need to have some of this together,
is that there needs to be probably some
discussion on how much controversy there is
over -- disagreement there is over the
unit-hour cost that Bill has applied here
on table three, and then be able to use
that to go back to the various modeis that
are being proposed out there.

MR. DRAKE: See, what you're doing is
you're eorv:avlng. in my opinion, apples and
oranges. You're trying to pull out a
separate unit-hour cost for 9-1-1 calls
only. You don’t need to do that. You just
need to pull out for ALS and apply the
unit-hours for each model and that gets you
where you want to go.
My problem with Bill's analogy is he
tried to pull out a specific 9-1-1
unit-hour out of the air here somewhere and
say, this is the cost for 9-1-1 unit hour.

And | don't believe you can pull that out
of the information that we have, at least
not in the time that we have.

MR. LAUER: That's a portion of that
total, though, too. One thing that would
be constant is the personnel cost wouldn't
matter if it was a 9-1-1 or what kind of
call they ran.

MR. DRAKE: No. But see, there's an
obvious difference of how we did this
then. Because what we did is we took the
g_ersonnel cost and pulied the percentage of

1-1 calis that they ran on for that unit

18 and applied that to the personnel cost.
19 That's what we thought -

20 MR. LAUER: That doesn’t make any

21 sense.

22 MR. DRAKE: That's what we thought he
23 needed to have.

1
2 MR. DRAKE: | agree.
3 MR. COLLINS: This is not an attempt
4 to pull out a current unit-hour cost. It
5 was an attempt to identify the cost ~ this
6 is like a cost accounting process. And one
7 of our problems obviously is none of the
8 ambulance co nies do cost accounting so
9 that made it difficult to get it.
10 But the idea was not to determine what
1 is a tzortion of your current unit-hour but
to identify the cost, and then look at the
13 number of unit-hours and, by definition, if
14 that's the cost and this is the unit-hours,
15 that's the unit-hour cost. | mean, there
16 isn't anything else to put in there. The
17 reason that the number’s high is because

- 18 there's a lot of cost against a limited
ne number of unit-hours.
20 MR. DRAKE: Right. That you're
21 applying, saying — and we disagree with
A 77 units-hours.
<. 423 MR. COLLINS: If you wanted a lower

24 unit-hour cost, if you said this is not
then according to the

&
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1 methodology we used, there’'s too much cost
2 in it, not too many unit-hours. And that's
3 the cost accounting problem. And { agree,
4 rou could have somebody come in and kind of
5 ook at the methodology. | don’t know that
6 u could do in any kind of reasonable time
7 ame, do the cost accounting.
8 MR. ANDERSON: Couldn't ~
9 MR. DRAKE: We're talking a couple
10 months.
11 MR. ANDERSON: Right.
12 MR. COLLINS: Health care is still
13 ﬂoln through that process. This is more
ke Medicare step down where you say these
15 are the costs.
16 MR. ANDERSON: | think what | was
17 driving at was that at least you could have
18 somebody look at the two arguments and say
19 which argument — you know, which is
20 logical here, which is going to get you the
21 number that you want to to or which
22 direction should you go. | mean, is Mark's
23 point vaiid or not valid in the context of
24 the overall cost that you're trying to
25 arrive at?

R RN M bl
1 MR. STEINMAN: More facilitated to get
2 us focused and moving. | hate to say this,
3 for the record, but this has been a real
4 frustrating meetlni and we've gotten off
5 track. And | hope it's not because
6 Kilmer's not here, | hope.
7 (Lau hter.{)o
g MR. DI E: Don't put that on the

record.
10 MR. STEINMAN: I'd hate to have to
1 admit that.
12 MR. ROBEDEAU: Well, you know, the
13 meeting Is getting old, and | don’t think
14 we're going to accomplish much except maybe
15 a consensus on what we're really looking
16 at, at cost. You know ~
17 MR. STEINMAN: | think one thing I'd
18 like to see is, | know that the information
19 that all the agencies gave to Bill is kept
120 in strictest of confidence, but listening
21 to the way you guys broke things out, you
22 know, if we could take Bill's costing deal
23 from each of the providers and say we
24 thought he meant this and we did this, and
25 had that on — in front of us at the next
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meeting, maybe we could see where the big
problem is here.

Because, you know, it sounds like Mark
broke out personnel different than you did,
and don't know what Pete did. Maybe if we
had that in front of us without any of the
dollar figures or something we could figure
out where the problem is with Bill's
methodologr.

10 Because I'm sltting here going, |
1} don’t know what the heck you guys are
12 talking about. We bounced from 9-1-1 calls
13 to all calls to, you know, some system in
14 Chicago. None of it's relevant. And I'd
15 like to back to what Bill did here and
16 is it rl? t or wrong and do we have
hing to suggest to make it better
18 be rehm(suptothecoun
19 MR. D E: 1 think in the Interest of
20 time, | have some J)roblems with the
21 methodology used by Bill, and | think we
22 should just take — that aside, as we
23 talked earlier, and just say, here’s the
24 costing methodology we want to use and go
25 forward with it.

ul
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1 MR. LAUER: One thing you can do, too,
2 is say, what we do know is that personnel
3 is a constant part of unit-hour cost.
4 That's based on the level — what you
5 actually have to pay to put people on an
6 ambulance for an hour. And that's — you
7 can apply that to whether you have two
8 paramedic ambulances, a paramedic and EMT
9 ambulance, two EMTs.
10 And you can make a comparison that
11 would be just personnel cost. When you
12 start allocating costs, it gets very
13 confusing, overhead and et cetera. When
14 z:u start aliocating that in, it's going to
difficult to compare.
16 MR. DRAKE: We have some fixed and
17 variable costs, but | think we can come up
18 with a cost of two paramedics in a unit and
19 one paramedic and an EMT in the unit and
20 agree — with the three of us, come up with
21 an average cost.
22 That would be a simple thing to do.
23 We can put the average cost on these for a
24 unit not trying to pull out 9-1-1, just
25 saying that's the cost for that portion.

Page B3

Right?
MR. LAUER: M-hm.
MR. DRAKE: Okay. We can come
?repared to do that at the next meeting on
hursdaaﬂ
MR. ROBEDEAU: Say that again.
MR. DRAKE: We can come up with an FTE

cost per paramedic and for an EMT so we'd
know what the FTE cost is for two
10 paramedics for now.
11 MR. COLLINS: Well, you know what it
12 is for two. It's — :
13 MR. LAUER: We don't know.
14 MR. DRAKE: Based on your methodology,
15 not on ours.
16 MR. COLLINS: This is yours.
17 MR. DRAKE: No.
18 MR. COLLINS: | mean, this is like

19 pogo, you know.
iﬂR DRAKE: You've pulled out

21 something different.

22 MR. COLLINS: There's the cost,
23 there's the FTEs.
24 MR. DRAKE: Which tabie are you

25 looking at?

MR. SKEEN: Three.

MR. LAUER: Only cost of an FTE.

MR. COLLINS: Right. This is based on
your - on the figures provided by each of
the three providers, and then averaged out
on a weighted average.

MR. STEINMAN: But Mark's concerned
because he screwed up and misinterpreted

OO D N =4 geee

what you said, Bill, and gave you the wrong
numbers.

MR. DRAKE: Don't put that on the
record.

(Laughter.)

MR. COLLINS: That's the cost. Now,
you'd have to figure out what the
difference is if you had a paramedic and an
EMT, just figure out what the difference in
salary and benefits are between the two,
and subtract that or one of them and you

got it.

MR. DRAKE: mgm.

MR. COLLINS: I'd like to follow up
though, in figuring out how we might have
somebody look at the methodology even
without even looking at the figures. But

= S

for me to ask an to do that or find
somebody, | need to know more what
methodology - other methodology you want
to look at.

MR. THOMAS: 1 think that - | mean,

}hls Isd I—ﬁ:'m hm.vt :un.;h why this dl;cusslon
s $O cult, other than ma

real close to home or sornetﬁneg. m‘l
think somebody needs to put in writing a
proposed methodology so people have
something to react to, because the
discussion is so vague and general.

MR. COLLINS: it's hard for me.

MR. THOMAS: Not you. Maybe Mark
could do one and maybe Randy or Trace could
propose what the methodology is. | mean,
to me the proposal ought to be how are you
going to get — what's the methodolo&y to
use, so that at the end you can say, this
system costs this much, this system costs
this much, this system costs this much.

MR. DRAKE: 2::1.

MR. THOMAS: And maybe you can do it
for the fire side, because they can't do“l'tm
p

whatever 1you come up with.

MR. STEINMAN: You haven't seen the
new book on costing the city put out, huh?
We'll never understand that one.

MR. THOMAS: it seems to me if people
bring in written proposals, then it's going
to be easier to talk about something. |
mean, this is sort of all so theoretical.

MR. COLLINS: | think if you're going
to do that it needs to be done in our
‘would you develop the costs,” not what
the cost is. Because you need to put those
components in there. This ought to be
included and this is how It should be
included. This should not be — that's
kind of the basis of it.

Because out of all this you'll still
come down to a cost per unit-hour or cost
per something. | mean, it'll be some kind
of a unit cost that you're going to look
at. Then you apply it to all these
different —

MR. STEINMAN: That would reallr help
to have something, because I'm - this
hearing is confusing.

SR age 87555
MR. THOMAS: And our discussion so far
would not be adequate to communicate to the
county commission what we think about cost
and rates. | can assure you of that.
MR. DRAKE: Well, | think part of the
discussion has been, though, all along is
that there is a disagreement in what we're
including in the cost, because | disagree
with the analoxg of using 9-1-1 cost onlr.
be MR. T:-IOM : Well,| nle..‘ That should
part of your proposal. | happen to
agree with that. Others may not. Butl
think you can put that in your proposal.
So you say you gotta do the total package
and here's the way you do this part and
here's the waE u do that part.
MR. ROBE U: if | understand what
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Chris is saying, we end the meeting,
prepare methodologies putting in no
numbers, and then use the next meeting —
the first part of the next meeting to put a
slnale methodologr together.

R. THOMAS: [f you can.

MR. ROBEDEAU: If we can.
MR. THOMAS: Or identify what the

% P R R
different ones are and just agree that
there's a dispute. But, you know, | mean,
| suppose the committee — there's been
talk about a majority and minority report.
Ma there will be several.

R. MOSKOWITZ: Would it appropriate
then to have some independent person come
to that meeting to hear these different
methodologies?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Who could we get?

MR. DRAKE: Who are you golna to ?et
by Thursday? We can bring our CPA. Is
everyone going to use that

R. COLLINS: They may not even have
to come to the meeting. | mean, if you can
write this out, you can —

MR. THOMAS: I'd say why don't you see
where you are when people come in with
their proasals. I'm not sure there's
gol? to be that much difference. | have
no idea.

MR. COLLINS: We could find a
disinterested cost accountant.

MR. ANDERSON: Maybe you could go back
to Portland State and see if there's

somebody there or some financial person. |
wouldn't use a CPA. | don't think a CPA
has the insight that you need for that.

MR. COLLINS: You need somebody that's
greetty versed in cost accounting and how

st to apply that.

MR. STEINMAN: As much as | hate to
suggest the university, but there's a rumor
up there that they set up some health
reform office to study all this health care
reform.

MR. ANDERSON: That's right. Mitch
Greenlick chairs the department up there,

yeah.

MR. STEINMAN: Maybe it would be good
to contact him and see —

MR. ANDERSON: That would be an
excellent idea.

MR. COLLINS: Who's that?

MR. ANDERSON: Mitch Greenlick just
formed a new department that looks at
health care reform — is looking at health
care reform. He chairs the department
of — | can’t think of the name of the
department now.

MS. BONNER: OHSU, he has seve
hats, but one of the them is associated
with the Portland State sort of health
research enﬂtz.

MR. ANDERSON: Right. We could ask
him and see, or maybe you could ask him.

MR. STEINMAN: Are you going to ask
him, BllI? That might be the way.

MR. COLLINS: I'll try "t:tget ahold of
him and see if this is so ing that -

MR. ANDERSON: Or at least he might be
able to give us some resources or lead us
into some resources that might be able to
helnus with this problem.

R THOMAS: One thing the committee
hasn't talked about is rates and the rate
control side of things. That is a topic —
| mean, that's an additional topic to the

you're n

3 RN 2SN

MR. COLLINS: | think in the PAPA one
they have — the financial oversight board
is the responsible rate setter. | mean,
with some approval process.

MR. THOMAS: Oxay.

MR. COLLINS: But yeah. | mean, you
can set them — | think we've talked in the
past about if there’s a bid process. You
can set them through the bid process or you
can set them through some independent panel
that looks at the costs that we're all
talking about and comes up with a rate,
kind of a PUC idea. And actually either
one of those is fine with me.

MR. THOMAS: You recommended the bid

ocess, as | recall.

MR. COLLINS: Well, yeah. if you're
golr:g to go through a bid, then if you can
set the rates in the contract — what |
would prefer to see on a rate basis is that
the rate is part of the contract or the
agreement, and then there is some, you
know, automatic review of that vis-a-vis
the CPI or some adjusted index, so that
going back every year to try to

the contract, it's a renegotiate, If you've
got a big change in the system so that
you - s0 the rates just become part of the
contract. | mean, that's -

MR. THOMAS: | don't know if the group
wants to discuss this now or later. |
mean, | have — since | have actually done
some research in the past on some bid
systemns at least | have own thoughts on
it. | think that's a very risky approac|
personally.

MR. LAUER: Which approach?

MR. SKEEN: To tie to CPI?

MR. THOMAS: No. | don't know if
risky approach is the right phrase. |
think there's substantial experience that
bid systems promise you that this is what
the rate is tgcxlng to be, but are not able
to hold to the promise.

MR. COLLINS: That's true.
MR. THOMAS: So that — and | think —

you're going to get is more of a
traditional rate regulated system. Not
traditional, but | mean traditional for
some businesses.

(Mr. Steinman left the room.)

MR. COLLINS: Both those work. |
think either one of those could be used to
establish a rate. And then once it's
established, you put it into whatever
contractual agreement you have.

MR THOM‘AS: I've never seen any kind
of study, and I'm assuming you haven't
either. Maybe — | don't know if anybody
eise has, that indicates in bid systems
whether in fact the rates that are bid —
where rates are bid or the rates that are
specified where services are bid are
actually the rates that are maintained
throughout the term of the contract
according to what the contract provisions
are. | mean, is there any —

MR COLLINS: The onILe rience |
have is when | was in California and the

rates in the contract were the rates that
were charged. There were no changes. And

25

that was — ths a five-year contr.a

e we've been fumbli d with. '

on MR. COLLIP.}S: v°ur:gg,:.r: lt‘r?e process 2 although it did have some built-in like

that you would — 3 rates go up two percent. R wasn't
MR. THOMAS: Well, there's several 4  CPldriven. It's just whoever — | didn't

rvoronls that have been around over time. 5 do the contract, but whoever wrote the

think Blt:ts and | believe PAPA’s is for g :::gact‘ :ml’"a);:&eoﬁ:?:dbewm the annual
Fates 1o be set through bid processes. 8 Ma.eTHOMAS: Are there any —
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9 MR. COLLINS: And that's what the
10 rates were.
11 (Mr. Drake left the room.)
12 MR. THOMAS: They would specify what
13 the rate was?
14 MR. COLLINS: Yes. Year one the rate

15 will be and year two the rate will be.

16 MR. T AS: I'm just aware of cases
17 with contracts like that where the contract
18 didn’t work that way actually. And has

19 anybody seen any kind of, you know,

20 systematic study of all the places where

21 this has been done around the country and
22 where the rates stayed what they were?

23 (Mr. Steinman entered the room.)

24 MR. SKEEN: Yeah. | think what Bill's

SR T S 3

1 the ambulance industry, where a bid -

2 where a rate is set. In fact, that's —

3 seems to be more recently in terms of the
4 rates are regulated upfront, and then there
5 are —
6

7

8

9

MR. THOMAS: | understand that. What
I'm saying is | know the contracts say
that's what's going to happen. The
question | have is, | know there are cases
10 where that is not actually the way it's
1 worked out because the companies couldn’t
12 do it and got bankrupt.
13 And what | want to know, has anybody
14 actually done a systematic review around
15 the country which tells how many times
16 th?fve been able to hold to the contract
and how many times they've had to deviate
18 from it?

And | believe the only variable —
it's kind of interesting, they must have
been written when they had the bt‘,? %as
shortage, because the only variabie in
there was fuel. There was a special, you
know, contract provision that if fuel costs
went up more than so many percent, they
could adjust the rate, but I'm sure that

ge 98

that was on the heels of when everyone was
lining up, you know, to get gas.

M EEN: If it was 1985, it would
have been insurance then.

MR. ROBEDEAU: One other thlmﬁm I
know has changed in bid systems where
they've bid it out is, in systems where
they bid out the emergency only, within
about a year of that time, because of
E:rponed problems, the nonemergency has

en included and was just awarded out
a bid to the winning provider. There have
been some systems like that.

MR. SKEEN: Pete, there are a number
of bids I'm aware of that have maintained
the pricing as well as the performance. |
know there's some like you're referring to
that | can think of that have been the
other way around.

MR. COLLINS: But your point’s well
taken. | think there is some risk when

u‘re going on a low bid or reasonabie bid

sis, that you have to sort of verify that
what is bid actually has some relationship
to what's being provided.

woul

MR. THOMAS: R

19 MR. SKEEN: Yeah. | understand what 1
20 you're saying. 2 what the level of risk is.
21 MR. LAUER: Probably not. 3 MR. COLLINS: Well, actually, you
22 MR. SKEEN: | don't know of any study, 4 know, if we were to have a tiered system
23 but | know there have been some deviations. 5 iike we proposed, we probably could not bid
24 MR. THOMAS: Yeah. ¢ = 6 the rate because of public — the fire
25 MR. SKEEN: Actually both public and 7 department would probably have to go
8 through a rate-setting process. Can't bid
9 sort of haif the rate.
1 private sector. 10 There would be no reason to bid the
2 MR. THOMAS: M-hm. Both types of 11 rate from the fire department who isn’t
3 contracts. 12 competitive. That same would be if you
4 Or the alternate is they keep the 13 followed any of the — in PAPA's plan the
5  rates the same but they change what the 14 non - the publicly run components. You
§  Bervies e hol e eauirec, Lmean oot e e e
wou mportant, u're goin r - .
8 that approach, to knowy:rhether Itgreall 17 MR. ROBEDEAL: Okay. %ﬂl. then what
9 works in a — you have a high degree o 18 are ’xou goln to bid?
10 security that it's going to work and that 19 R. COLLINS: You have to bid
1 it's going to be the way the contract says 20  service. | mean, if you bid, you have
12 it's going to be, or whether you really 21 to — | mean, that's - that's —- there's
13 don’t have much security. | know there 22 only two ways that | know of. | su%pose
14 have been some very major systems where it 23 you could bid both, but I've never heard of
15 hasn’'t worked. 24 anybody doing that. Has anybody bid both?
16 MR. ROBEDEAU: I've never seen a 25 MR. ROBEDEAU: Oh, yeah.
17 study, but | know what we did, and | think N reveeevvee . o
18 what you're alluding to is, | don’t know of SRR R T AR Y el
19 a system that has come in at the bid rates, 1 R. COLLINS: Well, they tried it.
20 you know, and stayed with everything that 2 MR. SKEEN: Seems like I've heard
21 was guaranteed in the original bid. And | 3 these arguments before.
22 don't know of one. 4 MR. COLLINS: | don't think that makes
23 And we've looked into a lot of stuff 5 a whole lot of sense.
24 over the years and different systems, and 6 MR. DRAKE: | agree with that.
25 every one have been changed after the bid 7 MR. ROBEDEAU: So then you're setting
£ 8 the rate, you're doing a rate — you're
T i 9 talking about a rate constant bid rather —
1 was left, either the rates weren't up or 10 | had assumed that you were talking about a
2 the quality of service being provided went 11 no rate.
3 down. 12 MR. COLLINS: If you set the rate -
4 MR. ANDERSON: How do they establish 13 MR. ROBEDEAU: You're going to give us
5 rates on succeeding years? They fix them 14 and we'll negotiate the rate with you
6 or do they inflate them? 15 later.
7 MR. SKEEN: Generally it's a 16 MR. LAUER: Clark County set a price.
8 combination of CPl components, combination 17 MR. DRAKE: Sort of.
9 of medical transportation. 18 MR. COLLINS: Price fixed.
10 (Mr. Drake entered the room.) 19 MR. DRAKE: Price fixed with a
11 MR. COLLINS: Either CPI - it's kind 20 variable aspect to it.
12 of a modified CPl index. Or like the one 21 MR. T AS: That still has the same
13 we had in Santa Clara actually was just 22 element of risks to it, price fixed bid.
14 fixed. | mean, | couldn't even tell you 23 it doesn’t really matter. Well, okay. So
15 why they were in that way, because when | 24 you're assuming you'd set the rates, and if
16 t down there the contract was in place. 25 you bid anything, you'd bid the services.
17 t it just said this is what it was.
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MR. COLLINS: We're still talking to
the county council about what we can do and
what we can't do under all these different
variables. And the more | talk to them,
the more confusing it , $0 —

MR. ROBEDEAU: That's kind of one of
my problems, Bill. You know, as I've
articulated before, we don’t even know what
we're doing, but we're within 30 days of
going to a county commission to adopt a
plan and nobody knows what the plan is.

MR LAUER: | don't think we're going
to the county commission that soon, Pete.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Don't confuse the issue
with any facts here, you know.

MR. STEINMAN: Like the approach,
there's no data in it, so there’s nothing
to dispute, then you don’t sit in these
meetings ali da¥.A

MR. ROBEDEAU: Are we coming back with
methodology next meeting?

MR. D E: Yes.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. One other thing
on the next meetina. Next meeting is the
last regularly scheduled meeting and then

5 " G IR IR
there are four open dates. | think one
thing that we should have Is, for the next
meeting also, any additional agenda items
we want in the four open dates so everrbody
has a chance to see those in advance like
we've had in the current agenda items. s
that agreeable?

MR. SKEEN: Is provider selection, is
that next week? Thursday?

MR. ROBEDEAU: Provider selection and
ASA descrﬁmon. Thursday.

MR. LAUER: Day after tomorrow.

MR. SKEEN: | jJust want to go back so
I'm really clear on this. When we talk
about coming with methodology next week, it
still appears to me that we have an issue
of costs in having — that there's a need
here somewhere to define what the demands
for resources are going to be.

MR. ROBEDEAU: That 1 think is in the
methodologg, Trace.

MR. SKEEN: Well, so what you're
talking about is the number of unit-hours
going to be required under the various
option plans?

o 20 v:»i:}- s i 3

MR. THOMAS: You can propose it
however you would like, what do you think
is the right wag to.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | was thinking more the
methodology on how to determine the number
of unit-hours that are going to be needed
under the various plans rather than — you
can, and put down what you think the
numbers are, but put down how you arrived
at that number.

MR. LAUER: Right. Do whatever the
formula is. .

MR DRAKE: Right. Whatever formulas
you want.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Use the formulas on
whatever you think should be done. And if
it's at all possible, we can get them out
tomorrow, which | know is a joke, but —

I'm not planning on that. But, yeah, put

in everything you think, but give the
formula that you used to come up with that
number.

MR. DRAKE: So we'll bring in our
dartboard.

MR ROBEDEAU: Whatever turns you on.

R Page 104
MR. DRAKE: All "fm'
MR. ROBEDEAU: s that it?
MR. DRAKE: That's it.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Okay. We're

adjourned.
(PRQC.E.EDINGS ADJOURNED)
(NOTE: Untranscribed steno notes

archived permanently; transcribed
paper notes archived 2 years;

co terized English text files
arch veg.s.years.?
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PROVIDER BOARD

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

Thursday, April 29, 1993
9:10 a.m,

Oregon Medical Association
5210 S.W. Corbett Avenue
Portland, Oregon

THE MULTNOMAH COUNTY PROVIDER BOARD:
Mr. Pete Robedeau, Chairman, AA Ambulance;
Mr. Trace Skeen, Buck Ambulance;

Mr. Randy Lauer, Buck Ambulance;

Mr. Mark Drake, CARE Ambulance/TVA;

Mr. Tom Steinman, Portland Fire.
[ X X ]

Ee

APPEARANCES:

Ms. Lynn Bonner, Kaiser Permanente;

Mr. Bill Collins, EMS;

Ms. Trudy Schidieman, EMS;

Dr. Ga n, Mult. County Health Dept.;
Mr. Je e*KiImer, AA/CARE Attorney;

Mr. Chris Thomas, AA/ CARE Attorney;

Mr. Steven .M.o.skowitz, AA/CARE Attorney.

PROCEEDINGS

MR. ROBEDEAU: Why don't we take a
minute to review the minutes, and aiso, as
we're reviewing the minutes, there's two
handouts. One is from Randy Lauer. And |
haven't read it yet, but it's an
explanation how to figure unit-hour cost.
And the other one is from me. It says,
Provider Board evaluation questions.

And this is a partial list of things |
thought we should be fooking at and
comparing each plan to and makin
recommendations off that, and at the same
time as we discussed earlier, things that
were not on the — in the current plans
that are before the board and other options
that we wanted to discuss.

| think this is where these should be
brought up. | know this list is not
complete, and | think we need to add some.

R. KILMER: Randy, can | ask you a
question on E:yeur handout?

MR. LAUER: Sure.

MR. KILMER: What is this number

8,7607
MR. LAUER: Number of hours in a

year.
MR. DRAKE: On a 24-hour basis?
MR. COLLINS: Total number of hours.
MR. KILMER: When you say number of
unit hours in a year, you're talking about
number of hours in a year?

CORY

MR. LAUER: Hours. You're right.

MR. KILMER: This assumes 24 hours a
day, every day of the week, it would be -

"JIR SKEEN: To staff one unit 24 hours
a d'?, seven days a week.

R. KILMER: All right. And the times
eight is in effect three eight-hour crews
plus two reserves?

MR. LAUER: Well, | can just run
through this real quick, if you'd like.

If you go down to the example, just
take 40, - somewhat of an arbitrary
figure. You can plug any figure in
there — that's potential
full-time-equivalent cost for wages and
benefits to staff a unit 24 hours a day,

365 days a year, suggesting it would take

R s R R P ot~ 2l
eight personnel to do that. They run, for

example, 12-hour shifts, 12 on, 12 off, all
the time. It takes eight people to do

at,

MR. KILMER: Right.

MR. LAUER: And the reason | did that
is because if you have 24/ 48-hour shift, it
would take six peopie to do that, the unit
hour cost would be less, but the volume
would be higher.

At least in my mind, we need to assume
this is going to be a very busy system.
24-hour shifts are probably not going to be
a very feasible thlnt? to do.

And then divided by — it takes 40,000
times eight. So the personnel cost of
staffing that unit for a year, 24 hours a
day, would be $320,000. Divided by the
number of hours in a year, you get
personnel, aagroll related cost at $36.53.

MR. KILMER: | guess the question |
have, the way you've done this, this
assumes the same eight people would be
available ail the time and excludes
vacation and other costs associated with

this?

MR. LAUER: Except for the cost of
ﬁgng for the vacation is included in the

cost. It does not assume additional

staffing.

For example, there's been discussion
that 'l;ve ?eard Ir: thev past thatl lrelat;'d to

y for six people. You're really paying
gr seven pepﬁa. i didn't do that. i
would be important, | think, when we look
at one kind of a model versus another that
we don't include that additional cost in
either one.

MR. SKEEN: This assumption was FTEs

only.

l‘l’lR. KILMER: | understand. The reason
I'm asking these questions only is | think
any analysis that comes out of this
committee has to refiect the real world.
We have been critical of Mr. Collins for
not doing that. We don't want to open
anything, the board does, to the same
criticism.

X AR
And if it really is higher because, as
practical matter, you have to have an
additional half person or full-time person
over the course of the year to adequately
staff these things to account for
vacations, sick leave, you know, other
leave that you grant and that kind of
:‘hlng. then that ought to be factored in

ere,

MR. LAUER: | purposely didn't include
that because then it gets difficult to
compare when you start adding in allocated
costs, different kinds of providers or
different providers in the same kind of an
organization could allocate costs
ditterent.

For example, Mark described that his
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salary was allocated on a percentage of
time he spent dealing specifically with
Muitnomah County, recognizing he deals with
a lot more than that. So when you start
making allocations, they get to be somewhat
subjective. And we need to keep that
subjectivity out of there.

ou can base it on a simple formula.

2 SRR :rage 8;
We can compare one kind of a staffing model
to another one, one system model to
another, recognizing that it doesn't
refiect a true, actual cost of the unit
hour. But for comparative sense, it gives
a good basis.

MR. KILMER: The problem is, you're
coming at this from the front end. You're
making certain assumptions and coming up
with cumulative-hour costs. Mr. Collins is
purporting to come at this from the back
end, which is taking all the costs you've
incurred and coming up with what actual
unit costs are. There's a substantial
difference between his calculations and
yours. | think there are substantial costs
than these you have put in your formula.

MR. LAUER: | agree.

MR. KILMER: And in order to geta
better sense of which more accurately
refiects the real system cost so that it
can be compared with Mr. Collins's cost —
| thought there were ambulance, industry
aaree upon add-ons for at least for the

additional personnel cost, like one person

out of five. Am | wrong?

MR. LAUER: You're not going to find
consensus on that.

MR. COLLINS: Isn't FTE about 2,000
hours a year?

DR. OXMAN: It's 2,080.

MR. COLLINS: What you need to staff
this is 8,760 hours.

MR. ROBEDEAU: You couldn’t do that.
What you're talking about with a 2,080-hour
year is essentially nine to five, five days
a week. You would have to do a minimum of
2,080 times six. That would be an absolute
minimum, not counting any vacation, sick

time.

MR. COLLINS: This is 12-hour
staffing, not 24 hours. Right?

MR. ROBEDEAU: You have to account for
the 24 hours or have a system outline to
show what you have.

MR. COLLINS: Aside from that, if you
have an employee, full-time employee,
they’re going to work a certain number of
hours a year based on their shift and how
much vacation, sick time they have for an
R age 10

eight-hour, standard eight-hour employee,
the numbers are a little over 2,000. |
don't know what it is for 12-hour
emﬂoyees. Probably slightly different.
R. ROBEDEAU: K depends again on
what your 12-hour shift is.

MR. COLLINS: it shouldn't.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Sure. Are xgu four
on/three off, or three on/four o

MR. COLLINS: There's goingtobe a
littie bit of difference. A 24-hour shift,
you're assuming they are working and not
working at the same time essentially. In
other words, you work 24 hours, not on all
the time. So you end up with a different
number there.

MR. ROBEDEAU: But you still have a
cost for that hour whether they're sleeping
or on a call.

MR. COLLINS: | was looking at the
eight-hour, 2,000 hours. The number is
pretty close,

MR. LAUER: The purpose for this is to
use a model for different kinds of
deployment plans. it's not to get into any
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more of a cost analysis other than it's
co ring Ato B.

R. KILMER: | think it's useful for
that purpose. No question about it. And
any process ought to agree on this.

R. DRAKE: There is a couple things
here — and | think you're on the right
track here, Randy - but | think there's a
couple things we need to look at: One,
your annual FTE cost. You're assuming
that's an annual average FTE cost for
employees.

R. LAUER: Actually, | assumed itas

a top.

MR. SKEEN: That's an arbitrary
figure. Please don't take that as any
representation other than it's -

MR. LAUER: You could easily turn it
into 50,000.

MR. DRAKE: | understand. if we did
assume the annual FTE cost is the cost for
the ambulance services for the three
companies, we could each come up with an
average cost for paramedic services. We
average those out, those would be the
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average cost in the system for a paramedic
FTE. could do that?

MR. COLLINS: We already did that,
ulnI:ss the figures you gave us are not
right.

MR. KILMER: No, Bill. We gave you,
and you took artificially high numbers in
the system.

MR. COLLINS: You're wrong, Jeff. We
did the cost thing. We have an average FTE
garamedic cost of 30,000-some-odd dollars.

hat has nothing to do with where they're
depltared, where they are, anything.

MR. KILMER: In other words, the
Rumsger you're working on is not 40,000,

‘s 30 ~

MR. COLLINS: He said we could come up
tv:’ith an average number, and | said we did

at.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Trace just said don't
believe the 40,000.

MR. DRAKE: | understand it's an
arbitrary figure. | understand that. I'm
saying to come closer to the actual cost of
the current system, we could average the
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paramedic FTE cost currently in the
system. We could all three —- Pete comes
up with a number, | come up with a number,
you come up with a number. We average it
out. Okay? We can do that.

That would be the same number we all
use to plug into all the models.

MR. LAUER: Could, but it gives you
more variables. | think if you look,
evergbody has pag scales that are
established, whether they're contractual or
not contractual. They have a pay scale.
Just look at that pay scale and take a
top-of-the-scale paramedic, | think you're
co! ring the same kind of thing from one
provider or staffing configuration to
another,

MR. SKEEN: | think the concern from
Jeff and probably from Mark, too, is that
this nu r — make sure eve dy
understands — this number is not the full
cost of staffing that unit. itis the
lowest common denominator we could get to
without variables. it is clearly not the
full cost, uniess you don't give a
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your people any time off.
MEDRAKE: Right.
DR. OXMAN: Randy, is the goal here
just to — | guess I'm reading into this a
goal of getting an index of how systems
compare to each other and cost. This one

will save about a million, this one will
save about a half a million, given this set
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of assumptions. So whatever number you
choose, it doesn’t matter.

1 think the issue is you want it close
enough to reality so that when you talk
about that ballpark figure, what you're
?oin to save and what the cost difference

s, it has some reasonabie relationship to
reality, ptus or minus, 30 percent, 50
percent, whatever. Is that the goal?

MR. LAUER: Yeah. An index, that's
exactly what it is.

MR. DRAKE: Right. I'm tryinF to get
to that, but I'm trying to get as close to
the real number we're currently using as
possibie. | think it's simple to get to
that one number by simply averaging the FTE
cost by the three providers. | take our
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average FTE cost, his, you, we put it into
the system. That's the number we use from
now on. it would be the same unit cost

number.

MR. KILMER: it seems to me that's the
more efficient way to do it, because that's
the real number. You take that number,
say, what happens if you increase wages
from what they are now to by five percent?
What if you change ambulance staffing so
you have one EMT instead of two? You can
talk unit hour, cost per hour of exposure
or experience or something like that. So
once you get this one nu 1, then you can
test all different assumptions on that
formula.

| tend to agree with Mark, that his
approach would give you a number that would
be more meaningful throughout this game
plan than this artificial one.

MR. LAUER: Except if you look from
provider A to provider B — say, provider
A, all their EMT-I's are brand-new. That
average EMT-I cost is real low. Provider
B's EMTs have been around. That costis
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higher. Provider B has a higher pay scale
but similar to provider A.

You have to look at potentials, |
think, especially if that's a goal in here
somewhere, to reduce turnover. You're
recognizing eventually you want to get
people up to that level.

MR. KIiLMER: But anuystem that comes
out of this will hopefully be one to come
$p to that. You take system averages now.

'ou take a provider now. You're going to
Fet a fair look at what this is going to
ook like. You're always going to have
turnover.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think what Jetf is
saying, if you apply the same numbers to
evaluation, if everybody has the same
evaluation, we can choose a buck an hour if
you want to, as long as everybody has the
same numbers. What Mark is saying, trying
to make it realistic to what is currently
happening in the world today and apply all
those exact same numbers to any system as
evaluated or anx proposed system as
evaluated, and Jeff is more going to

T

sticking with the same numbers.

i think they’re both saying the same
thing. | think you all three are saying
the same thing.

MR. KILMER: it's just a question what
number you use.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Which number you use.
| think that's irrelevant. it's probably
better to go with something that's pretty
close to current-day cost just so that it
can be compared. But | think the thing
that's really important is to make sure the
number remain the exactly the same, the
formula remain the same, the formula remain
the same throughout any figuring for

evaluation purposes.
MR. DRXKEF:”nght. That's why |

wanted to bring up two points.
MR. ROBEDEAU: You said the FTE for
come up with taxes and benefits. You're
also including the taxes?
MR. LAUER: Yes.
MR. ROBEDEAU: I'm going to finish on
this. We've gotten off here a little bit.
We need to get back to starting the
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meeting.

MR. KILMER: That's all been on the
record, | hope.

THE COURT REPORTER: Yes.

MR. DRAKE: We have started the
meeting.

MR. DRAKE: The other point | wanted
to make, when you're talking about unit
hours in the year, we're talking about
total unit hours, that's what I'm referring
to. You used this as an example. Is that
right?

MR. LAUER: (Nods head.)

MR. DRAKE: Same with number required
to staff a unit, you're talking about the
total number required, total staffin
retlugremems. not to staff a particular
unit

MR. LAUER: Yes.

MR. DRAKE: So you're talking about
total staffing requirements, to get to the
final number.

MR. LAUER: With the staffing pattern
that utilized eI?ht people to accomplish
it, and accomplishing 8,760 unit hours per

000

ar, for example, 12-hour shifts back
ck would take eight people. Eight peopie
that ran 12 hours a day would take 48 hours
still, divide the annual number of hours in
it, the personnel hours would be lower, so
therefore the unit hours would be lower.

it's a mathematical process. We can't
look at it as being true and actual costs
of your system because we know it's a

rtion ot it, but it's not the whole thing

¥ sure.

MR. DRAKE: | assume you would
determine unit-hour costs for FTE now.
That's one the formulas that you pull out
of {:ur analysis?

R. LAUER: M-hm.

MR. DRAKE: That is essentially the
same formula you're using, take the FTE
cost and divide them bry the number of unit
hours to find your total costs. Right?

MR. LAUER: Right. That's an internal
thing. Other people could question how we
arrive at that, how you allocate your costs
to get unit-hour costs. We could question
each other's methodology of doing that.
SRR i s e Page 205
You keep that out of the formula, you don't
have all these questions and variables
hanging around.

R. KILMER: Mr. Chairman, can | say
that | think what this demonstrates is the
whole problem with the process that we have
had, and it was revealed even in the
discussion last week, and | wasn't here but
I've read the minutes. In order to do any
adequate study of system costs,
particularly when you are going to
recommend changes in the system because of
alleged cost changes and cost savings, you
have to have an agreed upon measure for
those costs.

And on the simplest issue, which is
unit-hour costs, there is no such
agreement, because in this whole process,
untii last week, no part of the process
ever asked that question. That's one of
the criticisms we have had with the rst
process. And when Mr. Collins did his
work, he never gave us a chance to evaluate
that before he announced it. So that we
are reduced to the situation of trying to
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come up with comments about it.

But last week's whole meeting seemed
to suggest that there was no even consensus
in the system, even the most sophisticated
components on it, on how costs are to be
defined. There's no consensus on the
adequacy of the data with respect to
costs. Very few of those have been
Identified with any specificity.

There are no questions about the
adequacy of Mr. Collins’ data collection
efforts, in the sense he didn't collect on
the public side of the system, he didn’t
collect on the nonemergency side of the
system, and he didn't collect on the
nonambulance transport components of the
system. There are real questions about the
way in which Mr. Collins used the data he
had. But there's a real question about the
adetfuacy of the metho olo?y that he used in
limiting his inquiry to the private-company
EMS transport costs and rates, without
measuring them against the public - the
nonemergency component of this.

And all of us at the table were

communicating it various ways. We didn't
feel this led to a realistic explanation or
analysis or picture of what was in this
system.

And it seems to me that the agenda for

today ought to be, first, what costs ought
to be evaluated when you are doing
ambulance planning?

And it seems to me that those must
include at least the ambulance response and
transportation costs for emergency
services. They ought to also include the
balances and rates for private services,
particularly if that's going to be
separated out, because the costs have to be
recovered from that system someplace. if
you're going to transfer from public to
rrlvate, you have to look at the increase

n rates there, and you also have to look
at whether you're really going to suffer a
decreased system cost.

This requires you to define, what is
the system? is the system just private
ambulance transport? Is the system first
response plus emergency transport? Is the

s

S B age
system emergency response plus public and
private transport? Is the system BOEC? Is
the system EMS administration? Does the
system include medical supervision?

None of those costs have been
determined or put into this system, and,
therefore, different systems can't be
compared in terms of the effect on those
other system costs to determine whether
there's real system change.

Once those costs have been defined,
then you have to take a look at the role of
rates. What are the rates supposed to
recover? Clearly, there is tax sugpon for
this. That tax support is now in the fire
department first response and it's in BOEC,
itis in EMS, it's in medical supervision,
and it's in — but there's none tor
transportation.

Under these new plans, you're %olng to
transfer some costs to the public side.
Some of those may be recovered in rates,
some may not. But there will be increased
responsibilities under BOEC under
Mr. Collins's plan. There will be
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increased administration expenses under
Mr. Collins plan which doesn't exist now,
and all of which has to be measured, the
Iincrease, against the supposed decreases
u're going to get from his changes. That
as not occurred.
Once you've defined what the rates are
supposed to recover, then you have to look
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cost.

at the impact of increased costs in the
rate structure in terms of what that's
goimto do to the rates.

at that's %oing to do is, for every
dollar increase in rate-aliocated system
costs, you have to raise your rates twice
that dollar because of the reduced
collection fee. And the fact is that
because we have reached the limit of our
ability to collect from private n’tepaYers,
the marginal increase in recovery will
begin togeo down from that 50 percent,
independent of Medicare, Medicaid, and
other heaith reforms that are going on.
And that has to be factored into this as
well when you decide what you want in the

system and whether the system can bear that

R Page 25
And then to the extent the cost is not
recovered in the rates, is it a subsidy?
Are there different ways of taking that
subsidy and buxll:? the biggest bang for the
buck for that? that's the kind o
analysis that has to be done, and they all
interrelate to everything else, just like
the environment.
And any discussion that tries to break
that down is ultimately not going to lead
to something that is not useful in this
debate. That's been the problem with this
process, | think, to date.
MR. SKEEN: So are you suggesting,
Jeff, that we do that as a committee, or we
go back to the discussion last Tuesday and
talk about brlnaing: financial wizard in?
MR. KILMER: u know, Trace, we
have recommended from daY one that any
planning be done in a committee that has
sophisticated people on it, financial
Weople. business people, ambulance people.
‘ve always felt that should be done
rather than have the MAB or County
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Commission or somebody else that has none

of that expertise do it. And the process

ought to be one in which all of these

issues are evaluated together and finally

:alanced out. | think that's what ought to
appen.

R iously, this committee cannot do
what an eight-year process should have done
and has never touched in four more weeks.
And | think that this makes it quite clear,

ust the fact you can't even agree on the
sic numbers that for this system to be

adequate we have to — this process to be

adequate, it requires more time.

And I'd like to propose to the
chairman, you know, the letter go out that
we said we might have to send, that we
can't adequately do this in the time period
established by the County Commission. |
assume that's also going to be set back
because of Gladys McCoy's untimely death
and the new election and everything.

My suggestion is that it can't be as
simple, even as you said, of having a
financial wizard do this. It ought to have

more than just a financial wizard, but it
ought to at least have a financial wizard
in the process.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | think what Bill is
referring to, Jeff, is table three in his
plan. Do you have his plan?

MR.C NS: I'm referring to what?

MR. ROBEDEAU: When you started to —

MR. COLLINS: But that was based on
what Mark was saying. He said you wanted
the average FTE cost. That has the average
FTE cost.

MR. KILMER: That has the average FTE
cost by your calculation.

MR. COLLINS: Has the average FTE cost
as reported to me by the companies in
answering the question, what is your
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average FTE cost. You can argue they gave
me the wrong figures.

MR. KILMER: No. We argue you didn't
g‘g:hme right thing with those figures,

MR. COLLINS: There isn't anything to
do with it. If | ask you how old are you
and you tell me 53, and | go, 53, | didn't

':.E" \5 :-'é.'»\i' R B
really do much, you know. This is the
average FTE cost that you onvlded.

MR LAUER: Ifwe're - 'm sorry.

MR. COLLINS: And it's a weighted cost
based on how many relative pieces of the
unit hours are provided, basically half and
a quarter and a quarter.

MR. KILMER: You include —

MR. DRAKE: Wait a minute. | have a
question on that. Let's not lose that.

You said weighted average. How did
you assign that weight?

MR. COLLINS: Just on the general
percentage of the business so that —

MR.D E: General percentage of the
business. What is that general percentage
3"?‘ 5 u used? General percentage of

MR. COLLINS: 50, 25, and 25.

MR. DRAKE: So you assigned 50 to

Buck?
MR. COLLINS: Right. And 25 and 25,
for purposes of averaging out the FTE.
MR. ROBEDEAU: Wait a minute. You
weighted - | don’t understand.

MR. COLLINS: If your average FTE cost
for paramedics was ,000 and Buck's
average was $22,000, | took your 20,000
times a quarter of the business and their
22,000 times half the business when | was
averaging out the number. | could have
averaged out the same, and it would just
have been a slightly different number. {f
you're roughly a quarter of the business
and he's roughly a halif of the business,
there's a difference in the two costs, |
glve you a quarter's worth of the cost and

im half the cost.

Now, it might be 27 percent and 51
percent, but that isn‘t going to make a big
difference in the average —

IMR. LAUER: Mr. Kiimer made a good
point -

MR. COLLINS: - plus they're all real
close.

MR. LAUER: - earlier when he said we
can’t agree on methodology. That's pretty
clear, at | try to do is make it as
simple as possible. We can't even seem to
agree to that.

i think when Bill came into this
system, what he came in with a mind to do
was to build a consensus about what the
system should be, excluding any past
processes occurred, and realizes now thata
consensus, agreement among all the peopie
who pbald input into the EMS system is not
possible.

MR. KILMER: | don't think he gave it
a chance. | think we moved very close to a
consensus, and it's unfortunate that was
interrupted b‘some precipitous action.

MR. LAUER: Jeff, we've been
discussing this for millenniums.

MR. ROBEDEAU: That's exactly the
point. This thing, you know, didn't all of
a sudden jump out for some reason. | don't
know what itis. I'm sure somebody was
told to put something on the table. But
the fact is, that it was produced, given to
the MAB, and said, rule on it, and that's
what it was. And there is nothing about
the MAB's hearing process or the MAB that
says that there was any chance of ever
having a fair hearing on this.
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All you have to do is look at the
makeup of the MAB. You've got the chair of
the MAB is the author of the white paper
that came out ten or 15 years ago. You've
got Dugoni on the MAB who has been saying
since day one — and he doesn't even want
to listen to facts — that slngle provider
is the only way to go. You've Cole
Theander, who is a member of PAPA and
author of the PAPA proposal. You just
right down the MAB and you can see what the
process Is.

And the process says, there's
la1bso||utely nothing here that is a fair

earing.

MR. KILMER: Randy, you say we have
talked for millennium. That is not true.
There has been nothing in this process that
has allowed everyone the quality of
discussion that we have had today, in all
of the eight years. We have tried and
tried to have such a process. We have
submitted data that, if ever reviewed,
might have led to something. But the talk
that we have done has been entirely sterile

R
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for the reasons that | talked about here.
The issues that are really important
with respect to costs and understanding the
system have never been addressed in any
substance. Now, Mr. Collins did start to
do that with his work group, but then they
stopped. We thought they were going to
continue, and they did, and instead out
cor%e“s this. o ctive. |
s process, from my prospective, is -
sort of a Rosemary's br:gy. We're stuck
with it. What we need to do now is try, in
the last minute, to have a process that
goes into this in a littile more depth.
MR. LAUER: What you're suggesting,
though, if the process doesn't result in
total agreement, the process is flawed. |
suggest there is no such process.
R. KILMER: | don't think it can
result in total consensus agreement. What
is resulting is much more consensus on
basic issues. You don't happen to be part
of that consensus on that issue, but there
is a lot of consensus that you have heard
about, about a tiered response with two

33500

rflvate providers, medical control at OHSU
n

a situation where that contracts with
the county and has many of the — provides
everything that everybody ever wanted from
a single-provider system.

That sort of consensus is beﬂlnnln to
develop and was before Mr. Collins’ p?an.

MR. LAUER: |don’t know that that's
much of a consensus than a compromise.

MR. KILMER: What is a consensus but a
compromise? There is no such thing as an
consensus but the ideal situation. It's an
oxymoron.

MR. DRAKE: Pete, can we get this
meeting back on track?

MR. ROBEDEAU: | was going to let the
discussion on this thing continue until it
ﬂ&nlshed. There’s no point in stopping

MR. DRAKE: | think we need to get
back on track, if we can. | think there's
some points to discuss on this. | agree.

MR. STEINMAN: Has the meeting been
called to order?

MR. ROBEDEAU: It was called to order
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a lonaﬂme ago. Or disorder?

MR. KILMER: Come on, ?‘uys. This has
been what is the track. You keep saying
you :!’ant to get on the track. at is the
trac

MR. DRAKE: We wanted to approve the
minutes and get back to the discussion.
MR. LAUER: We ought to at least
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approve the minutes.

MR. STEINMAN: { like the minutes.
Good job, Steve.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: They keep getting
shorter and shorter. | don't know if
that's because you g%ys are talking less or
my arm is getting tired.

MR. LAUER: Jeff wasn’t here.

MR. STEINMAN: Jeff was gone.

MR. ROBEDEAU: if you're doing
corrections, on page 2, second paragraph
below “Discussion on how to measure,*
you've 1.3 million. it shouid be 3.1,

MR. COLLINS: On page 3, at the last
paragraph, it says the county should not
regulate noncomgetiﬂve, i.e. the
nonemergency. it should be the competitive

RERae ‘
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or the — the nonemergency is right, but
the nonemergency is the competitive side,
not the nonemergency noncompetitive.
(Mr. Chris Thomas entered the
room.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Are there any
additional corrections?

Can we get a motion, then, to approve
the minutes?

MR. DRAKE: Randy made the motion to
approve the minutes.

MR. ROBEDEAU: | was out getting
food. Sorry about that. Anybody second?

MR.D E: I'll second.

MR. ROBEDEAU: In favor?

(Vote taken.)

MR. ROBEDEAU: Opposed?

None. All rl&ht. Carried.

MR. STEINMAN: Pete, before we get
into this other stuff, | have a question to
ask of the providers, provider business.

We're gettlng a lot of tension on the
street with our providers. We need to not

take this battle down to that level. I'm
getting a lot of complaints in about

uncooperative paramedics who will stand
back and not do patient care, make comments
either about our wages or PAPA’s plan.

And | did receive a letter in my
mailbox — | don't know if Buck was nice
enough to send it over or an employee — a
letter you sent out on the labor stuff.
And we're taking this battie down to a
level it should not be, and | would hope
xou would encourage your people to iet us

ght It out here and at the levels we get

paid to fight it out at and not in front of
the patients and not jeopardize patient
care out there.

| did send out a memo today asking for
anybody to report any instances, and | will
forward those to the county when they come
in. But one of our division chiefs stopped
by one of the stations yesterday and got an
earful. And he was very concerned, as |
am. And | know we can’t do anything about
PAPA cnnkln% them up, but if we could keep
it at this level, | would appreciate it.

MR. SKEEN: Your point is well taken,
Tom. Butit's probably a bit naive to

think, as evidenced by the testimony at the

what they get paid to deal with patients,
not get involved with that system.

have been successful in this
system, and | think all the providers
should be thanked for what they have done
in this, because | think everybody has in
the last eight, ten years worked hard to
keep it here, and it can be done and should
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be done throughout this pr:

MR. LAUER: Can | respond to that?

| agree. | think it is naive to think
that we can somehow keep paramedics in a
bubble and isolate them from the process
that has been building consensus, that
Mr. Kilmer described, that would change the
whole nature of their jobs, eliminate the
part of the job for which most of us,
myself included, got into this line of work
in the first place.

That's a paramount concern to our
employees. Those are the people I'm
responsible to, and they've got a right to
know what's going on.

Now, { agree it shouldn’t interfere
with patient care. | don’t necessarily
think that people know what the issues are
automa(icaun—

MR. STEINMAN: An information letter |
have no problem with, but when you don’t
somewhere in that letter ask them to let us
do the stuff, come to us with the problems,
not discuss it on the street, when you call
it a fight that they're involved with and

=z

we need your support in this fight, | think
rou're asking for it to drg{: down onto the
ev?l cltlzens‘ see it at’l'dl | tllezens :lee d

tient care is potentially jeopardized.
R:d | think that's insane.

MR. LAUER: | don't think it gives
people much credit to assume they're not
going to take that to the street.

Paramedics -- and | hope this goes on
the record. | think paramedics are mature
people who know where to keep the politics,
where to ;ﬁ(p the patient care.

MR.D I Ei: Raf:udy, r;‘e is sa)‘in hhe's
gotten complaints from the people, it has

en down to the street level and is
nvolved in the street paramedics.

MR. LAUER: Let us see the complaints,
and we can deal with it. | don't want to
res&ond to anything eise.

R. DRAKE: | agree.

MR. SKEEN: That point is well taken.
| don't think there's any encouragement to
employees to take that to the street. By
the same token, it's our responsibility to
communicate to empioyees about what's going

20020

on.
Tom, if that's how it was perceived,
we'll take some action to try to reverse
that because there was no intent —
MR. STEINMAN: I'd appreciate that.
MR. SKEEN: - that patient care
should be compromised in this process. But
obviously there's a lot of anxiety
involved, probably from all of us. And it
probably deserves a conversation between

MAB meeting, that employees aren't you and | independent of this setting to
concerned a%out mlmn?there's alot 12 talk about some of those things.
that we can do to try to curtail that, but 13 MR. STEINMAN: Now, slig tl‘y off the
to think that employees' jobs aren‘t 14 subject, in reading that letter, itis
threatened by this [n this environment is a 15 more — your wording — a tiered system is,
bit naive. 16 from a purely economic standpoint as it
I'm anxious to get this resolved as 17 relates to Buck Medical Service, a tiered
soon as possible. 18 model system is probably superior to the
MR. STEINMAN: Trace, gzu may think 19 model we have currently.
it's naive. i've been in this business for 20 Is that true?
eight years. We've been successful in 21 MR. SKEEN: Depends how you spell it
_keeping it off the streets. You sentouta 22 out. There are scenarios that could
letter that | think stirred that up quite a 23 argued. Until we figure out what our unit
bit. | don't think that's called for. | 24 costs are going to be - that's why | kept
think we get paid big bucks to come in here 25 suggesting for the last coupie of weeks
and fight with each other. They get paid
age 34 to Page 41
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think we need to gr* e
various options, the various plans, and
talk about what types of resources, what
kind of protocols are going to be involved
in a tiered response system. Until we get
that, it just seems like all of this other
discussion and dialogue is kind of
meaningless.

MR. DRAKE: But | think it's i rtant
to point out, Trace, if the paramedics are
concerned, that any correspondence to the
employees as groups would encourage them to
participate in this process, not at the
street level, but the process we're engaged
in on a weekly basis. Encourage the
employees to come to this meeting forum and
express their views or frustrations.
That's what the meeting forum is.

MR. ROBEDEAU: The dog and ponY show,
| understand, at the ast MAB meeting

think is totally uncalied for, especially

when | know one person who is very much
involved in PAPA, he's an employee of AA,
quite frankly, stood up there and started
bad-mouthing the fire department about how

lousy they were. | think that's
inappropriate. No. 1, | don't think he
knows what he's talking about; and, No. 2,
that's what's being — by some people, and
| don't believe it's management of any of
the companies, but some of the paramedics
are encouraging to happen. And | think
that's what Tom is talking about.

| would really prefer if — Tom, if
you want to turn the complaints in to EMS,
that's up to you. But | would like to see
a phone call directly to me as soon as you
find out about it, because the faster we
can get looking at them, the better off
we're going to be.

MR. STEINMAN: Anything that
jeopardizes patient care | will turn in to
the county and talk to you about it, which
is also a personality confiict for
providers.

MR. ROBEDEAU: In the county that's
fine, but I'd like to get it as quickly as

ssible.

MR. KILMER: { think it's important to
note here that to some extent PAPA and the

paramedics are sowing the wind and reaping
the whirlwind, which is a process likely to
hurt them than help them, and they are
upset about that that the provider
management has done or has any control
over.

Itis irresponsible for people to whip
that ? and appeal to that for company
agendas. ! think that's where people have
to be careful.

MR. STEINMAN: I'm not saying that's
what Buck did. The letter could be
interpreted many ways. | really blame PAPA
for the major stir on that, because once
they were at our tri-data meeting, it took
iess than four hours for them to convince
AA and CARE's paramedics they were sold
out, and we had a nightmave with people not
wanting to bring in that gurneys or
lanyt“ﬂng else. They're the major stirrers

n this.

MR. ROBEDEAU: You listen to the
street, and what's happening is real
obvious. You know, they have convinced
themselves, through whatever process they
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used, that once they decided that they were
going to do this, there was nothing anybody
could do and that they would completeiy be
in contrel. And | believe, from listening
to some of the things I've gotten fed back,
that certain people running for office,

litical office, contri to that
eling. And now they all of a sudden find

out that somebody else has a voice. They
feel betrayed by a whole bunch of peopie,
and they don't know which waa/ to jump.
Right now | think they're takin
out on MAB, and thzy don't take it to the
people who whipped up this frenzy.
MR. SKEEN: Who ar:xou referring to
when you sa 'theﬁﬂ PAPA?

MR. ROBEDEAU: The paramedics, not
necessamEPAPA
MR. SKEEN: Paramedics in general.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Paramedics in general.
PAPA fed this thing. There were certain
reop!e that attended meetings that helped,

think, whip up this frenzy six or eight
months ago, a year ago, whatever it was
that — I'd have to go back to the PAPA
s YPage 45008
meetings, before PAPA closed their meetings
and wouidn’t allow anybody else to come to
them. And you had — one was — one of the
members of the MAB stood up and told PAPA
how lousy all the ambulance companies, the
owners, and managers were. | mean, you had
certain political individuals involved in
this stuff too.

And | think the paramedics generally
feel — they went through this period where
they were very convinced that the
controlled the whole world, and all of a
sudden they realized they don't, and they
have a very — they have a feeling of being

betralx‘ed.

MR. DRAKE: | think we all recognize
the paramedics are frustrated and that we
as providers back our paramedics and
consult with them and explain to them. We
expect them to act professionally at all
times.

Tom, you're going to get to us any
complaints which we hear, any comments. |
appreciate that.

MR. ROBEDEAU: Well, let's move on. |
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took a stab, | passed it out to
everybody — Chris, | don't know if you
have one.

MR. THOMAS: |do.

MR. ROBEDEAU: -~ the handout | gave,
Provider Board evaluation questions, this |
think goes along with what Trace was trying
to g